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PART I
Item 1. Business.
GENERAL

Comericalncorporated (“Comerica’) isafinancial servicescompany, incorporated under thelawsof the Stateof Delaware,
and headquartered in Dallas, Texas. Based on total assets as reported in the most recently filed Consolidated Financial Statements
for Bank Holding Companies (FR Y-9C), it was among the 25 largest commercial United States (“U.S.”) financial holding
companies. Comericawas formed in 1973 to acquire the outstanding common stock of Comerica Bank, which at such time was
a Michigan banking corporation and one of Michigan's oldest banks (formerly Comerica Bank-Detroit). On October 31, 2007,
Comerica Bank, a Michigan banking corporation, was merged with and into Comerica Bank, a Texas banking association
(“ComericaBank™). Asof December 31, 2017, Comericaowned directly or indirectly all the outstanding common stock of 2 active
banking and 39 non-banking subsidiaries. At December 31, 2017, Comerica had total assets of approximately $71.6 hillion, total
deposits of approximately $57.9 hillion, total loans (net of unearned income) of approximately $49.2 billion and shareholders’
equity of approximately $8.0 billion.

Business Segments

Comericahas strategically aligned its operationsinto three major business segments: the Business Bank, the Retail Bank,
and Wealth Management. In addition to the three major business segments, Finance is also reported as a segment. We provide
information about our business segments and the principal products and services provided by these segments in Note 23 on
pages F-97 through F-101 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements located in the Financial Section of this report.

Comerica operates in three primary geographic markets - Texas, California, and Michigan, as well as in Arizona and
Florida, with select businesses operating in several other states, and in Canada and Mexico. We provide information about our
market segmentsin Note 23 on pages F-97 through F-101 of the Notesto Consolidated Financia StatementslocatedintheFinancia
Section of thisreport.

Activities with customers domiciled outside the U.S,, in total or with any individual country, are not significant. We
provide information on risks attendant to foreign operations: (1) under the caption “ Concentration of Credit Risk” on pages F-25
through F-26 of the Financial Section of this report; and (2) under the caption "International Exposure" on page F-28 of the
Financial Section of this report.

We provide information about the net interest income and noninterest income we received from our various classes of
products and services: (1) under the caption, “ Analysis of Net Interest Income” on page F-6 of the Financial Section of thisreport;
(2) under the caption “Net Interest Income” on page F-7 of the Financia Section of this report; and (3) under the caption
“Noninterest Income” on pages F-8 through F-9 of the Financial Section of this report.

COMPETITION

Thefinancial servicesbusinessishighly competitive. Comericaand itssubsidiariesmainly competein their three primary
geographic markets of Texas, California and Michigan, as well as in the states of Arizona and Florida. They also compete in
broader, national geographic markets, aswell as marketsin Mexico and Canada. They are subject to competition with respect to
various products and services, including, without limitation, loans and lines of credit, deposits, cash management, capital market
products, international tradefinance, lettersof credit, foreign exchange management services, |oan syndication services, consumer
lending, consumer deposit gathering, mortgageloan origination, consumer products, fiduciary services, private banking, retirement
services, investment management and advisory services, investment banking services, brokerage services, the sale of annuity
products, and the sale of life, disability and long-term care insurance products.

Comerica competes in terms of products and pricing with large national and regional financia institutions and with
smaller financial ingtitutions. Some of Comerica's larger competitors, including certain nationwide banks that have a significant
presence in Comerica's market area, may make available to their customers a broader array of product, pricing and structure
aternatives and, due to their asset size, may more easily absorb credit losses in a larger overall portfolio. Some of Comericas
competitors (larger or smaller) may have more liberal lending policies and processes. | ncreasingly, Comerica competes with other
companies based on financia technology and capabilities, such as mobile banking applications and money movement. Further,
Comerica's banking competitors may be subject to asignificantly different or reduced degree of regulation due to their asset size
or types of products offered. They may also have the ability to more efficiently utilize resources to comply with regulations or
may be able to more effectively absorb the costs of regulations into their existing cost structure. Comerica believesthat the level
of competition in all geographic markets will continue to increase in the future.

I'n addition to banks, Comerica'sbanking subsidiariesal so face competition from other financial intermediaries, including
savings and loan associations, consumer finance companies, leasing companies, venture capital funds, credit unions, investment
banks, insurance companies and securities firms. Competition among providers of financial products and services continues to
increase as technology advances have lowered the barriers to entry for financia technology companies, with consumers having
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the opportunity to select from a growing variety of traditional and nontraditional aternatives, including crowdfunding, digital
wallets and money transfer services. The ability of non-banking financial institutions to provide services previously limited to
commercia banks has intensified competition. Because non-banking financial institutions are not subject to many of the same
regulatory restrictionsasbanksand bank holding companies, they can often operatewith greater flexibility and lower cost structures.

In addition, the industry continues to consolidate, which affects competition by eliminating some regional and local
institutions, while strengthening the franchises of acquirers.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Banks, bank holding companies, andfinancial institutionsarehighly regul ated at both the stateand federal level. Comerica
is subject to supervision and regulation at the federal level by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (“FRB”)
under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended. Comerica Bank is chartered by the State of Texas and at the state
level is supervised and regulated by the Texas Department of Banking under the Texas Finance Code. Comerica Bank has el ected
to be amember of the Federal Reserve System under the Federal Reserve Act and, consequently, is supervised and regul ated by
the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas. Comerica Bank & Trust, National Association is chartered under federal law and is subject
to supervision and regulation by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”) under the National Bank Act. Comerica
Bank & Trust, National Association, by virtue of being a national bank, is also a member of the Federal Reserve System. The
deposits of Comerica Bank and Comerica Bank & Trust, National Association are insured by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (*FDIC”) to the extent provided by law. Certain transactions executed by Comerica Bank
are also subject to regulation by the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission. The Department of Labor ("DOL") regulates
financial ingtitutions providing services to plans governed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”).
In Canada, ComericaBank is supervised by the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutionsand in Mexico, by the Banco
de México.

The FRB supervises non-banking activities conducted by companies directly and indirectly owned by Comerica. In
addition, Comerica's non-banking subsidiariesare subject to supervision and regul ation by various state, federal and self-regul atory
agencies, including, but not limited to, the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc., the Department of Licensing and
Regulatory Affairs of the State of Michigan and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board ("M SRB") (in the case of Comerica
Securities, Inc.); the Department of Insurance and Financial Services of the State of Michigan (in the case of Comerica Insurance
Services, Inc.); the DOL (in the case of Comerica Securities, Inc. and Comerica Insurance Services, Inc.); and the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) (in the case of Comerica Securities, Inc. and World Asset Management, Inc.).

Both the scope of the laws and regulations and intensity of supervision to which our businessis subject have increased
inrecent years, in responseto the financial crisisaswell as other factors such astechnological and market changes. Many of these
changes have occurred as a result of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act")
and its implementing regulations, most of which are now in place. President Trump has issued an executive order that sets forth
principlesfor thereform of thefederal financial regulatory framework, and the Republican mgjority in Congress hasal so suggested
an agenda for financial regulatory change. It is too early to assess whether there will be any major changes in the regulatory
environment or merely arebalancing of the post-financial crisis framework. Accordingly, Comerica expects that its business will
remain subject to extensive regulation and supervision.

Described below are material elements of selected laws and regulations applicable to Comericaand its subsidiaries. The
descriptions are not intended to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the full text of the statutes and
regulationsdescribed. Changesin applicablelaw or regulation, and intheir application by regulatory agencies, cannot be predicted,
but they may have a material effect on the business of Comerica and its subsidiaries.

Requirements for Approval of Activities and Acquisitions

The Gramm-L each-Bliley Act expanded the activitiesin which abank holding company registered asafinancial holding
company can engage. Comerica became a financial holding company in 2000. As a financial holding company, Comerica may
affiliate with securities firms and insurance companies, and engage in activities that are financial in nature. Activities that are
“financial in nature” include, but are not limited to: securities underwriting; securities dealing and market making; sponsoring
mutual fundsand investment companies (subject to regul atory requirements described bel ow); insurance underwriting and agency;
merchant banking; and activitiesthat the FRB has determined to befinancial in nature or incidental or complementary to afinancial
activity, provided that it does not pose a substantial risk to the safety or soundness of the depository institution or the financial
system generally.
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The conditionsto beafinancia holding company include, anong others, the requirement that each depository institution
subsidiary of the holding company be well capitalized and well managed. The Dodd-Frank Act aso requires the well capitalized
and well managed standards to be met at the financial holding company level. Comerica, Comerica Bank and Comerica Bank &
Trust, National Association, are each “well capitalized” and “well managed” under FRB standards. If any subsidiary bank of
Comericawere to cease being “well capitalized” or “well managed” under applicable regulatory standards, the FRB could place
limitations on Comerica's ability to conduct the broader financial activities permissible for financial holding companies or impose
limitations or conditions on the conduct or activities of Comericaor itsaffiliates. If the deficiencies persisted, the FRB could order
Comericato divest any subsidiary bank or to cease engaging in any activities permissible for financial holding companiesthat are
not permissible for bank holding companies, or Comerica could elect to conform its non-banking activities to those permissible
for abank holding company that is not also afinancial holding company.

In addition, the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (*CRA™) requires U.S. banks to help serve the credit needs of
their communities. Comerica Bank's current rating under the “CRA” is “satisfactory”. If any subsidiary bank of Comericawere
to receive arating under the CRA of less than “ satisfactory,” Comericawould be prohibited from engaging in certain activities.

Federal and state laws impose notice and approval requirements for mergers and acquisitions of other depository
institutions or bank holding companies. In many cases, no FRB approval isrequired for Comericato acquire acompany engaged
in activities that are financia in nature or incidental to activities that are financial in nature, as determined by the FRB. Prior
approval is required before Comerica may acquire the beneficial ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting shares or
substantially all of theassetsof abank hol ding company (including afinancial holding company) or abank. Further, the effectiveness
of Comericaand itssubsidiariesin complying with anti-money laundering regul ations (discussed bel ow) isalso taken into account
by the FRB when considering applications for approval of acquisitions.

Transactions with Affiliates

Variousgovernmental requirements, including Sections23A and 23B of the Federal ReserveAct andthe FRB'sRegulation
W, limit borrowings by Comerica and its nonbank subsidiaries from its affiliate insured depository institutions, and also limit
various other transactions between Comerica and its nonbank subsidiaries, on the one hand, and Comerica's affiliate insured
depository ingtitutions, on the other. For example, Section 23A of the Federal ReserveAct limitsthe aggregate outstanding amount
of any insured depository institution's loans and other “covered transactions’ with any particular nonbank affiliate (including
financial subsidiaries) to no more than 10% of the institution's total capital and limits the aggregate outstanding amount of any
insured depository ingtitution's covered transactions with all of its nonbank affiliates to no more than 20% of its total capital.
“Covered transactions’ are defined by statute to include (i) aloan or extension of credit, (ii) a purchase of securitiesissued by an
affiliate, (iii) a purchase of assets (unless otherwise exempted by the FRB) from the affiliate, (iv) the acceptance of securities
issued by the affiliate as collateral for aloan, (v) the issuance of aguarantee, acceptance or letter of credit on behalf of an affiliate
and (vi) securities borrowing or lending transactions and derivative transactions with an affiliate, to the extent that either causes
abank or its affiliate to have credit exposure to the securities borrowing/lending or derivative counterparty. Section 23A of the
Federal ReserveAct also generally requiresthat aninsured depository institution'sloansto its nonbank affiliates be, at aminimum,
100% secured, and Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act generally requiresthat an insured depository institution's transactions
with its nonbank affiliates be on terms and under circumstances that are substantially the same or at least as favorable as those
prevailing for comparable transactions with nonaffiliates.

Data Privacy and Cyber Security Regulation

Comerica is subject to many U.S. federal, state and international laws and regulations governing requirements for
maintaining policies and proceduresto protect the non-public confidential information of customers and employees. The privacy
provisionsof the Gramm-L each-Bliley Act generally prohibit financial institutions, including Comerica, from disclosing nonpublic
personal financial information of consumer customersto third partiesfor certain purposes (primarily marketing) unless customers
have the opportunity to “opt out” of the disclosure. Other laws and regulations, at the international, federal and state level, limit
Comericas ability to share certain information with affiliates and non-affiliates for marketing and/or non-marketing purposes, or
to contact customers with marketing offers. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act aso requires banks to implement a comprehensive
information security program that includes administrative, technical and physical safeguards to ensure the security and
confidentiality of customer records and information.

In October 2016, the federal banking regulators issued an advance notice of proposed rulemaking regarding enhanced
cyber risk management standards, which would apply to awide range of largefinancial institutions, including Comerica, and their
third-party service providers. The proposed standards would expand existing cybersecurity regulations and guidance to focus on
cyber risk governance and management; management of internal and external dependencies; andincident response, cyber resilience
and situational awareness. In addition, the proposal contemplates more stringent standards for institutions with systems that are
critical to the financial sector. Comericais monitoring the development of thisrule.
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Dividends

Comericais alega entity separate and distinct from its banking and other subsidiaries. Most of Comerica's revenues
result from dividends its bank subsidiaries pay it. There are statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to the payment of
dividends by subsidiary banksto Comerica, aswell as by Comericato its shareholders. Certain, but not all, of these requirements
are discussed below.

ComericaBank and ComericaBank & Trust, National Association arerequired by federal law to obtain the prior approval
of the FRB and/or the OCC, asthe case may be, for the declaration and payment of dividends, if thetotal of all dividends declared
by the board of directors of such bank in any calendar year will exceed the total of (i) such bank's retained net income (as defined
and interpreted by regulation) for that year plus (ii) the retained net income (as defined and interpreted by regulation) for the
precedingtwoyears, lessany requiredtransfersto surplusor tofundtheretirement of preferred stock. At January 1, 2018, Comerica's
subsidiary banks could declare aggregate dividends of approximately $7 million from retained net profits of the preceding two
years. Comerica's subsidiary banks declared dividends of $907 million in 2017, $545 million in 2016 and $437 million in 2015.

Further, federal regul atory agencies can prohibit abanking institution or bank holding company from engaging in unsafe
and unsound banking practices and could prohibit the payment of dividends under circumstances in which such payment could
be deemed an unsafe and unsound banking practice. Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act
(“FDICIA™) “prompt corrective action” regime discussed below, which applies to each of Comerica Bank and ComericaBank &
Trust, National Association, a subject bank is specifically prohibited from paying dividends to its parent company if payment
would result in the bank becoming “undercapitalized.” In addition, Comerica Bank is also subject to limitations under Texas state
law regarding the amount of earnings that may be paid out as dividends to its parent company, and requiring prior approval for
payments of dividends that exceed certain levels.

Additionally, the payment of dividendsby Comericatoitsshareholdersissubject to the non-objection of the FRB pursuant
to the Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review ("CCAR") program, as described below under "Annual Capital Plans and
Stress Tests."

Annual Capital Plans and Stress Tests

Comerica is subject to the FRB’s annual CCAR process, as well as the Dodd-Frank Act Stress Testing ("DFAST")
reguirements. As part of the CCAR process, the FRB undertakes asupervisory assessment of the capital adequacy of bank holding
companies, including Comerica, that have $50 hillion or more in total consolidated assets. This capital adequacy assessment is
based on areview of acomprehensive capital plan submitted by each participating bank holding company to the FRB that describes
the company’s planned capital actions during the nine quarter review period, as well as the results of stress tests conducted by
both the company tail oring hypothetical macro-economic scenariosthat capturetheidiosyncratic risksand business of the company
andthe FRB under different hypothetical macro-economic scenarios, including asupervisory baselineand an adverseand aseverely
adverse scenario provided by the FRB.

After completing its review, the FRB may object or not object to the company’s proposed capital actions, such as plans
to pay or increase common stock dividends, reinstate or increase common equity repurchase programs, or issue or redeem preferred
stock or other regulatory capital instruments. In connection with the 2017 CCAR, Comerica submitted its 2017 capital planto the
FRB on April 4, 2017; on June 22, 2017, Comerica and the FRB released the revenue, loss and capital results from the annual
stresstesting exercisesand on June 28, 2017, Comericaannounced that the FRB had completed its CCAR 2017 capital planreview
and did not object to the capital plan or capital distributions contemplated in the plan for the four-quarter period commencing in
the third quarter 2017 and ending in the second quarter 2018. Comerica plans to submit its CCAR 2018 capital plan to the FRB,
consistent with supervisory guidance (SR 15-19), in April 2018 and expects to receive the results of the FRB's review of the plan
in June 2018 and to release its company-run stress tests resultsin June or July 2018.

FRB regulations al so required that Comericaand other large bank holding companies conduct a separate mid-year stress
test using financial data as of June 30th and three company-derived, idiosyncratic macro-economic scenarios (base, adverse and
severely adverse) and publish a summary of the results under the severely adverse scenario. On October 19, 2017, Comerica
released the results of its company-run mid-year stress tests. Stress test results are available in the Investor Relations section of
Comericas website at investor.comerica.com, on the “ Regulatory Disclosures’ page under "Financial Reports.”

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act

FDICIA requires, among other things, the federal banking agencies to take “prompt corrective action” in respect of
depository institutions that do not meet minimum capital requirements. FDICIA establishes five capital tiers: “well capitalized,”
“adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized” and “critically undercapitalized.” A depository
institution's capital tier will depend upon whereits capital levelsarein relation to variousrelevant capital measures, which, among
others, include aTier 1 and total risk-based capital measure and aleverage ratio capital measure.
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Regulations establishing the specific capital tiers provide that, for a depository institution to be well capitalized, it must
have atotal risk-based capital ratio of at least 10 percent and aTier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at |east 8 percent, acommon equity
Tier 1 risk-based capital measure of at least 6.5 percent, a Tier 1 leverage ratio of at least 5 percent and not be subject to any
specific capital order or directive. For an ingtitution to be adequately capitalized, it must have atotal risk-based capital ratio of at
least 8 percent, aTier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at |east 6 percent, acommon equity Tier 1 risk-based capital measure of at least
4.5percentand aTier 1 leverageratio of at least 4 percent. Under certain circumstances, the appropriate banking agency may treat
awell capitalized, adequately capitalized or undercapitalized ingtitution asif theinstitution werein the next lower capital category.

As of December 31, 2017, Comerica and its banking subsidiaries exceeded the ratios required for an institution to be
considered “well capitalized” under these regulations.

FDICIA generally prohibitsadepository institution from making any capital distribution (including payment of adividend)
or paying any management fee to its holding company if the depository institution would thereafter be undercapitalized.
Undercapitalized depository institutions are subject to limitations on growth and certain activities and are required to submit an
acceptable capital restoration plan. The federal banking agencies may not accept acapital plan without determining, among other
things, that the plan is based on realistic assumptions and is likely to succeed in restoring the depository institution's capital. In
addition, for acapital restoration plan to be acceptable, the institution's parent holding company must guarantee for aspecific time
period that the institution will comply with such capital restoration plan. The aggregate liability of the parent holding company
under the guaranty islimited to the lesser of (i) an amount equal to 5 percent of the depository institution'stotal assets at thetime
it became undercapitalized, or (ii) the amount that is necessary (or would have been necessary) to bring the institution into
compliance with al capital standards applicable with respect to such ingtitution as of the time it fails to comply with the plan. If
adepository ingtitution fails to submit or implement an acceptable plan, it istreated asif it is significantly undercapitalized.

Significantly undercapitalized depository institutions are subject to a number of requirements and restrictions.
Specifically, such a depository institution may be required to do one or more of the following, among other things: sell sufficient
voting stock to become adequately capitalized, reduce the interest ratesit pays on deposits, reduce its rate of asset growth, dismiss
certain senior executive officers or directors, or stop accepting deposits from correspondent banks. Critically undercapitalized
institutions are subject to the appointment of areceiver or conservator or such other action as the FDIC and the applicable federal
banking agency shall determine appropriate.

As an additional means to identify problems in the financial management of depository institutions, FDICIA requires
federal bank regulatory agencies to establish certain non-capital safety and soundness standards for institutions any such agency
supervises. The standards rel ate generally to, among others, earnings, liquidity, operations and management, asset quality, various
risk and management exposures (e.g., credit, operational, market, interest rate, etc.) and executive compensation. The agencies
are authorized to take action against ingtitutions that fail to meet such standards.

FDICIA aso contains a variety of other provisions that may affect the operations of depository institutions including
reporting requirements, regul atory standardsfor real estatelending, “truthin savings’ provisions, the requirement that adepository
institution give 90 days prior notice to customers and regulatory authorities before closing any branch, and a prohibition on the
acceptance or renewal of brokered deposits by depository ingtitutions that are not well capitalized or are adequately capitalized
and have not received awaiver from the FDIC.

FDIC Insurance Assessments

The FDIC Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF") provides deposit insurance coverage for certain deposits up to $250,000 per
depositor in each deposit account category. Comerica's subsidiary banks are subject to FDIC deposit insurance assessments to
maintain the DIF. The FDIC imposes a risk-based deposit premium assessment system, where the assessment rates for an insured
depository ingtitution are determined by an assessment rate calculator, which is based on a number of elements to measure the
risk each ingtitution posesto the DIF. The assessment rate is applied to total average assets |ess tangible equity. Under the current
system, premiums are assessed quarterly and could increaseif, for example, criticized |oans and/or other higher risk assetsincrease
or balance sheet liquidity decreases. For 2017, Comerica's FDIC insurance expense totaled $51 million, including the surcharge
described below.

Effective July 1, 2016, the FDIC issued afinal rulein order to implement section 334 of the Dodd-Frank Act ("8334"),
which requiresthe FDIC to (1) raise the minimum reserveratio for the DIF to 1.35 percent, from 1.15 percent, (2) assess premiums
on banks to reach the 1.35 percent goal by September 30, 2020, and (3) offset the effect of the increase in the minimum reserve
ratio on insured depository institutions with assets of less than $10 billion. The final rule imposes a surcharge on large banks, to
be assessed over a period of eight quarters, as a means to implement §334. Comerica is subject to the surcharge assessment. If
this surcharge is insufficient to increase the reserve ratio to 1.35 percent by December 31, 2018, a one-time shortfall assessment
will be imposed on institutions with total consolidated assets of $10 billion or more on March 31, 2019. Management currently
estimates that the surcharge, which began July 1, 2016, will continue at arate of approximately $6 million per quarter through at
least the first quarter of 2018.
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Capital and Liquidity

Comerica and its bank subsidiaries are subject to risk-based capital requirements and guidelines imposed by the FRB
and/or the OCC.

For this purpose, a depository ingtitution's or holding company's assets and certain specified off-balance sheet
commitments are assigned to various risk categories defined by the FRB, each weighted differently based on the level of credit
risk that isascribed to such assets or commitments, based on counterparty type and asset class. A depository ingtitution'sor holding
company'scapital, in turn, isdivided into three tiers: Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1"), additional Tier 1, and Tier 2. CET1 capital
predominantly includes common shareholders' equity, less certain deductions for goodwill, intangible assets and deferred tax
assets that arise from net operating losses and tax credit carry-forwards, if any. Additional Tier 1 capital primarily includes any
outstanding noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus. Comerica has also made the election to permanently
exclude accumulated other comprehensive income related to debt securities, cash flow hedges, and defined benefit postretirement
plansfrom CET1 capital. Tier 2 capital primarily includes qualifying subordinated debt and qualifying allowancefor credit losses.
Certain deductions and adjustments to regul atory capital are subject to phase-in. The ultimate timing for specific deductions and
adjustmentsisyet to be determined pending thefinalization of aseparate proposal by banking regulatorsto simplify certain aspects
of the capital rules. More information is set forth in the "Capital" section located on pages F-17 through F-19.

Entities that engage in trading activities, whose trading activities exceed specified levels, also are required to maintain
capital for market risk. Market risk includes changes in the market value of trading account, foreign exchange, and commadity
positions, whether resulting from broad market movements (such as changes in the general level of interest rates, equity prices,
foreign exchange rates, or commodity prices) or from position specific factors. From time to time, Comerica's trading activities
may exceed specified regulatory levels, in which case Comerica maintains additional capital for market risk as required.

Comerica, like other bank holding companies, currently is required to maintain CET1, Tier 1 (the sum of CET1 and
additional Tier 1 capital) and “total capital” (the sum of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital) equal to at least 4.5 percent, 6 percent and 8
percent of itstotal risk-weighted assets (including certain off-balance-sheet items, such as standby letters of credit), respectively.
In 2017, Comerica was also required to maintain a minimum capital conservation buffer of 1.250 percent in order to avoid
restrictions on capital distributions and discretionary bonuses. The minimum required capital conservation buffer gradually
increasesto 2.5 percent in 2019. At December 31, 2017, Comericamet all requirements, with CET1, Tier 1 and total capital equal
to 11.68 percent, 11.68 percent and 13.84 percent of itstotal risk-weighted assets, respectively, and a capital conservation buffer
of 5.68 percent of itstotal risk-weighted assets.

Comericais aso required to maintain a minimum “leverage ratio” (Tier 1 capital to non-risk-adjusted total assets) of 4
percent. Comericas leverage ratio of 10.89 percent at December 31, 2017 reflects the nature of Comerica's balance sheet and
demonstrates acommitment to capital adequacy. At December 31, 2017, Comerica Bank had CET1, Tier 1 and total capital equal
to 10.72 percent, 10.72 percent and 12.61 percent of its total risk-weighted assets, respectively, a capital conservation buffer of
4.61 percent of itstotal risk-weighted assets, and a leverage ratio of 10.00 percent.

Additional information on the calculation of Comerica and its bank subsidiaries CET1, Tier 1 capital, total capital and
risk-weighted assetsis set forth in the "Capital" section located on pages F-17 through F-19 of the Financial Section of thisreport
and Note 20 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements located on pages F-94 through F-95 of the Financial Section of
this report.

Comerica must also comply with the modified Liquidity Coverage Ratio ("LCR") standard, which requires a financia
institutionto hold aminimum level of high-quality, liquid assetstofully cover modified net cash outflowsunder a30-day systematic
liquidity stress scenario. At each quarter-end in 2017, Comericawas in compliance with the fully phased-in LCR requirement of
100%, plus a buffer.

In the second quarter 2016, U.S. banking regulators issued a notice of proposed rulemaking (the "proposed rule")
implementing a second quantitative liquidity requirement in the U.S. generally consistent with the Net Stable Funding Ratio
("NSFR") minimum liquidity measure established under the Basel 111 liquidity framework. Under the proposed rule, Comerica
will be subject to amodified NSFR standard, which requires a financial institution to hold a minimum level of available longer-
term, stable sources of funding to fully cover a modified amount of required longer-term stable funding, over a one-year period.
However, afinal NSFR rule has not yet been published by the U.S. regul atory agencies so the effective date of compliance remains
unknown. Comerica does not currently expect the proposed rule to have a material impact on its liquidity needs.
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Anti-Money Laundering Regulations

The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism
Act (“USA PATRIOT Act”) of 2001 and its implementing regulations require insured depository institutions, broker-dealers, and
certain other financial institutions to have policies, procedures, and controlsto detect, prevent, and report money laundering and
terrorist financing. The USA PATRIOT Act and itsregulations also provide for information sharing, subject to conditions, between
federal law enforcement agenciesand financial ingtitutions, aswell asamong financial institutions, for counter-terrorism purposes.
Federal banking regulators are required, when reviewing bank holding company acquisition and bank merger applications, to take
into account the eff ectiveness of the anti-money laundering activitiesof the applicants. To comply with these obligations, Comerica
and its various operating units have implemented appropriate internal practices, procedures, and controls.

Interstate Banking and Branching

The Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act (the“Interstate Act”), as amended by the Dodd-Frank Act, permits
abank holding company, with FRB approval, to acquire banking institutionslocated in states other than the bank holding company's
home state without regard to whether the transaction is prohibited under state law, but subject to any state requirement that the
bank has been organized and operating for aminimum period of time, not to exceed five years, and the requirement that the bank
holding company, prior to and following the proposed acquisition, control no more than 10 percent of the total amount of deposits
of insured depository ingtitutionsinthe U.S. and no morethan 30 percent of such depositsinthat state (or such amount asestablished
by state law if such amount is lower than 30 percent). The Interstate Act, as amended, also authorizes banks to operate branch
offices outside their home states by merging with out-of-state banks, purchasing branches in other states and by establishing de
novo branches in other states, subject to various conditions. In the case of purchasing branches in a state in which it does not
already have banking operations, de novo interstate branching is permissible if under the law of the state in which the branch is
to be located, a state bank chartered by that state would be permitted to establish the branch. A bank holding company or bank
must be well capitalized and well managed in order to take advantage of these interstate banking and branching provisions.

Comerica has consolidated the majority of its banking business into one bank, Comerica Bank, with banking centersin
Texas, Arizona, California, Florida and Michigan, as well as Canada.

Source of Strength and Cross-Guarantee Requirements

Federal law and FRB regulations require that bank holding companies serve as a source of strength to each subsidiary
bank and commit resourcesto support each subsidiary bank. This support may be required at timeswhen a bank holding company
may not be ableto provide such support without adversely affecting itsability to meet other obligations. Similarly, under the cross-
guarantee provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, in the event of aloss suffered or anticipated by the FDIC (either asa
result of the failure of a banking subsidiary or related to FDIC assistance provided to such a subsidiary in danger of failure), the
other banking subsidiaries may be assessed for the FDIC's | oss, subject to certain exceptions.

Enforcement Powers of Federal and State Banking Agencies

The FRB and other federal and state banking agencies have broad enforcement powers, including, without limitation,
and as prescribed to each agency by applicable law, the power to terminate deposit insurance, impose substantial fines and other
civil penalties and appoint a conservator or receiver. Failureto comply with applicable laws or regul ations could subject Comerica
or its banking subsidiaries, as well as officers and directors of these organizations, to administrative sanctions and potentially
substantial civil and criminal penalties.

Incentive-Based Compensation

Comericais subject to guidance issued by the FRB, OCC and FDIC intended to ensure that the incentive compensation
policies of banking organizations do not undermine the safety and soundness of such organizations by encouraging excessive risk-
taking. The guidance, which covers senior executives as well as other employees who, either individually or as part of a group,
have the ability to expose the banking organization to material amounts of risk, is based upon the key principles that a banking
organization's incentive compensation arrangements (i) should provide employees incentives that appropriately balance risk and
financial results in a manner that does not encourage employees to expose their organizations to imprudent risk; (ii) should be
compatible with effective controls and risk-management; and (iii) should be supported by strong corporate governance, including
active and effective oversight by the organization's board of directors. Banking organizations are expected to review regularly
their incentive compensation arrangements based on these three principles. Where there are deficiencies in the incentive
compensation arrangements, they should be promptly addressed. Enforcement actions may betaken against abanking organization
if its incentive compensation arrangements, or related risk-management control or governance processes, pose a risk to the
organization's safety and soundness, particularly if the organization is not taking prompt and effective measures to correct the
deficiencies. Similar to other large banking organizations, Comerica has been subject to a continuing review of incentive
compensation policies and practices by representatives of the FRB, the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas and the Texas Department
of Banking since 2011. As part of that review, Comerica has undertaken a thorough analysis of al the incentive compensation
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programs throughout the organization, the individuals covered by each plan and the risks inherent in each plan’s design and
implementation. Comerica has determined that risks arising from employee compensation plans are not reasonably likely to have
amaterial adverse effect on Comerica. Further, it isthe Company’s intent to continue to evolve our processes going forward by
monitoring regulations and best practices for sound incentive compensation.

In 2016, the FRB, OCC and severa other federal financia regulators revised and re-proposed rules to implement
Section 956 of the Dodd-Frank Act. The rules were first proposed in 2011. Section 956 directed regulators to jointly prescribe
regulations or guidelines prohibiting incentive-based payment arrangements, or any feature of any such arrangement, at covered
financial institutions that encourage inappropriate risks by providing excessive compensation or that could lead to a material
financial loss. This proposal supplements the final guidance issued by the banking agencies in June 2010. Consistent with the
Dodd-Frank Act, the proposed rule would not apply to institutions with total consolidated assets of lessthan $1 billion, and would
impose heightened standards for institutions with $50 billion or more in total consolidated assets, which includes Comerica. For
these larger institutions, the proposed rule would require the deferral of at least 40 percent of incentive-based payments for
designated executives and significant risk-takerswho individually have the ability to expose the institution to possible |osses that
are substantial in relation to the institution's size, capital or overall risk tolerance. Moreover, incentive-based compensation of
these individuals would be subject to potential clawback for seven years following vesting. Further, the rule imposes enhanced
risk management controls and governance and internal policy and procedure requirementswith respect to incentive compensation.
Comericais monitoring the development of thisrule.

Supervision and Regulation Assessment

Section 318 of the Dodd-Frank Act authorizesthefederal banking agenciesto assessfeesagainst bank holding companies
with total consolidated assets in excess of $50 billion equal to the expenses necessary or appropriate in order to carry out their
supervision and regulation of those companies. Comericaexpensed $2.1 millionfor 2017, which will be assessedin thefirst quarter
2018.

The Volcker Rule

Comericais prohibited under the Volcker Rule from (1) engaging in short-term proprietary trading for our own account
and (2) having certain ownership interestsin and relationships with hedge funds or private equity funds ("Covered Funds'). The
final Volcker Rule regulations contain exemptions for market-making, hedging, underwriting and trading in U.S. government and
agency obligations, and also permit certain ownership interestsin certain types of Covered Fundsto beretained. They also permit
the offering and sponsoring of Covered Funds under certain conditions.

Thefinal Vol cker Ruleregulationsimpose significant compliance and reporting obligations on banking entities. Comerica
is subject to the enhanced compliance program under the Vol cker Rule but does not expect to be required to report metricsto the
regulators. Comerica has put in place the compliance programs required by the Volcker Rule and has either divested or received
extensionsfor any holdingsin Covered Funds. Additional information on Comerica's portfolio of indirect (through funds) private
equity and venture capital investments, which includes the Covered Funds, is set forth in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements located on page F-48 of the Financial Section of this report.

Resolution (Living Will) Plans

Like other similar bank holding companies with assets at or above the $50 billion threshold, Comericais required to
prepare and submit to the federal banking agencies (e.g., FRB and FDIC) and periodically update a plan for its rapid and orderly
resolution under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. In addition, FDIC-insured depository institutions (like Comerica Bank) with assets
of $50 billion or more are required to develop, maintain, and periodically submit plans outlining how the FDIC would resolve it
through the FDIC's resolution powers under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. Comerica submitted its latest resolution plan to
the FRB on December 29, 2017. The next update to the resolution plan for Comerica Bank is due to be filed with the FDIC on or
before July 1, 2018.

Derivative Transactions

As a state member bank, Comerica Bank may engage in derivative transactions, as permitted by applicable Texas and
federal law.

Title VII of the Dodd-Frank Act establishes a comprehensive framework for over-the-counter (*OTC”) derivatives
transactions. Even though many of the requirements did not impact Comerica directly since Comerica Bank does not meet the
definition of swap dealer or “major swap participant,” Comerica continues to review and evaluate whether such requirements
impact the Bank indirectly. On October 26, 2017, the CFTC issued an Order extending the de minimis threshold at $8 billion
through December 31, 2019 with respect to the de minimis exception to the swap dealer definition. In taking this action, the de
minimis threshold will not decrease to $3 hillion on December 31, 2018, as proposed. At this time, Comerica will continue to
track its dealing activity and monitor any actions as it relates to the de minimis threshold.
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The variation margin requirementsfor non-centrally cleared swapsand security-based swapswere effectivefor Comerica
on March 1, 2017. The variation margin requirements were issued for the purpose of ensuring safety and soundness of swap
trading in light of the risk to the financial system associated with non-cleared swaps activity. At this time, Comerica has met
compliance with itsfinancial counterparties with respect to the variation margin requirements.

DOL Fiduciary Rule

DuringApril 2016, theDOL issued afinal rulerelated tofiduciary standardsinregardstotheinvesting of clients retirement
assets. The final rule expands the definition of a fiduciary under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Those
who provide investment advice to plans, plan sponsors, fiduciaries, plan participants, beneficiaries and IRAs and IRA owners
must either avoid payments that create conflicts of interest or comply with the protective terms of an exemption issued by the
DOL. Under new exemptions adopted with the rule, financial institutions will be obligated to acknowledge their status and the
statusof their individual advisersas"fiduciaries.” Firmsand adviserswill berequired to make prudent investment recommendations
without regard to their own interests, or the interests of those other than the customer; charge only reasonable compensation; and
make no misrepresentations to their customers regarding recommended investments. Additionally, the new rule requires certain
disclosures to be made to investors, and ongoing compliance must be monitored and documented. The requirement that advisors
act impartially was effective April 10, 2017. Other portions of the rule were scheduled to phase-in by January 1, 2018, but in
November 2017, the DOL announced an extension of that date to July 1, 2019. The DOL has stated that during the extension
period, it intendsto consider whether possible changes and alternatives to exemptions would be appropriatein light of the current
comment record and potential input from, and action by, the SEC, state insurance commissioners and other regulators.

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau and Certain Recent Consumer Finance Regulations

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau. Comericais subject to regulation by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
("CFPB"), which has a broad rule-making authority for a wide range of consumer protection laws that apply to all banks and
savingsinstitutions, including the authority to prohibit “ unfair, deceptive or abusive” actsand practices, and possesses examination
and enforcement authority over al banks and savings institutions with more than $10 billion in assets.

Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, Equal Credit Opportunity Act and Uniform Residential Loan Application. The CFPB
has issued final rules changing the reporting requirements for lenders under the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act. The new rules
expand the range of transactions subject to these requirements to include most securitized residential mortgage loans and credit
lines. The rules also increase the overall amount of data required to be collected and submitted, including additional data points
about the applicable loans and expanded data about the borrowers. Comerica began collecting the expanded data on January 1,
2018.

Flood Insurance Rules

Comericacontinuesto monitor the devel opment and implementation of the private flood insurance requirements. To date,
the joint agencies have yet to issue afinal rule with respect to this remaining requirement. All other flood insurance requirements
subject to the Final Rule - Loans in Areas Having Special Flood Hazards, including the escrow of premium and fees for certain
real estate loans, are now effective and have been implemented by Comerica.

UNDERWRITING APPROACH

Theloan portfolio isaprimary source of profitability and risk, so proper loan underwriting is critical to Comerica'slong-
term financial success. Comerica extends credit to businesses, individuals and public entities based on sound lending principles
and consistent with prudent banking practice. During the loan underwriting process, a qualitative and quantitative analysis of
potential credit facilities is performed, and the credit risks associated with each relationship are evaluated. Important factors
considered as part of the underwriting process for new loans and loan renewals include:

. People: Including the competence, integrity and succession planning of customers.

. Purpose: The legal, logical and productive purposes of the credit facility.

. Payment: Including the source, timing and probability of payment.

. Protection: Including obtai ning al ternative sources of repayment, securing theloan, asappropriate, with collateral

and/or third-party guarantees and ensuring appropriate legal documentation is obtained.

. Perspective: The risk/reward relationship and pricing elements (cost of funds; servicing costs; time value of
money; credit risk).

Comericapricescreditfacilitiestoreflect risk, therel ated costsand theexpected return, whilemai ntai ning competitiveness
with other financial institutions. Loans with variable and fixed rates are underwritten to achieve expected risk-adjusted returns on
the credit facilities and for the full relationship including the borrower's ability to repay the principal and interest based on such
rates.
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Credit Administration

ComericamaintainsaCredit Administration Department (* Credit Administration”) whichisresponsiblefor the oversight
and monitoring of our loan portfolio. Credit Administration assists with underwriting by providing objective financial analysis,
including an assessment of the borrower's business model, balance sheet, cash flow and collateral. Each borrower relationship is
assigned an internal risk rating by Credit Administration. Further, Credit Administration updates the assigned internal risk rating
for every borrower relationship as new information becomes available, either as aresult of periodic reviews of the credit quality
or as aresult of achange in borrower performance. The goal of the internal risk rating framework is to support Comerica's risk
management capability, including its ability to identify and manage changesin the credit risk profile of its portfolio, predict future
losses and price the loans appropriately for risk.

Credit Policy

Comerica maintains a comprehensive set of credit policies. Comerica's credit policies provide individual relationship
managers, aswell asloan committees, approval authoritiesbased on our internal risk rating system and establi sh maximum exposure
limits based on risk ratings and Comericas legal lending limit. Credit Administration, in conjunction with the businesses units,
monitors compliance with the credit policies and modifies the existing policies as necessary. New or modified policies/guidelines
require approval by the Strategic Credit Committee, chaired by Comerica's Chief Credit Officer and comprising senior credit,
market and risk management executives.

Commercial Loan Portfolio

Commercial loansareunderwritten using acomprehensive analysisof theborrower'soperations. Theunderwriting process
includes an analysis of some or al of the factors listed below:

. The borrower's business model.

. Periodic review of financial statementsincluding financial statementsaudited by an independent certified public
accountant when appropriate.

. The pro-formafinancial condition including financial projections.

. The borrower's sources and uses of funds.

. The borrower's debt service capacity.

. The guarantor's financial strength.

. A comprehensive review of the quality and value of collateral, including independent third-party appraisals of

machinery and egquipment and commercial real estate, as appropriate, to determine the advance rates.
. Physical inspection of collateral and audits of receivables, as appropriate.

For additional information specific to our Energy loan portfolio, please seethe caption, “ Energy Lending” on pages F-27
through F-28 of the Financial Section of this report.

Commercial Real Estate (CRE) Loan Portfolio

Comerica's CRE loan portfolio consists of real estate construction and commercial mortgage loans and includes both
loans to real estate developers and loans secured by owner-occupied real estate. Comerica's CRE loan underwriting policies are
consistent with the approach described above and provide maximum loan-to-valueratiosthat limit the size of aloan to amaximum
percentage of the value of the real estate collateral securing theloan. The loan-to-value percentage varies by the type of collateral
and islimited by advance rates established by our regulators. Our loan-to-value limitations are, in certain cases, more restrictive
than thoserequired by regulatorsand areinfluenced by other risk factors such asthefinancial strength of the borrower or guarantor,
the equity provided to the project and the viability of the project itself. CRE loans generally require cash equity. CRE loans are
normally originated with full recourse or limited recourseto all principals and owners. There are limitationsto the size of asingle
project loan and to the aggregate dollar exposure to a single guarantor.

Consumer and Residential Mortgage Loan Portfolios

Comerica's consumer and residential mortgage loans are originated consistent with the underwriting approach described
above, but also includes an assessment of each borrower's personal financial condition, including areview of credit reports and
related FICO scores (atype of credit score used to assess an applicant's credit risk) and verification of income and assets. Comerica
doesnot originate subprimeloans. Although astandard industry definition for subprimeloans (including subprime mortgage | oans)
does not exist, Comericadefines subprime loans as specific product offeringsfor higher risk borrowers, including individual swith
one or acombination of high credit risk factors. These credit factorsinclude low FICO scores, poor patterns of payment history,
high debt-to-income ratios and elevated loan-to-value. We generally consider subprime FICO scores to be those below 620 on a
secured basis (excluding loans with cash or near-cash collateral and adequate income to make payments) and below 660 for
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unsecured loans. Residential mortgage loans retained in the portfolio are largely relationship based. The remaining loans are
typicaly eligible to be sold on the secondary market. Adjustable rate loans are limited to standard conventional loan programs.

EMPLOYEES
As of December 31, 2017, Comerica and its subsidiaries had 7,691 full-time and 499 part-time employees.
AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Comericamaintainsan I nternet website at www.comerica.com wherethe Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports
onForm 10-Q, Current ReportsonForm 8-K and all amendmentstothosereportsareavail ablewithout charge, assoon asreasonably
practicable after those reports are filed with or furnished to the SEC. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Employees,
the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Members of the Board of Directors and the Senior Financial Officer Code of Ethics
adopted by Comerica are also available on the Internet website and are available in print to any shareholder who requests them.
Such requests should be made in writing to the Corporate Secretary at Comericalncorporated, Comerica Bank Tower, 1717 Main
Street, MC 6404, Dallas, Texas 75201.

Inaddition, pursuant to regul ationsadopted by the FRB, Comericamakesadditional regul atory capital -rel ated disclosures.
Under these regulations, Comerica satisfies a portion of these requirements through postings on its website, and Comerica has
done so and expects to continue to do so without also providing disclosure of this information through filings with the SEC.

Where we have included web addressesin this report, such as our web address and the web address of the SEC, we have
included those web addresses as inactive textual references only. Except as specifically incorporated by reference into thisreport,
information on those websitesis not part hereof.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

This report includes forward-looking statements as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In
addition, Comericamay make other written and oral communicationsfrom timeto timethat contain such statements. All statements
regarding Comerica's expected financial position, strategies and growth prospects and general economic conditions Comerica
expects to exist in the future are forward-looking statements. The words, “anticipates,” “believes,” “contemplates,” “feels,”
“expects,” “estimates,” “seeks,” “strives,” “plans,” “intends,” “outlook,” “forecast,” “position,” “target,” “mission,” “assume,”
“achievable,” “potentia,” “strategy,” “goal,” “aspiration,” "opportunity,” “initiative," “outcome,” “continue,” “remain,”
“maintain,” "on track,” “trend,” “objective,” "looks forward," "projects,” "models’ and variations of such words and similar
expressions, or futureor conditional verbssuchas“will,” “would,” “ should,” “could,” “ might,” “can,” “may” or similar expressions,
asthey relate to Comerica or its management, are intended to identify forward-looking statements.

Comerica cautions that forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties, which
change over time. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date the statement is made, and Comerica does not undertake
to update forward-looking statements to reflect facts, circumstances, assumptions or events that occur after the date the forward-
looking statementsare made. Actual resultscould differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statementsand future
results could differ materially from historical performance.

In addition to factors mentioned elsewhere in this report or previously disclosed in Comerica's SEC reports (accessible
on the SEC'swebsite at www.sec.gov or on Comerica's website at www.comerica.com), the factors contained bel ow, among others,
could cause actual results to differ materially from forward-looking statements, and future results could differ materially from
historical performance.

. General political, economic or industry conditions, either domestically or internationally, may be less favorable
than expected.

Local, domestic, and international eventsincluding economic, financial market, political and industry specific conditions
affect the financial services industry, directly and indirectly. Conditions such as or related to inflation, recession,
unemployment, volatile interest rates, international conflicts and other factors, such asreal estate values, energy prices,
state and local municipal budget deficits, government spending and the U.S. national debt, outside of our control may,
directly and indirectly, adversely affect Comerica.

. Governmental monetary and fiscal policies may adversely affect the financial services industry, and therefore
impact Comerica's financial condition and results of operations.

Monetary and fiscal policies of various governmental and regulatory agencies, in particular the FRB, affect the financial
servicesindustry, directly and indirectly. The FRB regulates the supply of money and credit in the U.S. and its monetary
and fiscal policies determinein alarge part Comerica's cost of fundsfor lending and investing and the return that can be
earned on such loans and investments. Changes in such policies, including changes in interest rates or changes in the
FRB's balance sheet, will influence the origination of loans, the value of investments, the generation of deposits and the
ratesreceived onloansand investment securitiesand paid on deposits. Changesin monetary and fiscal policiesare beyond
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Comericas control and difficult to predict. Comerica's financial condition and results of operations could be materially
adversely impacted by changesin governmental monetary and fiscal policies.

. Proposed revenue enhancements and efficiency improvements may not be achieved.

In July 2016, Comerica announced its efficiency and revenue initiative, GEAR Up (the "initiative") and initial financial
targets. The initiative continues to be implemented. There may be changes in the scope or assumptions underlying the
initiative, delaysin the anticipated timing of activitiesrelated to the initiative and higher than expected or unanticipated
coststo implement them, and some benefits may not be fully achieved. Aswell, evenif theinitiativeis successful, many
factors can influence the amount of core noninterest expenses, some of which are not wholly in our control, including
changing regulations, benefits and health care costs, technology and cybersecurity investments, outside processing
expenses and litigation.

Furthermore, theimplementation of theinitiative may have unintended impacts on Comericasability to attract and retain
business, customers and employees, and could result in disruptions to systems, processes, controls and procedures. Any
revenue enhancement ideas may not be successful in the marketplace. Accordingly, Comerica's results of operations and
profitability may be negatively impacted, making it less competitive and potentially causing a loss of market share.
Additionally, Comericas future performance is subject to the various risks inherent to its business and operations.

. Operational difficulties, failure of technology infrastructure or information security incidents could adversely
affect Comerica's business and operations.

Comericais exposed to many types of operational risk, including legal risk, the risk of fraud or theft by employees or
outsiders, failure of Comerica'scontrol sand procedures and unauthorized transactionsby employeesor operational errors,
including clerical or recordkeeping errors or those resulting from computer or tel ecommuni cations systems mal functions.
Given the high volume of transactions at Comerica, certain errors may be repeated or compounded before they are
identified and resolved. The occurrence of such operational risks can lead to other types of risksincluding reputational
and compliance risks that may amplify the adverse impact to Comerica.

In particular, cybersecurity risks for financial institutions have significantly increased in recent years as reliance on
information technology systems has expanded. Comerica's operations rely on the secure processing, storage and
transmission of confidential and other information on its technology systems and networks. These networks are subject
to infrastructure failures, ongoing system maintenance and upgrades and planned network outages. The increased use of
mobile and cloud technologies can heighten these and other operational risks. Any failure, interruption or breach in
security of these systems could result in failures or disruptionsin Comerica's customer rel ationship management, general
ledger, deposit, loan and other systems.

Comerica may also be subject to disruptions of its operating systems arising from events that are wholly or partially
beyond its control, which may include, for example, computer viruses, cyber attacks, spikesin transaction volume and/
or customer activity, electrical or telecommunications outages, natural disastersor acts of terrorism. Theseincidents may
occur directly or through athird party provider. Cyberattacks could include computer viruses, malicious or destructive
code, phishing attacks, denial of service or information, ransomware or other security breaches, and could result in the
destruction or exfiltration of data and systems. Although Comerica has programs in place related to business continuity,
disaster recovery and information security to maintain theconfidentiality, integrity, and avail ability of itssystems, business
applications and customer information, such disruptions may still give rise to interruptions in service to customers and
loss or liability to Comerica, including loss of customer data. Like other financial servicesfirms, Comericaand itsthird
party providers continue to be the subject of cyber attacks. Although to this date Comerica has not experienced any
material |osses or other material consequencesrelated to cyber attacks, future cyber attacks could be more disruptive and
damaging, and Comerica may not be able to anticipate or prevent all such attacks. Further, cyberattacks may not be
detected in atimely manner.

The occurrence of any failure or interruption in Comerica's operations or information systems, or any security breach,
could cause reputational damage, jeopardize the confidentiality of customer information, result in a loss of customer
business, subject Comericato regulatory intervention or expose it to civil litigation and financial loss or liability, any of
which could haveamaterial adverse effect on Comerica. Although we maintain insurance coveragethat may cover certain
cyber losses (subject to policy terms and conditions), such insurance coverage may be insufficient to cover all losses.
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. Comerica relies on other companies to provide certain key components of its delivery systems, and certain failures
could materially adversely affect operations.

Comerica faces the risk of operational disruption, failure or capacity constraints due to its dependency on third party
vendors for components of its delivery systems. Third party vendors provide certain key components of Comericas
delivery systems, such as cloud-based computing, networking and storage services, payment processing services,
recording and monitoring services, internet connectionsand network access, clearing agency servicesand card processing
services. While Comerica conducts due diligence prior to engaging with third party vendors and performs ongoing
monitoring of vendor controls, it doesnot control their operations. Further, while Comerica'svendor management policies
and practices are designed to comply with current regulations, these policies and practices cannot eliminate thisrisk. In
this context, any vendor failure to properly deliver these services could adversely affect Comerica's business operations,
and result in financial loss, reputational harm, and/or regulatory action.

. Comerica must maintain adequate sources of funding and liquidity to meet regulatory expectations, support its
operations and fund outstanding liabilities.

Comerica's liquidity and ability to fund and run its business could be materially adversely affected by a variety of
conditions and factors, including financial and credit market disruptions and volatility or alack of market or customer
confidenceinfinancial marketsin general, which may result in aloss of customer deposits or outflowsof cash or collateral
and/or ability to access capital markets on favorable terms.

Other conditions and factors that could materially adversely affect Comerica's liquidity and funding include a lack of
market or customer confidence in, or negative news about, Comerica or the financial servicesindustry generally which
also may result in aloss of deposits and/or negatively affect the ability to accessthe capital markets; theloss of customer
depositsto aternative investments; counterparty availability; interest rate fluctuations; general economic conditions; and
thelegal, regulatory, accounting and tax environments governing our funding transactions. Many of the above conditions
and factorsmay be caused by eventsover which Comericahaslittleor no control. Therecan beno assurancethat significant
disruption and volatility in the financial markets will not occur in the future. Further, Comerica's customers may be
adversely impacted by such conditions, which could have a negative impact on Comerica's business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Additionally, Comerica must also comply with the modified L CR standard, which requires afinancial institution to hold
aminimumlevel of high-quality, liquid assetstofully cover modified net cash outflowsunder a30-day systematicliquidity
stress scenario. Aswell, under proposed rules, Comericawill be subject to amodified NSFR standard, which requires a
financial institution to hold aminimum level of availablelonger-term, stable sources of funding to fully cover amodified
amount of required longer-term stable funding, over aone-year period. For more information regarding the LCR and the
NSFR, please see the “ Supervision and Regulation” section of thisreport. Theinability to access capital marketsfunding
sources as needed could adversely impact our level of regulatory-qualifying capital and ability to continue to comply
with the LCR framework or the NSFR measure.

Further, if Comericais unable to continue to fund assets through customer bank deposits or access funding sources on
favorable terms, or if Comerica suffers an increase in borrowing costs or otherwise failsto manage liquidity effectively,
Comerica'sliquidity, operating margins, financial conditionand resultsof operationsmay bematerially adversely affected.

. Compliance with more stringent capital and liquidity requirements may adversely affect Comerica.

Comericaisrequired to satisfy stringent capital and liquidity standards, including annual and mid-year stresstesting and
guantitative standardsfor liquidity management, asaresult of capital and liquidity requirementsin connection with Basel
I11 and the Dodd-Frank Act. Additional information on the regulatory capital and liquidity requirements currently
applicable to Comericais set forth in the “ Supervision and Regulation” section of this report. These requirements, and
any other new lawsor regul ationsrel ated to capital and liquidity, could adversely affect Comerica'sability to pay dividends
or make equity repurchases, or could require Comerica to reduce business levels or to raise capital, including in ways
that may adversely affect its results of operations or financial condition and/or existing shareholders.

Further, our regulators may also require usto satisfy additional, more stringent capital adequacy and liquidity standards
than those specified as part of the Dodd-Frank Act and the FRB's rules implementing Basel 111.

Maintaining higher levels of capital and liquidity may reduce Comerica's profitability and otherwise adversely affect its
business, financia condition, or results of operations.

. Declines in the businesses or industries of Comerica's customers could cause increased credit losses or decreased
loan balances, which could adversely affect Comerica.

Comerica's business customer base consists, in part, of customersin volatile businesses and industries such asthe energy
industry, the automotive productionindustry and thereal estate business. Theseindustriesare sensitiveto global economic
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conditions, supply chainfactorsand/or commaodities prices. Any declinein one of those customers' businessesor industries
could causeincreased credit losses, whichinturn could adversely affect Comerica. Further, any declinein these businesses
orindustriescoul d causedecreased borrowings, either dueto reduced demand or reductionsintheborrowing baseavail able
for each customer loan.

For more information regarding certain of Comericas lines of business, please see "Concentration of Credit Risk,"
"Commercial Real Estate Lending" and “Energy Lending” on pages F-25 through F-28 of the Financial Section of this
report.

. Unfavorable developments concerning credit quality could adversely affect Comerica's financial results.

Although Comerica regularly reviews credit exposure related to its customers and various industry sectors in which it
has business relationships, default risk may arise from events or circumstances that are difficult to detect or foresee.
Under such circumstances, Comericacould experienceanincreaseinthelevel of provisionfor creditlosses, nonperforming
assets, net charge-offs and reserve for credit losses, which could adversely affect Comericas financial results.

. Changes in regulation or oversight may have a material adverse impact on Comerica's operations.

Comericais subject to extensive regul ation, supervision and examination by the U.S. Treasury, the Texas Department of
Banking, the FDIC, the FRB, the SEC, FINRA, DOL , M SRB and other regulatory bodies. Such regul ation and supervision
governstheactivitiesinwhich Comericamay engage. Regul atory authoritieshave extensivediscretionintheir supervisory
and enforcement activities, including the imposition of restrictions on Comerica's operations, investigations and
limitations related to Comerica's securities, the classification of Comericas assets and determination of the level of
Comericas alowance for loan losses. Any change in such regulation and oversight, whether in the form of regulatory
policy, regulations, |egislation or supervisory action, may haveamaterial adverseimpact on Comericasbusiness, financia
condition or results of operations. Although President Trump has issued an executive order that sets forth principlesfor
thereform of the federal financial regulatory framework, and the Republican majority in Congress has also suggested an
agendafor financial regulatory change, it istoo early to assess whether there will be any major changesin the regulatory
environment or, if changes occur, the ultimate effect they would have upon thefinancial condition or results of operations
of Comerica. The impact of any future legislation or regulatory actions may adversely affect Comerica's businesses or
operations.

. Changes in the financial markets, including fluctuations in interest rates and their impact on deposit pricing, could
adversely affect Comerica's net interest income and balance sheet.

The operations of financial ingtitutions such as Comerica are dependent to a large degree on net interest income, which
is the difference between interest income from loans and investments and interest expense on deposits and borrowings.
Prevailing economic conditions, the trade, fiscal and monetary policies of the federal government and the policies of
various regulatory agencies all affect market rates of interest and the availability and cost of credit, which in turn
significantly affect financial institutions' net interest income and the market value of its investment securities. Interest
rates over the past several years have remained at low levels, even following recent rate rises. A continued low interest
rate environment may continue to adversely affect the interest income Comerica earns on loans and investments. For a
discussion of Comericasinterest rate sensitivity, please see, “Market and Liquidity Risk” beginning on page F-28 of the
Financial Section of this report.

Volatility ininterest rates can also result in disintermediation, which isthe flow of funds away from financial institutions
into direct investments, such asfederal government and corporate securitiesand other investment vehicles, which, because
of the absence of federal insurance premiumsand reserve requirements, generally pay higher ratesof return than financial
institutions. Comericasfinancial resultscould bematerially adversely impacted by changesinfinancial market conditions.

. Interest rates on Comerica's outstanding financial instruments might be subject to change based on regulatory
developments, which could adversely affect its revenue, expenses, and the value of those financial instruments.

LIBOR and certain other “benchmarks’ are the subject of recent national, international, and other regulatory guidance
and proposalsfor reform. These reforms may cause such benchmarksto perform differently than in the past or have other
consequences which cannot be predicted. On July 27, 2017, the United Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority, which
regulates LIBOR, publicly announced that it intends to stop persuading or compelling banksto submit LIBOR rates after
2021. It is expected that a transition away from the widespread use of LIBOR to alternative rates will occur over the
course of the next several years. Asaresult of thistransition, interest rates on our floating rate obligations, |oans, deposits,
derivatives, and other financial instruments tied to LIBOR rates, as well as the revenue and expenses associated with
thosefinancial instruments, may beadversely affected. Further, any uncertainty regarding the continued useand reliability
of LIBOR as a benchmark interest rate could adversely affect the value of our floating rate obligations, loans, deposits,
derivatives, and other financial instruments tied to LIBOR rates. More than 90 percent of the Comerica's loans were
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floating at December 31, 2017, of which approximately 80 percent were based on 30-day LIBOR and 20 percent were
based on Prime.

. Reduction in our credit ratings could adversely affect Comerica and/or the holders of its securities.

Rating agencies regularly evaluate Comerica, and their ratings are based on a number of factors, including Comerica's
financial strength as well as factors not entirely within its control, including conditions affecting the financial services
industry generally. There can be no assurance that Comericawill maintain its current ratings. In February 2016, Standard
& Poor'sdowngraded Comericaslong-term senior credit ratings one notch to BBB+ and ComericaBank'slong and short-
term credit ratings one notch to A- and A-2, respectively. In March 2015, Moody's Investors Service put global bank
ratingson review following the publication of revised bank rating methodol ogy andin May 2015, it downgraded Comerica
Bank'slong-term senior credit ratings one notch to A3. While recent credit rating actions have had little to no detrimental
impact on Comerica's profitability, borrowing costs, or ability to access the capital markets, future downgrades to
Comericas or its subsidiaries credit ratings could adversely affect Comerica's profitability, borrowing costs, or ability
to accessthe capital marketsor otherwise have anegative effect on Comerica'sresults of operationsor financial condition.
If such a reduction placed Comericas or its subsidiaries credit ratings below investment grade, it could aso create
obligations or liabilities under the terms of existing arrangements that could increase Comerica's costs under such
arrangements. Additionally, a downgrade of the credit rating of any particular security issued by Comerica or its
subsidiaries could negatively affect the ability of the holders of that security to sell the securities and the prices at which
any such securities may be sold.

. Damage to Comerica’s reputation could damage its businesses.

With consumers more and more interested in doing business with companies they admire and trust, reputational risk is
an increasing concern for business. Such risks include compliance issues, operational challenges, or a strategic, high
profile event. Comerica’s business is based on the trust of its customers, communities, and entire value chain, which
makes managing reputational risk extremely important. News or other publicity that impairs Comerica’s reputation, or
the reputation of the financia services industry generally, can therefore cause significant harm to Comerica's business
and prospects. Further, adverse publicity or negative information posted on social media websites regarding Comerica,
whether or not true, may result in harm to Comerica's prospects.

. Comerica may not be able to utilize technology to efficiently and effectively develop, market, and deliver new
products and services to its customers.

The financia services industry experiences rapid technological change with regular introductions of new technology-
driven products and services. The efficient and effective utilization of technology enables financial institutions to better
serve customers and to reduce costs. Comerica's future success depends, in part, upon its ability to address the needs of
its customers by using technology to market and deliver products and services that will satisfy customer demands, meet
regulatory requirements, and create additional efficiencies in Comericas operations. Comerica may not be able to
effectively develop new technology-driven products and services or be successful in marketing or supporting these
products and services to its customers, which could have a material adverse impact on Comerica's financial condition
and results of operations.

. Competitive product and pricing pressures within Comerica's markets may change.

Comerica operates in a very competitive environment, which is characterized by competition from a number of other
financial institutionsin each market in which it operates. Comerica competesin terms of products and pricing with large
national and regional financial institutionsand with smaller financial institutions. Some of Comerica'slarger competitors,
including certain nationwide banks that have a significant presence in Comerica's market area, may make available to
their customers a broader array of product, pricing and structure alternatives and, due to their asset size, may more easily
absorb credit losses in a larger overall portfolio. Some of Comerica's competitors (larger or smaller) may have more
liberal lending policies and processes. Increasingly, Comerica competes with other companies based on financia
technology and capabilities, such as mobile banking applications and money movement.

Additionally, thefinancial servicesindustry issubject to extensive regul ation. For moreinformation, seethe* Supervision
and Regulation” section of this report. Such regulations may require significant additional investments in technology,
personnel or other resources or place limitations on the ability of financial institutions, including Comerica, to engagein
certain activities. Comerica's competitors may be subject to asignificantly different or reduced degree of regulation due
to their asset size or types of products offered. They may also have the ability to more efficiently utilize resources to
comply with regul ations or may be ableto moreeffectively absorb the costs of regulationsinto their existing cost structure.

I'n addition to banks, Comerica's banking subsidiaries also face competition from other financial intermediaries, including
savings and loan associations, consumer finance companies, leasing companies, venture capital funds, credit unions,
investment banks, insurance companies and securities firms. Competition among providers of financial products and
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services continues to increase as technology advances have lowered the barriers to entry for financial technology
companies, with consumers having the opportunity to select from a growing variety of traditional and nontraditional
alternatives, including crowdfunding, digital wallets and money transfer services. The ability of non-banking financia
institutionsto provide services previously limited to commercial banks hasintensified competition. Because non-banking
financial institutions are not subject to many of the same regulatory restrictions as banks and bank holding companies,
they can often operate with greater flexibility and lower cost structures.

If Comericaisunable to compete effectively in products and pricing in its markets, business could decline, which could
have a material adverse effect on Comerica's business, financial condition or results of operations.

. The soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect Comerica.

Comericas ability to engage in routine funding transactions could be adversely affected by the actions and commercial
soundness of other financial institutions. Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing,
counterparty or other rel ationships. Comericahasexposureto many different industriesand counterparties, andit routinely
executes transactions with counterparties in the financial industry, including brokers and dealers, commercial banks,
investment banks, mutual and hedge funds, and other institutional clients. As a result, defaults by, or even rumors or
guestions about, one or more financial services institutions, or the financial services industry generaly, have led, and
may further lead, to market-wide liquidity problems and could lead to losses or defaults by us or by other institutions.
Many of these transactions could expose Comericato credit risk in the event of default of its counterparty or client. In
addition, Comerica's credit risk may be impacted when the collateral held by it cannot be realized upon or isliquidated
at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the financial instrument exposure due to Comerica. There is no
assurance that any such losses would not adversely affect, possible materially in nature, Comerica.

. The introduction, implementation, withdrawal, success and timing of business initiatives and strategies may be
less successful or may be different than anticipated, which could adversely affect Comerica's business.

Comericamakes certain projections and devel ops plans and strategiesfor its banking and financial products. If Comerica
does not accurately determine demand for its banking and financial product needs, it could result in Comericaincurring
significant expenses without the anticipated increases in revenue, which could result in a material adverse effect on its
business.

. Changes in customer behavior may adversely impact Comerica's business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Comerica uses a variety of financial tools, models and other methods to anticipate customer behavior as a part of its
strategic planning and to meet certain regulatory requirements. Individual, economic, political, industry-specific
conditions and other factors outside of Comerica’s control, such as fuel prices, energy costs, real estate values or other
factorsthat affect customer income levels, could alter predicted customer borrowing, repayment, investment and deposit
practices. Such a change in these practices could materially adversely affect Comerica’s ability to anticipate business
needs and meet regulatory requirements.

Further, difficult economic conditions may negatively affect consumer confidence levels. A decrease in consumer
confidencelevelswould likely aggravate the adverse effects of these difficult market conditionson Comerica, Comericas
customers and othersin the financial institutions industry.

. Management's ability to maintain and expand customer relationships may differ from expectations.

Thefinancial servicesindustry isvery competitive. Comericanot only viesfor businessopportunitieswith new customers,
but al so competesto maintain and expand therelationshipsit haswith its existing customers. While management believes
that it can continue to grow many of these rel ationships, Comericawill continue to experience pressuresto maintain these
relationships as its competitors attempt to capture its customers. Failure to create new customer relationships and to
maintain and expand existing customer rel ationshipsto the extent anticipated may adversely impact Comerica's earnings.

. Methods of reducing risk exposures might not be effective.

Instruments, systems and strategies used to hedge or otherwise manage exposure to various types of credit, market,
liquidity, operational, compliance, financial reporting and strategic risks could be less effective than anticipated. As a
result, Comerica may not be able to effectively mitigate its risk exposures in particular market environments or against
particular types of risk, which could have amaterial adverseimpact on Comerica'sbusiness, financial condition or results
of operations.

For more information regarding risk management, please see "Risk Management" on pages F-20 through F-33 of the
Financial Section of this report.
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. Catastrophic events, including, but not limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, fires, droughts and floods,
may adversely affect the general economy, financial and capital markets, specific industries, and Comerica.

Comericahassignificant operations and asignificant customer basein California, Texas, Floridaand other regionswhere
natural and other disasters may occur. These regions are known for being vulnerable to natural disasters and other risks,
such astornadoes, hurricanes, earthquakes, fires, droughts and floods, the nature and severity of which may be impacted
by climate change. These types of natural catastrophic events have at times disrupted the local economies, Comerica’s
businessand customers, and have caused physical damageto Comericasproperty intheseregions. Inaddition, catastrophic
events occurring in other regions of the world may have an impact on Comerica's customers and in turn, on Comerica.
Comerica's business continuity and disaster recovery plans may not be successful upon the occurrence of one of these
scenarios, and a significant catastrophic event anywhere in the world could materially adversely affect Comericas
operating results.

. The impacts of recent tax reform are not yet fully known, and these and other tax regulations could be subject to
potential legislative, administrative or judicial changes or interpretations.

Thetax reformbill enacted on December 22, 2017 hashad, and isexpected to continueto have, far-reaching and significant
effects on Comerica, its customers and the U.S. economy. The tax reform bill lowered the corporate federal statutory tax
rate and eliminated or limited certain federal corporate deductions. It is too early to evaluate all of the potentia
consequences of thetax reform bill, but such consequences could include lower commercial customer borrowings, either
due to the increase in cash flows as a result of the reduction in the corporate statutory tax rate or the utilization by
businesses in certain sectors of aternative non-debt financing and/or early retirement of existing debt. Further, there can
be no assurance that any benefits realized by Comerica as aresult of the reduction in the corporate federal statutory tax
rate will ultimately result in increased net income, whether due to decreased loan yields as aresult of competition or to
other factors. Uncertainty also exists related to state and other taxing jurisdictions' response to federal tax reform, which
will continue to be monitored and evaluated.

Federal income tax treatment of corporations may be further clarified and modified by other legislative, administrative
or judicial changes or interpretations at any time. Any such changes could adversely affect Comerica.

. Any future strategic acquisitions or divestitures may present certain risks to Comerica's business and operations.

Difficulties in capitalizing on the opportunities presented by a future acquisition may prevent Comerica from fully
achieving the expected benefits from the acquisition, or may cause the achievement of such expectations to take longer
to realize than expected.

Further, the assimilation of the acquired entity's customers and markets could result in higher than expected deposit
attrition, loss of key employees, disruption of Comerica's businesses or the businesses of the acquired entity or otherwise
adversely affect Comerica's ability to maintain relationships with customers and employees or achieve the anticipated
benefits of theacquisition. These matters could have an adverse effect on Comericafor an undetermined period. Comerica
will be subject to similar risks and difficultiesin connection with any future decisions to downsize, sell or close units or
otherwise change the business mix of Comerica.

. Management's ability to retain key officers and employees may change.

Comerica's future operating results depend substantially upon the continued service of its executive officers and key
personnel. Comericasfuture operating results also depend in significant part upon itsability to attract and retain qualified
management, financial, technical, marketing, sal es and support personnel. Competition for qualified personnel isintense,
and Comerica cannot ensure success in attracting or retaining qualified personnel. There may be only alimited number
of persons with the requisite skills to serve in these positions, and it may be increasingly difficult for Comericato hire
personnel over time.

Further, Comerica's ahility to retain key officers and employees may beimpacted by legislation and regulation affecting
the financial services industry. In 2016, the FRB, OCC and severa other federal financial regulators revised and re-
proposed rules to implement Section 956 of the Dodd-Frank Act. Section 956 directed regulators to jointly prescribe
regulations or guidelines prohibiting incentive-based payment arrangements, or any feature of any such arrangement, at
covered financial institutions that encourage inappropriate risks by providing excessive compensation or that could lead
to amaterial financial loss. Consistent with the Dodd-Frank Act, the proposed rule would not apply to institutions with
total consolidated assets of less than $1 billion, and would impose heightened standards for institutions with $50 billion
or more in total consolidated assets, which includes Comerica. For these larger institutions, the proposed rule would
require the deferral of at least 40 percent of incentive-based payments for designated executives and significant risk-
takers who individually have the ability to expose the institution to possible losses that are substantial in relation to the
institution's size, capital or overall risk tolerance. Moreover, incentive-based compensation of these individuals would
be subject to potential clawback for seven yearsfollowing vesting. Further, the rule imposes enhanced risk management
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controls and governance and internal policy and procedure requirements with respect to incentive compensation.
Accordingly, Comerica may be at a disadvantage to offer competitive compensation compared to other financial
ingtitutions (as referenced above) or companiesin other industries, which may not be subject to the same requirements.

Comericasbusiness, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by theloss of any
of its key employees, or Comericasinability to attract and retain skilled employees.

. Legal and regulatory proceedings and related matters with respect to the financial services industry, including
those directly involving Comerica and its subsidiaries, could adversely affect Comerica or the financial services
industry in general.

Comericahas been, and may in the future be, subject to variouslegal and regulatory proceedings. It isinherently difficult
to assess the outcome of these matters, and there can be no assurance that Comerica will prevail in any proceeding or
litigation. Any such matter could result in substantial cost and diversion of Comericas efforts, which by itself could have
amaterial adverse effect on Comerica'sfinancial condition and operating results. Further, adverse determinationsin such
matterscould resultinfinesor actionsby Comericasregulatorsthat could materially adversely affect Comerica'sbusiness,
financial condition or results of operations.

Comericaestablishes reservesfor legal claimswhen payments associated with the claims become probable and the costs
can be reasonably estimated. Comericamay still incur legal costs for amatter even if it has not established areserve. In
addition, due to the inherent subjectivity of the assessments and unpredictability of the outcome of legal proceedings,
the actual cost of resolving alegal claim may be substantially higher than any amounts reserved for that matter. The
ultimate resolution of a pending legal proceeding, depending on the remedy sought and granted, could adversely affect
Comericas results of operations and financial condition.

. Terrorist activities or other hostilities may adversely affect the general economy, financial and capital markets,
specific industries, and Comerica.

Terrorist attacks or other hostilities may disrupt Comerica's operations or those of its customers. In addition, these events
have had and may continueto have an adverseimpact onthe U.S. and world economy in general and consumer confidence
and spending in particular, which could harm Comerica's operations. Any of these events could increase volatility in the
U.S. and world financial markets, which could harm Comerica's stock price and may limit the capital resources available
to Comericaand its customers. This could have amaterial adverse impact on Comerica's operating results, revenues and
costs and may result in increased volatility in the market price of Comerica's common stock.

. Changes in accounting standards could materially impact Comerica's financial statements.

From time to time accounting standards setters change the financial accounting and reporting standards that govern the
preparation of Comericasfinancial statements. These changes can be difficult to predict and can materially impact how
Comericarecordsand reportsitsfinancial condition and results of operations. In some cases, Comericacould berequired
to apply a new or revised standard retroactively, resulting in changes to previoudy reported financial results, or a
cumulative charge to retained earnings. In particular, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) hasissued a
new accounting standard, the Current Expected Credit L oss standard (“CECL"), for the recognition and measurement of
credit losses for loans and debt securities. The new standard will be effective for Comericain the first quarter 2020. The
anticipated change in loan loss reserves due to CECL is unknown and is dependent upon many factors that are yet to be
determined, such as the economic environment at adoption and future FASB clarifications. It is anticipated that CECL
will have an impact on Comerica's loan loss reserves and how Comerica manages its capital.

. Comerica's accounting policies and processes are critical to the reporting of financial condition and results of
operations. They require management to make estimates about matters that are uncertain.

Accounting policies and processes are fundamental to how Comerica records and reports the financial condition and
results of operations. Management must exercise judgment in selecting and applying many of these accounting policies
and processes so they comply with U.S. GAAP. In some cases, management must sel ect the accounting policy or method
to apply from two or more alternatives, any of which may be reasonable under the circumstances, yet may result in the
Company reporting materially different results than would have been reported under a different alternative.

Management has identified certain accounting policies as being critical because they require management's judgment to
make difficult, subjective or complex judgments about matters that are uncertain. Materially different amounts could be
reported under different conditionsor using different assumptionsor estimates. Comericahas established detailed policies
and control procedures that are intended to ensure these critical accounting estimates and judgments are well controlled
and applied consistently. In addition, the policies and procedures are intended to ensure that the process for changing
methodol ogies occurs in an appropriate manner. Because of the uncertainty surrounding management's judgments and
the estimates pertaining to these matters, Comerica cannot guarantee that it will not be required to adjust accounting
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policies or restate prior period financial statements. See “ Critical Accounting Policies’ on pages F-34 through F-37 of
the Financial Section of thisreport and Note 1 of the Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements |located on pages F-45
through F-57 of the Financial Section of this report.

. Comerica's stock price can be volatile.

Stock price volatility may make it more difficult for you to resell your common stock when you want and at prices you
find attractive. Comerica's stock price can fluctuate significantly in response to a variety of factors including, among
other things:

e Actual or anticipated variations in quarterly results of operations.

e Recommendations or projections by securities analysts.

e Operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors deem comparable to us.

* News reportsrelating to trends, concerns and other issues in the financial services industry.

»  Perceptionsin the marketplace regarding us and/or our competitors.

*  New technology used, or services offered, by competitors.

«  Significant acquisitions or business combinations, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital
commitments by or involving Comerica or its competitors.

e Changesin dividends and capital returns.

«  Changesin government regulations.

e Cyclical fluctuations.

»  Geopoalitical conditions such as acts or threats of terrorism or military conflicts.

e Activity by short sellers and changing government restrictions on such activity.

General market fluctuations, including real or anticipated changes in the strength of the economy; industry factors and
general economic and political conditions and events, such as economic slowdowns or recessions; interest rate changes,
ail price volatility or credit loss trends, among other factors, could aso cause our stock price to decrease regardless of
operating results.

For the above and other reasons, the market price of Comerica's securities may not accurately reflect the underlying value
of the securities, and you should consider this before relying on the market prices of Comerica's securities when making
an investment decision.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
Item 2. Properties.

The executive offices of Comerica are located in the Comerica Bank Tower, 1717 Main Street, Dallas, Texas 75201.
Comerica Bank occupies six floors of the building, plus additional space on the building's lower level. Comerica does not own
the Comerica Bank Tower space, but has naming rights to the building and leases the space from an unaffiliated third party. The
lease for such space used by Comerica and its subsidiaries extends through September 2028. Comerica's Michigan headquarters
arelocated ina10-story building in the central businessdistrict of Detroit, Michigan at 411 W. L afayette, Detroit, Michigan 48226.
Such building isowned by ComericaBank. Asof December 31, 2017, Comerica, through its banking affiliates, operated at atotal
of 564 locations. Thisincludes banking centers, trust serviceslocations, and/or loan production or other financial services offices,
primarily in the States of Texas, Michigan, California, Floridaand Arizona. Of the 564 locations, 226 were owned and 338 were
leased. Asof December 31,2017, affiliatesal so operated from leased spacesin Denver, Col orado; Wilmington, Del aware; Oakbrook
Terrace, Illinois; Boston, Massachusetts; Minneapolis, Minnesota; Morristown, New Jersey; New York, New York; Rocky Mount,
North Carolina; Memphis, Tennessee; McLean, Virginia; Bellevue, Washington; Monterrey, Mexico; Toronto, Ontario, Canada
and Windsor, Ontario, Canada. Comerica and its subsidiaries own, among other properties, a check processing center in Livonia,
Michigan, and three buildings in Auburn Hills, Michigan, used mainly for lending functions and operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Please see Note 21 of the Notesto Consolidated Financial Statementslocated on pages F-95 through F-96 of the Financial
Section of this report.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
Market Information and Holders of Common Stock

Thecommon stock of Comericalncorporated istraded onthe New York Stock Exchange (NY SE Trading Symbol: CMA).
At February 9, 2018, there were approximately 9,373 record holders of Comerica's common stock.

Sales Prices and Dividends

Quarterly cash dividends were declared during 2017 and 2016 totaling $1.09 and $0.89 per common share per year,
respectively. Thefollowing table setsforth, for the periodsindicated, the high and low sale prices per share of Comerica'scommon
stock as reported on the NY SE Composite Transactions Tape for all quarters of 2017 and 2016, as well as dividend information.

Quarter High Low Dividends Per Share Dividend Yield*
2017
Fourth $ 8822 % 7416 $ 0.30 1.5%
Third 76.76 64.04 0.30 1.7
Second 75.30 64.75 0.26 15
First 75.00 64.27 0.23 13
2016
Fourth $ 7044 % 46.75 $ 0.23 1.6%
Third 47.81 38.39 0.23 2.1
Second 47.55 36.27 0.22 21
First 41.74 30.48 0.21 2.3

* Dividend yield is calculated by annualizing the quarterly dividend per share and dividing by an average of the high and low
pricein the quarter.

A discussion of dividend restrictions is set forth in Note 20 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements located
on pages F-94 through F-95 of the Financial Section of this report, in the "Capital" section on pages F-17 through F-19 of the
Financial Section of this report and in the “ Supervision and Regulation” section of this report.

Performance Graph

Our performance graph is available under the caption "Performance Graph" on page F-2 of the Financia Section of this
report.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

On July 25, 2017, the Board of Directors of Comericaauthorized the repurchase of up to an additional 5.0 million shares
of Comerica Incorporated outstanding common stock, in addition to the 8.3 million shares remaining at June 30, 2017 under the
Board's prior authorizations for the equity repurchase program initially approved in November 2010. Including the July 2017
authorization, atotal of 55.2 million shares and 14.1 million warrants (12.1 million share-equivalents) have been authorized for
repurchase under the equity repurchase program since its inception in 2010. There is no expiration date for Comerica’s equity
repurchase program.
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The following table summarizes Comerica's equity repurchase activity for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Total Number of Shares

and Warrants Purchased Remaining Average
as Part of Publicly Repurchase Total Number Price
Announced Repurchase Authorization of Shares Paid Per
(shares in thousands) Plans or Programs (a) (b) Purchased (c) Share
Total first quarter 2017 1,498 11,756 1694 $ 69.75
Total second quarter 2017 2,011 9,634 2,015 69.09
Total third quarter 2017 1,955 12,395 (d) 1,956 71.11
October 2017 797 11,589 799 77.36
November 2017 753 10,836 753 79.17
December 2017 314 10,387 314 85.05
Total fourth quarter 2017 1,864 10,387 1,866 79.38
Total 2017 7,328 10,387 7531 $ 72.31

(a) Comerica made no repurchases of warrants under the repurchase program during the year ended December 31, 2017. Upon exercise of a
warrant, the number of shares with a value equal to the aggregate exercise price is withheld from an exercising warrant holder as payment
(known as a "net exercise provision™). During the year ended December 31, 2017, Comerica withheld the equivalent of approximately
1,209,000 shares to cover an aggregate of $35.6 million in exercise price and issued approximately 1,771,000 shares to the exercising
warrant holders. Shares withheld in connection with the net exercise provision are not included in the total number of shares or warrants
purchased in the above table.

(b) Maximum number of shares and warrants that may yet be purchased under the publicly announced plans or programs.

(¢) Includes approximately 203,000 shares (including 2,000 shares in the quarter ended December 31, 2017) purchased pursuant to deferred
compensation plans and shares purchased from employees to pay for taxes related to restricted stock vesting under the terms of an employee
share-based compensation plan during the year ended December 31, 2017. These transactions are not considered part of Comerica's
repurchase program.

(d) Includes July 25, 2017 equity repurchase authorization for up to an additional 5 million shares.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.
Reference is made to the caption “ Selected Financial Data’ on page F-3 of the Financia Section of this report.
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Referenceis made to the sections entitled “ 2017 Overview and 2018 Outlook,” “Results of Operations,” " Strategic Lines
of Business," "Balance Sheet and Capital Funds Analysis," "Risk Management," "Critical Accounting Policies," " Supplemental
Financial Data" and "Forward-L ooking Statements' on pages F-4 through F-39 of the Financial Section of this report.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Referenceis madeto the subheadings entitled “ Market and Liquidity Risk,” “Operational Risk,” “Compliance Risk” and
“Strategic Risk” on pages F-28 through F-33 of the Financial Section of this report.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Reference is made to the sections entitled “Consolidated Balance Sheets,” “Consolidated Statements of Income,”
“Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income,” “Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity,”
“Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows,” “Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements,” “Report of Management,” “ Reports of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” and “ Historical Review” on pages F-40 through F-110 of the Financial Section
of thisreport.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) of the Exchange Act, management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e). Based on that evaluation, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia Officer concluded that Comerica's disclosure controls and procedures were effective
as of the end of the period covered by this Annua Report on Form 10-K.
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Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management's annual report on internal control over financial reporting and the related attestation report of Comerica's
registered public accounting firm are included on pages F-105 and F-106 in the Financial Section of this report.

As required by Rule 13a-15(d) of the Exchange Act, management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of our interna control over financial reporting to determine whether any changes
occurred during the last quarter of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K that have materially affected, or
arereasonably likely to materially affect, Comerica'sinternal control over financial reporting. Based on that eval uation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that there has been no such change during the last quarter of the fiscal
year covered by thisAnnual Report on Form 10-K that hasmaterially affected, orisreasonably likely tomaterially affect, Comerica's
internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Comerica has a Senior Financial Officer Code of Ethics that appliesto the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financia
Officer, the Chief Accounting Officer and the Treasurer. The Senior Financial Officer Code of Ethicsis available on Comericas
website at www.comerica.com. If any substantive amendments are made to the Senior Financial Officer Code of Ethics or if
Comericagrants any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from aprovision of the Senior Financial Officer Code of Ethicsto the
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Accounting Officer or the Treasurer, we will disclose the nature of
such amendment or waiver on our website.

The remainder of theresponseto thisitem will beincluded under the sections captioned “ I nformation About Nominees,”
“Committees and Meetings of Directors,” “Committee Assignments,” “Executive Officers’ and “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” of Comerica's definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to
be held on April 24, 2018, which sections are hereby incorporated by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Theresponseto thisitem will beincluded under the sections captioned “ Compensation Committee I nterlocks and Insider
Participation,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Compensation of Directors,” “Governance, Compensation and
Nominating Committee Report,” “2017 Summary Compensation Table,” “2017 Grants of Plan-Based Awards,” “ Outstanding
Equity Awardsat Fiscal Year-End 2017,” “2017 Option Exercisesand Stock Vested,” “ Pension Benefits at Fiscal Year-End 2017,”
“2017 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation,” “Potential Payments upon Termination or Change of Control at Fiscal Year-
End 2017” and "Pay Ratio Disclosure" of Comerica's definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on April 24, 2018, which sections are hereby incorporated by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The response to this item will be included under the sections captioned “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficia
Owners,” “ Security Ownership of Management” and " Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans’ of
Comericasdefinitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholdersto be held on April 24, 2018, which sections
are hereby incorporated by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The response to this item will be included under the sections captioned “ Director Independence,” “ Transactions with
Related Persons,” and “Information about Nominees’ of Comerica's definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting
of Shareholdersto be held on April 24, 2018, which sections are hereby incorporated by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Theresponseto thisitem will beincluded under the section captioned “Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm”
of Comerica's definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 24, 2018, which
section is hereby incorporated by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as a part of this report:

31

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.3A

4.4

10.1t

10.1At

10.1Bt

10.1Ct

Financial Statements. Thefinancial statementsthat arefiled aspart of thisreport areincluded inthe Financial Section
on pages F-40 through F-107.

All of the schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC are either not
required under the related instruction, the required information is contained elsewhere in the Form 10-K, or the
schedules are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted.

Exhibits:

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Comerica Incorporated (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated August 4, 2010, and incorporated herein by reference).

Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Comerica Incorporated (filed as Exhibit 3.2
to Reqgistrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Comericalncorporated (filed as Exhibit 3.3 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference).

[Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3 in respect of instruments defining the rights of security holders. In
accordance with Regulation S-K Item No. 601(b)(4)(iii), the Registrant is not filing copies of instruments defining
the rights of holders of long-term debt because none of those instruments authorizes debt in excess of 10% of the
total assets of the registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The Registrant hereby agreesto furnish a
copy of any such instrument to the SEC upon request.]

Warrant Agreement, dated May 6, 2010, between the registrant and Equiniti Trust Company (as successor to
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Reqgistration Statement on Form 8-A dated May 7,
2010, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Warrant (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Reqgistrant's Reqgistration Statement on Form 8-A dated May 7, 2010, and
incorporated herein by reference).

Warrant Agreement, dated as of June 9, 2010, between Comerica lncorporated (as successor to Sterling
Bancshares, Inc.) and Equiniti Trust Company (as successor to American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC)
(filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Sterling Bancshares, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A12B filed on June 10, 2010
(File No. 001-34768) and incorporated herein by reference).

Appointment of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (which entity was later succeeded as Warrant Agent by Equiniti Trust
Company) as successor Warrant Agent under the Warrant Agreement, dated as of June 9, 2010, of Comerica
Incorporated (as successor to Sterling Bancshares, Inc.) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Warrant (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-172211
and incorporated herein by reference).

(not applicable)

Comericalncorporated 2006 Amended and Restated L ong-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Comericalncorporated
Amended and Restated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Comericalncorporated
Amended and Restated 2006 Long-Term I ncentive Plan (2011 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.44 to Registrant'sAnnual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Comericalncorporated
Amended and Restated 2006 L ong-Term I ncentive Plan (2012 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.1C to Registrant'sAnnual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference).
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Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Comericalncorporated

Amended and Restated 2006 L ong-Term Incentive Plan (2014 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current

Report on Form 8-K dated January 21, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Comericalncorporated

Amended and Restated 2006 L ong-Term I ncentive Plan (2014 version 2) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current

Report on Form 8-K dated July 22, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Comericalncorporated

Amended and Restated 2006 L ong-Term Incentive Plan (2015 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant's Current

Report on Form 8-K dated November 10, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Comericalncorporated

Amended and Restated 2006 L ong-Term Incentive Plan (2017 version) (filed asExhibit 10.1G to Registrant'sAnnual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Restricted Stock Award Agreement (non-cliff vesting) under the Amended

and Restated Comerica Incorporated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2011 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.46 to

Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, and incorporated herein by

reference).
Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Restricted Stock Award Agreement (non-cliff vesting) under the Amended

and Restated Comerica Incorporated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2012 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.1F to

Reqistrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, and incorporated herein by

reference).
Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Restricted Stock Award Agreement (non-cliff vesting) under the Amended

and Restated Comerica Incorporated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2014 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to

Reqistrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 21, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Restricted Stock Award Agreement (non-cliff vesting) under the Amended

and Restated Comerica Incorporated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2014 version 2) (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to

Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 22, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Restricted Stock Award Agreement (non-cliff vesting) under the Amended

and Restated Comerica Incorporated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2017 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.1M to

Reqistrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, and incorporated herein by

reference).

Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Restricted Stock Award Agreement (cliff vesting) under the Comerica

Incorporated 2006 Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan (2011 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.45 to

Reqistrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, and incorporated herein by

reference).

Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Restricted Stock Award Agreement (cliff vesting) under the Comerica

Incorporated 2006 Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan (2012 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to

Reqistrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, and incorporated herein by

reference).

Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Restricted Stock Award Agreement (cliff vesting) under the Comerica

Incorporated 2006 Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan (2017 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.1Q to

Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, and incorporated herein by

reference).
Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Amended and Restated

Comericalncorporated 2006 Long-Term I ncentive Plan (2011 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.47 to Registrant'sAnnual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Amended and Restated

Comerica Incorporated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2011 version 2) (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant's

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Amended and Restated

Comericalncorporated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2018 version - non-cliff vesting) (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to

Reqistrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 8, 2017, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Amended and Restated

Comerica Incorporated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2018 version - cliff vesting) (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to

Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 8, 2017, and incorporated herein by reference).
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Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Amended and

Restated Comericalncorporated 2006 L ong-Term Incentive Plan (2012 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's

Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 19, 2012, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comerica lncorporated Senior Executive Long-Term Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award

Aqgreement under the A mended and Restated Comerical ncorporated 2006 Long-Term I ncentive Plan (filed asExhibit

10.3 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 21, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Senior Executive Long-Term Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award

Agreement under the Amended and Restated Comericalncorporated 2006 L ong-Term Incentive Plan (2014 version

2) (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 22, 2014, and incorporated herein

by reference).
Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Senior Executive Long-Term Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award

Agreement under the Amended and Restated Comericalncorporated 2006 L ong-Term Incentive Plan (2015 version)

(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 10, 2015, and incorporated herein

by reference).
Form of Standard Comerica lncorporated Senior Executive Long-Term Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award

Agreement under the Amended and Restated Comericalncorporated 2006 L ong-Term I ncentive Plan (2017 version)

(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2017, and

incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comerica lncorporated Senior Executive Long-Term Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award

Agreement under the Amended and Restated Comericalncorporated 2006 L ong-Term Incentive Plan (2018 version).

Comericalncorporated 1997 Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Amended and Restated

Comerica Incorporated 1997 Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Sterling Bancshares, Inc. 2003 Stock |ncentive and Compensation Plan effective April 30,

2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Sterling Bancshares, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 14, 2007 (File

No. 000-20750), and incorporated herein by reference).
Comericalncorporated Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan (amended and restated October 22,

2013) (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013,

and incorporated herein by reference).
Comerica Incorporated 2011 Management Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current Report on

Form 8-K dated April 26, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference).

Comerica Incorporated 2016 Management Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current Report on

Form 8-K dated May 2, 2016, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated No Sale Agreement under the Comerica Incorporated Amended and

Restated Management Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended September 30, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference).

Supplemental Retirement IncomeA ccount Plan (formerly known asthe Amended and Restated Benefit Equalization

Plan for Employees of Comericalncorporated) (amended and restated October 13, 2016, with amendments effective

January 1, 2017) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 24, 2017, and

incorporated herein by reference).

1999 Comerica Incorporated Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan (amended and restated on July

26, 2011) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 26, 2011, and incorporated

herein by reference).

1999 Comericalncorporated Amended and Restated Common Stock Deferred Incentive Award Plan (amended and

restated on July 26, 2011) (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Reqgistrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 26, 2011,

and incorporated herein by reference).

Sterling Bancshares, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan (asAmended and Restated) (filed asExhibit 4.4 to Registrant's

Reqistration Statement on Form S-8 dated July 28, 2011 (Registration No. 333-175857) and incorporated herein by

reference).
Amended and Restated Comerica Incorporated Non-Employee Director Fee Deferral Plan (amended and restated

onJanuary 27, 2015) (filed asExhibit 10.13 to Registrant'sAnnual Report on Form 10-K for theyear ended December

31, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).
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Amended and Restated Comericalncorporated Common Stock Non-Employee Director Fee Deferral Plan (amended

and restated on January 27, 2015) (filed as Exhibit 10.14 to Registrant's Annua Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).

Comericalncorporated Amended and Restated Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (amended and restated

effective May 15, 2014) (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

March 31, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the

Comerica Incorporated Amended and Restated Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (filed as Exhibit 10.2

to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005, and incorporated herein by

reference).
Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the

Comerica Incorporated Amended and Restated Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Version 2) (filed as

Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006, and incorporated

herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the

Comerica Incorporated Amended and Restated [ ncentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Version 2.5) (filed as

Exhibit 10.48 to Registrant'sAnnua Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, and incorporated

herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the

Comerica Incorporated Amended and Restated Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Version 3) (filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009, and incorporated

herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comerica Incorporated Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the

Comerica Incorporated Amended and Restated Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Version 4) (filed as

Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended June 30, 2011, and incorporated

herein by reference).

2015 Comerica Incorporated Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant's

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Standard Comericalncorporated Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the 2015

Comericalncorporated [ncentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Comerica I ncorporated and certain of its directors and officers (filed

asExhibit 10.6 to Registrant'sAnnual Report on Form 10-K for theyear ended December 31, 2002, and incorporated

herein by reference).

Supplemental Benefit Agreement with Eugene A. Miller (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference).

Supplemental Pension and Retiree M edical Agreement with Ralph W. Babb Jr. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant's

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended June 30, 1998, and incorporated herein by reference).

Restrictive Covenants and General Rel ease Agreement by and between J. Michael Fulton and Comericalncorporated

dated April 3, 2014 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 3, 2014, and

incorporated herein by reference).

Restrictive Covenants and General Release Agreement by and between Jon W. Bilstrom and Comericalncorporated

dated July 21, 2016 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 27, 2016, and

incorporated herein by reference).

Restrictive Covenantsand General Rel ease A greement by and between J. Patrick Faubion and Comerical ncorporated

dated December 11, 2016 (filed as Exhibit 10.19C to Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2016, and incorporated herein by reference).

Restrictive Covenants and General Rel ease Agreement by and between David E. Duprey and Comerical ncorporated

dated February 5, 2018 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 8, 2018,

and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Change of Control Employment Agreement (BE4 and Higher Version without gross-up or window period-
current) (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,

2015, and incorporated herein by reference).
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Schedule of Named Executive Officers Party to Change of Control Employment Agreement (BE4 and Higher
Version without gross-up or window period-current).

Form of Change of Control Employment Agreement (BE4 and Higher Version) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's

Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 18, 2008, and incorporated herein by reference).

Schedule of Named Executive Officers Party to Change of Control Employment Agreement (BE4 and Higher

Version).

Form of Change of Control Employment Agreement (BE4 and Higher Version without gross-up or window

period-2009 version) (filed as Exhibit 10.42 to Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Changeof Control Employment Agreement (BE2-BE3 Version) (filed asExhibit 10.2to Registrant's Current

Report on Form 8-K dated November 18, 2008, and incorporated herein by reference).

Schedule of Named Executive Officers Party to Change of Control Employment Agreement (BE2-BE3 Version).

Statement regarding Computation of Net Income Per Common Share (incorporated by reference from Note 15 on
page F-84 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K).

(not applicable)
(not applicable)
(not applicable)
(not applicable)
(not applicable)
Subsidiaries of Registrant.

(not applicable)
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

(not applicable)
Chairman and CEO Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Periodic Report (pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).
Executive Vice President and CFO Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Periodic Report (pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).

Section 1350 Certification of Periodic Report (pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).

(not applicable)

(not applicable)

(not applicable)

(not applicable)

(not applicable)

(not applicable)

Financial statements from Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Registrant for the year ended December 31, 2017,
formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated
Statements of Income, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity, (iv) the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows and (v) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

File No. for al filings under Exchange Act, unless otherwise noted: 1-10706.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

Not applicable.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph shown below compares the total returns (assuming reinvestment of dividends) of Comerica Incorporated
common stock, the S& P500 | ndex, and the KBW Bank | ndex. The graph assumes$100invested in Comerical ncorporated common
stock (returns based on stock prices per the NY SE) and each of the indices on December 31, 2012 and the reinvestment of all
dividends during the periods presented.

Comparison of Five Year Cumulative Total Return
Among Comerica Incorporated, KBW Bank Index, and S&P 500 Index
(Assumes $100 Invested on 12/31/12 and Reinvestment of Dividends)

$300
$275 | == Comerica Incorporated /.
== KBV Bank Index
$250 1 =o=S&P 500 Index

$225

$200 / /’D
$175 ///
$150

$125 /

$100 I
$75
$50
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Comerica Incorporated 100 159 160 145 241 286
KBW Bank Index 100 138 151 151 195 23
S&P 500 Index 100 132 150 153 171 208

The performance shown on the graph is not necessarily indicative of future performance.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(dollar amounts in millions, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
EARNINGS SUMMARY

Net interest income $ 2,061 $ 1,797 $ 1,689 $ 1655 $ 1,672
Provision for credit losses 74 248 147 27 46
Noninterest income 1,107 1,051 1,035 (a) 857 874
Noninterest expenses 1,860 (b) 1,930 (b) 1,827 (@ 1615 1,714
Provision for income taxes 491  (c) 193 229 277 245
Net income 743 477 521 593 541
Net income attributable to common shares 738 473 515 586 533
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK

Diluted earnings per common share $ 414 $ 268 $ 284 $ 316 $ 285
Cash dividends declared 1.09 0.89 0.83 0.79 0.68
Common shareholders’ equity 46.07 44.47 43.03 41.35 39.22
Tangible common equity (d) 42.34 40.79 39.33 37.72 35.64
Market value 86.81 68.11 41.83 46.84 47.54
Average diluted shares (in millions) 178 177 181 185 187
YEAR-END BALANCES

Total assets $71,567 $72,978 $71,877 $69,186  $65,224
Total earning assets 65,880 67,518 66,687 63,788 60,200
Total loans 49,173 49,088 49,084 48,593 45,470
Total deposits 57,903 58,985 59,853 57,486 53,292
Total medium- and long-term debt 4,622 5,160 3,058 2,675 3,543
Total common shareholders’ equity 7,963 7,796 7,560 7,402 7,150
AVERAGE BALANCES

Total assets $71,452 $71,743 $70,247 $66,336  $63,933
Total earning assets 66,300 66,545 65,129 61,560 59,091
Total loans 48,558 48,996 48,628 46,588 44,412
Total deposits 57,258 57,741 58,326 54,784 51,711
Total medium- and long-term debt 4,969 4,917 2,905 2,963 3,972
Total common shareholders’ equity 7,952 7,674 7,534 7,373 6,965
CREDIT QUALITY

Total allowance for credit losses $ 754 $ 771 $ 679 $ 635 $ 634
Total nonperforming loans 410 590 379 290 374
Foreclosed property 5 17 12 10 9
Total nonperforming assets 415 607 391 300 383
Net credit-related charge-offs 92 157 101 25 73
Net credit-related charge-offs as a percentage of average total loans 0.19% 0.32% 0.21% 0.05% 0.16%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total period-end loans 1.45 1.49 1.29 122 1.32
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total nonperforming 173 124 167 205 160
RATIOS

Net interest margin (fully taxable equivalent) 3.12% 2.71% 2.60% 2.70% 2.84%
Return on average assets 1.04 0.67 0.74 0.89 0.85
Return on average common shareholders’ equity 9.34 6.22 6.91 8.05 7.76
Dividend payout ratio 25.77 32.48 28.33 24.09 23.29
Avaesggg common shareholders’ equity as a percentage of average 11.13 10.70 10.73 1111 10.90
Coargsr&%n(gquny tier 1 capital as a percentage of risk-weighted 11.68 11.09 1054 na na
Tier 1 capital as a percentage of risk-weighted assets (€) 11.68 11.09 10.54 10.50 10.64
Common equity ratio 11.13 10.68 10.52 10.70 10.97
Tangible common equity as a percentage of tangible assets (d) 10.32 9.89 9.70 9.85 10.07

(a) Effective January 1, 2015, contractual changes to a card program resulted in a change to the accounting presentation of the related
revenues and expenses. The effect of this change was an increase of $177 million in 2015 to both noninterest income and noninterest

expenses. Amounts prior to 2015 reflect revenues from this card program net of related noninterest expenses.

(b) Noninterest expenses included restructuring charges of $45 million and $93 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively.
(c) The provision for income taxes for 2017 was impacted by a $107 million charge to adjust deferred taxes as a result of the enactment of

the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.

(d) See Supplemental Financial Data section for reconcilements of non-GAAP financial measures.
(e) Ratios calculated based on the risk-based capital requirements in effect at the time. The U.S. implementation of the Basel 11l regulatory
capital framework became effective on January 1, 2015, with transitional provisions.

n/a - not applicable.
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2017 OVERVIEW AND 2018 OUTLOOK

Comericalncorporated (the Corporation) isafinancial holding company headquarteredin Dallas, Texas. TheCorporation's
major business segments are the Business Bank, the Retail Bank and Wealth Management. The core businesses are tailored to
each of the Corporation's three primary geographic markets: Michigan, California and Texas. Information about the activities of
the Corporation's business segments is provided in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

As afinancial ingtitution, the Corporation's principal activity islending to and accepting deposits from businesses and
individuals. The primary source of revenueisnet interestincome, which isprincipally derived from the difference between interest
earned on loans and investment securities and interest paid on deposits and other funding sources. The Corporation also provides
other products and services that meet the financial needs of customers which generate noninterest income, the Corporation's
secondary source of revenue. Growth in loans, deposits and noninterest income is affected by many factors, including economic
conditions in the markets the Corporation serves, the financial requirements and economic health of customers, and the ability to
add new customers and/or increase the number of products used by current customers. Successin providing products and services
depends on the financial needs of customers and the types of products desired.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation and its subsidiaries conform to generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) in the United States (U.S.). The Corporation's consolidated financial statements are prepared based on the
application of accounting policies, the most significant of which are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
Themost critical of these significant accounting policiesare discussed inthe*” Critical Accounting Policies’ section of thisfinancial
review.

OVERVIEW

*  Netincomewas $743 million in 2017, an increase of $266 million, or 56 percent, compared to $477 millionin 2016. Net
income per diluted common share was $4.14 in 2017, compared to $2.68 in 2016. Net income in 2017 included a $107
million charge to adjust deferred tax assets (60 cents per share) resulting from the 2017 enactment of the Tax Cuts and
JobsAct.

« Averageloanswere $48.6 billionin 2017, adecrease of $438 million, or 1 percent, compared to 2016. Excluding cyclical
declines of $696 million in Energy and $412 million in Mortgage Banker Finance, average |oansincreased $670 million,
or 1 percent, with growth in most other businesses, led by National Dealer Services.

*  Averagedepositsdecreased $483 million, or 1 percent, to $57.3 billionin 2017 compared to 2016. The decreasein average
deposits reflected a decrease of $1.7 billion, or 6 percent, in average interest-bearing deposits, partially offset by an
increase of $1.3 billion, or 4 percent, in average noninterest-bearing deposits. The decrease in interest-bearing deposits
was primarily due to customers using their excess liquidity for working capital needs and acquisitions, a deliberate
approach to relationship pricing, as well as strategic actions taken in early 2017 in light of the new Liquidity Coverage
Ratio (LCR) rules. Average total deposits reflected decreases in Corporate Banking and Technology and Life Sciences,
partially offset by increasesin Commercial Real Estate and Retail Bank.

* Netinterestincomewas $2.1 billionin 2017, an increase of $264 million, or 15 percent, compared to 2016. Theincrease
primarily reflected the benefit from higher short-term rates and prudently managing loan and deposit pricing.

e Theprovision for credit losses was $74 million in 2017, a decrease of $174 million compared to 2016, primarily due to
improvement in the credit quality in the Energy and energy-related portfolio. Net credit-related charge-offs were $92
million, or 0.19 percent of average loans in 2017, a decrease of $65 million compared to $157 million, or 0.32 percent
of average loans, in 2016. The decrease primarily reflected lower Energy and energy-related charge-offs.

*  Noninterest income increased $56 million, or 5 percent, to $1.1 billion in 2017 in part due to the impact of Growth in
Efficiency and Revenue (GEAR Up) initiatives. Increasesin card fees, service charges on deposit accounts and fiduciary
income, aswell as smaller increasesin several other categories of noninterest income were partially offset by decreases
in letter of credit fees and commercial lending fees.

*  Noninterest expenses decreased $70 million, or 4 percent, to $1.9 billion in 2017 primarily due to decreases in saaries
and benefits expense, largely driven by the GEAR Upinitiative, and restructuring charges, partially offset by an increase
in outside processing fees primarily tied to revenue-generating activities.

*  The provision for income taxes increased $298 million in 2017. The increase primarily reflected an increase in pretax
income and the $107 million charge to adjust deferred taxes resulting from the Tax Cuts and JobsAct, partially offset by
a$35milliontax benefit from empl oyee stock transactionsin 2017 dueto new accounting guidancefor stock compensation
effective January 1, 2017.

e Thequarterly dividend wasincreased 13 percent to 26 cents per sharein April 2017 and further increased 15 percent to
30 cents per sharein July 2017.

e TheCorporation repurchased approximately 7.3 million shares of common stock during 2017 under the equity repurchase
program. Together with dividends of $1.09 per share, $724 million was returned to shareholdersin 2017, an increase of
$266 million, or 58 percent, compared to 2016.
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GROWTH IN EFFICIENCY AND REVENUE INITIATIVE

The Corporation launched the GEAR Up initiative in 2016 in order to meaningfully enhance profitability. Since GEAR
Up began, the Corporation has consolidated 38 banking centers, implemented a new retirement program resulting in asignificant
reductionin retirement plan expenseand reduced the number of full-timeequival ent empl oyeesby over 800, among other initiatives.
The impact of increases in short-term rates and the execution of certain GEAR Up initiatives helped lower the efficiency ratio to
58.6 percent for 2017, compared to 67.5 percent for 2016. Return on equity for 2017 increased to 9.3 percent, compared to 6.2
percent for 2016. Return on equity for 2017 was reduced by 1.4 percentage points due to the $107 million adjustment to deferred
taxes resulting from the enactment of the Tax Cuts and JobsAct.

Full-year 2018 pre-tax income before restructuring charges is expected to include approximately $270 million of
cumulative benefits from actions identified under thisinitiative, increasing to approximately $305 million in full-year 2019.

»  Expensereductions are expected to total $200 million by year-end 2018 and increase to $215 million by year-end 2019,
reflecting incremental savings of $50 millionin 2018 and an additional $15 millionin 2019. Thisisto be achieved through
rationalizing and modernizing technology, including optimizing infrastructure platforms, process optimization and
migrating certain applications to cloud-based systems, as well as consolidating office and operations space. The
Corporation isin the process of implementing the end-to-end credit design program to streamline the credit process and
increase relationship managers' capacity to service clients.

»  Revenue enhancements are expected to total $70 million by year-end 2018 and increase to $90 million by year-end 2019,
reflecting incremental revenue of $40 million in 2018 and an additional $20 million in 2019, achieved through product
enhancements, enhanced sales tools and training and improved customer analytics to drive opportunities.

*  Pretax restructuring charges of $185 million to $195 million in total are expected to be incurred from inception through
2018. Cumulative pre-tax restructuring charges of $138 million have been incurred through December 31, 2017. For
additional information regarding restructuring charges, refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

2018 OUTLOOK

For full-year 2018 compared to full-year 2017 management expectsthe following, assuming a continuation of the current
economic and low rate environment as well as approximately $270 million of cumulative benefits from the GEAR Up initiative:

* Averageloanshigher in linewith Gross Domestic Product, reflecting increasesin most lines of businesswhile remaining
stable in Energy and Corporate Banking.
* Net interest income higher, reflecting full-year benefits from the 2017 rate increases and loan growth.

o Full-year benefit from 2017 rate increases expected to be $110 million to $125 million, assuming a 20 percent
to 40 percent deposit beta for the December rate increase.

o Elevated interest recoveries of $28 million in 2017 not expected to repeat in 2018.

«  Provision for credit losses of 15 basis points to 25 basis points and net charge-offs to remain low, with continued solid
performance of the overall portfolio.

+  Excluding deferred compensation asset returns of $8 millionin 2017, noninterest income higher by 4 percent?, benefiting
from the continued execution of GEAR Up opportunities helping to drive growth in treasury management income, card
fees, brokerage fees and fiduciary income.

«  Excluding restructuring charges, noninterest expenses higher by 1 percent’, reflecting an additional $50 million benefit
from the GEAR Up initiative.

o Restructuring charges of $47 million to $57 million.

o Additionally, headwinds include higher technology expenditures and typical inflationary pressures, as well as
outside processing expenses to increase in line with growing revenue'.

« Income tax expense to approximate 23 percent of pre-tax income reflecting the passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Acts
and assuming no tax impact from employee stock transactions.

! Beginning January 1, 2018, as a result of adopting a new accounting standard for revenue recognition, card fee revenue from
certain card products will be presented net of network costs in noninterest income, as opposed to the current presentation of
associated network costs in outside processing fee expense within noninterest expenses. Other smaller revenue streams will be
similarly impacted. These changes in presentation will not impact net income and are not reflected in this outlook. This change
in presentation would have resulted in decreases to noninterest income and noninterest expenses of approximately $120 million
for the year ended December 31, 2017. For further information, refer to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Thefollowing providesacomparativediscussion of the Corporation'sconsolidated resultsof operationsfor 2017 compared
to 2016. A comparative discussion of resultsfor 2016 compared to 2015 is provided at the end of this section. For a discussion of
the Critical Accounting Policiesthat affect the Consolidated Results of Operations, see the " Critical Accounting Policies’ section

of this Financial Review.

ANALYSIS OF NET INTEREST INCOME

(dollar amounts in millions)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Average Average Average Average  Average Average
Balance Interest Rate(a) Balance Interest Rate(a) Balance Interest Rate (a)
Commercia loans $ 30,415 $ 1,162 3.83% $ 31,062 $ 1,008 326% $31501 $ 962 3.07%
Real estate construction loans 2,958 124 4.18 2,508 91 3.63 1,884 66 3.48
Commercial mortgage loans 9,005 358 3.97 8,981 314 3.49 8,697 296 341
Lease financing 509 13 2.64 684 18 2.65 783 25 317
International loans 1,157 47 4.07 1,367 50 3.63 1,441 51 3.58
Residential mortgage loans 1,989 74 3.70 1,894 71 3.76 1,878 71 3.77
Consumer loans 2,525 94 3.70 2,500 83 3.32 2,444 80 3.26
Total loans (b) 48,558 1,872 3.86 48,996 1,635 334 48,628 1,551 320
Mortgage-backed securities 9,330 202 2.17 9,356 203 219 9,113 202 224
Other investment securities 2,877 48 1.67 2,992 a4 151 1,124 14 1.25
Total investment securities (c) 12,207 250 2.05 12,348 247 2.02 10,237 216 2.13
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 5,443 60 1.09 5,099 26 0.51 6,158 16 0.26
Other short-term investments 92 — 0.64 102 1 0.61 106 1 0.81
Total earning assets 66,300 2,182 3.30 66,545 1,909 2.88 65,129 1,784 275
Cash and due from banks 1,209 1,146 1,059
Allowance for loan losses (728) (730) (621)
Accrued income and other assets 4,671 4,782 4,680
Total assets $ 71,452 $ 71,743 $ 70,247
Money market and interest-bearing checking deposits $ 21,585 33 0.15 $ 22,744 27 0.11  $ 24,073 26 0.11
Savings deposits 2,133 — 0.02 2,013 — 0.02 1,841 — 0.02
Customer certificates of deposit 2,471 9 0.36 3,200 13 0.40 4,209 16 0.37
Foreign office time deposits (d) 56 — 0.64 33 — 0.35 116 1 1.02
Total interest-bearing deposits 26,245 42 0.16 27,990 40 0.14 30,239 43 0.14
Short-term borrowings 277 3 1.14 138 — 0.45 93 — 0.05
Medium- and long-term debt (€) 4,969 76 1.51 4,917 72 1.45 2,905 52 1.80
Total interest-bearing sources 31,491 121 0.38 33,045 112 0.34 33,237 95 0.29
Noninterest-bearing deposits 31,013 29,751 28,087
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 996 1,273 1,389
Total shareholders’ equity 7,952 7,674 7,534
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 71,452 $ 71,743 $ 70,247
Net interest income/rate spread $ 2,061 2.92 $ 1,797 2.54 $ 1,689 2.46
Impact of net noninterest-bearing sources of funds 0.20 0.17 0.14
Net interest margin (as a percentage of average earning
assets) (C) 3.12% 2.71% 2.60%

(a) Average rate is calculated on a fully taxable equivalent (FTE) basis using a federal tax rate of 35%. The FTE adjustment to net interest income included in
the rate calculations totaled $4 million in each of the three years presented.
(b) Nonaccrual loans are included in average balances reported and in the calculation of average rates.
(c) Includes investment securities available-for-sale and investment securities held-to-maturity. Average rate is based on average historical cost. Carrying value
was $28 million below average historical cost in 2017 and exceeded average historical cost by $143 million and $100 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.
(d) Includes substantially all deposits by foreign depositors; deposits are primarily in excess of $100,000.
(e) Medium- and long-term debt average balances included $77 million, $162 million and $160 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, for the gain
attributed to the risk hedged with interest rate swaps. Interest expense on medium-and long-term debt was reduced by $32 million, $60 million and $70
million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, for the net gains on these fair value hedge relationships.

F-6



Table of Contents

RATE/VOLUME ANALYSIS

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017/2016 2016/2015
Increase Increase
Increase (Decrease) Net Increase (Decrease) Net
(Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase
Due to Rate  Volume (a) (Decrease) Due to Rate  Volume (a) (Decrease)
Interest Income:
Commercia loans $ 179 $ (25) $ 154 $ 60 $ (14) $ 46
Real estate construction loans 14 19 33 2 23 25
Commercial mortgage loans 43 1 44 8 10 18
Lease financing — (5) (5) 4 ®3) (@)
International loans 6 9) 3) 1 2 1)
Residential mortgage loans 1) 4 3 — — —
Consumer loans 10 1 11 1 2 3
Total loans 251 (14) 237 68 16 84
Mortgage-backed securities @) — 1) (4) 5 1
Other investment securities 5 @) 4 3 27 30
Total investment securities (b) 4 () 3 @ 32 31
I nterest-bearing deposits with banks 30 4 34 15 5) 10
Other short-term investments — 1) 1) — — —
Total interest income 285 (12) 273 82 43 125
Interest Expense:
Money market and interest-bearing checking deposits 8 ) 6 2 @) 1
Customer certificates of deposit 1) ?3) 4) 1 4 3
Foreign office time deposits — — — (0] — Q)
Total interest-bearing deposits 7 (5) 2 2 5) 3
Short-term borrowings 1 2 3 — — —
Medium- and long-term debt 23 (19) 4 9 11 20
Total interest expense 31 (22) 9 11 6 17
Net interest income $ 254 $ 10 $ 264 $ 71 $ 37 $ 108

(a) Rate/volume variances are allocated to variances due to volume. N ]
(b) Includes investment securities available-for-sale and investment securities held-to-maturity.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income is the difference between interest earned on assets and interest paid on liabilities. Gains and losses
related to the effective portion of risk management interest rate swaps that convert fixed rate debt to afloating rate and qualify as
hedges areincluded with theinterest expense of the hedged item. Refer to the Analysis of Net Interest Income and the Rate/Volume
Analysis tables above for an analysis of net interest income for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 and details
of the components of the change in net interest income for 2017 compared to 2016 and 2016 compared to 2015.

Net interest income was $2.1 billion in 2017, an increase of $264 million compared to 2016. The increasein net interest
income primarily reflected the net benefit from higher short-term rates and elevated interest recoveries, partially offset by one
fewer day in 2017. Average earning assets decreased $245 million, primarily reflecting decreases of $438 million in average loans
and $141 million in average investment securities, partially offset by an increase of $344 million in interest-bearing deposits with
banks.

The net interest margin increased 41 basis pointsin 2017 to 3.12 percent, from 2.71 percent in 2016, primarily reflecting
the net benefit from higher rates.

The Corporation utilizes various asset and liability management strategies to manage net interest income exposure to
interest rate risk. Refer to the “Market and Liquidity Risk” section of this financial review for additional information regarding
the Corporation's asset and liability management policies and the “ Balance Sheet and Capital Funds Analysis’ section for further
discussion on changes in earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES

The provision for credit losseswas $74 millionin 2017, compared to $248 millionin 2016. The provision for credit losses
includes both the provision for loan losses and the provision for credit losses on lending-related commitments.
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The provision for loan lossesis recorded to maintain the allowance for loan losses at the level deemed appropriate by the
Corporation to cover probable credit losses inherent in the portfolio. The provision for loan losses was $73 million in 2017, a
decrease of $168 million compared to $241 million in 2016, primarily reflecting improvement in the credit quality of the Energy
and energy-related portfolio. Net loan charge-offs in 2017 decreased $54 million to $92 million, or 0.19 percent of average total
loans, compared to $146 million, or 0.30 percent, in 2016. The decrease primarily reflected lower Energy and energy-related
charge-offs.

The provision for credit losses on lending-related commitments is recorded to maintain the allowance for credit losses
on lending-related commitments at the level deemed appropriate by the Corporation to cover probable credit losses inherent in
lending-related commitments. The provision for credit losses on lending-related commitments was $1 millionin 2017, a decrease
of $6 million, compared to $7 million in 2016, and there were no lending-related commitment charge-offsin 2017, compared to
$11 million in 2016, primarily reflecting improved credit quality.

For further discussion of theallowancefor loan|ossesand the allowancefor credit losseson |lending-rel ated commitments,
including the methodology used in the determination of the allowances and an analysis of the changesin the allowances, refer to
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements and the "Credit Risk" section of this financial review.

NONINTEREST INCOME

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Card fees $ 333 $ 303 $ 276
Service charges on deposit accounts 227 219 223
Fiduciary income 198 190 187
Commercial lending fees 85 89 99
Letter of credit fees 45 50 53
Bank-owned life insurance 43 42 40
Foreign exchange income 45 42 40
Brokerage fees 23 19 17
Net securities losses 3) (5) 2
Other noninterest income (a) 111 102 102
Total noninterest income $ 1,107 $ 1,051 $ 1,035

(a) The table below provides further details on certain categories included in other noninterest income.

Noninterest income increased $56 million, or 5 percent, to $1.1 billion in 2017, compared to 2016, partidly driven by
the GEAR Up initiative.

Card fees consist primarily of interchange and other fees earned on government card programs, commercial cards and
debit/Automated Teller Machine (ATM) cards, as well as fees from providing merchant payment processing services. Card fees
increased $30 million, or 10 percent, to $333 millionin 2017, compared to $303 millionin 2016. Theincreasein 2017 wasprimarily
dueto volume-drivenincreasesin merchant payment processing services, including new customers, and government card programs.

Servicechargeson deposit accountsconsist primarily of chargesonretail and businessaccounts, including feesfor treasury
management services. Service charges on deposit accounts increased $8 million, or 4 percent, to $227 million in 2017, compared
to $219 million in 2016. Theincrease in 2017 primarily reflected an increase in commercia service charges.

Fiduciary incomeincreased $8 million, or 5 percent, to $198 millionin 2017, compared to $190 millionin 2016. Personal
trust fees, institutional trust fees and investment advisory fees are the three major components of fiduciary income. These feesare
based on services provided, assets under management and assets under administration. Fluctuations in the market values of the
underlying assets managed or administered, which include both equity and fixed income securities, and net asset flows within
client accounts impact fiduciary income. The increasein 2017 was primarily driven by the favorable impact on fees from market
value increases and net asset inflows for personal trust and investment advisory services.

Commercial lending fees decreased $4 million, or 4 percent, to $85 million in 2017, compared to $89 million in 2016,
primarily reflecting a decrease in commercial loan commitment fees.

Letter of credit fees decreased $5 million, or 11 percent, to $45 million in 2017, compared to $50 million in 2016. The
decreasein 2017 was primarily due to a decrease in outstanding standby letters of credit.

Brokerage fees increased $4 million, or 22 percent, to $23 million in 2017, compared to $19 million in 2016, primarily
due to an increase in the volume of market activity.
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Other noninterest income increased $9 million, or 9 percent, to $111 million in 2017, compared to $102 million in 2016,
driven by small changesin various categories as illustrated in the following table.

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Customer derivative income $ 26 $ 27 $ 18
Insurance commissions 8 10 10
Investment banking fees 9 7 12
Income from principal investing and warrants 6 7 6
Securities trading income 8 6 9
Deferred compensation asset returns (a) 8 3 —
Risk management hedge ineffectiveness 1 2 1
All other noninterest income 45 44 46
Other noninterest income $ 111 $ 102 $ 102

D S S S S ——
(a) Compensation deferred by the Corporation's officers and directors is invested based on investment selections of the officers and directors. Income earned
on these assets is reported in noninterest income and the offsetting change in liability is reported in salaries and benefits expense.

NONINTEREST EXPENSES

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Salaries and benefits expense $ 912 $ 961 $ 1,009
Outside processing fee expense 366 336 318
Net occupancy expense 154 157 159
Equipment expense 45 53 53
Restructuring charges 45 93 —
Software expense 126 119 99
FDIC insurance expense 51 54 37
Advertising expense 28 21 24
Litigation-related expense (2 1 (32
Other noninterest expenses 135 135 160
Total noninterest expenses $ 1,860 $ 1,930 $ 1,827

Noninterest expenses decreased $70 million, or 4 percent, to $1.9 hillion in 2017, compared to 2016. Excluding
restructuring charges related to the GEAR Up initiative, noninterest expenses decreased $22 million, or 1 percent, in 2017.

Salaries and benefits expense decreased $49 million, or 5 percent, to $912 million in 2017, compared to $961 million in
2016. The decrease in salaries and benefits was largely driven by the GEAR Up initiative, partialy offset by an increase in
performance-based incentive compensation and a one-time bonus of $1,000 to approximately 4,500 non-officer employees, as
well asthe impact of merit increases.

Outside processing fee expense increased $30 million, or 9 percent, to $366 million in 2017, compared to $336 million
in 2016, primarily tied to revenue-generating activities, including expenses related to increases in merchant payment processing
services and government card programs, as well asincreasesin other outsourced services.

Restructuring charges associated with theimplementation of the GEAR Upinitiative decreased $48 millionto $45 million
in 2017, compared to $93 million in 2016, including decreases of $42 million in employee costs, $19 million in other restructuring
costs such as professional and legal fees and contract termination fees, and $13 million in facilities costs, partially offset by an
increase of $26 millionin technology costs. For further information about restructuring charges, refer to Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Equipment expense decreased $8 million, or 15 percent, to $45 million, primarily driven by favorable price renegotiations
and areduction in equipment depreciation expense, in part reflecting careful management of fully depreciated assets.

Software expenseincreased $7 million, or 6 percent, to $126 millionin 2017, compared to $119 millionin 2016, primarily
reflecting continued investment in the Corporation's technology infrastructure.

Advertising expense increased $7 million to $28 million in 2017, compared to $21 million in 2016, primarily due to
increased marketing expenses tied to new initiatives aswell as an increase in sponsorship expenses.

INCOME TAXES AND RELATED ITEMS

The provision for income taxes was $491 million in 2017, compared to $193 million in 2016. The $298 million increase
in the provision for income taxes in 2017, compared to 2016, was primarily due to an increase in pretax income of $564 million
and the $107 million charge to adjust deferred taxes resulting from the Tax Cuts and JobsAct, partially offset by atax benefit of
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$35 million in 2017 from employee stock transactions due to new accounting guidance for stock compensation effective January
1, 2017.

Net deferred tax assets were $141 million at December 31, 2017, compared to $217 million at December 31, 2016. The
decrease of $76 million primarily reflects the reduction in the federal statutory tax rate from the enactment of the Tax Cuts and
JobsAct, partialy offset by adecreasein deferred tax liabilities related to lease financing transactions. Deferred tax assets of $293
million were evaluated for realization, and it was determined that a val uation allowance of $3 million related to state net operating
loss carryforwards was needed at both December 31, 2017 and 2016. These conclusions were based on available evidence of
projected future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, assumptions made regarding future events and, when
applicable, state loss carryback capacity.

2016 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS COMPARED TO 2015

Net interest income was $1.8 billion in 2016, an increase of $108 million compared to 2015. The increase in net interest
incomein 2016 resulted primarily from higher yieldsonloansand Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) deposits, driven mainly by increases
in short-term rates, and earning asset volume, partially offset by higher funding costs. Higher funding costs were primarily the
result of higher costs on debt swapped to variable rate and new Federal Home L oan Bank (FHL B) borrowingsin the second quarter
2016.

Thenet interest margin (FTE) in 2016 increased 11 basis pointsto 2.71 percent, from 2.60 percent in 2015, primarily due
to higher loan yields and the reinvestment of a portion of FRB deposits into higher yielding Treasury securities, partially offset
by theimpact of higher funding costs. Theincreasein loan yields primarily reflected abenefit from an increasein short-term rates.
The "Analysis of Net Interest Income" and "Rate/Volume Analysis' tables under the "Net Interest Income" subheading in this
section above provide an analysis of net interest incomefor 2016 and 2015 and detail sthe components of the changein net interest
income for 2016 compared to 2015.

The provision for credit losses, which includes both the provision for loan losses and the provision for credit losses on
lending-related commitments, was $248 million in 2016, compared to $147 million in 2015. The increase primarily reflected
increased provisions for Energy and energy-related loans, partialy offset by improved credit quality in the remainder of the
portfolio. Net loan charge-offsin 2016 increased $46 million to $146 million, or 0.30 percent of average total loans, compared to
$100 million, or 0.21 percent, in 2015. The increase primarily reflected an increase in charge-offs in Energy and a decrease in
recoveriesin Private Banking, partially offset by decreases in Technology and Life Sciences and Small Business (primarily due
tothecharge-off of asinglelargecreditin 2015). L ending-rel ated commitment charge-offswere $11 millionin 2016 and $1 million
in 2015.

Noninterest income increased $16 million to $1.1 billion in 2016, compared to $1.0 billion in 2015. Card fees increased
$27 million, or 9 percent, to $303 million in 2016, compared to $276 million in 2015. The increase in 2016 was primarily due to
volume-driven increases from merchant payment processing services and government card programs. Service charges on deposit
accounts decreased $4 million, or 1 percent, in 2016, primarily reflecting a decrease in retail service charges. Fiduciary income
increased $3 million, or 1 percent, in 2016, primarily dueto anincreaseininstitutional trust fees, largely driven by net asset inflows
and increased activity in securities lending services. Commercia lending fees decreased $10 million, or 11 percent, in 2016,
primarily reflecting a decrease in unused commitment fees, largely due to a decline in Energy commitments, and a decrease in
syndication agent fees. Letter of credit fees decreased $3 million, or 4 percent, in 2016, primarily due to pricing actions taken
based on changes in regulatory rules. Refer to the table provided under the “Noninterest Income” subheading previoudly in this
section for the details of certain categoriesincluded in other noninterest income.

Noninterest expenses increased $103 million to $1.9 billion in 2016, compared to $1.8 hillion in 2015. Excluding $93
million of restructuring charges related to the GEAR Up initiative and $33 million from the net release of litigation reservesin
2015, noninterest expenses decreased $23 million. Salaries and benefits expense decreased $48 million, or 5 percent, in 2016,
primarily dueto the GEAR Upinitiative, including adecrease in pension expense, partially offset by theimpact of merit increases
and one additional day in 2016. Outside processing fee expense increased $18 million to $336 million in 2016, primarily due to
volume-driven increases related to processing for merchant services and other revenue-generating activities, aswell as increases
in certain other outsourced services. Restructuring chargesin 2016 associated with the implementation of the GEAR Up initiative
included $52 million of employee costs, $15 million of facilitiescostsand $26 million of other charges. Software expenseincreased
$20 million to $119 million in 2016, primarily reflecting continued investment in the Corporation's technology infrastructure.
FDIC insurance premiumsincreased $17 million to $54 million in 2016, in part due to federal rulesimplemented on July 1, 2016
in order to increase the statutorily required minimum level of the Deposit I nsurance Fund, aswell as higher risk-based assessment
rates (due largely to impacts from the energy cycle) and an increase in the assessment base. Litigation-related expensesincreased
$33millionin 20186, reflecting the benefit to 2015 from the rel ease of $33 million of litigation reserves. Other noninterest expenses
decreased $25 million to $135 million in 2016, primarily reflecting adecrease in state businesstaxes and an increasein gainsfrom
the early termination of certain leveraged lease transactions, as well as smaller decreases in many other categories.

The provision for income taxes decreased $36 million to $193 million in 2016, primarily due to a decrease in pretax
income as well as a $10 million increase in tax benefits from the early termination of certain leveraged leases.
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STRATEGIC LINES OF BUSINESS

The Corporation has strategically aligned its operationsinto three major business segments: the Business Bank, the Retail
Bank and Wealth Management. These business segments are differentiated based upon the type of of customer and the related
products and services provided. In addition to the three major business segments, the Finance division isalso reported asasegment.
The Other category includesitems not directly associated with these business segments or the Finance segment. The performance
of the business segments is not comparable with the Corporation's consolidated results and is not necessarily comparable with
similar information for any other financial institution. Additionally, because of the interrel ationships of the various segments, the
information presented isnot i ndicative of how the segmentswould performif they operated asindependent entities. Market segment
results are also provided for the Corporation's three primary geographic markets: Michigan, California and Texas. In addition to
the three primary geographic markets, Other Markets is also reported as a market segment. Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements describes the Corporation's segment reporting methodology aswell as the business activities of each business segment
and presents financial results of these business segments for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015.

The Corporation's management accounting system assigns balance sheet and income statement items to each segment
using certain methodol ogies, which are regularly reviewed and refined. These methodol ogies may be modified asthe management
accounting system is enhanced and changes occur in the organizational structure and/or product lines.

Net interest income for each segment reflects the interest income generated by earning assets less interest expense on
interest-bearing liabilities plusthe net impact from associated internal fundstransfer pricing (FTP). FTPcrediting rates on deposits
reflect thelong-term value of deposits, based on their implied maturities, and FTP charge ratesfor funding assets reflect amatched
cost of funds based on the pricing and duration characteristics of the assets. Therefore, net interest income for each segment
primarily reflects the volume and associated FTP impacts of loan and deposit levels as well as one fewer day in the year ended
December 31, 2017, compared to the prior year. FTP crediting rates on depositswere higher in the year ended December 31, 2017
than in the prior year, and, as aresult, net interest income for deposit-providing business segments has been positively impacted
during the current year. As overall market ratesincreased, FTP charges for funding loans increased for asset-generating business
segmentsin the year ended December 31, 2017, compared to the prior year.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The following table presents net income (loss) by business segment.

(dollar amounts in millions)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Business Bank $ 724 82% $ 638 88% $ 761 85%
Retail Bank 68 8 4 1 45 5
Wealth Management 88 10 74 11 84 10
880 100% 716 100% 890 100%

Finance (65) (239) (369)
Other (a) (72) — —

Total $ 743 $ 477 $ 521

(@) Includes a $107 million charge to adjust deferred taxes as a result of the enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and a $35 million tax
benefit from employee stock transactions for the year ended December 31, 2017.

The Business Bank's net income of $724 million in 2017 increased $86 million, compared to $638 million in 2016. Net
interest income of $1.4 billion decreased $45 million in 2017, primarily reflecting the FTP rate impacts described above and the
impactsof decreasesof $622 millionin averageloansand $901 millionin average deposits. The decreasein averageloansprimarily
reflected cyclical declines in Energy and Mortgage Banker Finance, partially offset by an increase in National Dealer Services.
The decrease in average deposits reflected a $1.8 billion decrease in interest-bearing deposits. The decrease in interest-bearing
deposits was primarily due to customers using liquidity for increased working capital needs and acquisition activity, adeliberate
approach to relationship pricing, as well as strategic actions taken in light of the new LCR rules. This was partially offset by an
$846 million increase in noninterest-bearing deposits. The largest declines in average deposits were in Technology and Life
Sciencesand Corporate Banking, partially offset by anincreasein Commercia Real Estate. Theprovisionfor credit|ossesdecreased
$159 million to $58 million in 2017, compared to the prior year, primarily reflecting improved credit quality in Energy, partially
offset by an increase in reserves in Technology and Life Sciences. Net credit-related charge-offs of $82 million decreased $63
millionin 2017, compared to 2016, primarily reflecting adecreasein Energy. Noninterest income of $601 millionin 2017 increased
$29 million from the prior year, primarily reflecting increases of $25 million in card fees and $5 million in service charges on
deposit accounts, as well as smaller increases in various other noninterest income categories, partialy offset by decreases of $5
million each in letter of credit fees and commercia lending fees. Noninterest expenses of $802 million in 2017 decreased $37
million compared to the prior year, primarily reflecting a decrease of $11 million in salaries and benefits expense, largely driven
by the GEAR Up initiative, as well as decreases of $19 million in restructuring charges and $15 million in corporate overhead,
partially offset by a $17 million increase in outside processing expenses primarily tied to revenue-generating activities.
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Net incomefor the Retail Bank of $68 millionin 2017 increased $64 million, compared to $4 millionin 2016. Net interest
income of $658 million increased $40 million in 2017, primarily reflecting the FTP rate impacts described above and the impact
of a $413 million increase in average deposits. The provision for credit losses decreased $22 million to $13 million in 2017,
compared to $35 million in 2016, primarily reflecting a decrease in Small Business. Net credit-related charge-offs of $15 million
in 2017 increased $3 million, compared to $12 million in 2016. Noninterest income of $193 million in 2017 increased $4 million
compared to 2016, primarily due to increases of $3 million each in card fees and service charges on deposit accounts, partially
offset by smaller decreases in various other categories. Noninterest expenses of $731 million in 2017 decreased $36 million from
theprior year, primarily reflectinga$21 million decreasein salariesand benefitsexpense, largely driven by the GEAR Upinitiative,
as well as a decrease of $23 million in restructuring charges, partialy offset by an increase of $5 million in outside processing
expense.

Wealth Management's net income of $88 million in 2017 increased $14 million, compared to $74 million in 2016. Net
interestincome of $170 millionin 2017 increased $3 million compared to 2016, primarily reflecting the FTPrateimpacts described
above and theimpact of a$208 million increasein averageloans. Average deposits decreased $45 million. The provision for credit
losses increased $5 million to a provision of $1 million in 2017, compared to a benefit of $4 million in 2016. Net credit-related
recoveries were $5 million in 2017, compared to no net credit-related charge-offs in 2016. Noninterest income of $255 million
increased $12 million from the prior year, primarily reflecting increases in fiduciary income of $8 million and brokerage fees of
$2 million. Noninterest expenses of $285 millionin 2017 decreased $16 million from the prior year, primarily reflecting decreases
of $6 million in restructuring charges and $4 million in salaries and benefits expense, largely driven by the GEAR Up initiative,
aswell as smaller decreasesin several other categories.

The net lossin the Finance segment was $65 million in 2017, compared to anet loss of $239 million in 2016. Net interest
expense of $175 million in 2017 decreased $253 million, compared to 2016, primarily reflecting a decrease in net FTP expense
as aresult of higher rates charged to the business segments under the Corporation's internal FTP methodol ogy.

Thenet lossin the Other category included the impact of a$107 million charge to adjust deferred taxes as aresult of the
2017 enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, partialy offset by a $35 million tax benefit from employee stock transactions in
2017.

MARKET SEGMENTS

The table and narrative below present the market segment results, including prior periods, based on the structure and
methodologies in effect at December 31, 2017. Note 23 to these consolidated financia statements presents a description of each
of these market segments as well as the financial results for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015.

The following table presents net income (loss) by market segment.

(dollar amounts in millions)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Michigan $ 264 30% $ 243 4% $ 319 36%
California 238 27 271 38 297 33
Texas 184 21 (22) 3 77 9
Other Markets 194 22 224 31 197 22
880 100% 716 100% 890 100%

Finance & Other (a) (137) (239) (369)

Total $ 743 $ 477 $ 521

(@) Includes a $107 million charge to adjust deferred taxes as a result of the enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and a $35 million tax
benefit from employee stock transactions for the year ended December 31, 2017, as well as items not directly associated with the market
segments.

TheMichigan market's net income of $264 millionin 2017 increased $21 million, compared to net income of $243 million
in 2016. Net interest income of $685 million in 2017 increased $19 million, primarily reflecting the FTP rate impacts described
above and theimpact of a $220 million increase in average loans. Theincrease in average loans resulted primarily from increases
in Corporate Banking and National Dealer Services, partialy offset by a decrease in general Middle Market. Average deposits
increased $46 million. The provision for credit losses decreased $1 million to $8 million in 2017, compared to a provision of $9
million in the prior year. Net credit related charge-offs decreased $10 million to net recoveries of $1 million for 2017, compared
to net charge-offs of $9 million in the prior year, primarily reflecting a decrease in charge-offsin Corporate Banking. Noninterest
income of $324 million in 2017 increased $4 million from 2016, primarily reflecting increases of $3 million each in fiduciary
income and card fees. Noninterest expenses of $590 millionin 2017 decreased $30 million from the prior year, primarily reflecting
decreasesof $11 millionin sal ariesand benefitsexpense, largely driven by the GEAR Upinitiative, and $12 millionin restructuring
charges.
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The California market's net income of $238 million decreased $33 million in 2017, compared to $271 million in 2016.
Net interest income of $719 million for 2017 increased $3 million from the prior year, primarily reflecting the FTP rate impacts
described above and the impact of a $277 million increase in average loans. The increase in average loans primarily reflected
increases in Private Banking, National Dealer Services and general Middle Market, partially offset by a decrease in Technology
and Life Sciences. Average deposits increased $95 million. The provision for credit lossesincreased $79 million to $100 million
in 2017, compared to $21 million in the prior year, primarily reflecting increasesin Technology and Life Sciences, general Middle
Market and Corporate Banking. Net credit-related charge-offs of $33 million in 2017 increased $7 million compared to 2016,
primarily reflecting an increase in Technology and Life Sciences, partially offset by a decrease in Private Banking. Noninterest
income of $171 million in 2017 increased $9 million from the prior year, primarily due to increases of $5 millionin card feesand
$4 million in service charges on deposit accounts, partially offset by a decrease of $3 million in letter of credit fees. Noninterest
expenses of $404 million in 2017 decreased $30 million from the prior year, primarily reflecting decreases of $15 million in
restructuring charges and $11 million in salaries and benefits expense, largely driven by the GEAR Up initiative.

The Texas market's net income increased $206 million to net income of $184 millionin 2017, compared to a net loss of
$22 million in 2016. Net interest income of $465 million in 2017 decreased $5 million from the prior year, primarily reflecting
the FTP rate impacts described above and the impacts of decreases of $668 million in average loans and $543 million in average
deposits. The decrease in average loans primarily reflected decreasesin Energy and general Middle Market, partially offset by an
increasein Commercial Real Estate. The decreasein average depositsresulted primarily from decreasesin general Middle Market,
Corporate Banking and Technology and Life Sciences, partially offset by an increase in Retail Bank. The provision for credit
losses decreased $297 million to a benefit of $72 million in 2017, compared to a provision of $225 million in the prior year,
primarily reflecting improved credit quality in Energy, Small Business and general Middle Market. Net credit-related charge-offs
of $46 million for 2017 decreased $72 million from the prior year, primarily reflecting a decrease in Energy. Noninterest income
of $131 millionin 2017 increased $2 million fromthe prior year, primarily reflecting increases of $3 million eachin servicecharges
on deposit accounts and card fees, partialy offset by a $3 million decrease in commercial lending fees. Noninterest expenses of
$375 million in 2017 decreased $33 million from 2016, primarily reflecting decreases of $11 million in restructuring charges, $10
million in corporate overhead and $10 million in salaries and benefits expense, largely reflecting savings related to the GEAR Up
initiative.

Net income in Other Markets decreased $30 million to $194 million in 2017 compared to $224 million in 2016. Net
interest income of $331 million in 2017 decreased $19 million from the prior year, primarily reflecting the FTP rate impacts
described above and the impact of decreases of $267 million in average loans and $131 million in average deposits. The decrease
in average loans primarily reflected decreases in Mortgage Banker Finance, Corporate Banking and Commercial Real Estate,
partialy offset by anincreasein Technology and Life Sciences. The provision for credit |lossesincreased $43 million to aprovision
of $36 million in 2017, compared to a benefit of $7 million in the prior year, primarily reflecting increasesin Technology and Life
Sciences, Environmental Services and Corporate Banking. Net loan charge-offs were $14 million in 2017, an increase of $10
million compared to 2016, primarily reflecting anincreasein Small Business. Noninterest income of $423 millionin2017 increased
$30 million from the prior year, primarily reflecting increases of $20 million in card fees, $4 million in fiduciary income and $3
million in service charges on deposit accounts. Noninterest expenses of $449 million in 2017 increased $4 million compared to
the prior year, primarily reflecting an increase of $20 million in outside processing fee expense related to revenue generating
activities, partially offset by decreases of $10 million in restructuring charges and $5 million in salaries and benefits expense,
largely driven by the GEAR Up initiative.

The net loss for the Finance & Other category of $137 million in 2017 decreased $102 million compared to 2016. For
further information, refer to the "Business Segments' discussion above.

The following table lists the Corporation's banking centers by geographic market segment.

December 31 2017 2016 2015
Michigan 194 209 214
Texas 122 127 133
Cdifornia 97 97 103

Other Markets:

Arizona 17 17 19
Florida 7 7 7
Canada 1 1 1
Total Other Markets 25 25 27
Total 438 458 477
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BALANCE SHEET AND CAPITAL FUNDS ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES AND LOANS

(in millions)
December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Investment securities available-for-sale:

U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency securities $ 2,727 $ 2779 $ 2,763 $ 526 $ 45

Residential mortgage-backed securities (a) 8,124 7,872 7,545 7,274 (b) 8,926
State and municipal securities 5 7 9 23 22
Corporate debt securities — — 1 51 56
Equity and other non-debt securities 82 129 201 242 258
Total investment securities available-for-sale 10,938 10,787 10,519 8,116 9,307
Investment securities held to maturity:
Residential mortgage-backed securities (a) 1,266 1,582 1,981 1,935 (b) —
Total investment securities $12,204  $12,369  $12500 $10,051 $ 9,307
Commercial loans $31,060 $30,994 $31659 $31,520 $ 28,815
Real estate construction loans 2,961 2,869 2,001 1,955 1,762
Commercial mortgage loans 9,159 8,931 8,977 8,604 8,787
Lease financing 468 572 724 805 845
International loans:
Banks and other financial institutions 4 2 — 31 4
Commercial and industrial 979 1,256 1,368 1,465 1,323
Total international loans 983 1,258 1,368 1,496 1,327
Residential mortgage loans 1,988 1,942 1,870 1,831 1,697
Consumer loans:
Home equity 1,816 1,800 1,720 1,658 1,517
Other consumer 738 722 765 724 720
Total consumer loans 2,554 2,522 2,485 2,382 2,237
Tota loans $49,173  $49,088  $49,084  $48,593 $ 45,470

(a) Issued and/or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies or U.S. government-sponsored enterprises.
(b) During the fourth quarter 2014, the Corporation transferred residential mortgage-backed securities from available-for-sale to held-to-
maturity.

F-14



Table of Contents

EARNING ASSETS
Loans

On aperiod-end basis, total loansincreased $85 million to $49.2 billion at December 31, 2017 compared to $49.1 billion
at December 31, 2016. Averagetotal |oans decreased $438 million, or 1 percent, to $48.6 billionin 2017, compared to $49.0 billion
in 2016. Thefollowing tables provide information about the changesin the Corporation's average loan portfolioin 2017, compared
to 2016.

(dollar amounts in millions) Percent
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 Change Change
Average Loans:

Commercial loans by businessline:

General Middle Market $ 9,299 $ 9,286 $ 13 — %
National Dealer Services 5,130 4,728 402 9
Energy 2,055 2,736 (681) (25)
Technology and Life Sciences 3,130 3,061 69 2
Environmental Services 899 844 55 7
Entertainment 650 665 (15 (2
Total Middle Market 21,163 21,320 (157) @
Corporate Banking 3,464 3,336 128 4
Mortgage Banker Finance 1,768 2,180 (412) (19
Commercial Rea Estate 725 913 (188) (21)
Total Business Bank commercial |oans 27,120 27,749 (629) 2
Total Retail Bank commercial loans 1,865 1,910 (45) (2
Total Wealth Management commercial loans 1,430 1,403 27 2
Total commercial loans 30,415 31,062 (647) 2
Real estate construction loans 2,958 2,508 450 18
Commercial mortgage loans 9,005 8,981 24 —
L ease financing 509 684 (175) (26)
International loans 1,157 1,367 (210) (15)
Residential mortgage loans 1,989 1,894 95 5
Consumer loans:
Home equity 1,794 1,767 27 2
Other consumer 731 733 2 —
Consumer loans 2,525 2,500 25 1
Total loans $ 48,558 $ 48,996 $ (438) (D)%
Average Loans By Geographic Market:
Michigan $ 12,677 $ 12,457 $ 220 2%
Cdifornia 18,008 17,731 277 2
Texas 9,969 10,637 (668) (6)
Other Markets 7,904 8,171 (267) 3)
Total loans $ 48,558 $ 48,996 $ (438) (D)%

Middle Market business lines generally serve customers with annual revenue between $20 million and $500 million.
National Dedler Services provides floor plan inventory financing to auto dealerships, and the $402 million increase in average
National Dedler Services commercia loans largely reflected the expansion of new and existing relationships. Customers in the
Energy businesslineare primarily engaged in the oil and gas businesses. The $681 million decrease in average Energy commercial
loans in 2017, compared to 2016, primarily reflected Energy customers taking actions to adjust their cash flow and reduce their
bank debt, including selling assets and raising capital, aswell asimproved operations. For moreinformation on Energy and rel ated
loans, refer to "Energy Lending” in the "Risk Management" section of thisfinancial review.

Mortgage Banker Finance provides short-term, revolving lines of credit to independent mortgage banking companies
and therefore partly reflects the level of home sales and refinancing activity in the market as awhole. The $412 million decrease
inaverageM ortgage Banker Financecommercial loansreflected mostly |ower average homerefinancing volumein 2017, compared
to 2016.
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Commercial real estate loans comprise real estate construction loans and commercial mortgage loans. Real estate
construction loans primarily include loans in the Commercial Real Estate business line, which generally serves commercial real
estate devel opers. Commercial mortgageloansareloanswherethe primary collateral isalien onany real property and are primarily
loans secured by owner occupied real estate. Real property isgenerally considered primary collateral if the value of that collateral
represents more than 50 percent of the commitment at loan approval. The $450 million increasein average real estate construction
loans was primarily driven by growth in the Commercial Real Estate business line in part due to additional draws on existing
multifamily construction lines.

ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO (FTE)

Maturity (a) VX\eliegrgtgeg
(dollar amounts in millions) 1-5Years 5-10 Years After 10 Years Total Maturity
December 31, 2017 Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Years
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government
agency securities $ 2,727 1.71% $ — —% $ — —% $ 2,727 1.71% 2.6
Residential mortgage-backed securities (b) 212 2.47 1,713 2.54 7,465 2.09 9,390 2.18 18.6
State and municipal securities (c) — — 1 2.63 4 2.63 5 2.63 12.6
Equity and other non-debt securities:
Auction-rate preferred securities (d) — — — — 44 2.68 44 2.68 —
Money market and other mutual funds (e) — — — — 38 — 38 — —
Total investment securities $ 2,939 1.76% $ 1,714 254% $ 7,551 2.09% $ 12,204 2.07% 15.0

(a) Based on final contractual maturity.

(b) Issued and/or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies or U.S. government-sponsored enterprises.

(c) Auction-rate securities.

(d) Auction-rate preferred securities have no contractual maturity; balances are excluded from the calculation of total weighted average maturity.
(e) Balances are excluded from the calculation of total yield and weighted average maturity.

Investment Securities

Investment securities decreased $165 million to $12.2 hillion at December 31, 2017, from $12.4 billion at December 31,
2016, including an $81 million decline in fair value. Net unrealized losses on investment securities available-for-sale were $123
million at December 31, 2017, compared to net unrealized losses of $42 million at December 31, 2016. At December 31, 2017,
the weighted-average expected life of the Corporation's residential mortgage-backed securities portfolio was approximately 3.7
years. On an average basis, investment securities decreased $141 million to $12.2 billion in 2017, compared to $12.3 hillion in
2016.

Asof December 31, 2017, the Corporation's auction-rate securities portfolio was carried at an estimated fair value of $49
million, compared to $54 million at December 31, 2016. During 2017, auction-rate securitieswith apar value of $3.6 million were
redeemed or sold, resulting in an insignificant amount of net securities gains. Asof December 31, 2017, approximately 96 percent
of the aggregate auction-rate securities par value had been redeemed or sold since the portfolio was acquired in 2008, for a
cumulative net gain of $52 million.

Interest-Bearing Deposits with Banks and Other Short-Term Investments

Interest-bearing deposits with banks primarily include deposits with the FRB and also include deposits with banks in
developed countries or international banking facilities of foreign banks located in the United States. Other short-term investments
includefederal funds sold, trading securities and loans hel d-for-sale. Substantially all trading securities are deferred compensation
plan assets. Loans held-for-sale typically represent residential mortgage loans originated with management'sintention to sell and,
from time to time, other loans that are transferred to held-for-sale. Federal funds sold offer supplemental earnings opportunities
and serve correspondent banks. Interest-bearing deposits with banks and federal funds sold provide a range of maturities of less
than one year and are mostly used to manage liquidity requirements of the Corporation. Interest-bearing deposits with banks
decreased $1.6 hillion to $4.4 billion at December 31, 2017. Other short-term investments increased $4 million to $96 million at
December 31, 2017. On an average basis, interest-bearing deposits with banks increased $344 million to $5.4 hillion in 2017,
compared to $5.1 billion in 2016, and other short-term investments decreased $10 million to $92 million in 2017.

DEPOSITS AND BORROWED FUNDS

At December 31, 2017, total deposits were $57.9 hillion, a decrease of $1.1 billion, or 2 percent, compared to $59.0
billion at December 31, 20186, reflecting a $531 million, or 2 percent, increase in noninterest-bearing deposits and a $1.6 hillion,
or 6 percent, decrease in interest-bearing deposits. The Corporation's average deposits and borrowed funds balances are detailed
in the following table.
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(dollar amounts in millions) Percent
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 Change Change
Noninterest-bearing deposits $ 31,013 $ 29,751 $ 1,262 4%
Money market and interest-bearing checking deposits 21,585 22,744 (1,159) (5)
Savings deposits 2,133 2,013 120 6
Customer certificates of deposit 2,471 3,200 (729) (23)
Foreign office time deposits 56 33 23 69
Total deposits $ 57258 _$ 57,741 $ (483) (1)%
Short-term borrowings $ 277 $ 138 $ 139 101 %
Medium- and long-term debt 4,969 4917 52 1
Total borrowed funds $ 5246 $ 5055 $ 191 4 %

Average deposits decreased $483 million, or 1 percent, to $57.3 billion in 2017, compared to $57.7 billion in 2016,
reflecting a$1.3 billion, or 4 percent, increase in noninterest-bearing depositsand a$1.7 billion, or 6 percent, decreasein interest-
bearing deposits. The decrease in interest-bearing deposits was primarily dueto customersusing their excessliquidity for working
capital needs and acquisitions, a deliberate approach to relationship pricing, as well as strategic actions taken in light of the new
LCR rules. The largest decreases were reflected in Corporate Banking ($588 million) and Technology and Life Sciences ($488
million), partially offset by increasesin Retail Bank ($413 million) and Commercial Real Estate ($214 million). By market, average
deposits decreased in Texas ($543 million) and in Other Markets ($131 million), partially offset by increasesin California ($95
million) and Michigan ($46 million).

Short-term borrowings totaled $10 million at December 31, 2017, a decrease of $15 million compared to $25 million at
December 31, 2016. Short-term borrowings primarily include federal funds purchased, short-term FHLB advances and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase. Average short-term borrowings increased $139 million, to $277 million in 2017, compared
to $138 million in 2016.

Total medium- and long-term debt at December 31, 2017 decreased $538 million to $4.6 billion, compared to $5.2 billion
at December 31, 2016, primarily reflecting the maturity of $500 million of subordinated notes in the third quarter 2017. The
Corporation uses medium- and long-term debt, which primarily includes FHLB advances and subordinated notes, to provide
funding to support earning assets, liquidity and regulatory capital. Average medium- and long-term debt increased $52 million,
or 1 percent, to $5.0 billion in 2017, compared to $4.9 billion in 2016.

Further information on medium- and long-term debt is provided in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
CAPITAL

Total shareholders' equity increased $167 million to $8.0 billion at December 31, 2017, compared to $7.8 hillion at
December 31, 2016. The following table presents a summary of changesin total shareholders equity in 2017.

(in millions)
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 7,796
Net income 743
Cash dividends declared on common stock (193)
Purchase of common stock (544)
Other comprehensive income (l0ss):

Investment securities available-for-sale $ (52)

Defined benefit and other postretirement plans 71

Total other comprehensive income (10ss) 19

Issuance of common stock under employee stock plans 102
Share-based compensation 39
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 1
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 7,963

Further information about other comprehensiveincome (loss) isprovidedinthe consolidated statementsof comprehensive
income and Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Corporation periodically conducts stress tests to eval uate potential impactsto the Corporation's forecasted financial
condition under various economic scenarios and business conditions. These stress tests are a normal part of the Corporation's
overall risk management and capital planning process and are part of the forecasting process used by the Corporation to conduct
theenterprise-widestresstest that was part of the Comprehensive Capital Analysisand Review (CCAR). For additional information
about risk management processes, refer to the "Risk Management” section of this financial review.
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The Federal Reserve completed its 2017 CCAR in June 2017 and did not object to the Corporation's 2017 capital plan
and the capital distributions contemplated in the plan for the period ending June 30, 2018. The plan includes equity repurchases
of up to $605 million for the four quarters commencing in the third quarter 2017 and ending in the second quarter 2018. Thetiming
and ultimate amount of future equity repurchases will be subject to various factors, including the Corporation's financial
performance and market conditions. At December 31, 2017, up to $318 million remained available for equity repurchases under
the plan. Sharerepurchasestotaled $531 million (7.3 million shares) in 2017. The 2018 capital planwill be submitted to the Federal
Reserve for review in April 2018 and a response is expected in June 2018.

In July 2017, the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the Board) authorized the repurchase of up to an additional 5
million shares of Comerica Incorporated outstanding common stock, in addition to the 8.3 million shares remaining at June 30,
2017 under the Board's prior authorizations for the equity repurchase program initially approved in November 2010. Including
the July 2017 authorization, atotal of 55.2 million shares and 14.1 million warrants (12.1 million share-equivalents) have been
authorized for repurchase under the equity repurchase program since its inception in 2010. There is no expiration date for the
Corporation's equity repurchase program.

In April 2017, the Board approved a 3-cent increase in the quarterly common dividend, to $0.26 per share, and in July
2017, the Board further increased the quarterly dividend to $0.30 per share. The Corporation declared common dividendsin 2017
totaling $193 million, or $1.09 per share, compared to common dividends totaling $0.89 per share in 2016. Including share
repurchases under the equity repurchase program, $724 million was returned to shareholdersin 2017, compared to $458 million
in 2016, a 58 percent increase.

In January 2018, the Corporation declared a quarterly dividend of $0.30 per share, payable April 1, 2018, to common
stock shareholders of record on March 15, 2018.

The following table summarizes the Corporation’s equity repurchase activity for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Total Number of Shares and
Warrants Purchased as

Part of Publicly Announced Remaining Total Number Average Price
Repurchase Plans or Repurchase of Shares Paid Per
(shares in thousands) Programs (a) Authorization (b) Purchased (c) Share
Total first quarter 2017 1,498 11,756 1,694 $ 69.75
Total second quarter 2017 2,011 9,634 2,015 69.09
Total third quarter 2017 1,955 12,395 (d) 1,956 71.11
October 2017 797 11,589 799 77.36
November 2017 753 10,836 753 79.17
December 2017 314 10,387 314 85.05
Total fourth quarter 2017 1,864 10,387 1,866 79.38
Total 2017 7,328 10,387 7,531 $ 72.31

(a) The Corporation made no repurchases of warrants under the repurchase program during the year ended December 31, 2017. Upon exercise
of a warrant, the number of shares with a value equal to the aggregate exercise price is withheld from an exercising warrant holder as
payment (known as a "net exercise provision™). During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Corporation withheld the equivalent of
approximately 1,209,000 shares to cover an aggregate of $35.6 million in exercise price and issued approximately 1,771,000 shares to the
exercising warrant holders. Shares withheld in connection with the net exercise provision are not included in the total number of shares or
warrants purchased in the above table.

(b) Maximum number of shares and warrants that may yet be purchased under the publicly announced plans or programs.

() Includes approximately 203,000 shares (including 2,000 shares for the quarter ended December 31, 2017) purchased pursuant to deferred
compensation plans and shares purchased from employees to pay for taxes related to restricted stock vesting under the terms of an employee
share-based compensation plan during the year ended December 31, 2017. These transactions are not considered part of the Corporation's
repurchase program.

(d) Includes July 25, 2017 equity repurchase authorization for up to an additional 5 million shares.

The U.S. adoption of the Basel 111 regulatory capital framework (Basel 111) became effective for the Corporation on
January 1, 2015. Basel 111 includes a more stringent definition of capital and introduces a new common equity Tier 1 (CET1)
capital requirement; sets forth two comprehensive methodologies for calculating risk-weighted assets (RWA), a standardized
approach and an advanced approach; introduces two new capital buffers, a conservation buffer and a countercyclical buffer
(applicableto advanced approach entities); establishesanew supplemental |everageratio (applicableto advanced approach entities);
and sets out minimum capital ratios and overall capital adequacy standards. The capital conservation buffer isbeing phased in and
will be fully implemented on January 1, 2019.

Under Basel 111, CET1 capital predominantly includes common shareholders' equity, |ess certain deductionsfor goodwill,
intangible assets and deferred tax assets that arise from net operating losses and tax credit carry-forwards. Additionally, the
Corporation has elected to permanently exclude capital in accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) related to debt and
equity securities classified as available-for-sale aswell asfor defined benefit postretirement plansfrom CET1, an option available
to standardized approach entities under Basel 111. Tier 1 capital incrementally includes noncumulative perpetual preferred stock.
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Tier 2 capital includes Tier 1 capital aswell as subordinated debt qualifying as Tier 2 and qualifying allowance for credit losses.
Certain deductions and adjustmentsto CET1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital were subject to phase-in through December
31, 2017. However, in November 2017, U.S. banking regulators issued a final rule that suspended the full transition for certain
deductions and adjustments effective January 1, 2018 to remain at current levels for banks not subject to the advanced approach,
and issued a naotice of proposed rulemaking intended to simplify certain aspects of Basel 111. The Corporation does not expect
either the final rule or the proposed rule to have a significant impact on its capital ratios.

The Corporation computes RWA using the standardized approach. Under the standardized approach, RWA is generally
based on supervisory risk-weightingswhich vary by counterparty type and asset class. Under the Basel 111 standardized approach,
capital isrequired for credit risk RWA, to cover therisk of unexpected losses due to failure of a customer or counterparty to meet
itsfinancial obligationsin accordance with contractual terms; and if trading assets and liabilities exceed certain thresholds, capital
isalsorequired for market risk RWA, to cover therisk of |osses dueto adverse market movementsor from position-specific factors.

The following table presents the minimum ratios required to be considered "adequately capitalized" as of December 31,
2017 and December 31, 2016.

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets (a) 4.50% 4.50%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets (a) 6.00 6.00
Total capital to risk-weighted assets (a) 8.00 8.00
Capital conservation buffer (a) 1.25 0.625
Tier 1 capital to adjusted average assets (leverage ratio) 4.00 4.00

(a) Inaddition to the minimum risk-based capital requirements, the Corporation is required to maintain a minimum capital conservation buffer
in the form of common equity, in order to avoid restrictions on capital distributions and discretionary bonuses. The required amount of the
capital conservation buffer, is being phased in and ultimately increasing to 2.5% on January 1, 2019.

The Corporation's capital ratios exceeded minimum regulatory requirements as follows:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
(dollar amounts in millions) Capital/Assets Ratio Capital/Assets Ratio
Common equity tier 1 and tier 1 risk-based $ 7,773 11.68% $ 7,540 11.09%
Totd risk-based 9,211 13.84 9,018 13.27
Leverage 7,773 10.89 7,540 10.18
Common equity 7,963 11.13 7,796 10.68
Tangible common equity (a) 7,320 10.32 7,151 9.89
Risk-weighted assets 66,575 67,966

(a) See Supplemental Financial Data section for reconcilements of non-GAAP financial measures.

At December 31, 2017, the Corporation and its U.S. banking subsidiaries exceeded the capital ratios required for an
ingtitution to be considered “well capitalized” by the standards developed under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Improvement Act of 1991. Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion of regulatory capital
reguirements and capital ratio calculations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Asaresult of conducting businessin the normal course, the Corporation assumes various types of risk. The Corporation's
enterprise risk framework provides a process for identifying, measuring, controlling and managing these risks. This framework
incorporates a risk assessment process, a collection of risk committees that manage the Corporation's major risk elements, and a
risk appetite statement that outlines the levels and types of risksthe Corporation accepts. The Corporation continuously enhances
its enterprise risk framework with additional processes, tools and systems designed to not only provide management with deeper
insight into the Corporation's various existing and emerging risks in accordance with its appetite for risk, but also to improve the
Corporation's ability to control those risks and ensure that appropriate consideration is received for the risks taken.

The Corporation’s front line employees, thefirst line of defense, are responsible for the day to day management of risks
including the identification, assessment, measurement and control of risks encountered as a part of the normal course of business.
Risks are further monitored, measured and controlled by the second line of defense, comprised of specialized risk managers for
each of the major risk categories who provide oversight, effective challenge and guidance for the risk management activities of
the organization. The majority of these risk managers report into the Enterprise Risk Division. The Enterprise Risk Division, led
by the Chief Risk Officer, is responsible for designing and managing the Corporation’s enterprise risk framework and ensures
effective risk management oversight. Risk management committees serve asapoint of review and escalation for those risks which
may haverisk interdependenciesor whererisk levelsmay be nearing thelimitsoutlined in the Corporation’ srisk appetite statement.
These committees comprise senior and executive management that represent views from both the lines of business and risk
management. Internal Audit, the third line of defense, monitors and assesses the overall effectiveness of the risk management
framework on an ongoing basis and provides an independent assessment of the Corporation’s ability to manage and control risk
to management and the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Enterprise-Wide Risk Management Committee, established by the Enterprise Risk Committee of the Board, is
responsible for governance over the risk management framework, providing oversight in managing the Corporation's aggregate
risk position and reporting on the comprehensive portfolio of risks as well as the potential impact these risks can have on the
Corporation's risk profile and resulting capital level. The Enterprise-Wide Risk Management Committeeis principally composed
of senior officers and executives representing the different risk areas and business units who are appointed by the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation.

TheBoard's Enterprise Risk Committee meets quarterly and is chartered to assist the Board in promoting the best interests
of the Corporation by overseeing policies, procedures and risk practices relating to enterprise-wide risk and ensuring compliance
with bank regulatory obligations. Members of the Enterprise Risk Committee are selected such that the committee comprises
individuals whose experiences and qualifications can lead to broad and informed views on risk matters facing the Corporation
and the financial services industry. These include, but are not limited to, existing and emerging risk matters related to credit,
market, liquidity, operational, compliance and strategic conditions. A comprehensive risk report is submitted to the Enterprise
Risk Committee each quarter providing management's view of the Corporation's aggregate risk position.

Further discussion and analyses of each major risk areaareincluded in thefoll owing sub-sections of the Risk M anagement
section in thisfinancial review.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk represents the risk of loss due to failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its financial obligations in
accordancewith contractual terms. The governance structureisadministered through the Strategic Credit Committee. The Strategic
Credit Committee is chaired by the Chief Credit Officer and approves recommendations to address credit risk matters through
credit policy, credit risk management practices, and required credit risk actions. The Strategic Credit Committee also ensures a
comprehensive reporting of credit risk levels and trends, including exception levels, along with identification and mitigation of
emerging risks. In order to facilitate the corporate credit risk management process, various other corporate functions provide the
resources for the Strategic Credit Committee to carry out its responsibilities. The Corporation manages credit risk through
underwriting and periodically reviewing and approving its credit exposures using approved credit policies and guidelines.
Additionally, the Corporation manages credit risk through loan portfolio diversification, limiting exposure to any single industry,
customer or guarantor, and selling participations and/or syndicating credit exposures above those levelsit deems prudent to third
parties.

Credit Administration manages credit policy and providesthe resourcesto manage theline of businesstransactional credit
risk, assuring that all exposure isrisk rated according to the requirements of the credit risk rating policy and providing business
segment reporting support as necessary. The Enterprise Risk Division provides credible and well-documented challenge of overall
portfolio credit risk, and other credit-related attributes of Comerica Incorporated's loan portfolios, with a particular emphasis on
all attendant modeled results. The Corporation's Asset Quality Review function, adivision of Internal Audit, audits the accuracy
of internal risk ratings that are assigned by the lending and credit groups. The Special Assets Group is responsible for managing
the recovery process on distressed or defaulted loans and loan sales.
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Portfolio Risk Analytics, within Credit Administration, provides comprehensive reporting on portfolio credit risk levels
and trends, continuous assessment and verification of risk rating models, quarterly calculation of the allowance for loan losses
and the allowance for credit losses on lending-related commitments, and cal culation of economic credit risk capital.

ANALYSIS OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

(dollar amounts in millions)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year $ 730 % 634 $ 504 $ 598 $ 629
Loan charge-offs:
Commercial 133 181 139 59 91
Real estate construction — — — — 3
Commercial mortgage 3 3 3 22 36
Lease financing 1 — 1 — —
International 6 23 14 6 —
Residential mortgage — — 1 2 4
Consumer 6 7 10 13 19
Total loan charge-offs 149 214 168 102 153
Recoveries:
Commercial 37 43 33 34 42
Real estate construction 1 — 1 4 7
Commercial mortgage 9 20 21 28 20
Lease financing — — — 2 1
International 3 — — — —
Residential mortgage 1 1 2 4 4
Consumer 6 4 11 5 6
Total recoveries 57 68 68 77 80
Net loan charge-offs 92 146 100 25 73
Provision for loan losses 73 241 142 22 42
Foreign currency translation adjustment 1 1 (2) (D —
Balance at end of year $ 712 $ 730 $ 634 $ 504 $ 598
Net loan charge-offs during the year as a
percentage of average loans outstanding during
the year 0.19% 0.30% 0.21% 0.05% 0.16%

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowancefor credit lossesincludes both the allowance for |oan losses and the allowance for credit 1osses on lending-
related commitments. The allowance for loan losses represents management's assessment of probable, estimable |osses inherent
inthe Corporation'sloan portfolio. Theallowancefor credit losses on lending-rel ated commitments, included in "accrued expenses
and other liabilities’ on the consolidated balance sheets, provides for probable losses inherent in lending-related commitments,
including unused commitmentsto extend credit and standby | ettersof credit. Refer to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements
for adiscussion of the methodology used in the determination of the allowance for credit losses.

An analysis of the coverage of the allowance for loan losses is provided in the following table.

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans at end of year 1.45% 1.49% 1.29%
Allowance for |oan losses as a percentage of total nonperforming loans at end of year 173 124 167
Allowance for loan losses as a multiple of total net loan charge-offs for the year 7.7% 5.0x 6.3x

The allowance for loan losses was $712 million at December 31, 2017, compared to $730 million at December 31, 2016,
adecrease of $18 million, or 2 percent. The decrease in the allowance for loan losses primarily reflected improvement in Energy
and energy-related loans.
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ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(dollar amounts in millions) Allocated Allowance Allocated Allocated Allocated Allocated
December 31 Allowance Ratio(a) % (b) Allowance % (b) Allowance % (b) Allowance % (b) Allowance % (b)
Business loans
Commercial $ 521 168% 63% $ 547 63% $ 448 65% $ 379 65% $ 340 63%
Real estate construction 19 0.63 6 21 6 12 4 20 4 16 4
Commercial mortgage 91 1.00 19 93 18 93 18 120 18 159 19
Lease financing 12 2.53 1 5 1 8 1 2 1 4 2
International 18 1.78 2 16 3 23 3 13 3 12 3
Total business loans 661 1.48 91 682 91 579 91 534 91 531 91
Retail loans
Residential mortgage 13 0.63 4 11 4 14 4 14 4 17 4
Consumer 38 1.49 5 37 5 41 5 46 5 50 5
Total retail loans 51 1.12 9 48 9 55 9 60 9 67 9
Total loans $ 712 1.45% 100% $ 730 100% $ 634 100% $ 594 100% $ 598  100%

(a) Allocated allowance as a percentage of related loans outstanding.
(b) Loans outstanding as a percentage of total loans.

The allowance for credit losses on lending-related commitments includes specific allowances, based on individual
evaluationsof certain lettersof credit in amanner consi stent with businessloans, and all owances based on the pool of theremaining
letters of credit and all unused commitments to extend credit within each internal risk rating.

Theallowancefor credit losses on lending-rel ated commitments was $42 million at December 31, 2017 compared to $41
millionat December 31, 2016. Ananalysisof changesintheallowancefor creditlossesonlending-rel ated commitmentsispresented
below.

(dollar amounts in millions)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Balance at beginning of year $ 41 3 45 3 41 $ 36 $ 32
Charge-offs on lending-related commitments (a) — (11) D — —
Provision for credit losses on lending-related commitments 1 7 5 5 4
Balance at end of year 3 42 $ 41 % 45 % 41 % 36

(a) Charge-offs result from the sale of unfunded lending-related commitments.

For additional information regarding the allowance for credit losses, refer to the "Critical Accounting Policies" section
of thisfinancial review and Notes 1 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements. For additional information regarding Energy
and energy-related exposures, refer to "Energy Lending" subheading later in this section.

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets include loans on nonaccrual status, troubled debt restructured loans (TDRs) which have been
renegotiated to lessthan the original contractual rates (reduced-rate |oans) and foreclosed property. TDRs include performing and
nonperforming loans. Nonperforming TDRs are either on nonaccrual or reduced-rate status.
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SUMMARY OF NONPERFORMING ASSETS AND PAST DUE LOANS

(dollar amounts in millions)

December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Nonaccrual loans:
Business loans:
Commercia $ 309 $ 45 % 238 $ 109 % 81
Real estate construction — — 1 2 21
Commercial mortgage 31 46 60 95 156
Lease financing 4 6 6 — —
International 6 14 8 — 4
Total nonaccrual business loans 350 511 313 206 262
Retail loans:
Residential mortgage 31 39 27 36 53
Consumer:
Home equity 21 28 27 30 31
Other consumer — 4 — 1 4
Total consumer 21 32 27 31 35
Total nonaccrual retail loans 52 71 54 67 88
Total nonaccrual loans 402 582 367 273 350
Reduced-rate |oans 8 8 12 17 24
Total nonperforming loans 410 590 379 290 374
Foreclosed property 5 17 12 10 9
Total nonperforming assets 3 415  $ 607 $ 391 $ 300 $ 383
Gross interest income that would have been recorded
had the nonaccrual and reduced-rateloansperformed
in accordance with original terms 31 % 38 $ 27 % 25 $ 34
Interest income recognized 7 6 5 6 5
Nonperforming loans as a percentage of total loans 0.83% 1.20% 0.77% 0.60% 0.82%
Nonperforming assets as a percentage of total loans
and foreclosed property 0.84 124 0.80 0.62 0.84
Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing $ 3B % 19 % 17 % 5 $ 16
L oans past due 90 days or more and still accruing as

Nonperforming assets decreased $192 million to $415 million at December 31, 2017, from $607 million at December 31,
2016. The decrease in nonperforming assets primarily reflected a decrease of $253 million in nonaccrual Energy and energy-
related loans. Nonperforming assets were 0.84 percent of total loans and foreclosed property at December 31, 2017, compared to

1.24 percent at December 31, 2016.

The following table presents a summary of TDRs at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

(in millions)
December 31

2017

2016

Nonperforming TDRs:

Nonaccrual TDRs $ 182 $ 225
Reduced-rate TDRs 8 8
Total nonperforming TDRs 190 233
Performing TDRs (a) 123 94
Total TDRs $ 313 % 327

(a) TDRs thatdo not include a reduction in the original contractual interest rate which are performing in accordance with their modified terms.

At December 31, 2017, nonaccrual TDRs and performing TDRs included $94 million and $49 million of Energy and
energy-related loans, respectively, decreases of $47 million and $11 million, respectively, compared to December 31, 2016.

F-23



Table of Contents

The following table presents a summary of changesin nonaccrual loans.

(in millions)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of period $ 582 $ 367
Loans transferred to nonaccrual (a) 297 718
Nonaccrual business loan gross charge-offs (b) (143) (207)
Nonaccrual business loans sold (40) (73)
Payments/other (c) (294) (223)
Balance at end of period $ 402 % 582

(a) Based on an analysis of nonaccrual loans with book balances greater than $2 million.
(b) Analysis of gross loan charge-offs:

Business loans $ 143 $ 207
Retail loans 6 ’
Total gross loan charge-offs $ 149 $ 214

(c) Includes net changesrelated to nonaccrual |oanswith balances|ess than $2 million, paymentson nonaccrual loanswith book balances greater than $2 million,
transfers of nonaccrual loans to foreclosed property and retail loan gross charge-offs. Excludes business loan gross charge-offs and nonaccrual business
loans sold.

There were 38 borrowers with balances greater than $2 million, totaling $297 million, transferred to nonaccrual status
in 2017, adecrease of $421 million when compared to $718 million in 2016. Of the transfersto nonaccrual greater than $2 million
in 2017, $66 million were Energy and energy-related, compared to $543 million in 2016.

The following table presents the composition of nonaccrual loans by balance and the related number of borrowers at
December 31, 2017 and 2016.

2017 2016
Number of Number of
(dollar amounts in millions) Borrowers Balance Borrowers Balance
Under $2 million 939 $ 85 1,152 $ 95
$2 million - $5 million 16 47 18 57
$5 million - $10 million 12 93 9 60
$10 million - $25 million 8 130 14 234
Greater than $25 million 1 47 4 136
Tota 976 $ 402 1,197 $ 582

The following table presents a summary of nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2017 and loans transferred to nonaccrual
and net loan charge-offsfor theyear ended December 31, 2017, based on North American Industry Classification System (NAICS)
categories.

December 31, 2017 Year Ended December 31, 2017
(dollar amounts in millions) Loans Transferred to Net Loan Charge-Offs
Industry Category Nonaccrual Loans Nonaccrual (a) (Recoveries)
Mining, Quarrying and Oil & Gas Extraction (b) $ 113 29% $ 66 22% $ 38 42%
Manufacturing 94 24 89 30 10 11
Health Care and Social Assistance 38 9 25 9 5 5
Residential Mortgage 31 8 12 4 (1) 1)
Services (b) 25 6 13 4 8 9
Wholesale Trade 20 5 34 12 10 11
Real Estate and Home Builders 18 4 5 2 3 3
Contractors 16 4 22 7 7 7
Information and Communication 6 1 8 3 8 9
Entertainment 4 1 10 3 — —
Transportation and Warehousing — — 6 2 9) (10)
Other () 37 9 7 2 13 14
Tota $ 402 100% $ 297 100% $ 92 100%

(a) Based on an analysis of nonaccrual loans with book balances greater than $2 million.

(b) Included nonaccrual Energy and energy-related loans of approximately $112 million in Mining, Quarrying and Oil & Gas Extraction and
$8 million in Services at December 31, 2017.

(c) Consumer, excluding residential mortgage and certain personal purpose nonaccrual loans and net charge-offs, is included in the “Other”
category.
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Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest generally represent loansthat are well collateralized and in the
process of collection. Loans past due 90 days or more increased $16 million to $35 million at December 31, 2017, compared to
$19 million at December 31, 2016. Loans past due 30-89 days increased $173 million to $302 million at December 31, 2017,
compared to $129 million at December 31, 2016. An aging analysis of loans included in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements provides further information about the balances comprising past due loans.

The following table presents a summary of total criticized loans. The Corporation's criticized list is consistent with the
Special Mention, Substandard and Doubtful categories defined by regulatory authorities. Criticized loans with balances of $2
million or more on nonaccrual status or loans with balances of $1 million or more whose terms have been modified ina TDR are
individually subjected to quarterly credit quality reviews, and the Corporation may establish specific allowances for such loans.
A table of loans by credit quality indicator included in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements provides further information
about the balances comprising total criticized loans.

(dollar amounts in millions)

December 31 2017 2016
Total criticized loans $ 2,231 $ 2,856
As a percentage of total loans 4.5% 5.8%

The $625 million decrease in criticized loans from December 31, 2016 to December 31, 2017 included a $763 million
decrease in criticized Energy and energy-related loans. The decrease in criticized Energy and energy-related loans was partialy
offset by modest increases in Technology and Life Sciences and other business lines. For further information about criticized
Energy and energy-related loans, refer to the "Energy Lending" subheading later in this section.

The following table presents a summary of changes in foreclosed property.

(in millions)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of period $ 17 8 12
Acquired in foreclosure 8 21
Write-downs 1) —
Foreclosed property sold (a) (19) (16)
Balance at end of period $ 5 $ 17
(a) Net gain on foreclosed property sold $ 3 3 4

For further information regarding the Corporation's nonperforming assets policies and impaired loans, refer to Note 1
and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentrations of credit risk may exist when anumber of borrowers are engaged in similar activities, or activitiesin the
same geographic region, and have similar economic characteristics that would cause them to be similarly impacted by changesin
economic or other conditions. The Corporation has a concentration of credit risk with the automotive industry. All other industry
concentrations, as defined by management, individually represented less than 10 percent of total loans at December 31, 2017.

The following table presents a summary of loans outstanding to companies related to the automotive industry.

2017 2016
(in millions) Loans Percent of Loans Percent of
December 31 Outstanding Total Loans Outstanding Total Loans
Production:
Domestic $ 1,007 $ 968
Foreign 337 358
Total production 1,344 2.7% 1,326 2.7%
Deadler:
Floor plan 4,359 4,269
Other 3,233 2,854
Total dealer 7,592 15.5% 7,123 14.5%
Total automotive $ 8,936 18.2% $ 8,449 17.2%

Substantially all dealer loans are in the National Dealer Services business line. Loans in the National Dealer Services
business line primarily include floor plan financing and other loans to automotive dealerships. Floor plan loans, included in
“commercia loans’ in the consolidated balance sheets, totaled $4.4 billion at December 31, 2017, an increase of $90 million
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compared to $4.3 hillion at December 31, 2016. At December 31, 2017 other loansin the National Dealer Services business line
totaled $3.2 hillion, including $1.9 billion of owner-occupied commercial real estate mortgage loans, compared to $2.9 hillion,
including $1.6 billion of owner-occupied commercia real estate mortgage loans, at December 31, 2016. Automotive lending also
includes loans to borrowers involved with automotive production, primarily Tier 1 and Tier 2 suppliers. Loans to borrowers
involved with automotive production totaled approximately $1.3 billion at both December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Dedler loans, asshownin thetable above, totaled $7.6 billion at December 31, 2017, of which approximately $4.6 billion,
or 62 percent, were to foreign franchises, and $2.1 billion, or 28 percent, were to domestic franchises. Other dealer loans, totaling
$742 million, or 10 percent, at December 31, 2017, include obligations where a primary franchise was indeterminable, such as
loans to large public dealership consolidators and rental car, leasing, heavy truck and recreation vehicle companies.

There were no nonaccrual loans to automotive borrowers at December 31, 2017 and $1 million at December 31, 2016.
There were no automotive net loan charge-offsin 2017 and 2016.

For further information regarding significant group concentrations of credit risk, refer to Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Commercial Real Estate Lending

The following table summarizes the Corporation's commercia real estate |oan portfolio by loan category.

(in millions)
December 31 2017 2016
Real estate construction loans:
Commercial Real Estate businessline (a) $ 2630 $ 2,485
Other business lines (b) 331 384
Total real estate construction loans $ 2,961 $ 2,869
Commercial mortgage loans:
Commercial Real Estate businessline (a) $ 1831 $ 2,018
Other business lines (b) 7,328 6,913
Total commercial mortgage loans 3 9,159 $ 8,931

(@) Primarily loans to real estate developers.
(b) Primarily loans secured by owner-occupied real estate.

The Corporation limits risk inherent in its commercial real estate lending activities by monitoring borrowers directly
involved in the commercia real estate markets and adhering to conservative policies on loan-to-value ratios for such loans.
Commercial real estate loans, consisting of real estate construction and commercial mortgage loans, totaled $12.1 billion at
December 31, 2017, of which $4.5 billion, or 37 percent, were to borrowers in the Commercial Real Estate business line, which
includesloansto real estate developers, an increase of $320 million compared to December 31, 2016. The remaining $7.6 billion,
or 63 percent, of commercial real estateloansin other businesslinesconsisted primarily of owner-occupied commercia mortgages,
which bear credit characteristics similar to non-commercial rea estate business loans.

The real estate construction loan portfolio primarily contains loans made to long-time customers with satisfactory
completion experience. Credit quality in the real estate construction loan portfolio was strong, with criticized |oans of $4 million
and $3 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Net recoverieswere $1 millionin 2017 and there were no net charge-
offsin 2016.

Loansin the commercial mortgage portfolio generally mature within three to five years. Commercial mortgage loansin
the Commercial Real Estate business line on nonaccrua status totaled $9 million at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
and net recoveriesin the same portfolio were $2 million and $10 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively. In other business lines,
$22 millionand $37 million of commercia mortgageloanswere on nonaccrua statusat December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Net recoveries were $4 million and $7 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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Residential Real Estate Lending

The following table summarizes the Corporation's residential mortgage and home equity loan portfolios by geographic
market.

2017 2016
Residential Home Residential Home

(dollar amounts in millions) Mortgage % of Equity % of Mortgage % of Equity % of
December 31 Loans Total Loans Total Loans Total Loans Total
Geographic market:

Michigan $ 387 19% $ 705 39% $ 386 20% $ 748 42%

Cdlifornia 1,023 52 718 40 948 49 687 38

Texas 297 15 335 18 337 17 305 17

Other Markets 281 14 58 3 271 14 60 3
Total $ 1,988 100% $ 1,816 100% $ 1,942 100% $ 1,800 100%

Residential real estateloans, which consist of traditional residential mortgages and home equity loans and lines of credit,
totaled $3.8 billion at December 31, 2017. Residential mortgages totaled $2.0 billion at December 31, 2017, and were primarily
larger, variable-rate mortgages originated and retained for certain private banking relationship customers. Of the $2.0 billion of
residential mortgage | oans outstanding, $31 million were on nonaccrua status at December 31, 2017. The home equity portfolio
totaled $1.8 billion at December 31, 2017, of which $1.7 billion was outstanding under primarily variable-rate, interest-only home
equity lines of credit, $120 million were in amortizing status and $45 million were closed-end home equity loans. Of the $1.8
billion of home equity loans outstanding, $21 million were on nonaccrua status at December 31, 2017. A majority of the home
equity portfolio was secured by junior liensat December 31, 2017. Theresidential real estate portfolioisprincipally located within
the Corporation's primary geographic markets. Substantially all residentia real estate |oans past due 90 days or more are placed
on nonaccrual status, and substantially al junior lien home equity loans that are current or less than 90 days past due are placed
on nonaccrual statusif full collection of the senior positionisin doubt. At no later than 180 days past due, such loans are charged
off to current appraised values less costs to sell.

Energy Lending

The Corporation has aportfolio of Energy and energy-related loans that are included primarily in "commercial loans' in
the consolidated balance sheets. Customersinthe Corporation'sEnergy businessline (approximately 175 rel ationships) areengaged
in three segments of the oil and gas business: exploration and production (E& P) (73 percent), midstream (16 percent) and energy
services (11 percent). E& Pgenerally includes such activities as searching for potential oil and gasfields, drilling exploratory wells
and operating activewells. Commitmentsto E& Pborrowersare generally subject to semi-annual borrowing basere-determinations
based on a variety of factors including updated prices (reflecting market and competitive conditions), energy reserve levels and
the impact of hedging. The midstream sector is generally involved in the transportation, storage and marketing of crude and/or
refined oil and gas products. The Corporation's energy services customers provide products and services primarily to the E& P
segment. About 90 percent of the loansin the Energy business line are Shared National Credits (SNC), which arefacilities greater
than $20 million shared by three or more federally supervised institutions, reflecting the Corporation's focus on larger middle
market companies that have financing needs that generally exceed interna individual borrower targeted exposure levels. The
Corporation seeks to develop full relationships with SNC borrowers. As of January 1, 2018, the threshold for SNC designation
has been increased from greater than $20 million to greater than $100 million.

In addition to oil and gas loans in the Energy business line, the Corporation is monitoring a portfolio of loans in other
lines of business to companies that have a sizable portion of their revenue related to oil and gas or could be otherwise
disproportionately negatively impacted by prolonged lower oil and gas prices (energy-related), primarily in general Middle Market,
Corporate Banking, Small Business, and Technology and Life Sciences. These companies include downstream businesses such
as refineries and petrochemical companies, companies that sell products to E& P, midstream and energy services companies,
companies involved in devel oping new technologies for the oil and gas industry, and other similar businesses.
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The following table summarizes information about the Corporation's portfolio of Energy and energy-related |oans.

(dollar amounts in millions) 2017 2016

December 31 Outstandings ~ Nonaccrual Criticized Outstandings  Nonaccrual Criticized
Exploration and production (E& P) $ 1346 73% $ 94 $ 376 $ 1587 70%$ 294 $ 910
Midstream 295 16 — 37 374 17 7 45
Services 195 11 14 95 289 13 27 200
Total Energy business line 1,836 100% 108 508 2,250 100% 328 1,155
Energy-related 298 12 55 397 45 171
Total energy and energy-related $ 2,134 $ 120 $ 563 $ 2,647 $ 373 $ 1,326
As a percentage of total Energy and energy-related loans 6% 26% 14% 50%

Loans in the Energy business line were $1.8 hillion, or approximately 4 percent of total loans, at December 31, 2017,
compared to $2.3 hillion, or approximately 5 percent of total loans, at December 31, 2016, a decrease of $414 million, or 18
percent. Total exposure, including unused commitments to extend credit and letters of credit, was $4.0 billion and $4.7 billion at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The decrease in total exposure in the Energy business line primarily reflected energy
customerstaking actionsto adjust their cash flow and reduce their bank debt, including selling assetsto pay down debt and raising
capital in the equity markets, as well as improved operations. Energy-related outstandings were approximately $298 million at
December 31, 2017 (approximately 60 relationships), a decrease of $99 million, or 25 percent, compared to December 31, 2016.

The Corporation's allowance methodol ogy considersthe variousrisk elementswithin the loan portfolio. The Corporation
continued to incorporate a qualitative reserve component for Energy and energy-related loans at December 31, 2017. Energy and
energy-related net credit-rel ated charge-offs of $39 million decreased $82 million for theyear ended December 31, 2017, compared
to net charge-offs of $121 million for the year ended December 31, 2016.

International Exposure

International assets are subject to general risks inherent in the conduct of business in countries, including economic
uncertainties and each foreign government's regulations. Risk management practices minimize the risk inherent in international
lending arrangements. These practices include structuring bilateral agreements or participating in bank facilities, which secure
repayment from sources external to the borrower's country. Accordingly, such international outstandings are excluded from the
cross-border risk of that country.

Therewere no countries with cross-border outstandings exceeding 1.00 percent of total assets at December 31, 2016 and
2015 and 0.75 percent in 2017. Mexico, with cross-border outstandings of $650 million (0.89 percent of total assets) and $617
million (0.86 percent of total assets) at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, wasthe only country with outstandings between
0.75 percent and 1.00 percent of total assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015. The Corporation'sinternational strategy isto focus
on international companies doing businessin North America, with an emphasis on the Corporation's primary geographic markets.

MARKET AND LIQUIDITY RISK

Market risk representstherisk of loss dueto adverse movementsin market rates or prices, including interest rates, foreign
exchangerates, commodity pricesand equity prices. Liquidity risk representsthefailure to meet financial obligations coming due
resulting from an inability to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding, and the inability to easily unwind or offset specific
exposures without significant changes in pricing, due to inadequate market depth or market disruptions.

The Asset and Liability Policy Committee (ALCO) of the Corporation establishes and monitors compliance with the
policiesand risk limits pertaining to market and liquidity risk management activities. ALCO meetsregularly to discussand review
market and liquidity risk management strategies, and consists of executive and senior management from various areas of the
Corporation, including treasury, finance, economics, lending, deposit gathering and risk management. The Corporate Treasury
department mitigates market and liquidity risk under thedirection of AL CO through the actionsit takesto managethe Corporation's
market, liquidity and capital positions.

Corporate Treasury supports AL CO in measuring, monitoring and managing interest rate risk and, in coordination with
Enterprise Risk, managing all other market and liquidity risks. Key activities encompass: (i) providing information and analysis
of the Corporation'sbalance sheet structure and measurement of interest rateand all other market and liquidity risks; (ii) monitoring
and reporting of the Corporation's positions relative to established policy limits and guidelines; (iii) developing and presenting
analysesand strategiesto adjust risk positions; (iv) reviewing and presenting policiesand authorizationsfor approval; (v) monitoring
of industry trends and analytical tools to be used in the management of interest rate and all other market and liquidity risks; and
(vi) developing and monitoring the interest rate risk economic capital estimate.
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Interest Rate Risk

Net interest income isthe primary source of revenue for the Corporation. Interest rate risk arisesin the normal course of
businessdueto differencesintherepricing and cash flow characteristicsof assetsand liabilities, primarily throughthe Corporation's
core business activities of extending loans and acquiring deposits. The Corporation's balance sheet is predominantly characterized
by floating-rate loans funded by core deposits. More than 90 percent of the Corporation's |oans were floating at December 31,
2017, of which approximately 80 percent were based on 30-day L IBOR and 20 percent werebased on Prime. Thiscreatessensitivity
tointerest rate movements dueto theimbal ance between the fl oating-rate | oan portfolio, noninterest-bearing depositsand the more
slowly repricing deposit products. In addition, the growth and/or contraction in the Corporation's |oans and deposits may lead to
changes in sensitivity to interest rate movements in the absence of mitigating actions. Examples of such actions are purchasing
investment securities, primarily fixed-rate, which provide liquidity to the balance sheet and act to mitigate the inherent interest
sensitivity, and hedging the sensitivity with interest rate swaps. The Corporation actively manages its exposure to interest rate
risk, with the principal objective of optimizing net interest income and the economic value of equity while operating within
acceptable limits established for interest rate risk and maintaining adequate levels of funding and liquidity.

Since no single measurement system satisfies all management objectives, acombination of techniquesis used to manage
interest rate risk. These techniques examine theimpact of interest rate risk on net interest income and the economic val ue of equity
under a variety of alternative scenarios, including changes in the level, slope and shape of the yield curve, utilizing multiple
simulation analyses. Simulation analyses produce only estimates of net interest income, as the assumptions used are inherently
uncertain. Actual resultsmay differ from simulated results due to many factors, including, but not limited to, thetiming, magnitude
and frequency of changesin interest rates, market conditions, regulatory impacts and management strategies.

Sensitivity of Net Interest Income to Changes in Interest Rates

The analysis of the impact of changes in interest rates on net interest income under various interest rate scenarios is
management's principal risk management technique. Management models a base case net interest income under an unchanged
interest rate environment. Existing derivative instruments entered into for risk management purposes are included in the analysis,
but no additional hedging is currently forecasted. These derivative instruments currently comprise interest rate swaps that convert
fixed-rate long-term debt to variable rates. This base case net interest income is then compared against interest rate scenariosin
which rates rise or decline in alinear, non-parallel fashion from the base case over 12 months. In the scenarios presented, short-
term interest rates increase 200 basis points, resulting in an average increase in short-term interest rates of 100 basis points over
the period (+200 scenario). Dueto the current level of interest rates, the analysis reflects adeclining interest rate scenario drop in
short-term interest rates to zero percent.

Each scenario includes assumptions such as loan growth, investment security prepayment levels, depositor behavior,
yield curve changes, loan and deposit pricing, and overall balance sheet mix and growth. In thisrate environment, depositors have
maintained a higher level of liquidity and their historical behavior may be less indicative of future trends. As aresult, the +200
scenario reflects a greater decrease in deposits than we have experienced historically as rates begin to rise. Changes in actual
economic activity may resultin amaterially different interest rate environment aswell as a balance sheet structurethat is different
from the changes management included in its simulation analysis.

Thetable below, asof December 31, 2017 and 2016, displaysthe estimated impact on net interest income during the next
12 months by relating the base case scenario results to those from the rising and declining rate scenarios described above.

Estimated Annual Change

(in millions) 2017 2016
December 31 Amount % Amount %
Change in Interest Rates:
Rising 200 basis points $ 197 9% $ 212 11%
Declining to zero percent (283) (13) (138) (7)

Sensitivity to rising rates decreased slightly from December 31, 2016 to December 31, 2017, reflecting changes to the
Corporation's balance sheet and recent funding strategy. The risk to declining interest rates is impacted by an assumed floor on
interest rates of zero percent. Because deposit costs remain close to the floor while asset yields have risen with market rates,
sensitivity to falling rates has increased during the same period.

Sensitivity of Economic Value of Equity to Changes in Interest Rates

In addition to the simulation analysis on net interest income, an economic value of equity analysisprovidesan alternative
view of theinterest rate risk position. The economic value of equity is the difference between the estimate of the economic value
of the Corporation's financial assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments, derived through discounting cash flows based
on actual rates at the end of the period and the estimated economic value after applying the estimated impact of rate movements.
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The economic value of equity analysis is based on an immediate parallel 200 basis point increase. The declining interest rate
scenariosarebased on decreasesof 150 basi spointsand 75 basispointsininterest ratesat December 31, 2017and 2016, respectively.

Thetable below, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, displaysthe estimated impact on the economic value of equity from
the interest rate scenario described above.

2017 2016
(in millions) Amount % Amount %
Change in Interest Rates:
Rising 200 basis points $ 1,188 9% $ 1,133 10%
Falling to zero percent (2,635) (20) (891) (7)

The sensitivity of the economic value of equity to a 200 basis point parallel increase in rates was mostly stable between
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2017. The change in sensitivity of the economic value of equity to a parallel decreasein
rates to zero during the same period was primarily driven by the increase in short-term rates between the periods, allowing for an
additional 75 basis point decrease from December 31, 2016 to the December 31, 2017 scenario.

LOAN MATURITIES AND INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

Loans Maturing

After One
(in millions) Within One But Within After
December 31, 2017 Year (a) Five Years Five Years Total
Commercia loans $ 15221 $ 14,739 $ 1,100 $ 31,060
Real estate construction loans 1,270 1,595 96 2,961
Commercial mortgage loans 1,563 5,065 2,531 9,159
International loans 452 524 7 983
Total $ 18,506 $ 21,923 $ 3,734 3 44,163
Sensitivity of loans to changes in interest rates:
Predetermined (fixed) interest rates $ 699 $ 2550 $ 633 $ 3,882
Floating interest rates 17,807 19,373 3,101 40,281
Total 3 18,506 $ 21,923 $ 3,734 3 44,163

(@) Includes demand loans, loans having no stated repayment schedule or maturity and overdrafts.

The Corporation uses investment securities and derivative instruments as asset and liability management tools with the
overall objective of managing the volatility of net interest income from changes in interest rates. These tools assist management
in achieving the desired interest rate risk management objectives. Activity related to derivative instruments currently involves
interest rate swaps effectively converting fixed-rate medium- and long-term debt to afloating rate.

Risk Management Derivative Instruments

. Interest Foreign

(in millions) . o Rate Exchange

Risk Management Notional Activity Contracts Contracts Totals
Balance at January 1, 2016 $ 2525 $ 593 $ 3,118
Additions — 13,946 13,946
M aturities/amortizations (250) (13,822) (14,072)
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 2275 % 717 % 2,992
Additions — 12,004 12,004
M aturities/amortizations (500) (12,071) (12,571)
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 1,775 $ 650 $ 2,425

The notional amount of risk management interest rate swaps totaled $1.8 billion at December 31, 2017, and $2.3 billion
at December 31, 2016, all under fair value hedging strategies, converting fixed-rate medium- and long-term debt to afloating rate.
Thefair value of risk management interest rate swaps was a net unrealized loss of $2 million at December 31, 2017, compared to
anet unrealized gain of $88 million at December 31, 2016. This decrease was primarily due to a January 1, 2017 clearinghouse
rule change whereby variation margin paymentsaretreated as settlements of derivative exposurerather than as collateral, resulting
in centrally cleared derivatives having a fair value of approximately zero. Risk management interest rate swaps generated $32
million and $60 million of net interest income for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

In addition to interest rate swaps, the Corporation employs various other types of derivative instruments as offsetting
positions to mitigate exposures to foreign currency risks associated with specific assets and liabilities (e.g., customer loans or
deposits denominated in foreign currencies). Such instruments may include foreign exchange spot and forward contracts as well
as foreign exchange swap agreements.
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Further information regarding risk management derivativeinstrumentsis provided in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Customer-Initiated and Other Derivative Instruments

L Interest Energy Foreign

(in millions) ) o Rate Derivative Exchange

Customer-Initiated and Other Notional Activity Contracts Contracts Contracts Totals
Balance at January 1, 2016 $ 12,228 $ 3127 $ 2291 $ 17,646
Additions 3,505 1,347 54,478 59,330
Maturities/amortizations (1,469) (1,908) (55,250) (58,627)
Terminations (941) (339) (10) (1,290)
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 13323 $ 2227 $ 1509 $ 17,059
Additions 4,377 1,539 47,456 53,372
M aturities/amortizations (2,096) (1,681) (46,987) (50,764)
Terminations (1,215) (238) (94) (1,547)
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 14,389 $ 1,847 $ 1,884 $ 18,120

The Corporation sells and purchases interest rate caps and floors and entersinto foreign exchange contracts, interest rate
swaps and energy derivative contracts to accommodate the needs of customers requesting such services. Changesin thefair value
of customer-initiated and other derivatives are recognized in earnings as they occur. To limit the market risk of these activities,
the Corporation generally takes offsetting positions with dealers. The notional amounts of offsetting positions are included in the
table above. Customer-initiated and other notional activity represented 88 percent and 85 percent of total interest rate, energy and
foreign exchange contracts at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Further information regarding customer-initiated and other derivativeinstrumentsisprovided in Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Liquidity Risk and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Liquidity isthe ability to meet financial obligations through the maturity or sale of existing assets or the acquisition of
additional funds. Variousfinancial obligations, including contractual obligationsand commercial commitments, may requirefuture
cash payments by the Corporation. Certain obligations are recognized on the consolidated balance sheets, while others are off-
balance sheet under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The following contractual obligations table summarizes the Corporation's noncancelable contractual obligations and
future required minimum payments. Refer to Notes 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 18 to the consolidated financial statements for further
information regarding these contractual obligations.

Contractual Obligations

Minimum Payments Due by Period

(in millions) Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
December 31, 2017 Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Deposits without a stated maturity (a) $ 55723 $ 55723 $ — $ — 3 =
Certificates of deposit and other deposits with a stated
maturity (a) 2,180 1,855 266 44 15

Short-term borrowings (a) 10 10 — — —
Medium- and long-term debt (a) 4,575 — 1,025 — 3,550
Operating leases 391 68 113 75 135
Commitments to fund low income housing partnerships 159 92 57 4 6
Other long-term obligations (b) 350 87 76 37 150

Total contractual obligations $ 63388 $ 57,835 $ 1537 $ 160 $ 3,856
Medium- and long-term debt (parent company only) (a) (c) $ 600 $ — $ 350 $ — $ 250

(a) Deposits and borrowings exclude accrued interest.
(b) Includes unrecognized tax benefits.

(c) Parent company only amounts are included in the medium- and long-term debt minimum payments above.

In addition to contractual obligations, other commercial commitments of the Corporation impact liquidity. These include
unused commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and financial guarantees, and commercia letters of credit. The
following table summarizes the Corporation's commercial commitments and expected expiration dates by period.
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Commercial Commitments

Expected Expiration Dates by Period

(in millions) Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
December 31, 2017 Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Unused commitments to extend credit $ 25469 $ 7,022 $ 9711 $ 5978 $ 2,758
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees 3,228 2,741 293 187 7
Commercial letters of credit 39 39 — — —
Total commercial commitments $ 28,736 $ 95802 $ 10004 $ 6,165 $ 2,765

Since many of these commitments expire without being drawn upon, and each customer must continue to meet the
conditions established in the contract, the total amount of these commercial commitments does not necessarily represent the future
cash requirements of the Corporation. Refer to the “ Other Market Risks” section below and Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements for a further discussion of these commercial commitments.

Wholesale Funding

The Corporation may access the purchased funds market when necessary, which includes a variety of funding sources.
Capacity for incremental purchased funds at December 31, 2017 included FHL B advances, the ability to purchase federal funds,
sell securities under agreements to repurchase, as well as issue deposits through brokers. Purchased funds totaled $25 million at
December 31, 2017, compared to $44 million at December 31, 2016. At December 31, 2017, the Bank had pledged loanstotaling
$21.3 billion which provided for up to $17.2 billion of available collateralized borrowing with the FRB.

TheBank isamember of the FHL B of Dallas, Texas, which provides short- and long-term funding to itsmembersthrough
advances collateralized by real estate-related assets. Actual borrowing capacity is contingent on the amount of collateral available
to be pledged to the FHL B. At December 31, 2017, $15.6 billion of real estate-related |oans were pledged to the FHL B as blanket
collateral for current and potential future borrowings. The Corporation had $2.8 hillion of outstanding borrowings maturing in
2026 and capacity for potential future borrowings of approximately $5.2 billion.

Additionally, the Bank had the ability to issue up to $14.0 billion of debt at December 31, 2017 under an existing $15.0
billion note program which allows the issuance of debt with maturities between three months and 30 years. The Corporation also
maintains a shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission from which it may issue debt and/or equity
securities.

The ability of the Corporation and the Bank to raise funds at competitive rates is impacted by rating agencies' views of
the credit quality, liquidity, capital and earnings of the Corporation and the Bank. As of December 31, 2017, the three major rating
agencies had assigned the following ratings to long-term senior unsecured obligations of the Corporation and the Bank. A security
rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell, or hold securities and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the
assigning rating agency. Each rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating.

Comerica Incorporated Comerica Bank
December 31, 2017 Rating Outlook Rating Outlook
Standard and Poor’s BBB+ Stable A- Stable
Moody’s Investors Service A3 Stable A3 Stable
Fitch Ratings A Stable A Stable

The Corporation satisfiesliquidity requirementswith either liquid assets or various funding sources. Liquid assetstotal ed
$17.4 billion at December 31, 2017, compared to $18.2 hillion at December 31, 2016. Liquid assets include cash and due from
banks, federal funds sold, interest-bearing deposits with banks, other short-term investments and unencumbered investment
securities.

Under theBasal 111 liquidity framework, the Corporationissubject to amodified L CR standard, which requiresafinancia
institutionto hold aminimum level of high-quality liquid assetsto fully cover modified net cash outflowsunder a30-day systematic
liquidity stress scenario. The Corporation isin compliance with the fully phased-in LCR requirement, plus a buffer.

In 2016, U.S. banking regulators issued a notice of proposed rulemaking (the proposed rule) implementing a second
quantitative liquidity requirement in the U.S. generally consistent with the Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) minimum liquidity
measure established under the Basel 111 liquidity framework. Under the proposed rule, the Corporation will be subject toamodified
NSFR standard, which requires afinancial institution to hold a minimum level of available longer-term, stable sources of funding
to fully cover amodified amount of required longer-term stable funding, over aone-year period. However, afina NSFR rule has
not been published by the U.S. regulatory agencies so the effective date of compliance remains unknown. The Corporation does
not currently expect the proposed rule to have a material impact on its liquidity needs.
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The Corporation performs monthly liquidity stress testing to evaluate its ability to meet funding needs in hypothetical
stressed environments. Such environments cover a series of broad events, distinguished in terms of duration and severity. The
evaluation as of December 31, 2017 projected that sufficient sources of liquidity were available under each series of events.

Other Market Risks

Market risk related to the Corporation's trading instruments is not significant, as trading activities are limited. Certain
components of the Corporation’s noninterest income, primarily fiduciary income, are at risk to fluctuations in the market values
of underlying assets, particularly equity and debt securities. Other components of noninterest income, primarily brokerage fees,
are at risk to changesin the volume of market activity.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk represents the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems,
including cybersecurity, or fromexternal events. Thedefinitiondoesnotincludestrategic or reputational risks. Although operational
losses are experienced by all companies and are routinely incurred in business operations, the Corporation recognizes the need to
identify and control operational losses and seeksto limit losses to alevel deemed appropriate by management, as outlined in the
Corporation’s risk appetite statement. The appropriate risk level is determined through consideration of the nature of the
Corporation's business and the environment in which it operates, in combination with the impact from, and the possible impact
on, other risks faced by the Corporation. Operational risk is mitigated through a system of internal controls that are designed to
keep operating risks at appropriate levels. The Operational Risk Management Committee monitors risk management techniques
and systems. The Corporation has developed a framework that includes a centralized operational risk management function and
business/support unit risk liaisons responsible for managing operational risk specific to the respective business lines.

COMPLIANCE RISK

Compliance risk represents the risk of regulatory sanctions or financial loss resulting from the Corporation's failure to
comply with regulations and standards of good banking practice. Theimpact of such risksis highly interdependent with strategic
risk, asthereputational impact from compliance breachescan besevere. Activitieswhich may exposethe Corporationto compliance
risk include, but are not limited to, those dealing with the prevention of money laundering, privacy and data protection, community
reinvestment initiatives, fair lending, consumer protection, employment and tax matters, over-the-counter derivative activitiesand
other activities regulated by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act.

The Enterprise-Wide Compliance Committee, comprising senior and executive business unit managers, as well as
managers responsible for compliance, audit and overall risk, oversees compliance risk. This enterprise-wide approach provides a
consistent view of compliance across the organization. The Enterprise-Wide Compliance Committee al so ensuresthat appropriate
actions are implemented in business units to mitigate risk to an acceptable level.

STRATEGIC RISK

Strategic risk represents the risk of loss due to impairment of reputation, failure to fully develop and execute business
plans, failure to assess current and new opportunities in business, markets and products, failure to determine appropriate
consideration for risks accepted, and any other event not identified in the defined risk categories of credit, market and liquidity,
operational or compliance risks. Mitigation of the various risk elements that represent strategic risk is achieved through various
metrics and initiatives to help the Corporation better understand, measure and report on such risks.
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CRITICALACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Corporation’s consolidated financial statements are prepared based on the application of accounting policies, the
most significant of which aredescribedin Note 1. These policiesrequire numerousestimatesand strategi c or economic assumptions,
which may proveinaccurate or subject to variations. Changesin underlying factors, assumptions or estimates could haveamaterial
impact on the Corporation’s future financial condition and results of operations. At December 31, 2017, the most critical of these
significant accounting policies were the policies related to the allowance for credit losses, fair value measurement, goodwill,
pension plan accounting and income taxes. These policies were reviewed with the Audit Committee of the Corporation’s Board
of Directors and are discussed more fully below.

ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

The allowance for credit |osses, which includes both the allowance for loan losses and the allowance for credit losses on
lending-related commitments, is calculated with the objective of maintaining a reserve sufficient to absorb estimated probable
losses. Management's determination of the appropriateness of the allowance is based on periodic evaluations of the loan portfolio,
lending-related commitments and other rel evant factors. Thisevaluation isinherently subjective asit requires numerous estimates,
including the loss content for internal risk ratings, collateral values, the amounts and timing of expected future cash flows, and
for lending-rel ated commitments, estimates of the probability of draw on unused commitments. I n addition, management exercises
judgment to adjust or supplement model ed estimatesfor factorsnot otherwisefully accounted for, such astherisksand uncertainties
observed in current market conditions, portfolio developments and other imprecision factors.

In determining the allowance for credit losses, the Corporation individually evaluates certain impaired loans, applies
standard reservefactorsto poolsof homogeneousloansand |ending-related commitmentsandincorporatesqualitative adjustments.
Standard loss factors, applied to the majority of the Corporation's loan portfolio and lending-related commitments, are based on
estimatesof probabilitiesof default for individual risk ratingsover thelossemergence period and lossgiven default. L ossemergence
periods are used to determine the most appropriate default horizon associated with the calculation of probabilities of default.
Changes to one or more of the estimates used to devel op standard loss factors, or the use of different estimates, would result in a
different estimated allowance for credit losses. To illustrate, if recent loss experience dictated that the estimated standard loss
factorswould bechanged by five percent of theestimate acrossall loanrisk ratings, theallowancefor loanlossesasof December 31,
2017 would change by approximately $32 million.

Because standard loss factors are applied to pools of loans based on the Corporation's internal risk rating system, loss
estimates are highly dependent on the accuracy of therisk rating assigned to each loan. The inherent imprecision in therisk rating
system resulting from inaccuracy in assigning and/or entering risk ratings in the loan accounting system is monitored by the
Corporation's asset quality review function and incorporated in a qualitative adjustment. The Corporation may also include
qualitative adjustments intended to capture the impact of certain other uncertainties that exist but are not yet reflected in the
standard reserve factors. These qualitative adjustments are based on management’s analysis of factors such as portfolios where
recent historical |osses exceed expected |osses or known recent events are expected to alter risk ratings once evidenceis acquired,
observablemacroeconomic metrics, including consideration of regional metricswithinthe Corporation'sfootprint, and aqualitative
assessment of the lending environment, including underwriting standards, current economic and political conditions, and other
factors affecting credit quality. Qualitative reserves at December 31, 2017 primarily included components for portfolios where
recent losstrendswerein excessof estimated lossesbased on overall portfolio standard | ossfactors, model imprecision and changes
in market conditions compared to the conditionsthat existed at the date of the most recent annual updateto standard reservefactors.

For further discussion of the methodology used in the determination of the allowance for credit losses, refer to Note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements. To the extent actual outcomes differ from management estimates, additional provision for
credit losses may be required that would adversely impact earnings in future periods. A substantial majority of the allowance is
assigned to business segments. Any earnings impact resulting from actual outcomes differing from management estimates would
primarily affect the Business Bank segment.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Investment securities avail able-for-sale, derivatives and deferred compensation plan assets and associated liabilities are
recorded at fair value on arecurring basis. Additionally, from timeto time, other assets and liabilities may berecorded at fair value
on anonrecurring basis, such asimpaired |oans that have been reduced based on the fair value of the underlying collateral, other
real estate (primarily foreclosed property), nonmarketable equity securities and certain other assets and liabilities. These
nonrecurring fair value adjustmentstypically involve write-downs of individual assets or application of lower of cost or fair value
accounting.

Fair value is an estimate of the exchange price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an
orderly transaction (i.e., not a forced transaction, such as a liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the
measurement date and is based on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability. Fair value
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measurement and disclosure guidance establishes a three-level hierarchy for disclosure of assets and liabilities recorded at fair
value. Notes 1 and 2 to the consolidated financial statements includes information about the fair value hierarchy, the extent to
which fair value is used to measure assets and liabilities and the valuation methodol ogies and key inputs used.

At December 31, 2017, assets and liabilities measured using observable inputs that are classified as Level 1 or Level 2
represented 98.4 percent and 100.0 percent of total assets and liabilities recorded at fair value, respectively, and Level 3 assets
totaled $181 million, or 1.6 percent of total assets recorded at fair value. Valuations generated from model-based techniques that
use at least one significant assumption not observable in the market are considered Level 3. Unobservable assumptions reflect
estimates of assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Fair value measurements for assets and
liabilities where limited or no observable market data exists often involves significant judgments about assumptions, such as
determining an appropriate discount rate that factors in both liquidity and risk premiums, and in many cases may not reflect
amountsexchangedinacurrent sal eof thefinancial instrument. I naddition, changesin market conditionsmay reducetheavail ability
of quoted prices or observable data. For example, reduced liquidity in the capital markets or changesin secondary market activities
could result in observable market inputs becoming unavailable. Therefore, when market data is not available, the Corporation
would use valuation techniques requiring more management judgment to estimate the appropriate fair value.

GOODWILL

Goodwill isinitially recorded as the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in a business
combination andis subsequently eval uated at least annually for impai rment. Unless management determinesit necessary, goodwill
impairment testing is performed at the reporting unit level, equivalent to a business segment or one level below. The Corporation
hasthree reporting units: the Business Bank, the Retail Bank and Wealth Management. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, goodwill
totaled $635 million, including $380 million allocated to the Business Bank, $194 million allocated to the Retail Bank and $61
million allocated to Wealth M anagement.

In performing the annual impairment test, the Corporation compares the carrying amount of identified reporting units,
including goodwill, with their estimated fair value. The Corporation considers the carrying value of each reporting unit to be the
greater of economic or regulatory capital. Economic capital isassigned using internal management methodol ogies on the basis of
each reporting unit's credit, operational and interest raterisks, aswell as goodwill. To determine regulatory capital, each reporting
unit is assigned sufficient capital such that their respective Tier 1 ratio, based on allocated risk-weighted assets, isthe same asthat
of the Corporation. Using this two-pronged approach, the Corporation's equity is fully allocated to its reporting units except for
capital held primarily for therisk associated with the securities portfolio that is assigned to the Finance segment of the Corporation.

Determining the fair value of reporting unitsis a subjective processinvolving the use of estimates and judgments related
to the selection of inputs such as future cash flows, discount rates, comparable public company multiples, applicable control
premiums and economic expectations used in determining the interest rate environment. The estimated fair values of the reporting
units are determined using a blend of two commonly used valuation techniques: the market approach and the income approach.
For the market approach, valuations of reporting units consider a combination of earnings, equity and other multiples from
companies with characteristics similar to the reporting unit. Since the fair values determined under the market approach are
representative of noncontrolling interests, the valuations accordingly incorporate a control premium. For the income approach,
estimated future cash flows and terminal value are discounted. Estimated future cash flows are derived from internal forecasts and
economic expectations for each reporting unit which incorporate uncertainty factors inherent to long-term projections. The
applicable discount rate is based on the imputed cost of equity capital appropriate for each reporting unit, which incorporates the
risk-free rate of return, the level of non-diversified risk associated with companies with characteristics similar to the reporting
unit, asize risk premium and a market equity risk premium.

The annual test of goodwill impairment was performed as of the beginning of the third quarter 2017. The Corporation's
assumptionsincluded modest increasesto the Federal fundstarget rate until eventually reaching anormal interest rate environment,
as well as credit costs and the impact of the Corporation's GEAR Up initiative. At the conclusion of the first step of the annual
goodwill impairment tests performed in thethird quarter 2017, the estimated fair values of all reporting unitssubstantially exceeded
their carrying amounts, including goodwill. The results of the annual test of the goodwill impairment test for each reporting unit
were subjected to stress testing as appropriate.

Economic conditions impact the assumptions related to interest and growth rates, loss rates and imputed cost of equity
capital. Thefair value estimatesfor each reporting unit incorporated current economic and market conditions, including the recent
Federal Reserve announcements and theimpact of legislative and regulatory changes, to the extent known and as described above.
However, further weakening in the economic environment, such as adverse changesin interest rates, adecline in the performance
of the reporting units or other factors could cause the fair value of one or more of the reporting units to fall below their carrying
value, resulting in a goodwill impairment charge. Additionally, new legislative or regulatory changes not anticipated in
management's expectations may cause thefair value of one or more of the reporting unitsto fall below the carrying value, resulting
in a goodwill impairment charge. Any impairment charge would not affect the Corporation's regulatory capital ratios, tangible
common equity ratio or liquidity position.
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PENSION PLAN ACCOUNTING

The Corporation has aqualified and non-qualified defined benefit pension plan. Prior to January 1, 2017, the plans were
in effect for substantially all salaried employees hired before January 1, 2007. In October 2016, the Corporation modified its
defined benefit plans to convert most participants, including employees participating in the Corporation's defined contribution
plan, to acash balance formulaeffective January 1, 2017. Participants who were age 60 or older as of December 31, 2016 continue
to be eligible for the final average pay benefit. In addition, the Corporation added a lump-sum payment option, effective January
1, 2017. These changes were part of the GEAR Up initiative. For more information about the defined benefit pension plan
modifications, see Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. Benefits under the cash balance formula are based on years
of service, age, compensation and an interest credit based on the 30-year Treasury rate. The Corporation makes assumptions
concerning future eventsthat will determinetheamount and timing of required benefit payments, funding requirementsand defined
benefit pension expense. The major assumptions are the discount rate used in determining the current benefit obligation, the long-
term rate of return expected on plan assets, mix of assets within the portfolio, the form of payment election and the projected
mortality rate. The discount rate is determined by matching the expected cash flows of the pension plans to a portfolio of high
quality corporate bonds as of the measurement date, December 31. The long-term rate of return expected on plan assetsis set after
considering both long-term returnsin the general market and long-term returns experienced by the assets in the plan. The current
target asset allocation model for the plansis provided in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. The expected returns
onthesevarious asset categoriesare blended to derive onelong-term return assumption. The assetsareinvestedin certain collective
investment funds, common stocks, U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency securities, and corporate and municipal bonds
and notes. The form of payment election assumption is based on market experience. Mortality rate assumptions are based on
mortality tablespublished by third-partiessuch asthe Society of Actuaries(SOA), considering other availableinformationincluding
historical data aswell as studies and publications from reputabl e sources. The Corporation reviews its pension plan assumptions
on an annual basis with its actuarial consultants to determine if the assumptions are reasonable and adjusts the assumptions to
reflect changes in future expectations.

The assumptions used to cal culate 2018 defined benefit plan pension expense (benefit) were as follows:

Discount rate 3.74%
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 6.50%
Lump sum payment election rate:
Participants before January 1, 2017 50%
All other participants 80%
Mortality table:
Base table (a) RP-2017
Mortality improvement scale (a) MP-2017

(a) Issued by the Society of Actuaries in October 2017.

In 2018, thedefined benefit plan expenseisexpected to remain consi stent compared to 2017 with abenefit of approximately
$19 million. Thisincludes service cost expense of $31 million and a benefit from other components of $50 million.

Changing the 2018 discount rate and long-term rate of return by 25 basis points would impact defined benefit expense
in 2018 by $7.3 million and $6.3 million, respectively.

Dueto the long-term nature of pension plan assumptions, actual results may differ significantly from the actuarial -based
estimates. Differencesresultingin actuarial gainsor lossesarerequired to berecordedin shareholders equity as part of accumul ated
other comprehensive loss and amortized to defined benefit pension expense in future years. Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated
financia statements for further information.

INCOME TAXES

The calculation of the Corporation's income tax provision and tax-related accruals is complex and requires the use of
estimates and judgments. The provision for income taxes is the sum of income taxes due for the current year and deferred taxes.
Deferred taxesarisefrom temporary differencesbetween theincometax basi sand financial accounting basisof assetsandliabilities.
Accrued taxes represent the net estimated amount due to or to be received from taxing jurisdictions, currently or in the future, and
areincluded in “accrued income and other assets’ or “accrued expenses and other liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheets.
TheCorporation assessestherel ativerisksand meritsof tax positionsfor varioustransactionsafter considering statutes, regul ations,
judicial precedent and other available information and maintains tax accruals consi stent with these assessments. The Corporation
is subject to audit by taxing authorities that could question and/or challenge the tax positions taken by the Corporation.

Included in net deferred taxes are deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are evaluated for realization based on available
evidence of projected future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, assumptions made regarding future events and,
when applicable, stateloss carryback capacity. A valuation allowanceis provided whenitismore-likely-than-not that some portion
of the deferred tax asset will not berealized. In December 2017, the Tax Cutsand JobsAct (the"Act") wassigned into law, resulting
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in the reduction of the federal tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent. Fourth quarter and full-year 2017 results were impacted by
a $107 million charge to adjust deferred taxes as a result of the decline in the federal tax rate. The year-end evaluation of the
deferred tax assets included the impact of these changes in tax law. Management continues to analyze certain aspects of the Act
and refine calculations, which could potentially affect the measurement of these balances or potentially give rise to new deferred
tax amounts.

Changesin the estimate of accrued taxes occur dueto changesin tax law, interpretations of existing tax laws, new judicia
or regulatory guidance, and the status of examinations conducted by taxing authorities that impact the relative risks and merits of
tax positions taken by the Corporation. These changes, when they occur, impact the estimate of accrued taxes and could be
significant to the operating results of the Corporation. For further information on tax accruals and related risks, see Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA

Thefollowing table providesareconciliation of non-GAAPfinancial measuresused inthisfinancial review with financial
measures defined by GAAP.

(dollar amounts in millions)

December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Tangible Common Equity Ratio:
Common shareholders equity $ 793 $ 77% $ 7560 $ 7402 $ 7,150
Less:

Goodwill 635 635 635 635 635

Other intangible assets 8 10 14 15 17
Tangible common equity $ 7320 $ 7151 $ 6911 $ 6752 $ 6498
Total assets $ 71567 $ 72978 $ 71877 $ 69186 $ 65224
Less:

Goodwill 635 635 635 635 635

Other intangible assets 8 10 14 15 17
Tangible assets $ 70924 $ 72333 $ 71228 $ 68536 $ 64572
Common equity ratio 11.13% 10.68% 10.52% 10.70% 10.97%
Tangible common equity ratio 10.32 9.89 9.70 9.85 10.07
Tangible Common Equity per Share of Common Stock:
Common shareholders' equity $ 79%3 $ 77% $ 7560 $ 7402 $ 7,150
Tangible common equity 7,320 7,151 6,911 6,752 6,498
Shares of common stock outstanding (in millions) 173 175 176 179 182
Common shareholders' equity per share of common stock $ 4607 $ 4447 $ 4303 $ 4135 $ 3922
Tangible common equity per share of common stock 42.34 40.79 39.33 37.72 35.64

Thetangible common equity ratio removes the effect of intangible assets from capital and total assets. Tangible common
equity per share of common stock removesthe effect of intangible assets from common shareholders equity per share of common
stock. The Corporation believes these measurements are meaningful measures of capital adequacy used by investors, regulators,
management and others to evaluate the adequacy of common equity and to compare against other companies in the industry.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This report includes forward-looking statements as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In
addition, the Corporation may make other written and oral communications from time to time that contain such statements. All
statements regarding the Corporation's expected financial position, strategies and growth prospects, including the GEAR Up
initiative, and general economic conditionsexpected to exist inthefutureareforward-looking statements. Thewords, “ anticipates,”

“believes,” "contemplates," “feels” “expects,” “estimates,” “seeks,” “strives,” “plans,” “intends,” “outlook,” “forecast,”
“position,” “target,” “mission,” “assume,” “achievable,” “potential,” “strategy,” “goal,” “aspiration,” “opportunity,” “initiative,”
“outcome,” “continue,” “remain,” “maintain,” "ontrack," “trend,” “ objective,” “looksforward,” "projects,” "models’ andvariations
of such words and similar expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as“will,” “would,” “should,” “could,” “might,” “can,”

“may” or similar expressions, as they relate to the Corporation or its management, are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. The Corporation cautionsthat forward-looking statementsare subject to numerousassumptions, risksand uncertainties,
which change over time. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date the statement is made, and the Corporation does
not undertake to update forward-looking statements to reflect facts, circumstances, assumptions or eventsthat occur after the date
the forward-looking statements are made. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking
statements and future results could differ materially from historical performance.

In addition to factors mentioned elsewhere in this report or previously disclosed in the Corporation's SEC reports
(accessible on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov or on the Corporation's website at www.comerica.com), actual results could
differ materially from forward-looking statements and future results could differ materially from historical performance dueto a
variety of reasons, including but not limited to, the following factors:

» genera political, economic or industry conditions, either domestically or internationally, may belessfavorablethan expected;

« governmental monetary and fiscal policies may adversely affect the financial services industry, and therefore impact the
Corporation's financial condition and results of operations;

»  proposed revenue enhancements and efficiency improvements under the GEAR Up initiative may not be achieved,

» adverse effects from operationa difficulties, failure of technology infrastructure or information security incidents;

» the Corporation relies on other companies to provide certain key components of its delivery systems, and certain failures
could materially adversely affect operations;

« theCorporation must maintain adequate sourcesof funding and liquidity to meet regul atory expectations, support itsoperations
and fund outstanding liabilities;

< compliance with more stringent capital and liquidity requirements may adversely affect the Corporation;

* declinesin the businesses or industries of the Corporation's customers could cause increased credit losses or decreased |oan
balances, which could adversely affect the Corporation;

« unfavorable developments concerning credit quality could adversely affect the Corporation's financia results:

» changesin regulation or oversight may have a material adverseimpact on the Corporation's operations,

changes in the financial markets, including fluctuationsin interest rates and their impact on deposit pricing, could adversely

affect the Corporation's net interest income and balance sheet;

adverse effects due to regulatory developments impacting LIBOR and other interest rate benchmarks;

reduction in the Corporation's credit ratings could adversely affect the Corporation and/or the holders of its securities;

damage to the Corporation’s reputation could damage its businesses;

the Corporation's inability to utilize technology to develop, market and deliver new products and services to its customers;

competitive product and pricing pressures among financial institutions within the Corporation's markets may change;

the soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect the Corporation;

theintroduction, implementation, withdrawal, success and timing of businessinitiatives and strategies may be less successful

or may be different than anticipated, which could adversely affect the Corporation's business;

changesin customer behavior may adversely impact the Corporation's business, financia condition and results of operations;

management's ability to maintain and expand customer relationships may differ from expectations;

methods of reducing risk exposures might not be effective;

catastrophic events, including, but not limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, fires, droughtsand floods, may adversely

affect the general economy, financial and capital markets, specific industries, and the Corporation;

» the unknown impacts of recent tax reform, and potential legislative, administrative or judicial changes or interpretations to
these and other tax regulations;

« any future strategic acquisitions or divestitures may present certain risks to the Corporation's business and operations;

e management's ability to retain key officers and employees may change;

« lega and regulatory proceedings and related financia services industry matters, including those directly involving the
Corporation and its subsidiaries, could adversely affect the Corporation or the financia servicesindustry in general;

» adverse effects from terrorist activities or other hostilities;

«  changesin accounting standards could materially impact the Corporation's financial statements;

» theCorporation'saccounting policiesand processes are critical to the reporting of financial condition and results of operations
and require management to make estimates about matters that are uncertain; and

» the Corporation's stock price can be volatile.
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(in millions, except share data)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

December 31 2017 2016
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks 1438 $ 1,249
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 4,407 5,969
Other short-term investments 96 92
Investment securities available-for-sale 10,938 10,787
Investment securities held-to-maturity 1,266 1,582
Commercial loans 31,060 30,994
Readl estate construction loans 2,961 2,869
Commercial mortgage loans 9,159 8,931
Lease financing 468 572
International loans 983 1,258
Residential mortgage loans 1,988 1,942
Consumer loans 2,554 2,522
Total loans 49,173 49,088
Less allowance for loan losses (712) (730)
Net loans 48,461 48,358
Premises and equipment 466 501
Accrued income and other assets 4,495 4,440
Total assets 71567 $ 72,978
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Noninterest-bearing deposits 32,071 $ 31,540
Money market and interest-bearing checking deposits 21,500 22,556
Savings deposits 2,152 2,064
Customer certificates of deposit 2,165 2,806
Foreign office time deposits 15 19
Total interest-bearing deposits 25,832 27,445
Total deposits 57,903 58,985
Short-term borrowings 10 25
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,069 1,012
Medium- and long-term debt 4,622 5,160
Totd liabilities 63,604 65,182
Common stock - $5 par value:
Authorized - 325,000,000 shares
Issued - 228,164,824 shares 1,141 1,141
Capital surplus 2,122 2,135
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (451) (383)
Retained earnings 7,887 7,331
Less cost of common stock in treasury - 55,306,483 shares at 12/31/17 and 52,851,156 shares at
12/31/16 (2,736) (2,428)
Total shareholders’ equity 7,963 7,796
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 71,567 $ 72,978

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans $ 1,872 $ 1635 $ 1,551
Interest on investment securities 250 247 216
Interest on short-term investments 60 27 17
Total interest income 2,182 1,909 1,784
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits 42 40 43
Interest on short-term borrowings 3 — —
Interest on medium- and long-term debt 76 72 52
Total interest expense 121 112 95
Net interest income 2,061 1,797 1,689
Provision for credit losses 74 248 147
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 1,987 1,549 1,542
NONINTEREST INCOME
Card fees 333 303 276
Service charges on deposit accounts 227 219 223
Fiduciary income 198 190 187
Commercial lending fees 85 89 99
Letter of credit fees 45 50 53
Bank-owned life insurance 43 a2 40
Foreign exchange income 45 42 40
Brokerage fees 23 19 17
Net securities |osses (3) (5) 2
Other noninterest income 111 102 102
Total noninterest income 1,107 1,051 1,035
NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits expense 912 961 1,009
Outside processing fee expense 366 336 318
Net occupancy expense 154 157 159
Equipment expense 45 53 53
Restructuring charges 45 93 —
Software expense 126 119 99
FDIC insurance expense 51 54 37
Advertising expense 28 21 24
Litigation-related expense (2 1 (32
Other noninterest expenses 135 135 160
Total noninterest expenses 1,860 1,930 1,827
Income before income taxes 1,234 670 750
Provision for income taxes 491 193 229
NET INCOME 743 477 521
Lessincome allocated to participating securities 5 4 6
Net income attributable to common shares $ 738 % 473 % 515
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 423 % 274 $ 293
Diluted 4.14 2.68 2.84
Cash dividends declared on common stock 193 154 148
Cash dividends declared per common share 1.09 0.89 0.83

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
NET INCOME $ 743 $ 477 $ 521
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Unrealized losses on investment securities:
Net unrealized holding losses arising during the period (81) (70) (55)
Less:
Reclassification adjustment for net securities losses included in net income — — )
Net losses realized as ayield adjustment in interest on investment securities ?3) (€) (8)
Change in net unrealized losses before income taxes (78) (67) (45)
Defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans adjustment:
Actuarial gain (loss) arising during the period 72 (134) (57)
Prior service credit arising during the period — 234 3
Adjustments for amounts recognized as components of net periodic benefit
cost:
Amortization of actuarial net loss 51 46 70
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost (27) (7 1
Change in defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans adjustment
before income taxes 96 139 17
Total other comprehensive income (loss) before income taxes 18 72 (28)
(Benefit) provision for income taxes 1) 26 (1)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 19 46 17)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 762 $ 523 $ 504

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-42



Table of Contents

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Common Stock

Accumulated

Other Total
o Shares Capital Comprehensive  Retained Treasury  Shareholders’

(in millions, except per share data) Outstanding ~ Amount  Surplus Loss Earnings Stock Equity
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2014 1790 $ 1,141 $ 2,188 $ 412) $ 6744 $ (2259 $ 7,402
Net income — — — — 521 — 521
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax — — — a7) — — 17)
Cash dividends declared on common

stock ($0.83 per share) — — — — (148) — (148)
Purchase of common stock (5.3) — — — — (240) (240)
Purchase and retirement of warrants — — (20 — — — (10
Net issuance of common stock under

employee stock plans 1.0 — (22) — (12) 47 14
Net issuance of common stock for

warrants 10 — (21 — (22) 43 —
Share-based compensation — — 38 — — — 38
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 175.7 1,141 2,173 (429) 7,084 (2,409) 7,560
Net income — — — — 477 — 477
Other comprehensive income, net of tax — — — 46 — — 46
Cash dividends declared on common

stock ($0.89 per share) — — — — (154) = (154)
Purchase of common stock (6.8) — — — — (310) (310)
Net issuance of common stock under

employee stock plans 41 — (25) — 27) 185 143
Net issuance of common stock for

warrants 23 — (57) — (49) 106 —
Share-based compensation — — 34 — — — 34
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 175.3 1,141 2,135 (383) 7,331 (2,428) 7,796
Cumulative effect of changein

accounting principle — — 3 — 2 — 1
Net income — — — — 743 — 743
Other comprehensive income, net of tax — — — 19 — — 19
Cash dividends declared on common

stock ($1.09 per share) — — — — (193) — (193)
Purchase of common stock (7.5) — — — — (544) (544)
Net issuance of common stock under

employee stock plans 3.3 — (24) — (26) 152 102
Net issuance of common stock for

warrants 1.8 — (30) — (53) 83 —
Share-based compensation — — 39 — — — 39
Reclassification of certain deferred tax

effects — — — (87) 87 — —
Other — — (1) — — 1 —
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 1729 $ 1141 $ 2122 $ (451) $ 7,887 $ (2,736) $ 7,963

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 743 % 477 % 521
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for credit losses 74 248 147
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes 79 (51 (71)
Depreciation and amortization 121 121 118
Net periodic defined benefit (credit) cost (18) 6 48
Share-based compensation expense 39 34 38
Net amortization of securities 6 8 13
Accretion of loan purchase discount 3) 4 )
Net securities |osses — —
Net gains on sales of foreclosed property ?3) 4 )
Net changein:
Accrued income receivable (33) (20) (12)
Accrued expenses payable 41 37 (35
Other, net 57 (350) 105
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,103 502 865
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment securities available-for-sale:
Maturities and redemptions 1,615 1,699 1,757
Sales 1,259 — —
Purchases (3,112) (2,045) (4,228)
Investment securities held-to-maturity:
Maturities and redemptions 319 402 324
Purchases — — (362)
Net change in loans (175) (136) (644)
Federal Home Loan Bank stock:
Purchases (42) (115) —
Redemptions 42 — —
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed property 22 20 12
Net increase in premises and equipment (69) (95) (119
Other, net 3 — 5
Net cash used in investing activities (138) (270) (3,255)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net changein:
Deposits (1,180) (998) 2,529
Short-term borrowings (15) 2 (93)
Medium- and long-term debt:
Maturities and redemptions (500) (650) (606)
|ssuances — 2,800 1,016
Terminations (16) — —
Common stock:
Repurchases (552) (315) (240)
Cash dividends paid (180) (152) (147)
Issuances under employee stock plans 110 152 22
Purchase and retirement of warrants — — (10
Other, net (5) — (5)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (2,338) 839 2,466
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,373) 1,071 76
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 7,218 6,147 6,071
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 3 5845 $ 7218 $ 6,147
Interest paid $ 122 $ 111 $ 94
Income taxes paid 336 151 88
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Loans transferred to other real estate 8 21 12
Loans transferred from portfolio to held-for-sale — — 28
Loans transferred from held-for-sale to portfolio — 17 —
Lease residual transferred to other assets — — 16

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Comericalncorporated (the Corporation) is aregistered financial holding company headquartered in Dallas, Texas. The
Corporation’smajor business segments arethe Business Bank, the Retail Bank and Wealth Management. The Corporation operates
inthree primary geographic markets: Michigan, Californiaand Texas. For further discussion of each business segment and primary
geographic market, refer to Note 23. The Corporation and its banking subsidiaries are regul ated at both the state and federal levels.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation conform to United States (U.S.) generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Certain amounts
in the financial statementsfor prior years have been reclassified to conform to the current financial statement presentation.

The following summarizes the significant accounting policies of the Corporation applied in the preparation of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statementsinclude the accounts of the Corporation and the accounts of those subsidiaries that
are majority owned and in which the Corporation has a controlling financial interest. The Corporation consolidates entities not
determined to be variable interest entities (VI1Es) when it holds a controlling financial interest and uses the cost or equity method
when it holdslessthan acontrolling financial interest. In consolidation, al significant intercompany accounts and transactions are
eliminated. The results of operations of companies acquired are included from the date of acquisition.

The Corporation holds investments in certain legal entities that are considered VIEs. In general, aVIE is an entity that
either (1) hasan insufficient amount of equity to carry out its principal activitieswithout additional subordinated financial support,
(2) has a group of equity owners that are unable to make significant decisions about its activities, or (3) has a group of equity
owners that do not have the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive returns generated by its operations. If any of these
characteristics are present, the entity is subject to a variabl e interests consolidation model, and consolidation is based on variable
interests, not on voting interests. Variable interests are defined as contractual ownership or other money interestsin an entity that
change with fluctuations in the entity’s net asset value. The primary beneficiary is required to consolidate the VIE. The primary
beneficiary is defined as the party that has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the
entity’s economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could be significant to the
VIE. The maximum potential exposureto losses relativeto investmentsin VIEsis generally limited to the sum of the outstanding
book basis and unfunded commitments for future investments.

The Corporation evaluates its investments in VIEs, both at inception and when there is a change in circumstances that
requiresreconsideration, to determineif the Corporation isthe primary beneficiary and consolidation isrequired. The Corporation
accounts for unconsolidated VIEs using either the proportional, cost or equity method. These investments comprise investments
in community development projects which generate tax credits to their investors and are included in "accrued income and other
assets’ on the consolidated balance sheets.

The proportional method is used for investmentsin affordable housing projects that qualify for the low-income housing
tax credit (LIHTC). The equity method is used for other investments where the Corporation has the ability to exercise significant
influence over the entity’s operation and financial policies. Other unconsolidated equity investments that do not meet the criteria
to be accounted for under the equity method are accounted for under the cost method. Amortization and other write-downs of
LIHTC investments are presented on anet basis as a component of the "provision for income taxes," while income, amortization
andwrite-downsfrom cost and equity method investmentsarerecordedin“ other noninterestincome” ontheconsolidated statements
of income.

Assets held in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Corporation and are not included in the consolidated
financial statements.

See Note 9 for additional information about the Corporation’s involvement with VIEs.
Fair Value Measurements

The Corporation utilizes fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to
determine fair value disclosures. The determination of fair values of financial instruments often requires the use of estimates. In
cases where quoted market valuesin an active market are not available, the Corporation uses present value techniques and other
valuation methodsto estimate the fair values of its financial instruments. These val uation methods require considerable judgment
and the resulting estimates of fair value can be significantly affected by the assumptions made and methods used.
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Fair value is an estimate of the exchange price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an
orderly transaction (i.e., not a forced transaction, such as a liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the
measurement date. Fair value is based on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability.

Trading securities, investment securities available-for-sale, derivatives and deferred compensation plans are recorded at
fair valueon arecurring basis. Additionally, from timeto time, the Corporation may berequired to record other assetsand liabilities
at fair value on anonrecurring basis, such asimpaired | oans, other real estate (primarily foreclosed property), nonmarketable equity
securities and certain other assets and liabilities. These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typicaly involve write-downs of
individual assets or application of lower of cost or fair value accounting.

Fair value measurements and disclosures guidance establishes athree-level fair value hierarchy based on the marketsin
whichtheassetsand liabilitiesaretraded and thereliability of the assumptionsused to determinefair value. Thefair value hierarchy
givesthe highest priority to quoted pricesin active markets and the lowest priority to unobservable data. Fair value measurements
areseparately disclosed by level withinthefair valuehierarchy. For assetsand liabilitiesrecorded at fair value, itisthe Corporation’s
policy to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when developing fair value
measurements.

Level 1 Valuationis based upon quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active markets.

Level 2 Valuationis based upon quoted pricesfor similar instrumentsin active markets, quoted pricesfor identical
or similar instruments in markets that are less active, and model-based val uation techniques for which all
significant assumptions are observable in the market.

Level 3 Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use at least one significant assumption not
observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect estimates of assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques include use of option pricing
models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques.

The Corporation generaly utilizes third-party pricing services to value Level 1 and Level 2 trading and investment
securities, aswell as certain derivatives designated asfair value hedges. Management reviews the methodol ogies and assumptions
used by the third-party pricing services and evaluates the values provided, principally by comparison with other available market
quotes for similar instruments and/or analysis based on internal models using available third-party market data. The Corporation
may occasionally adjust certain values provided by the third-party pricing service when management believes, as the result of its
review, that the adjusted price most appropriately reflects the fair value of the particular security.

Fair value measurements for assets and liabilities where limited or no observable market data exists are based primarily
upon estimates, often calculated based on the economic and competitive environment, the characteristics of the asset or liability
and other factors. Therefore, the results cannot be determined with precision and may not berealized in an actual sale or immediate
settlement of the asset or liability. Additionally, there may be inherent weaknesses in any calculation technique, and changesin
the underlying assumptions used, including discount rates and estimates of future cash flows, could significantly affect the results
of current or future values.

Following are descriptions of the valuation methodologies and key inputs used to measure financial assets and liabilities
recorded at fair value, as well as a description of the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate fair value disclosures
for financial instruments not recorded at fair value in their entirety on arecurring basis. The descriptionsinclude an indication of
the level of the fair value hierarchy in which the assets or liabilities are classified. Transfers of assets or liabilities between levels
of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the beginning of the reporting period, when applicable.

Cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits with banks
Due to their short-term nature, the carrying amount of these instruments approximates the estimated fair value. As such, the
Corporation classifies the estimated fair value of these instrumentsas Level 1.

Trading securities and associated deferred compensation plan liabilities

Trading securitiesinclude securitiesheld for trading purposesaswell asassetsheld rel ated to empl oyee deferred compensation
plans. Trading securities and associated deferred compensation plan liabilities are recorded at fair value on arecurring basis
and included in “ other short-term investments’ and “ accrued expenses and other liabilities,” respectively, on the consolidated
balance sheets. Leve 1 trading securities include assets related to empl oyee deferred compensation plans, which are invested
in mutual funds, U.S. Treasury securities that are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets and other
securitiestraded on an activeexchange, such asthe New York Stock Exchange. Deferred compensation plan liabilitiesrepresent
the fair value of the obligation to the employee, which corresponds to the fair value of the invested assets. Level 2 trading
securities include municipal bonds and residential mortgage-backed securitiesissued by U.S. government-sponsored entities
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and corporate debt securities. Themethods used to val uetrading securitiesarethe sasme asthe methods used to valueinvestment
securities, discussed below.

Investment securities

Investment securities available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on arecurring basis. The Corporation discloses estimated
fair valuesof investment securitieshel d-to-maturity, whichisdeterminedinthe samemanner asinvestment securitiesavailable-
for-sale. Level 1 securitiesinclude those traded on an active exchange, such asthe New York Stock Exchange, U.S. Treasury
securitiesthat are traded by dealers or brokersin active over-the-counter markets and money market funds. Level 2 securities
include residential mortgage-backed securities issued by U.S. government agencies and U.S. government-sponsored entities
and corporate debt securities. Thefair value of Level 2 securitiesis determined using quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics, or pricing models based on observable market data inputs, primarily interest rates, spreads and prepayment
information.

Securitiesclassified asLevel 3 represent securitiesin lessliquid markets requiring significant management assumptionswhen
determining fair value. Auction-rate securities comprise Level 3 investment securities available-for-sale. The Corporate
Treasury department, with appropriate oversight and approval provided by senior management, isresponsiblefor thevaluation
of auction-rate securities. Valuation results, including an analysis of changes to the valuation methodology, are provided to
senior management for review on aquarterly basis.

Loans held-for-sale

Loans held-for-sale, included in “ other short-term investments” on the consolidated balance sheets, are recorded at the lower
of cost or fair value. Loans held-for-sale may be carried at fair value on anonrecurring basiswhen fair valueisless than cost.
Thefair value is based on what secondary markets are currently offering for portfolios with similar characteristics. As such,
the Corporation classifies both loans held-for-sale subjected to nonrecurring fair value adjustments and the estimated fair
value of loans held-for saleas Level 2.

Loans

The Corporation does not record loans at fair value on arecurring basis. However, the Corporation may establish a specific
allowancefor animpaired|oan based onthefair valueof theunderlying collateral . Suchloanvaluesarereported asnonrecurring
fair value measurements. Collateral values supporting individually evaluated impaired loans are evaluated quarterly. When
management determines that the fair value of the collateral requires additional adjustments, either as aresult of non-current
appraisal value or when there is no observable market price, the Corporation classifies the impaired loan as Level 3. The
Special AssetsGroupisresponsiblefor performing quarterly credit quality reviewsfor all impaired |loansas part of the quarterly
allowancefor loanlossesprocessoverseen by the Chief Credit Officer, duringwhich val uation adjustmentsto updated col | ateral
values are determined.

The Corporation discloses fair value estimates for loans. The estimated fair value is determined based on characteristics such
as loan category, repricing features and remaining maturity, and includes prepayment and credit loss estimates. For variable
rate business loans that reprice frequently, the estimated fair value is based on carrying values adjusted for estimated credit
losses inherent in the portfolio at the balance sheet date. For other business loans and retail loans, fair values are estimated
using adiscounted cash flow model that employs a discount rate that reflects the Corporation's current pricing for loanswith
similar characteristics and remaining maturity, adjusted by an amount for estimated credit losses inherent in the portfolio at
the balance sheet date. The rates take into account the expected yield curve, as well as an adjustment for prepayment risk,
when applicable. The Corporation classifies the estimated fair value of loans held for investment as Level 3.

Customers’ liability on acceptances outstanding and acceptances outstanding

Customers liability on acceptances outstanding isincluded in "accrued income and other assets' and acceptances outstanding
areincluded in "accrued expenses and other liabilities" on the consolidated balance sheets. Due to their short-term nature, the
carrying amount of these instruments approximates the estimated fair value. As such, the Corporation classifies the estimated
fair value of these instruments as Level 1.

Derivative assets and derivative liabilities

Derivative instruments held or issued for risk management or customer-initiated activities are traded in over-the-counter
marketswherequoted market pricesarenot readily available. Fair valuefor over-the-counter derivativeinstrumentsismeasured
on arecurring basis using internally developed models that use primarily market observable inputs, such asyield curves and
option volatilities. Fair value for certain derivatives designated as fair value hedges is determined using third-party pricing
services. The Corporation manages credit risk on its derivative positions based on whether the derivatives are being settled
through aclearinghouseor bil aterally with each counterparty. For derivative positi onssettled on acounterparty-by-counterparty
basis, the Corporation cal culates credit valuation adjustments, included in the fair value of these instruments, on the basis of
itsrelationshi psat the counterparty portfolio/master netting agreement level. Thesecredit val uation adjustmentsare determined

F-47



Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

by applying a credit spread for the counterparty or the Corporation, as appropriate, to the total expected exposure of the
derivative after considering collateral and other master netting arrangements. These adjustments, which are considered Level
3inputs, arebased on estimatesof current credit spreadsto eval uatethelikelihood of default. When credit val uation adjustments
are significant to the overall fair value of a derivative, the Corporation classifies the over-the-counter derivative valuationin
Leve 3 of the fair value hierarchy; otherwise, over-the-counter derivative valuations are classified in Level 2.

Warrantswhich contain anet exercise provision or anon-contingent put right embedded i nthewarrant agreement are accounted
for as derivatives and recorded at fair value on arecurring basis using a Black-Scholes valuation model. The Black-Scholes
valuation model utilizes five inputs: risk-free rate, expected life, volatility, exercise price, and the per share market value of
the underlying company. The Corporation holds a portfolio of warrants for generally nonmarketable equity securitieswith a
fair value of $2 million at December 31, 2017, included in "accrued income and other assets' on the consolidated balance
sheets. These warrants are primarily from non-public technology companies obtained as part of the |oan origination process.
The Corporate Development Department is responsible for the warrant valuation process, which includes reviewing all
significant inputs for reasonableness, and for providing valuation results to senior management. Increases in any of these
inputs in isolation, with the exception of exercise price, would result in a higher fair value. Increases in exercise price in
isolation would result in alower fair value. The Corporation classifies warrants accounted for as derivatives as Level 3.

Nonmarketable equity securities

The Corporation has a portfolio of indirect (through funds) private equity and venture capital investments with a carrying
value of $6 million and unfunded commitments of less than $1 million, at December 31, 2017. These funds generally cannot
be redeemed and the mgjority is not readily marketable. Distributions from these funds are received by the Corporation as a
result of theliquidation of underlying investments of the funds and/or asincome distributions. Theinvestments are accounted
for either on the cost or equity method and are individually reviewed for impairment on a quarterly basis by comparing the
carrying value to the estimated fair value. These investments may be carried at fair value on a nonrecurring basis when they
are deemed to beimpaired and written down to fair value. Wherethereisnot areadily determinablefair value, the Corporation
estimatesfair value for indirect private equity and venture capital investments based on the net asset value, as reported by the
fund. On a quarterly basis, the Corporate Development Department is responsible, with appropriate oversight and approval
provided by senior management, for performing the valuation procedures and updating significant inputs, as are primarily
provided by the underlying fund's management.

The Corporation also holds restricted equity investments, primarily Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and Federal Reserve
Bank (FRB) stock. Restricted equity securities are not readily marketable and are recorded at cost (par value) in "accrued
income and other assets' on the consolidated bal ance sheets and eval uated for impairment based on the ultimate recoverability
of the par value. No significant observable market data for these instruments is available. The Corporation considers the
profitability and asset quality of the issuer, dividend payment history and recent redemption experience and believes its
investments in FHLB and FRB stock are ultimately recoverable at par. Therefore, the carrying amount for these restricted
equity investments approximates fair value. The Corporation classifies the estimated fair value of such investments as Level
1. The Corporation’sinvestment in FHLB stock totaled $122 million at both December 31, 2017 and 2016, and itsinvestment
in FRB stock totaled $85 million at both December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Other real estate

Other real estateisincluded in “accrued income and other assets’ on the consolidated balance sheets and includes primarily
foreclosed property. Foreclosed property isinitialy recorded at fair value, less costs to sell, at the date of legal title transfer
to the Corporation, establishing anew cost basis. Subsequently, foreclosed property iscarried at the lower of cost or fair value,
less costs to sell. Other real estate may be carried at fair value on a nonrecurring basis when fair value is less than cost. Fair
value is based upon independent market prices, appraised value or management's estimate of the value of the property. The
Special Assets Group obtains updated independent market prices and appraised values, as required by state regulation or
deemed necessary based on market conditions, and determines if additional write-downs are necessary. On a quarterly basis,
senior management reviewsall other real estate and determineswhether the carrying valuesarereasonable, based on thelength
of time elapsed sincerecei pt of independent market price or apprai sed value and current market conditions. When management
determines that the fair value of other real estate requires additional adjustments, either as aresult of a non-current appraisal
or when there is no observable market price, the Corporation classifies the other real estate as Level 3.

Deposit liabilities

Theestimated fair value of checking, savingsand certain money market deposit accountsisrepresented by theamountspayable
on demand. The estimated fair value of term deposits is calculated by discounting the scheduled cash flows using the period-
end rates offered on these instruments. As such, the Corporation classifies the estimated fair value of deposit liabilities as
Level 2.
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Short-term borrowings
The carrying amount of federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreements to repurchase and other short-term
borrowings approximates the estimated fair value. As such, the Corporation classifies the estimated fair value of short-term
borrowings as Level 1.

Medium- and long-term debt

The estimated fair value of the Corporation's medium- and long-term debt is based on quoted market values when available.
If quoted market values are not available, the estimated fair value is based on the market values of debt with similar
characteristics. The Corporation classifies the estimated fair value of medium- and long-term debt as Level 2.

Credit-related financial instruments

Credit-related financia instruments include unused commitments to extend credit and letters of credit. These instruments
generate ongoing fees which are recognized over the term of the commitment. In situations where credit |osses are probable,
the Corporation records an alowance. The carrying value of these instruments included in "accrued expenses and other
liahilities" onthe consolidated balance sheets, whichincludesthe carrying value of the deferred feesplustherel ated all owance,
approximatestheestimated fair value. The Corporation classifiesthe estimated fair value of credit-related financial instruments
aslLeve 3.

For further information about fair value measurements refer to Note 2.
Other Short-Term Investments
Other short-term investments include trading securities and loans held-for-sale.

Trading securities are carried at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains or losses on trading securities are included in
“other noninterest income” on the consolidated statements of income.

Loans held-for-sale, typically residential mortgages originated with the intent to sell and occasionally may include other
loans transferred to held-for-sale, are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Fair value is determined in the aggregate for each
portfolio. Changes in fair value and gains or losses upon sale are included in “other noninterest income” on the consolidated
statements of income.

Investment Securities

Securities not held for trading purposes are classified as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity. Debt securities for which
management hastheintent and ability to hold to maturity areclassified asheld-to-maturity and recorded at amortized cost. Securities
available-for-salearerecorded at fair value, with unrealized gainsand 0sses, net of incometaxes, reported asa separate component
of other comprehensive income (OClI).

Securitiestransferred from available-for-sale to held-to-maturity are reclassified at fair value on the date of transfer. The
net unrealized gain (loss) at the date of transfer isincluded in historical cost and amortized over the remaining life of the related
securities as a yield adjustment consistent with the amortization of the net unrealized gain (loss) included in accumulated other
comprehensive [oss on the same securities, resulting in no impact to net income.

Investment securities are reviewed quarterly for possible other-than-temporary impairment (OTTI). In determining
whether OTTI existsfor debt securitiesin an unrealized |oss position, the Corporation assessesthe likelihood of selling the security
prior to the recovery of itsamortized cost basis. If the Corporation intends to sell the debt security or it is more likely than not that
the Corporation will be required to sell the debt security prior to the recovery of itsamortized cost basis, the debt security iswritten
down to fair value, and the full amount of any impairment chargeisrecorded asalossin “net securitiesgains’ in the consolidated
statements of income. If the Corporation does not intend to sell the debt security and it is more likely than not that the Corporation
will not berequiredto sell thedebt security prior torecovery of itsamortized cost basis, only the credit component of any impairment
of a debt security isrecognized asalossin “net securities losses’ on the consolidated statements of income, with the remaining
impairment recorded in OCI.

The OTTI review for equity securities includes an analysis of the facts and circumstances of each individual investment
and focuses on the severity of loss, the length of time the fair value has been below cost, the expectation for that security’s
performance, thefinancial condition and near-term prospects of theissuer, and management’sintent and ability to hold the security
to recovery. A decline in value of an equity security that is considered to be other-than-temporary is recorded as a loss in “net
securities losses” on the consolidated statements of income.

Gains or losses on the sale of securities are computed based on the adjusted cost of the specific security sold.
For further information on investment securities, refer to Note 3.
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Loans

Loans and leases originated and held for investment are recorded at the principal balance outstanding, net of unearned
income, charge-offs and unamortized deferred fees and costs. Interest incomeis recognized on loans and leases using the interest
method.

The Corporation assesses all loan modifications to determine whether a restructuring constitutes a troubled debt
restructuring (TDR). A restructuring is considered a TDR when aborrower isexperiencing financial difficulty and the Corporation
grants a concession to the borrower. TDRs on accrual status at the original contractual rate of interest are considered performing.
Nonperforming TDRs include TDRs on nonaccrual status and loans which have been renegotiated to less than the original
contractua rates (reduced-rate loans). All TDRs are considered impaired loans.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs

Substantially all 1oan origination fees and costs are deferred and amortized to net interest income over the life of the
related loan or over the commitment period as a yield adjustment. Net deferred income on originated loans, including unearned
income and unamortized costs, fees, premiums and discounts, totaled $113 million and $147 million at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively.

Loan fees on unused commitments and net origination fees related to loans sold are recognized in noninterest income.
Allowance for Credit Losses

Theallowancefor credit lossesincludes both the all owance for oan losses and the allowance for credit losses on lending-
related commitments.

The Corporation disaggregates the loan portfolio into segments for purposes of determining the allowance for credit
losses. These segmentsare based on thelevel at which the Corporation devel ops, documents and applies asystematic methodol ogy
to determine the allowance for credit losses. The Corporation's portfolio segments are business loans and retail 1oans. Business
loans include the commercial, real estate construction, commercial mortgage, lease financing and international loan portfolios.
Retail loans consist of traditional residential mortgage, home equity and other consumer loans.

For further information on the Allowance for Credit Losses, refer to Note 4.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The alowance for loan losses represents management’s assessment of probable, estimable losses inherent in the
Corporation’sloan portfolio. Theallowancefor loan lossesincludes specific allowances, based on individual evaluationsof certain
loans, and allowances for homogeneous pools of loans with similar risk characteristics.

The Corporation individually evaluates certain impaired loans on a quarterly basis and establishes specific allowances
for such loans, if required. A loan is considered impaired when it is probable that interest or principal payments will not be made
in accordance with the contractual terms of the |oan agreement. Consistent with this definition, all loans for which the accrual of
interest has been discontinued (nonaccrual 1oans) are considered impaired. The Corporation individually evaluates nonaccrual
loans with book balances of $2 million or more and accruing |oans whose terms have been modified in a TDR. The threshold for
individual evaluation is revised on an infrequent basis, generally when economic circumstances change significantly. Specific
allowancesforimpairedloansareestimated using one of several methods, including theestimated fair valueof underlying collateral,
observable market value of similar debt or discounted expected future cash flows. Collateral values supporting individually
evaluated impaired loans are evaluated quarterly. Either appraisals are obtained or appraisal assumptions are updated at least
annually unless conditions dictate increased frequency. The Corporation may reduce the collateral value based upon the age of the
appraisal and adverse developments in market conditions.

Loans which do not meet the criteria to be evaluated individually are evaluated in homogeneous pools of loans with
similar risk characteristics. Business loans are assigned to pools based on the Corporation's internal risk rating system. Internal
risk ratings are assigned to each business loan at the time of approva and are subjected to subsequent periodic reviews by the
Corporation’s senior management, generally at least annually or more frequently upon the occurrence of acircumstancethat affects
the credit risk of the loan. For business loans not individually evaluated, losses inherent to the pool are estimated by applying
standard reserve factorsto outstanding principal balances. Standard reserve factors are based on estimated probabilities of default
for each internal risk rating, set to a default horizon based on an estimated |oss emergence period, and loss given default. These
factors are evaluated quarterly and updated annually, unless economic conditions necessitate a change, giving consideration to
count-based borrower risk rating migration experience and trends, recent charge-off experience, current economic conditions and
trends, changesin collateral values of properties securing loans, and trends with respect to past due and nonaccrual amounts.
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The allowance for business loans not individually evaluated al so includes qualitative adjustments to bring the allowance
to the level management believes is appropriate based on factors that have not otherwise been fully accounted for, including
adjustmentsfor (i) risk factors that have not been fully addressed in internal risk ratings, (ii) imprecision in therisk rating system
resulting from inaccuracy in assigning and/or entering risk ratings in the loan accounting system, (iii) market conditions and (iv)
model imprecision. Risk factors that have not been fully addressed in internal risk ratings may include portfolios where recent
historical |ossesexceed expected lossesor known recent eventsareexpected to alter risk ratingsonceevidenceisacquired, portfolios
where a certain level of concentration introduces added risk, or changes in the level and quality of experience held by lending
management. An additional allowance for risk rating errorsis calculated based on the results of risk rating accuracy assessments
performed on samples of business |oans conducted by the Corporation's asset quality review function, a function independent of
thelending and credit groupsresponsiblefor assigning theinitial internal risk rating at thetime of approval. Qualitative adjustments
for market conditions are determined based on an established framework. The determination of the appropriate adjustment isbased
on management's analysis of observable macroeconomic metrics, including consideration of regional metrics within the
Corporation's footprint, internal credit risk movement and a qualitative assessment of the lending environment, including
underwriting standards, current economicand political conditions, and other factorsaffecting credit quality. M anagement recogni zes
the sensitivity of various assumptions made in the quantitative modeling of expected losses and may adjust reserves depending
upon the level of uncertainty that currently existsin one or more assumption.

The allowance for retail loans not individually evaluated is determined by applying estimated |oss rates to various pools
of loanswithin the portfolioswith similar risk characteristics. Estimated lossratesfor all poolsare updated quarterly, incorporating
guantitative and qualitative factors such as recent charge-off experience, current economic conditions and trends, changes in
collateral values of properties securing loans (using index-based estimates), and trends with respect to past due and nonaccrual
amounts.

The total allowance for loan losses is sufficient to absorb incurred losses inherent in the total portfolio. Unanticipated
economic events, including political, economic and regulatory instability in countrieswherethe Corporation hasloans, could cause
changesin the credit characteristics of the portfolio and result in an unanticipated increase in the allowance. Significant increases
in current portfolio exposures, as well asthe inclusion of additional industry-specific portfolio exposuresin the allowance, could
alsoincrease the amount of the allowance. Any of these events, or some combination thereof, may result in the need for additional
provision for credit losses in order to maintain an allowance that complies with credit risk and accounting policies.

L oans deemed uncollectible are charged off and deducted from the allowance. Recoveries on loans previously charged
off are added to the allowance.

Allowance for Credit Losses on Lending-Related Commitments

The alowance for credit losses on lending-rel ated commitments provides for probable lossesinherent in lending-rel ated
commitments, including unused commitments to extend credit and letters of credit. The allowance for credit losses on lending-
related commitments includes allowances based on homogeneous pools of letters of credit and unused commitments to extend
credit within each internal risk rating. A probability of draw estimate is applied to the commitment amount, and the result is
multiplied by standard reserve factors consistent with business loans. In general, the probability of draw for letters of credit is
considered certainfor al lettersof credit supportingloansandfor lettersof credit assigned aninternal risk rating generally consistent
with regulatory defined substandard or doubtful. Other letters of credit and all unfunded commitments have a lower probability
of draw. The allowance for credit losses on lending-related commitments is included in “accrued expenses and other liabilities’
on the consolidated bal ance sheets, with the corresponding charge reflected in the “ provision for credit losses” on the consolidated
statements of income.

Nonperforming Assets
Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans, reduced-rate loans and foreclosed property.

Aloanisconsidered past duewhen the contractually required principal or interest payment isnot received by the specified
due date or, for certain loans, when a scheduled monthly payment is past due and unpaid for 30 days or more. Business |oans are
generally placed on nonaccrual status when management determines full collection of principal or interest is unlikely or when
principal or interest payments are 90 days past due, unlesstheloanisfully collateralized and in the process of collection. The past-
due status of abusinessloan is one of many indicativefactors considered in determining the collectibility of the credit. The primary
driver of when the principal amount of abusiness|oan should befully or partially charged-off is based on a qualitative assessment
of the recoverability of the principal amount from collateral and other cash flow sources. Residential mortgage and home equity
loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status once they become 90 days past due and are charged off to current appraised values
less costs to sell no later than 180 days past due. In addition, junior lien home equity loans less than 90 days past due are placed
on nonaccrua status if they have underlying risk characteristics that place full collection of the loan in doubt, such as when the
related senior lien position isidentified as seriously delinquent. Residential mortgage and consumer loansin bankruptcy for which
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the court has discharged the borrower's obligation and the borrower has not reaffirmed the debt are placed on nonaccrual status
and written down to estimated collateral value, without regard to the actual payment status of theloan, and are classified as TDRs.
All other consumer loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status at 90 days past due and are charged off at no later than 120
days past due, earlier if deemed uncollectible.

At thetimealoan is placed on nonaccrual status, interest previously accrued but not collected is charged against current
income. Principal and interest payments received on such loans are generally first applied as areduction of principal. Income on
nonaccrual loansisthen recognized only to the extent that cash isreceived after principal has been fully repaid or future collection
of principal is probable. Generally, aloan may be returned to accrual status when all delinquent principal and interest have been
received and the Corporation expects repayment of the remaining contractual principal and interest, or when the loan or debt
security is both well secured and in the process of collection.

Foreclosed property (primarily real estate) isinitialy recorded at fair value, less costs to sdll, at the date of legal title
transfer to the Corporation and subsequently carried at the lower of cost or fair value, less estimated costs to sell. Loans are
reclassified to foreclosed property upon obtaining legal title to the collateral. Independent appraisals are obtained to substantiate
the fair value of foreclosed property at the time of foreclosure and updated at least annually or upon evidence of deterioration in
the property’s value. At the time of foreclosure, the adjustment for the difference between the related |oan balance and fair value
(less estimated costs to sdll) of the property acquired is charged or credited to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent write-
downs, operating expenses and losses upon sale, if any, are charged to noninterest expenses. Foreclosed property isincluded in
“accrued income and other assets’” on the consolidated balance sheets.

Premises and Equipment

Premisesand equipment are stated at cost, | ess accumul ated depreci ation and amorti zation. Depreciation, computed using
the straight-line method, is charged to operations over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives are generally
3 years to 33 years for premises that the Corporation owns and 3 years to 8 years for furniture and equipment. Leasehold
improvements are generally amortized over the terms of their respective leases or 10 years, whichever is shorter.

Software

Capitalized software is stated at cost, |ess accumul ated amorti zation. Capitalized software includes purchased software,
capitalizable application development costs associated with internally-devel oped software and cloud computing arrangements,
including an in-substance software license. Amortization, computed on the straight-line method, is charged to operations over the
estimated useful life of the software, generally 5 years. Capitalized software isincluded in “accrued income and other assets’” on
the consolidated balance sheets.

Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangibles

Goodwill, included in "accrued income and other assets' on the consolidated balance sheets, isinitially recorded as the
excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in a business combination and is subsequently evaluated at
least annually for impairment. Goodwill impairment testing is performed at the reporting unit level, equivalent to a business
segment or onelevel below. The Corporation hasthreereporting units: the BusinessBank, the Retail Bank and Wealth M anagement.

The Corporation performsitsannual evaluation of goodwill impairment in thethird quarter of each year and on aninterim
basis if events or changes in circumstances between annual tests suggest additional testing may be warranted to determine if
goodwill might beimpaired. Thegoodwill impairment test isatwo-step test. Thefirst step of thegoodwill impairment test compares
the estimated fair value of identified reporting units with their carrying amount, including goodwill. If the estimated fair value of
the reporting unit is less than the carrying value, the second step must be performed to determine the implied fair value of the
reporting unit's goodwill and the amount of goodwill impairment, if any. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined as if
thereporting unit were being acquired in abusinesscombination. If theimplied fair value of goodwill exceedsthegoodwill assigned
to thereporting unit, thereisno impairment. If the goodwill assigned to areporting unit exceedstheimplied fair value of goodwill,
an impairment charge would be recorded for the excess.

The Corporation may choose to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether the first step of the impairment
test should be performed in future periodsif certain factorsindicate that impairment isunlikely. Factors which could be considered
in the assessment of the likelihood of impairment include macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, stock
performance of the Corporation and its peers, financia performance, events affecting the Corporation as awhole or its reporting
units individually and previous results of goodwill impairment tests.

Core deposit intangibles are amortized on an accelerated basis, based on the estimated period the economic benefits are
expected to be received. Core deposit intangibles are reviewed for impairment when events or changesin circumstances indicate
that their carrying amountsmay not berecoverable. Impairment for afinite-livedintangibleasset existsif the sum of theundiscounted
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cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset exceedsits carrying value.
Additional information regarding goodwill and core deposit intangibles can be found in Note 7.
Nonmarketable Equity Securities

The Corporation has certain investments that are not readily marketable. These investments include a portfolio of
investments in indirect private equity and venture capital funds and restricted equity investments, which are securities the
Corporation is required to hold for various reasons, primarily Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas (FHLB) and Federal Reserve
Bank (FRB) stock. These investments are accounted for on the cost or equity method and are included in “accrued income and
other assets” on the consolidated balance sheets. The investments are individually reviewed for impairment on a quarterly basis.
Indirect private equity and venture capital funds are evaluated by comparing the carrying value to the estimated fair value. The
amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value that is determined to be other-than-temporary impairment is charged
to current earnings and the carrying value of the investment is written down accordingly. FHLB and FRB stock are recorded at
cost (par value) and evaluated for impairment based on the ultimate recoverability of the par value. If the Corporation does not
expect to recover thefull par value, the amount by which the par value exceeds the ultimately recoverable value would be charged
to current earnings and the carrying value of the investment would be written down accordingly.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Derivative instruments are carried at fair value in either “accrued income and other assets’ or “accrued expenses and
other liabilities’ onthe consolidated bal ance sheets. The accounting for changesinthefair value(i.e., gainsor losses) of aderivative
instrument is determined by whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and, further, by the type
of hedging relationship. The Corporation presents derivative instruments at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets on a net
basiswhen aright of offset exists, based on transactions with a single counterparty and any cash collateral paid to and/or received
from that counterparty for derivative contracts that are subject to legally enforceable master netting arrangements. For derivative
instruments designated and qualifying as fair value hedges (i.e., hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset or a
liability or an identified portion thereof that is attributable to a particular risk), the gain or loss on the derivative instrument, as
well asthe offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributabl e to the hedged risk, are recognized in current earnings during the
period of the change in fair values. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges (i.e., hedging
the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk), the effective portion of the gain
or loss on the derivative instrument is reported as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into earningsin
the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. The remaining gain or loss on the derivative
instrument in excess of the cumulative change in the present value of future cash flows of the hedged item (i.e., the ineffective
portion), if any, isrecognized in current earnings during the period of change. For derivative instruments not designated as hedging
instruments, the gain or loss is recognized in current earnings during the period of change.

To qualify for the use of hedge accounting, a derivative must be effective at inception and expected to be continuously
effectivein offsetting the risk being hedged. For derivatives designated as hedging instruments at inception, the Corporation uses
either the short-cut method or applies statistical regression analysis to assess effectiveness. The short-cut method is used for $150
million notional of fair value hedges of medium and long-term debt issued prior to 2006. This method allows for the assumption
of zero hedge ineffectiveness and eliminatesthe requirement to further assess hedge effectiveness on these transactions. For hedge
relationships to which the Corporation does not apply the short-cut method, statistical regression analysisis used at inception and
for each reporting period thereafter to assesswhether the derivative used hasbeen andis expected to be highly effectivein offsetting
changesinthefair value or cash flows of the hedged item. All components of each derivativeinstrument’sgain or lossareincluded
in the assessment of hedge effectiveness. Net hedge ineffectivenessis recorded in “ other noninterest income” on the consolidated
statements of income.

Further information on the Corporation’s derivative instruments and hedging activitiesisincluded in Note 8.
Short-Term Borrowings

Securities sold under agreementsto repurchase are treated as coll ateralized borrowings and are recorded at amounts equal
to the cash received. The contractual terms of the agreements to repurchase may require the Corporation to provide additional
collateral if the fair value of the securities underlying the borrowings declines during the term of the agreement.

Financial Guarantees

Certain guarantee contracts or indemnification agreements that contingently require the Corporation, as guarantor, to
make paymentsto the guaranteed party areinitially measured at fair value and included in “ accrued expenses and other liabilities”
on the consolidated balance sheets. The subsequent accounting for the liability depends on the nature of the underlying guarantee.
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Therelease from risk is accounted for under a particular guarantee when the guarantee expires or is settled, or by asystematic and
rational amortization method.

Further information on the Corporation’s obligations under guaranteesisincluded in Note 8.
Share-Based Compensation

The Corporation recognizes share-based compensation expense using the straight-line method over the requisite service
period for all stock awards, including those with graded vesting. The requisite service period isthe period an employeeisrequired
to provide servicein order to vest in the award, which cannot extend beyond the date at which the employeeis no longer required
to perform any serviceto receivethe share-based compensation (theretirement-eligible date). The Corporation adopted A ccounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-09, "Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-
Based Payments Accounting” (ASU 2016-09), effective January 1, 2017. Upon adoption, the Corporation elected to account for
compensation cost based on forfeitures as they occur. Prior to the adoption, compensation cost was accounted for based on an
estimate of the number of awards that were expected to vest. The prior period effect of this policy election as of the beginning of
the year was reported as "cumulative effect of change in accounting principle” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Shareholders’ Equity.

Certain awards are contingent upon performance and/or market conditions, which affect the number of shares ultimately
issued. The Corporation periodically evaluates the probable outcome of the performance conditions and makes cumulative
adjustments to compensation expense as appropriate. Market conditions are included in the determination of the fair value of the
award on the date of grant. Subsequent to the grant date, market conditions have no impact on the amount of compensation expense
the Corporation will recognize over the life of the award.

Further information on the Corporation’s share-based compensation plansisincluded in Note 16.
Revenue Recognition

The following summarizes the Corporation’s revenue recognition policies as they relate to certain noninterest income
line items in the consolidated statements of income.

Cardfeesincludesprimarily bankcard interchange revenuewhichisrecorded asrevenuewhen earned. For certain products
where the Corporation bears the risks and rewards of providing the service at the program level, interchange revenue is presented
gross of network costs, which are included within "outside processing fee expense” in noninterest income.

Service charges on deposit accounts include fees for banking services provided, overdrafts and non-sufficient funds.
Revenueis generally recognized in accordance with published deposit account agreements for retail accounts or when fixed and
determinable per contractual agreements for commercial accounts.

Fiduciary income includes fees and commissions from asset management, custody, recordkeeping, investment advisory
and other services provided to personal and institutional trust customers. Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis at the time
the services are performed and are based on either the market value of the assets managed or the services provided.

Commercial lending fees primarily include fees assessed on the unused portion of commercial lines of credit (unused
commitment fees) and syndication agent fees. Unused commitment fees are recognized when earned. Syndication agent fees are
generally recognized when the transaction is compl ete.

Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Costs

Defined benefit pension costs are included in “ salaries and benefits expense” on the consolidated statements of income
and are funded consistent with the requirements of federal laws and regulations. Inherent in the determination of defined benefit
pension costs are assumptions concerning future events that will affect the amount and timing of required benefit payments under
the plans. These assumptionsinclude demographic assumptions such asretirement age and mortality, acompensation rateincrease,
adiscount rate used to determine the current benefit obligation, form of payment election and along-term expected rate of return
on plan assets. Net periodic defined benefit pension expense includes service cost, interest cost based on the assumed discount
rate, an expected return on plan assets based on an actuarially derived market-related value of assets, amortization of prior service
cost or credit and amorti zation of net actuarial gains or losses. The market-related value of plan assetsis determined by amortizing
the current year's investment gains and losses (the actual investment return net of the expected investment return) over 5 years.
The amorti zation adjustment cannot exceed 10 percent of the fair value of assets. Prior service costs or credits include the impact
of plan amendments on the liabilities and are amortized over the future service periods of active employees expected to receive
benefits under the plan. Actuarial gains and losses result from experience different from that assumed and from changes in
assumptions (excluding asset gains and losses not yet reflected in market-rel ated value). Amortization of actuarial gainsand losses
isincluded asacomponent of net periodic defined benefit pension cost for ayear if the actuarial net gain or loss exceeds 10 percent
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of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the market-related value of plan assets. If amortization is required, the excess
isamortized over the average remaining service period of participating employees expected to receive benefits under the plan.

Postretirement benefitsarerecognizedin “ salaries and benefitsexpense” on the consolidated statements of income during
theaverageremaining serviceperiod of participating empl oyeesexpected to receive benefitsunder theplan or theaverageremaining
future lifetime of retired participants currently receiving benefits under the plan.

See Note 17 for further information regarding the Corporation’s defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans.
Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is the sum of income taxes due for the current year and deferred taxes. The Corporation
classifies interest and penalties on income tax liabilities and, beginning January 1, 2017, excess tax benefits and deficiencies
resulting from employee stock awards in the “ provision for income taxes’ on the consolidated statements of income.

Deferred taxes arise from temporary differences between the income tax basis and financial accounting basis of assets
and liahilities. Deferred tax assets are evaluated for realization based on avail able evidence of projected future reversals of existing
taxable temporary differences, assumptions made regarding future events and, when applicable, state loss carryback capacity. A
valuation allowanceis provided when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The Tax Cuts and JobsAct (the "Act"), enacted on December 22, 2017, reduced the U.S. federal corporate tax rate from
35 percent to 21 percent. Also on December 22, 2017, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 118 (SAB 118), which provides guidance on accounting for tax effects of the Act. SAB 118 provides a measurement period
of up to oneyear from the enactment date to complete the accounting. Based on theinformation available and current interpretation
of therules, the Corporation hasmade reasonabl e estimates of theimpact of thereductioninthecorporatetax rate and remeasurement
of certain deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the rate at which they are expected to reverse in the future, generally 21
percent. The provisional amount recorded rel ated to the remeasurement of the Corporation'sdeferred tax balance was $107 million.
Thefinal impact of the Act may differ from these estimatesasaresult of changesin management’sinterpretationsand assumptions,
aswell as new guidance that may be issued by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).

Earnings Per Share

Basic net income per common share is calculated using the two-class method. The two-class method is an earnings
allocation formula that determines earnings per share for each share of common stock and participating securities according to
dividends declared (distributed earnings) and participation rightsin undistributed earnings. Distributed and undistributed earnings
are allocated between common and participating security shareholders based on their respective rights to receive dividends.
Nonvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents are considered
participating securities (e.g., nonvested restricted stock and service-based restricted stock units). Undistributed net |osses are not
allocated to nonvested restricted sharehol ders, asthese shareholders do not have acontractual obligation to fund thelossesincurred
by the Corporation. Net income attributable to common sharesis then divided by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the period.

Diluted net income per common shareis calculated using the more dilutive of either the treasury method or the two-class
method. The dilutive calculation considers common stock issuable under the assumed exercise of stock options and performance-
based restricted stock units granted under the Corporation’s stock plans and warrants using the treasury stock method, if dilutive.
Net income attributableto common sharesisthen divided by thetotal of weighted-average number of common sharesand common
stock equivalents outstanding during the period.

Statements of Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as those amountsincluded in “ cash and due from banks’, “federal funds sold” and
“interest-bearing deposits with banks’ on the consolidated balance sheets. As a result of the adoption of ASU 2016-09, the
Corporation retrospectively applied certain changes to the statement of cash flows to classify excess tax benefits as an operating
activity and cash paid to a tax authority when withholding shares from an employee's award for tax-withholding purposes as a
financing activity. Accordingly, net cash provided by operating activities increased by $9 million and $3 million for 2016 and
2015, respectively, and net cash provided by financing activities decreased by the corresponding amounts.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Corporation presents on an annual basis the components of net income and other comprehensive income in two
separate, but consecutive statements and presents on an interim basis the components of net income and atotal for comprehensive
income in one continuous consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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The Corporation early adopted ASU No. 2018-02, “Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220):
Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income” (ASU 2018-02) in the fourth quarter
2017. ASU 2018-02, issued in February 2018, provides for the reclassification of the effect of remeasuring deferred tax balances
related to items within accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) to retained earnings resulting from the Tax Cuts and
JobsAct of 2017. As aresult, the Corporation reclassified $87 million from AOCI to retained earnings.

Pending Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606),” (ASU 2014-09), which is intended to improve and converge the financial reporting requirements
for revenuecontractswith customers. PreviousGA A Pcomprised broad revenuerecognition conceptsal ong with numerousindustry-
specific requirements. The new guidance establishesafive-step model which entitiesmust follow to recognizerevenue and removes
inconsistenciesin existing guidance. The guidance under ASU 2014-09 is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2017, and must be retrospectively applied. The Corporation will adopt ASU 2014-09 in the first quarter of 2018
using the modified retrospective approach, which includes presenting the cumulative effect of initial application along with
supplementary disclosures. The revenue streams within the scope of Topic 606 were less than 30 percent of total revenues.

Under the new guidance, card feerevenuefrom certain productswill generally be presented net of network costs(including
interchange costs, surcharge fees and assessment fees), as opposed to the current presentation of associated network costs in
"outside processing fees." Network costs impacted by the new guidance were approximately $115 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017. There were similar adjustments made for other revenue streams that resulted in additional net decreases of
$5 million each to noninterest income and noninterest expense. These changes in presentation will not impact net income.

The Corporation currently defersrecognition of certaintreasury management feesin " service chargeson deposit accounts”
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income until the amount of compensation is considered fixed and determinable.
Under the new guidance, a portion of these fees will be recognized as services are rendered. As aresult of this earlier recognition,
the Corporation will record areceivable of approximately $17 million with a corresponding adjustment to retained earnings and
deferredtax liability upon adoption of ASU 2014-09. Theannual amount of treasury management feesreflected inthe Corporation's
results of operationsis not expected to significantly change. There were similar adjustments made for other revenue streams that
resulted in an incremental cumulative adjustment to retained earnings of $2 million.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, "Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition
of Financial Assetsand Financial Liabilities," (ASU 2016-01), which makestargeted amendmentsto the guidance for recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. The Corporation will adopt ASU 2016-01 in the first quarter
of 2018. The guidance under ASU 2016-01 requires equity investments, other than equity method investments, to be measured at
fair valuewith changesinfair value recognized in net income. As of December 31, 2017, the Corporation classified approximately
$82 million of securities as avail able-for-sale equity securities. At adoption, the cumulative net unrealized loss ($1 million, pretax)
of these securities previously recognized in AOCI was recorded as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. Any
further changes to the fair value of equity securities, other than equity method investments, will be recorded in net income. ASU
2016-01 also emphasizes the existing requirement to use exit pricesto measure fair value for disclosure purposes and clarifiesthat
entities should not make use of a practicability exception in determining the fair value of loans. Accordingly, the Corporation will
refine the calculation used to determine the disclosed fair value of its held-for-investment loan portfolio as part of adopting the
standard.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, “ L eases(Topic 842),” (ASU 2016-02), to increase thetransparency
and comparability of lease recognition and disclosure. The update requires |essees to recogni ze | ease contracts with aterm greater
than one year on the balance sheet, while recognizing expenses on the income statement in a manner similar to current guidance.
For lessors, the update makes targeted changes to the classification criteria and the lessor accounting model to align the guidance
with the new lessee model and revenue guidance. ASU 2016-02 is effective for the Corporation on January 1, 2019 and must be
applied using the modified retrospective approach. Early adoption is permitted. The Corporation is currently in the process of
gathering a complete inventory of leases and migrating identified |ease data onto a new system platform. Based on preliminary
evaluation, the right-of-use asset and the corresponding lease liability is expected to be less than one percent of the Corporation’s
total assets at adoption. The Corporation will continue to evaluate for other impacts of adoption, including potential additional
regulatory costs, but does not anticipate these to be significant.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, "Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments,” (ASU 2016-13), which addresses concerns regarding the perceived delay in recognition
of creditosses under the existing incurred loss model . The amendment introduces anew, single model for recognizing credit losses
on al financial instruments presented on cost basis. Under the new model, entities must estimate current expected credit |osses
by consideringall availablerelevant information, including historical and currentinformation, aswell asreasonableand supportable
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forecasts of future events. The update also requires additional qualitative and quantitative information to allow users to better
understand the credit risk within the portfolio and the methodol ogies for determining the allowancefor credit losses. ASU 2016-13
is effective for the Corporation on January 1, 2020 and must be applied using the modified retrospective approach with limited
exceptions. Early adoption is permitted. The Corporation is currently evaluating the impact of adopting ASU 2016-13.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, “ Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain
Cash Receiptsand Cash Payments,” (ASU 2016-15), whichreducesdiversity inthepresentation of several categoriesof transactions
in the cash flow statement. Among other things, the update clarifies the appropriate classification for proceeds from settlement of
bank-owned lifeinsurance (BOLI) policies. The Corporation will adopt ASU 2016-15 in thefirst quarter 2018 and retrospectively
change the classification of proceeds from settlement of BOLI policies from operating activities to investing activities. Proceeds
from settlement of BOL | policiestotaled $18 millionand $16 million for theyearsended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Other changes in classification resulting from this update are not significant.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, “Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the
Test for Goodwill Impairment,” (ASU 2017-04), which intendsto simplify goodwill impairment testing by eliminating the second
step of the analysis under which theimplied fair value of goodwill is determined as if the reporting unit were being acquired in a
business combination. The update instead requires entities to compare the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount
and recognize an impairment charge for any amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value, to the
extent that the loss recognized does not exceed the amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. ASU 2017-04 must be
applied prospectively and is effective for the Corporation on January 1, 2020. Early adoption is permitted. The Corporation does
not expect the new guidance to have amaterial impact on its financial condition or results of operation.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07, “Compensation - Retirement Benefits (Topic 715): Improving the
Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost” (ASU 2017-07), which requiresemployers
to retrospectively report service cost as part of compensation expense and the other components of net benefit cost separately from
service cost on the statement of income. Further, only the service cost component will be eligible for capitalization in deferred
loan costs.

TheCorporation currently includesall componentsof net benefit cost in"salariesand benefitsexpense” in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. Upon adoption of ASU 2017-07 in the first quarter 2018, only service cost will remainin
salaries and benefits expense, and the other components (interest cost, expected return on assets, amortization of prior service cost
or credit and amortization of net actuarial gains or losses) will beincluded in "other noninterest expenses." The other components
of net benefit cost were a benefit of $50 million and $28 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-12, “ Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted Improvementsto
Accounting for Hedging Activities’ (ASU 2017-12), which better aligns the accounting and reporting of hedging relationships
with the economics of risk management activities. ASU 2017-12 provides administrative reliefs to simplify the application of
hedge accounting. The amendment is effective for the Corporation on January 1, 2019 and early adoption is permitted. The
Corporation will early adopt in thefirst quarter of 2018 and record an adjustment of approximately $1 million to opening retained
earnings for the cumulative effect of changes to the measurement methodology on the basis of hedged items at transition. As
permitted under the transition rules, upon adoption, the Corporation will reclassify its portfolio of held-to-maturity securities to
available-for-sale, as the securities are eligible to be hedged under the new guidance.

The Corporation’s derivativeinstruments used for risk management predominately comprise swaps converting fixed-rate
long-term debt to variable rates. An ineffectiveness net gain of $1 million and net loss of $2 million were included in “other
noninterest income” in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Under the amendment, gains or losses relating to hedge ineffectiveness will prospectively be included in “net interest income”
rather than “ other noninterest income."
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NOTE 2 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Note 1 contains information about the fair value hierarchy, descriptions of the valuation methodologies and key inputs
used to measure financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value, as well as a description of the methods and significant
assumptions used to estimatefair val ue disclosuresfor financial instrumentsnot recorded at fair valueintheir entirety on arecurring
basis.

ASSETS AND LIABLILITIES RECORDED AT FAIR VALUE ON A RECURRING BASIS

The following tables present the recorded amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on arecurring basis as
of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

(in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2017
Trading securities:

Deferred compensation plan assets $ 922 % 92 $ — 3 =
Investment securities avail able-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency securities 2,727 2,727 — —
Residential mortgage-backed securities (a) 8,124 — 8,124 —
State and municipal securities 5 — — 5 (b)
Equity and other non-debt securities 82 38 — 44 (b)
Total investment securities available-for-sale 10,938 2,765 8,124 49
Derivative assets:
Interest rate contracts 57 — 43 14
Energy derivative contracts 93 — 93 —
Foreign exchange contracts 42 — 42 —
Warrants 2 — — 2
Total derivative assets 194 — 178 16
Total assets at fair value $ 11224 $ 2,857 $ 8,302 $ 65
Derivative liabilities:
Interest rate contracts $ 59 $ — 8 59 $ —
Energy derivative contracts 91 — 91 —
Foreign exchange contracts 40 — 40 —
Total derivative liabilities 190 — 190 —
Deferred compensation plan liabilities 92 92 — —
Total liabilities at fair value $ 282§ 92 $ 190 $ —

(a) Issued and/or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies or U.S. government-sponsored enterprises.
(b) Auction-rate securities.
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(in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2016
Trading securities:

Deferred compensation plan assets $ 87 $ 87 $ — $ —
Equity and other non-debt securities 1 1 — —
Total trading securities 88 88 — —
Investment securities avail able-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency securities 2,779 2,779 — —
Residential mortgage-backed securities (a) 7,872 — 7,872 —
State and municipal securities 7 — — 7 (b)
Equity and other non-debt securities 129 82 — 47 (b)
Total investment securities available-for-sale 10,787 2,861 7,872 54
Derivative assets:
Interest rate contracts 223 — 212 11
Energy derivative contracts 146 — 146 —
Foreign exchange contracts 38 — 38 —
Warrants 3 — — 3
Total derivative assets 410 — 396 14
Total assets at fair value $ 11285 $ 2949 $ 8,268 $ 68
Derivative ligbilities:
Interest rate contracts $ 81 $ — $ 81 $ —
Energy derivative contracts 144 — 144 —
Foreign exchange contracts 29 — 29 —
Total derivative liabilities 254 — 254 —
Deferred compensation plan liabilities 87 87 — —
Total liabilities at fair value $ 341 3 87 $ 254 3 —

(a) Issued and/or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies or U.S. government-sponsored enterprises.
(b) Auction-rate securities.

There were no transfers of assets or liahilities recorded at fair value on arecurring basisinto or out of Level 1, Level 2
and Level 3 fair value measurements during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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The following table summarizes the changesin Level 3 assets measured at fair value on arecurring basis for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Net Realized/Unrealized Gains (Losses)

(Pretax)
Balance Recorded in Earnings  Recorded in Balance
at Other at
Beginning Comprehensive End of
(in millions) of Period Realized Unrealized Income Redemptions  Sales Period
Year Ended December 31, 2017
Investment securities available-for-sde:
State and municipal securities (a) $ 7 % — $ — $ — $ 2 $ — 3 5
Equity and other non-debt securities (a) 47 — — (2) (b) 1) — 44
Total investment securities
available-for-sale 54 - — @ () @ — 49
Derivative assets:
Interest rate contracts 11 — 3 (0 — — — 14
Warrants 3 6 (c) (1) (o) — — (6) 2
Year Ended December 31, 2016
Investment securities available-for-sae:
State and municipal securities (a) $ 9 $ — $ — $ — $ @2 %$ — $ 7
Corporate debt securities (a) 1 — — — Q) — —
Equity and other non-debt securities (a) 67 — — Q) (b) (29 — 47
Total investment securities
available-for-sale 7 — — (1) (b) (G 54
Derivative assets:
Interest rate contracts 9 — 2 (¢ — — — 11
Warrants 2 6 (¢ 1 (0 — — (6) 3

(a) Auction-rate securities.

(b) Recorded in "net unrealized holding losses arising during the period" in other comprehensive income (l0ss).

(c) Realized and unrealized gains and losses due to changes in fair value recorded in "other noninterest income" on the consolidated statements
of income.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RECORDED AT FAIR VALUE ON A NONRECURRING BASIS

The Corporation may be required, from timeto time, to record certain assetsand liabilities at fair value on anonrecurring
basis. These include assets that are recorded at the lower of cost or fair value, and were recognized at fair value since it was less
than cost at the end of the period.

The following table presents assets recorded at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2017 and 2016. No
liabilities were recorded at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

(in millions) Level 3
December 31, 2017
Loans:
Commercia $ 111
Commercial mortgage 5
Total assets at fair value $ 116
December 31, 2016
Loans:
Commercia $ 256
Commercial mortgage 15
International 11
Total loans 282
Other real estate 1
Total assets at fair value $ 283

Level 3 assetsrecorded at fair value on anonrecurring basis at December 31, 2017 and 2016 included loans for which a
specific allowance was established based on the fair value of collateral and other real estate for which fair value of the properties
waslessthanthe cost basis. For both asset classes, the unobservableinputswerethe additional adjustmentsapplied by management
to the appraised values to reflect such factors as non-current appraisals and revisions to estimated time to sell. These adjustments
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are determined based on qualitative judgments made by management on a case-by-case basis and are not quantifiable inputs,
although they are used in the determination of fair value.

ESTIMATED FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT RECORDED AT FAIR VALUE ON A RECURRING BASIS

The Corporation typically holdsthe majority of itsfinancial instruments until maturity and thus does not expect to realize
many of the estimated fair value amounts disclosed. The disclosures also do not include estimated fair value amounts for items
that are not defined asfinancial instruments, but which have significant value. Theseinclude suchitemsas core deposit intangibles,
the future earnings potential of significant customer relationships and the value of trust operations and other fee generating
businesses. The Corporation believes the imprecision of an estimate could be significant.

The carrying amount and estimated fair value of financial instruments not recorded at fair value in their entirety on a
recurring basis on the Corporation’s consolidated balance sheets are as follows:

Carrying Estimated Fair Value

(in millions) Amount Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

December 31, 2017

Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 1438 $ 1438 $ 1438 $ — 3 =
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 4,407 4,407 4,407 — —
Investment securities held-to-maturity 1,266 1,246 — 1,246 —
Loans held-for-sale 4 4 — 4 —
Total loans, net of allowance for loan losses (a) 48,461 48,153 — — 48,153
Customers' liability on acceptances outstanding 2 2 2 — —
Restricted equity investments 207 207 207 — —
Nonmarketable equity securities (b) 6 9

Liabilities
Demand deposits (noninterest-bearing) 32,071 32,071 — 32,071 —
I nterest-bearing deposits 23,667 23,667 — 23,667 —
Customer certificates of deposit 2,165 2,142 — 2,142 —

Total deposits 57,903 57,880 — 57,880 —

Short-term borrowings 10 10 10 — —
Acceptances outstanding 2 2 2 — —
Medium- and long-term debt 4,622 4,636 — 4,636 —

Credit-related financial instruments (67) (67) — — (67)

December 31, 2016

Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 1,249 $ 1,249 $ 1,249 $ — $ —
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 5,969 5,969 5,969 — —
Investment securities held-to-maturity 1,582 1,576 — 1,576 —
Loans held-for-sdle 4 4 — 4 —
Total loans, net of allowance for loan losses (a) 48,358 48,250 — — 48,250
Customers' liability on acceptances outstanding 5 5 5 — —
Restricted equity investments 207 207 207 — —
Nonmarketable equity securities (b) 11 16

Liabilities
Demand deposits (noninterest-bearing) 31,540 31,540 — 31,540 —
Interest-bearing deposits 24,639 24,639 — 24,639 —
Customer certificates of deposit 2,806 2,731 — 2,731 —

Total deposits 58,985 58,910 — 58,910 —

Short-term borrowings 25 25 25 — —
Acceptances outstanding 5 5 5 — —
Medium- and long-term debt 5,160 5132 — 5,132 —

Credit-related financia instruments (73) (73) — — (73)

(@) Included $116 million and $282 million of impaired loans recorded at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

(b) Certain investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair
value amounts presented in the table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the
consolidated balance sheets.
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NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

A summary of the Corporation’s investment securities follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
(in millions) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2017
Investment securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency securities $ 2,743 % — 3 16 $ 2,727
Residential mortgage-backed securities (a) 8,230 22 128 8,124
State and municipal securities 5 — — 5
Equity and other non-debt securities 83 1 2 82
Total investment securities available-for-sale (b) $ 11,061 $ 23 $ 146 $ 10,938

Investment securities held-to-maturity (c):
Residential mortgage-backed securities (a) $ 1,266 $ — $ 20 $ 1,246

December 31, 2016
Investment securities available-for-sale;

U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency securities $ 2772 % 8 % 1% 2,779

Residential mortgage-backed securities (a) 7,921 48 97 7,872

State and municipal securities 7 — — 7

Equity and other non-debt securities 129 1 1 129
Total investment securities avail able-for-sale (b) $ 10,829 $ 57 $ 9 $ 10,787
Investment securities held-to-maturity (c):

Residential mortgage-backed securities (a) $ 1582 $ 1 3 7 9% 1,576

(a) Issued and/or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies or U.S. government-sponsored enterprises.

(b) Included auction-rate securities at amortized cost and fair value of $51 million and $49 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2017 and
$55 million and $54 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2016.

(c) The amortized cost of investment securities held-to-maturity included the unamortized balance of net unrealized losses as of the transfer
date of $9 million and $12 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, related to securities transferred from available-for-sale,
which is included in accumulated other comprehensive loss.
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A summary of the Corporation’s investment securities in an unrealized |loss position as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
follows:

Temporarily Impaired

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(in millions) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
December 31, 2017
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government
agency securities $ 2727 $ 16 $ — % — $ 2,727 $ 16
Residential mortgage-backed securities (a) 3,845 32 4,003 125 7,848 157
State and municipal securities (b) — — 5 — (© 5 — (0
Equity and other non-debt securities (b) — — 44 2 44 2
Total impaired securities $ 6572 $ 48 $ 4052 $ 127 $10,624 $ 175
December 31, 2016
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government
agency securities $ 527 % 1 $ — 3 — $ 527 $ 1
Residential mortgage-backed securities (a) 4,992 87 1,177 32 6,169 119
State and municipal securities (b) — — 7 — (© 7 — (¢
Equity and other non-debt securities (b) 36 — (0 11 — (¢ 47 — (0
Total impaired securities $ 5555 $ 88 $ 1195 $ 32 $ 6750 $ 120

(a) Issued and/or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies or U.S. government-sponsored enterprises.
(b) Primarily auction-rate securities.
(c) Unrealized losses less than $0.5 million.

At December 31, 2017, the Corporation had 354 securities in an unrealized loss position with no credit impairment,
including 29 U.S. Treasury securities, 284 residential mortgage-backed securities, 13 state and municipal auction-rate securities,
and 28 equity and other non-debt auction-rate preferred securities. The unrealized lossesfor these securities resulted from changes
inmarket interest ratesand liquidity, not changesin credit quality. The Corporation ultimately expectsfull collection of the carrying
amount of these securities, does not intend to sell the securitiesin an unrealized loss position, and it is not more-likely-than-not
that the Corporation will be required to sell the securitiesin an unrealized loss position prior to recovery of amortized cost. The
Corporation does not consider these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2017.

Sales, callsand write-downs of investment securitiesavailable-for-saleresulted in thefollowing gainsand | osses recorded
in “net securitieslosses’ on the consolidated statements of income, computed based on the adjusted cost of the specific security.

(in millions)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Securities gains $ 2 $ — $ =
Securities |osses (5) (5) (2)
Net securities |osses (a) 3 (3) $ (5 $ (2)

(a) Primarily charges related to a derivative contract tied to the conversion rate of Visa Class B shares.

The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair values of debt securities by contractual maturity. Securities
with multiple maturity datesare classified in the period of final maturity. Expected maturitieswill differ from contractual maturities
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

(in millions) Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
December 31, 2017 Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value
Contractual maturity
After one year through five years $ 2,956 $ 2,939 $ — 3 —
After five years through ten years 1,690 1,697 17 17
After ten years 6,332 6,220 1,249 1,229
Subtotal 10,978 10,856 1,266 1,246
Equity and other non-debt securities 83 82 — —
Total investment securities $ 11,061 $ 10,938 $ 1,266 $ 1,246

Included inthe contractual maturity distribution inthetable abovewere residential mortgage-backed securitiesavailable-
for-salewith atotal amortized cost of $8.2 billion and afair value of $8.1 billion, and residential mortgage-backed securities held-
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to-maturity with atotal amortized cost of $1.3 billion and afair value of $1.2 billion. The actual cash flows of mortgage-backed
securities may differ from contractual maturity as the borrowers of the underlying loans may exercise prepayment options.

At December 31, 2017, investment securities with a carrying value of $770 million were pledged where permitted or

required by law to secure $484 million of liabilities, primarily public and other deposits of state and local government agencies
and derivative instruments.
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NOTE 4 - CREDIT QUALITY AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

The following table presents an aging analysis of the recorded balance of loans.

Loans Past Due and Still Accruing

30-59 60-89 90 Days Nonaccrual Current Total
(in millions) Days Days or More  Total Loans Loans Loans
December 31, 2017
Business loans:
Commercial $ 79 $ 134 $ 12 $ 225 $ 309 $ 30526 $ 31,060
Real estate construction:
Commercial Real Estate business line (a) 3 — — 3 — 2,627 2,630
Other business lines (b) 4 — — 4 — 327 331
Total real estate construction 7 — — 7 — 2,954 2,961
Commercial mortgage:
Commercial Real Estate business line (a) 14 — — 14 9 1,808 1,831
Other business lines (b) 27 6 22 55 22 7,251 7,328
Total commercial mortgage 41 6 22 69 31 9,059 9,159
Lease financing — — — — 4 464 468
International 13 — — 13 6 964 983
Tota business loans 140 140 34 314 350 43,967 44,631
Retail loans:
Residential mortgage 10 2 — 12 31 1,945 1,988
Consumer:
Home equity 5 1 — 6 21 1,789 1,816
Other consumer 4 — 1 5 — 733 738
Total consumer 9 1 1 11 21 2,522 2,554
Total retail loans 19 3 1 23 52 4,467 4,542
Tota loans $ 159 $ 143 $ 35 $ 337 $ 402 $ 48,434 $ 49,173
December 31, 2016
Business loans:
Commercia $ 30 % 12 $ 14 $ 5 $ 45 $ 30493 $ 30,994
Real estate construction:
Commercial Real Estate business line (a) — — — — — 2,485 2,485
Other business lines (b) — — — — — 384 384
Total real estate construction — — — — — 2,869 2,869
Commercial mortgage:
Commercial Real Estate business line (a) 5 — — 5 9 2,004 2,018
Other business lines (b) 58 5 5 68 37 6,808 6,913
Total commercial mortgage 63 5 5 73 46 8,812 8,931
Lease financing — — — — 6 566 572
I nternational 1 — — 1 14 1,243 1,258
Tota businessloans 94 17 19 130 511 43,983 44,624
Retail loans:
Residential mortgage 7 3 — 10 39 1,893 1,942
Consumer:
Home equity 4 3 — 7 28 1,765 1,800
Other consumer 1 — — 1 4 717 722
Total consumer 5 3 — 8 32 2,482 2,522
Total retail loans 12 6 — 18 71 4,375 4,464
Tota loans $ 106 $ 23 $ 19 $ 148 $ 582 $ 48,358 $ 49,088

(a) Primarily loans to real estate developers.
(b) Primarily loans secured by owner-occupied real estate.
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The following table presents loans by credit quality indicator, based on internal risk ratings assigned to each business
loan at the time of approval and subjected to subsequent reviews, generally at least annually, and to pools of retail loans with
similar risk characteristics.

Internally Assigned Rating

(in millions) Pass (a) M?ﬁteigﬁl(b) Substandard (c) Nonaccrual (d) Total
December 31, 2017
Business loans:
Commercial $ 29,263 $ 591 $ 897 $ 309 $ 31,060
Real estate construction:
Commercial Real Estate businessline (€) 2,630 — — — 2,630
Other business lines () 327 4 — — 331
Total real estate construction 2,957 4 — — 2,961
Commercial mortgage:
Commercial Real Estate businessline (€) 1,759 20 43 9 1,831
Other business lines (f) 7,099 115 92 22 7,328
Total commercial mortgage 8,858 135 135 31 9,159
Lease financing 440 23 1 4 468
International 946 11 20 6 983
Total business loans 42,464 764 1,053 350 44,631
Retail loans:
Residential mortgage 1,955 2 — 31 1,988
Consumer:
Home equity 1,786 1 8 21 1,816
Other consumer 737 1 — — 738
Total consumer 2,523 2 8 21 2,554
Total retail loans 4,478 4 8 52 4,542
Total loans $ 46,942 $ 768 3 1061 3 402 $ 49,173
December 31, 2016
Business loans:
Commercial $ 28,616 $ 944 $ 989 $ 45 3 30,994
Real estate construction:
Commercial Real Estate businessline (€) 2,485 — — — 2,485
Other business lines (f) 381 — 3 — 384
Total real estate construction 2,866 — 3 — 2,869
Commercial mortgage:
Commercial Real Estate business line (€) 1,970 19 20 9 2,018
Other business lines (f) 6,645 109 122 37 6,913
Total commercial mortgage 8,615 128 142 46 8,931
Lease financing 550 11 5 6 572
International 1,200 22 22 14 1,258
Total business loans 41,847 1,105 1,161 511 44,624
Retail loans:
Residential mortgage 1,900 3 — 39 1,942
Consumer:
Home equity 1,767 1 4 28 1,800
Other consumer 718 — — 4 722
Total consumer 2,485 1 4 32 2,522
Total retail loans 4,385 4 4 71 4,464
Total loans $ 46,232 $ 1,109 $ 1,165 $ 582 $ 49,088

(a) Includes all loans not included in the categories of special mention, substandard or nonaccrual.

(b)  Special mention loans are accruing loans that have potential credit weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention, such as loans to borrowers who may be experiencing
financial difficulties that may result in deterioration of repayment prospects from the borrower at some future date. This category is generally consistent with the "special mention™
category as defined by regulatory authorities.

(c) Substandard loans are accruing loans that have a well-defined weakness, or weaknesses, such as loans to borrowers who may be experiencing losses from operations or inadequate
liquidity of a degree and duration that jeopardizes the orderly repayment of the loan. Substandard loans also are distinguished by the distinct possibility of loss in the future if
these weaknesses are not corrected. This category is generally consistent with the "substandard” category as defined by regulatory authorities.

(d) Nonaccrual loans are loans for which the accrual of interest has been discontinued. For further information regarding nonaccrual loans, refer to the Nonperforming Assets
subheading in Note 1 - Basis of Presentation and Accounting Policies. A significant majority of nonaccrual loans are generally consistent with the "substandard" category and
the remainder are generally consistent with the "doubtful” category as defined by regulatory authorities.

(e) Primarily loans to real estate developers.

(f)  Primarily loans secured by owner-occupied real estate.
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The following table summarizes nonperforming assets.

(in millions) December 31,2017  December 31, 2016
Nonaccrual loans $ 402 % 582
Reduced-rate loans (@) 8 8
Total nonperforming loans 410 590
Foreclosed property (b) 5 17
Total nonperforming assets $ 415 $ 607

(@) There were no reduced-rate business loans at both December 31, 2017 and 2016. Reduced-rate retail loans totaled $8 million at both
December 31, 2017 and 2016.
(b) Included foreclosed residential real estate properties of $4 million and $3 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

There were no retail loans secured by residential real estate properties in process of foreclosure included in nonaccrual
loans at both December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The following table details the changes in the allowance for |oan losses and related loan amounts.

2017 2016 2015
Business  Retail Business  Retail Business  Retail
(in millions) Loans Loans Total Loans Loans Total Loans Loans Total
Years Ended December 31
Allowance for loan losses:
Balpzr;icoedat beginning of $ 682 $ 48 $ 730 $ 579 $ 55 $ 634 $ 534 $ 60 $ 5%
Loan charge-offs (143) (6) (149) (207) (7) (214) a57) (1) (168)
Recoveries on loans
Net |oan (charge-offs)
recoveries (93) 1 (92) (144) @) (146) (102) 2 (100)
Provision for loan losses 71 2 73 246 (5) 241 149 (@) 142
B S S S G e
Balance at end of period $ 661 $ 51 $ 712 $ 682 $ 48 $ 730 $ 519 $ 55 $ 634

As apercentage of total loans 1.48% 1.12% 1.45% 1.53% 1.08% 1.49% 1.30% 1.26% 1.29%

December 31
Allowance for loan losses:
Individually evaluated for

impairment $ 67 $ — $ 67 $ 86 $ 3 3 89 $ 53 $ — % 53
Collectively evaluated for
impairment 594 51 645 596 45 641 526 55 581
Total alowance for loan
|osses $ 661 $ 51 $ 712 $ 682 $ 48 $ 730 $ 579 $ 55 $ 634
Loans:
Individually evaluated for
impairm)e/nt $ 443 $ 34 $ 477 $ 566 $ 48 $ 614 $ 393 $ 31 $ 424
Collectively evaluated for
impairment 44,188 4,508 48,696 44,058 4,416 48,474 44,336 4,324 48,660
Total loans evaluated for
impairment $44,631 $ 4,542 $49,173  $44,624 $ 4464 $49,088 $44,729 $ 4,355 $49,084
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Changes in the allowance for credit losses on lending-related commitments, included in "accrued expenses and other
liabilities" on the consolidated balance sheets, are summarized in the following table.

(in millions)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of period $ 41 $ 45 $ 41
Charge-offs on lending-related commitments (a) — (11) Q)
Provision for credit losses on |lending-related commitments 1 7 5
Balance at end of period 3 42 $ 41 $ 45

(a) Charge-offs result from the sale of unfunded lending-related commitments.
Individually Evaluated Impaired Loans
The following table presents additional information regarding individually evaluated impaired loans.

Recorded Investment In:

Impaired Impaired Related
Loans with Loans with Total Unpaid Allowance
No Related Related Impaired Principal for Loan
(in millions) Allowance Allowance Loans Balance Losses
December 31, 2017
Business loans:
Commercia $ 105 $ 267 $ 372 $ 460 $ 63
Commercial mortgage:
Commercial Real Estate business line (a) 39 1 40 49 —
Other business lines (b) 3 22 25 29 3
Total commercial mortgage 42 23 65 78 3
International — 6 6 17 1
Total business loans 147 296 443 555 67
Retail loans:
Residential mortgage 14 8 22 22 —
Consumer:
Home equity 11 — 11 14 —
Other consumer 1 — 1 2 —
Total consumer 12 — 12 16 —
Total retail loans (c) 26 8 34 38 —
Total individually evaluated impaired |oans $ 173 $ 304 $ 477 $ 593 $ 67

December 31, 2016

Business loans:

Commerciad $ 0 % 423 $ 513 $ 608 $ 80
Commercial mortgage:

Commercial Real Estate business line (a) — 7 7 15 1
Other business lines (b) 2 30 32 40 3
Total commercial mortgage 2 37 39 55 4
International 3 11 14 20 2
Tota businessloans 95 471 566 683 86
Retail loans:
Residential mortgage 19 9 28 30 2
Consumer:
Home equity 15 — 15 19 —
Other consumer 2 3 5 6 1
Total consumer 17 3 20 25 1
Total retail loans (€) 36 12 48 55 3
Total individually evaluated impaired loans $ 131 $ 483 $ 614 $ 738 $ 89

(a) Primarily loans to real estate developers.

(b) Primarily loans secured by owner-occupied real estate.

(c) Individually evaluated retail loans generally have no related allowance for loan losses, primarily due to policy which results in direct write-
downs of most restructured retail loans.
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Thefollowing table presentsinformation regarding averageindividually evaluated impaired loans and the rel ated interest
recognized. Interest income recognized for the period primarily related to reduced-rate loans.

Individually Evaluated Impaired Loans

2017 2016 2015
Interest Interest Interest
Average Income Average Income Average Income
Balance for ~ Recognized Balance for ~ Recognized Balance for ~ Recognized
(in millions) the Period  for the Period  the Period  for the Period  the Period  for the Period

Years Ended December 31
Business loans:
Commerciad $ 451 $ 8 $ 550 $ 10 $ 206 $ 5
Commercial mortgage:
Commercial Real Estate

business line (a) 21 2 9 = 16 =
Other business lines (b) 31 — 31 1 39 1
Total commercial mortgage 52 2 40 1 55 1
International 8 — 18 — 6 —
Total business loans 511 10 608 11 267 6

Retail loans:
Residential mortgage 24 — 15 — 21 —

Consumer:
Home equity 13 — 13 — 12 —
Other consumer 3 — 4 — 6 —
Total consumer 16 — 17 — 18 —
Total retail loans 40 — 32 — 39 —

Total individually evaluated impaired

loans $ 551 $ 10 $ 640 $ 1 $ 306 $ 6

(a) Primarily loans to real estate developers.
(b) Primarily loans secured by owner-occupied real estate.
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Troubled Debt Restructurings

The following tables detail the recorded balance at December 31, 2017 and 2016 of loans considered to be TDRs that
were restructured during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, by type of modification. In cases of |oans with more than
one type of modification, the loans were categorized based on the most significant modification.

2017

2016

Type of Modification

Type of Modification

AB Note AB Note
. Principal Interest  Restructures Total Principal Interest  Restructures Total
(in millions) Deferrals (a)  Rate (b) (©) Modifications  Deferrals ()  Rate (b) ©) Modifications
Years Ended December 31
Business loans:
Commercial $ 7% 18 $ 21 $ 116 $ 140 $ — 3 48 $ 188
Commercial mortgage:
Commercial Real Estate business
line (d) 37 — — 37 — — — —
Other businesslines (e) 3 — — 3 5 — — 5
Total commercial mortgage 40 — — 40 5 — — 5
International — — — — — — 3 3
Total business loans 117 18 21 156 145 — 51 196
Retail loans:
Residential mortgage — — — — — 2 — 2
Consumer:
Home equity (f) 1 2 — 3 2 1 — 3
Total retail loans 1 2 — 3 2 3 — 5
Total loans $ 118 $ 20 $ 21 $ 159 $ 147 $ 3$ 51 $ 201
(a) Primarily represents loan balances where terms were extended 90 days or more at or above contractual interest rates.
(b) Loan restructurings whereby interest rates were either reduced or were not at market rates.

(c) Loan restructurings whereby the original loan is restructured into two notes: an "A" note, which generally reflects the portion of the modified
loan which is expected to be collected; and a "B" note, which is either fully charged off or exchanged for an equity interest.

(d) Primarily loans to real estate developers.

(e) Primarily loans secured by owner-occupied real estate.

(f) Includes bankruptcy loans for which the court has discharged the borrower's obligation and the borrower has not reaffirmed the debt.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers whose terms have been modified
in TDRstotaled $31 million and $24 million, respectively.

The magjority of the modifications considered to be TDRs that occurred during the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 were principal deferrals. The Corporation charges interest on principal balances outstanding during deferral periods.
Additionally, none of the modifications involved forgiveness of principal. As aresult, the current and future financial effects of
the recorded balance of loans considered to be TDRs that were restructured during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
wereinsignificant.

On an ongoing basis, the Corporation monitors the performance of modified loans to their restructured terms. The
allowance for loan losses continues to be reassessed on the basis of an individual evaluation of the loan.
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Thefollowingtablepresentsinformation regarding therecorded balanceat December 31, 2017 and 2016 of loansmodified
by principal deferral during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, and those principal deferrals which experienced a
subsequent default during the same periods. For principal deferrals, incremental deterioration in the credit quality of the loan,
represented by adowngrade in therisk rating of theloan, for example, due to missed interest payments or areduction of collateral
value, is considered a subsequent default.

2017 2016
Subsequent Subsequent
Default in the Default in the
Balance at Year Ended Balance at Year Ended
(in millions) December 31 ~ December 31 December 31  December 31
Principal deferrals:
Business |oans:
Commercial $ 77 $ 3 $ 140 $ 13
Commercial mortgage:
Commercial Real Estate business line (a) 37 — — —
Other business lines (b) 3 — 5 1
Total commercial mortgage 40 — 5 1
International — — — —
Total business loans 117 3 145 14
Retail loans:
Consumer:
Home equity (c) 1 — 2 —
Total principal deferrals $ 118 $ 3 $ 147 $ 14

(@) Primarily loans to real estate developers.
(b) Primarily loans secured by owner-occupied real estate.
(¢) Includes bankruptcy loans for which the court has discharged the borrower's obligation and the borrower has not reaffirmed the debt.

For interest rate and loans restructured into two notes (AB note restructures), a subsequent payment default is defined in
terms of delinquency, when a principa or interest payment is 90 days past due. There were no subsequent payment defaults of
interest rate loans or AB note restructures during the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

NOTE 5 - SIGNIFICANT GROUP CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Concentrations of credit risk may exist when anumber of borrowers are engaged in similar activities, or activitiesin the
same geographic region, and have similar economic characteristics that would cause them to be similarly impacted by changesin
economicor other conditions. Concentrationsof both on-balance sheet and off-bal ance sheet credit risk arecontrolled and monitored
as part of credit policies. The Corporationisaregional financial services holding company with ageographic concentration of its
on-balance-sheet and off-balance-sheet activities in Michigan, California and Texas.

As outlined below, the Corporation has a concentration of credit risk with the automotive industry. L oans to automotive
dealers and to borrowers involved with automotive production are reported as automotive, as management believes these loans
have similar economic characteristicsthat might cause them to react similarly to changesin economic conditions. Thisaggregation
involves the exercise of judgment. Included in automotive production are: (a) original equipment manufacturers and Tier 1 and
Tier 2 suppliers that produce components used in vehicles and whose primary revenue source is automotive-related (“primary”
defined as greater than 50%) and (b) other manufacturers that produce components used in vehicles and whose primary revenue
source is automotive-related. Loans less than $1 million and loans recorded in the Small Business |oan portfolio were excluded
from the definition. Outstanding loans, included in "commercial loans’ on the consolidated balance sheets, and total exposure
(outstanding loans, unused commitments and standby letters of credit) to companies related to the automotive industry were as
follows:
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(in millions)
December 31 2017 2016
Automotive loans:
Production $ 1,344 $ 1,326
Dealer 7,592 7,123
—Total automotive loans $ 8,936 $ 8,449
Total automotive exposure:
Production $ 2,439 $ 2,534
Dealer 9,405 8,730
Total automotive exposure $ 11,844 $ 11,264

Further, the Corporation’ sportfolio of commercial real estatel oans, whichincludesreal estateconstructionand commercial
mortgage loans, was as follows.

(in millions)
December 31 2017 2016
Real estate construction loans:
Commercial Real Estate businessline (a) $ 2,630 $ 2,485
Other business lines (b) 331 384
Total real estate construction loans 2,961 2,869
Commercial mortgage loans:
Commercial Real Estate businessline (a) 1,831 2,018
Other business lines (b) 7,328 6,913
Total commercial mortgage loans 9,159 8,931
Total commercial real estate |oans $ 12,120 $ 11,800
Total unused commitments on commercial real estate loans $ 3018 3 3,046
(a) Primarily loans to real estate developers.
(b) Primarily loans secured by owner-occupied real estate.
NOTE 6 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
A summary of premises and equipment by major category follows:
(in millions)
December 31 2017 2016
Land $ 8 $ 86
Buildings and improvements 813 831
Furniture and equipment 484 499
Total cost 1,382 1,416
L ess: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (916) (915)
Net book value $ 466 $ 501

The Corporation conducts a portion of its business from leased facilities and leases certain equipment. Rental expense
for leased properties and equipment amounted to $78 million, $80 million and $79 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

As of December 31, 2017, future minimum rental payments under operating leases were as follows:

(in millions)

Years Ending December 31

2018 $ 68

2019 61

2020 52

2021 43

2022 32

Thereafter 135
Total 3 391
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NOTE 7 - GOODWILL AND CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLES

The following table summarizes the carrying val ue of goodwill by reporting unit for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016.

(in millions)

December 31 2017 2016

Business Bank $ 380 $ 380

Retail Bank 194 194

Wealth Management 61 61
Total 3 635 $ 635

The Corporation performsitsannual evaluation of goodwill impairment in thethird quarter of each year and on aninterim
basisif eventsor changesin circumstances between annual testsindicate goodwill might beimpaired. In 2017 and 2016, the annual
test of goodwill impairment was performed as of the beginning of thethird quarter. At the conclusion of thefirst step of the annual
and interim goodwill impairment tests performed in 2017 and 2016 the estimated fair values of all reporting units exceeded their
carrying amounts, including goodwill, indicating that goodwill was not impaired. There have been no events since the annual test
performed in the third quarter 2017 that would indicate that it was more likely than not that goodwill had become impaired.

A summary of core deposit intangible carrying value and related accumul ated amortization follows:

(in millions)

December 31 2017 2016

Gross carrying amount $ 34 3 34

Accumulated amortization (28) (26)
Net carrying amount $ 6 $ 8

The Corporation recorded amortization expense related to the core deposit intangible of $2 million for each of the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, and $3 million for 2015. At December 31, 2017, estimated future amortization expense was
asfollows:

(in millions)
Years Ending December 31
2018 $
2019
2020
2021
Total $

D, P NN

NOTE 8 - DERIVATIVE AND CREDIT-RELATED FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the normal course of business, the Corporation entersinto various transactions involving derivative and credit-rel ated
financial instruments to manage exposure to fluctuations in interest rate, foreign currency and other market risks and to meet the
financing needs of customers (customer-initiated derivatives). These financia instrumentsinvolve, to varying degrees, elements
of market and credit risk. Market and credit risk are included in the determination of fair value.

Market risk is the potential loss that may result from movements in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates or
energy commaodity prices that cause an unfavorable change in the value of afinancia instrument. The Corporation manages this
risk by establishing monetary exposure limits and monitoring compliance with those limits. Market risk inherent in interest rate
and energy contracts entered into on behalf of customersis mitigated by taking offsetting positions, except in those circumstances
when the amount, tenor and/or contract rate level resultsin negligible economic risk, whereby the cost of purchasing an offsetting
contract is not economically justifiable. The Corporation mitigates most of the inherent market risk in foreign exchange contracts
entered into on behalf of customers by taking offsetting positions and manages the remainder through individual foreign currency
position limits and aggregate value-at-risk limits. These limits are established annually and positions are monitored quarterly.
Market risk inherent in derivative instruments held or issued for risk management purposes is typically offset by changesin the
fair value of the assets or liabilities being hedged.

Credit risk isthe possiblelossthat may occur in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to afinancial instrument.

The Corporation attempts to minimize credit risk arising from customer-initiated derivatives by evaluating the creditworthiness

of each customer, adhering to the same credit approval process used for traditional lending activities and obtaining collateral as
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deemed necessary. Derivativeswith dealer counterpartiesare either cleared through aclearinghouse or settled directly withasingle
counterparty. For derivatives settled directly with dealer counterparties, the Corporation utilizes counterparty risk limits and
monitoring procedures, aswell as master netting arrangements and bilateral collateral agreementsto facilitate the management of
credit risk. Master netting arrangements effectively reduce credit risk by permitting settlement of positive and negative positions
and offset cash collateral held with the same counterparty on anet basis. Bilateral collateral agreementsrequire daily exchange of
cash or highly rated securitiesissued by the U.S. Treasury or other U.S. government entitiesto collateralize amounts due to either
party beyond certain risk limits. At December 31, 2017, counterpartieswith bilateral collateral agreements had pledged $3 million
of marketable investment securities and deposited $1 million of cash with the Corporation to secure the fair value of contractsin
an unrealized gain position, and the Corporation had pledged $25 million of investment securities and posted $40 million of cash
ascollateral for contractsin an unrealized loss position. For those counterparties not covered under bilateral collateral agreements,
collateral is obtained, if deemed necessary, based on the results of management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral
varies, but may include cash, investment securities, accounts receivable, equipment or real estate. Included in the fair value of
derivative instruments are credit valuation adjustments reflecting counterparty credit risk. These adjustments are determined by
applying a credit spread for the counterparty or the Corporation, as appropriate, to the total expected exposure of the derivative.
There were no derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that were in aliability position at December 31,
2017.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments utilized by the Corporation are negotiated over-the-counter and primarily include swaps, caps
and floors, forward contracts and options, each of which may relate to interest rates, energy commodity prices or foreign currency
exchangerates. Swapsare agreementsin which two parties periodically exchange cash payments based on specifiedindices applied
to a specified notional amount until a stated maturity. Caps and floors are agreements which entitle the buyer to receive cash
paymentsbased on the difference between aspecified referencerate or price and an agreed strike rate or price, applied to aspecified
notional amount until a stated maturity. Forward contracts are over-the-counter agreements to buy or sell an asset at a specified
future date and price. Options are similar to forward contracts except the purchaser has the right, but not the obligation, to buy or
sell the asset during a specified period or at a specified future date.

Over-the-counter contracts are tailored to meet the needs of the counterpartiesinvolved and, therefore, contain a greater
degree of credit risk and liquidity risk than exchange-traded contracts, which have standardized terms and readily available price
information. The Corporation reduces exposure to market and liquidity risksfrom over-the-counter derivativeinstruments entered
into for risk management purposes, and transactions entered into to mitigate the market risk associated with customer-initiated
transactions, by conducting hedging transactions with investment grade domestic and foreign financial institutions and subjecting
counterpartiesto credit approvals, limits and collateral monitoring procedures similar to those used in making other extensions of
credit. In addition, certain derivative contracts executed bilaterally with a dealer counterparty in the over-the-counter market are
cleared through a clearinghouse, whereby the clearinghouse becomes the counterparty to the transaction.
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The following table presents the composition of the Corporation’s derivative instruments held or issued for risk
Mmanagement purposes or in connection with customer-initiated and other activities at December 31, 2017 and 2016. The table
excludes commitments and warrants accounted for as derivatives.

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Fair Value Fair Value
Notional/ Gross Gross Notional/ Gross Gross
Contract Derivative Derivative Contract Derivative Derivative
(in millions) Amount (a) Assets  Liabilities Amount (a) Assets  Liabilities

Risk management purposes
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate contracts:

Swaps - fair value - receive fixed/
pay floating (b) $ 1775 $ — % 2 $ 2215 % 2 3% 4

Derivatives used as economic hedges
Foreign exchange contracts:

Spot, forwards and swaps 650 — 2 717 2 2
Total risk management purposes 2,425 — 4 2,992 94 6
Customer-initiated and other activities
Interest rate contracts:
Caps and floors written 635 — — 436 — 1
Caps and floors purchased 635 — — 436 1 —
Swaps (b) 13,119 57 57 12,451 130 76
Total interest rate contracts 14,389 57 57 13,323 131 77
Energy contracts:
Caps and floors written 164 — 11 419 1 31
Caps and floors purchased 164 11 — 419 31 1
Swaps 1,519 82 80 1,389 114 112
Total energy contracts 1,847 93 91 2,227 146 144
Foreign exchange contracts:
Spot, forwards, options and swaps 1,884 42 38 1,509 36 27
Total customer-initiated and other activities 18,120 192 186 17,059 313 248
Total gross derivatives $ 20,545 192 190 $ 20,051 407 254
Amounts offset in the consolidated balance
shests:
Netting adjustment - Offsetting derivative
assets/liabilities (49) (49) (84) (84)
Netting adjustment - Cash collateral
received/posted (1) (39) (47) (45)
Net derivatives included in the consolidated
Amounts not offset in the consolidated balance
sheets:
Marketable securities received/pledged
under bilateral collateral agreements 3) (24) (19) (8)
Net derivatives after deducting amounts not
offset in the consolidated balance sheets $ 139 § 78 $ 257 § 117

(a) Notional or contractual amounts, which represent the extent of involvement in the derivatives market, are used to determine the contractual
cash flows required in accordance with the terms of the agreement. These amounts are typically not exchanged, significantly exceed amounts
subject to credit or market risk and are not reflected in the consolidated balance sheets.

(b) Due to clearinghouse rule changes, beginning January 1, 2017, variation margin payments are treated as settlements of derivative exposure
rather than as collateral. As a result, these payments are now considered in determining the fair value of centrally cleared derivatives,
resulting in centrally cleared derivatives having a fair value of approximately zero.

(c) Net derivative assets are included in “accrued income and other assets™ and net derivative liabilities are included in “accrued expenses
and other liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheets. Included in the fair value of net derivative assets and net derivative liabilities are
credit valuation adjustments reflecting counterparty credit risk and credit risk of the Corporation. The fair value of net derivative assets
included credit valuation adjustments for counterparty credit risk of $4 million and $5 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Risk Management

The Corporation's derivative instruments used for managing interest rate risk currently comprise swaps converting fixed
rate long-term debt to variable rates. These instruments reduced interest expense by $32 million and $60 million for the years
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ended December 31 2017 and 2016, respectively. These hedges have been highly effective, with ineffectiveness net gains of $1
million for 2017 and net losses of $2 million for 2016 included in "other noninterest income" in the consolidated statements.

The following table summarizes the expected weighted average remaining maturity of the notional amount of risk
management interest rate swaps and the weighted average interest rates associated with amounts expected to be received or paid
on interest rate swap agreements as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Weighted Average

Remaining
Notional Maturity
(dollar amounts in millions) Amount (in years) Receive Rate Pay Rate (a)

December 31, 2017
Swaps - fair value - receive fixed/pay floating rate

Medium- and long-term debt designation $ 1,775 4.6 3.26% 2.35%
December 31, 2016
Swaps - fair value - receive fixed/pay floating rate

Medium- and long-term debt designation 2,275 4.5 3.69 1.80
(a) Variable rates paid on receive fixed swaps are based on six-month LIBOR rates in effect at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Foreign exchange rate risk arises from changes in the value of certain assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies. The Corporation employs spot and forward contracts in addition to swap contracts to manage exposure to these and
other risks. These instruments are used as economic hedges and net gains or losses are included in "other noninterest income” in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Customer-Initiated and Other

The Corporation enters into derivative transactions at the request of customers and generally takes offsetting positions
with dealer counterparties to mitigate the inherent market risk. Income primarily results from the spread between the customer
derivative and the offsetting dealer position.

For customer-initiated forei gn exchange contractswhere off setting positionshave not been taken, the Corporation manages
the remaining inherent market risk through individual foreign currency position limits and aggregate value-at-risk limits. These
limits are established annually and reviewed quarterly. For those customer-initiated derivative contracts which were not offset or
where the Corporation holds a position within the limits described above, the Corporation recognized an insignificant amount net
losses and $1 million of net gains in “other noninterest income” in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended
December 31 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Fair values of customer-initiated and other derivative instruments represent the net unrealized gains or losses on such
contracts and are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets. Changesin fair value are recognized in the consolidated statements
of income. Thenet gainsrecognized inincome on customer-initiated derivativeinstruments, net of theimpact of offsetting positions,
were as follows:

(in millions)

Years Ended December 31 Location of Gain 2017 2016

Interest rate contracts Other noninterest income $ 24 % 25

Energy contracts Other noninterest income 2 2

Foreign exchange contracts Foreign exchange income 45 41
Tota $ 71 $ 68
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Credit-Related Financial Instruments

The Corporation issues off-balance sheet financia instruments in connection with commercial and consumer lending
activities. The Corporation’s credit risk associated with these instruments is represented by the contractual amounts indicated in
the following table.

(in millions)
December 31 2017 2016
Unused commitments to extend credit:
Commercial and other $ 22,636 $ 24,333
Bankcard, revolving check credit and home equity loan commitments 2,833 2,658
Total unused commitments to extend credit $ 25,469 $ 26,991
Standby letters of credit $ 3228 $ 3,623
Commercial |etters of credit 39 46

The Corporation maintains an allowance to cover probable credit losses inherent in lending-related commitments,
including unused commitments to extend credit, letters of credit and financial guarantees. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
allowancefor creditlosseson lending-related commitments, included in* accrued expensesand other liabilities” ontheconsolidated
balance sheets, was $42 million and $41 million, respectively.

Unused Commitments to Extend Credit

Commitmentsto extend credit arelegally binding agreementsto lend to a customer, provided thereis no violation of any
condition established in the contract. These commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and
may require payment of afee. Commitments may expire without being drawn upon; therefore, the total contractual amount of
commitments does not necessarily represent future cash requirements of the Corporation. Commercial and other unused
commitments are primarily variable rate commitments. The allowance for credit losses on lending-related commitmentsincluded
$27 million and $29 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, for probable credit lossesinherent in the Corporation’s
unused commitments to extend credit.

Standby and Commercial Letters of Credit

Standby letters of credit represent conditional obligations of the Corporation which guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. Standby letters of credit are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements,
including commercia paper, bond financing and similar transactions. Commercial letters of credit are issued to finance foreign
or domestic trade transactions. These contracts expire in decreasing amounts through the year 2023. The Corporation may enter
into participation arrangements with third parties that effectively reduce the maximum amount of future payments which may be
required under standby and commercial letters of credit. These risk participations covered $127 million and $255 million at
December 31,2017 and 2016, respectively, of the$3.3billionand $3.7 billion of standby and commercial lettersof credit outstanding
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The carrying value of the Corporation’s standby and commercial letters of credit, included in “accrued expenses and
other liahilities’ on the consolidated balance sheets, totaled $40 million at December 31, 2017, including $25 million in deferred
fees and $15 million in the allowance for credit losses on lending-related commitments. At December 31, 2016, the comparable
amounts were $44 million, $32 million and $12 million, respectively.

The following table presents a summary of criticized standby and commercial letters of credit at December 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016. The Corporation's criticized list is consistent with the Special Mention, Substandard and Doubtful categories
defined by regulatory authorities. The Corporation managescredit risk through underwriting, periodically reviewing and approving
its credit exposures using Board committee approved credit policies and guidelines.

(dollar amounts in millions) December 31, 2017  December 31, 2016
Total criticized standby and commercial letters of credit $ 8 % 135
As a percentage of total outstanding standby and commercial |etters of credit 2.7% 3.7%

Other Credit-Related Financial Instruments

The Corporation enters into credit risk participation agreements, under which the Corporation assumes credit exposure
associated with a borrower’s performance related to certain interest rate derivative contracts. The Corporation is not a party to the
interest rate derivative contractsand only entersinto these credit risk participation agreementsin instancesin which the Corporation
isalso aparty to therelated loan participation agreement for such borrowers. The Corporation manages its credit risk on the credit
risk participation agreements by monitoring the creditworthiness of the borrowers, which is based on the normal credit review
processhad it enteredintothederivativeinstrumentsdirectly with theborrower. Thenotional amount of such credit risk participation
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agreement reflects the pro-rata share of the derivative instrument, consistent with its share of the related participated loan. As of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, thetotal notional amount of the credit risk participation agreementswas approximately $549 million
and $458 million, respectively, and thefair value, includedin customer-initiatedinterest rate contractsrecorded in " accrued expenses
and other liabilities" on the consolidated balance sheets, was insignificant for each period. The maximum estimated exposure to
these agreements, as measured by projecting a maximum value of the guaranteed derivative instruments, assuming 100 percent
default by al obligors on the maximum values, was insignificant at December 31, 2017 and $3 million at December 31, 2016,
respectively. In the event of default, the lead bank has the ability to liquidate the assets of the borrower, in which case the lead
bank would be required to return a percentage of the recouped assets to the participating banks. As of December 31, 2017, the
weighted average remaining maturity of outstanding credit risk participation agreements was 2.6 years.

NOTE 9 - VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES (VIEs)

The Corporation evaluates its interest in certain entities to determine if these entities meet the definition of a VIE and
whether the Corporation is the primary beneficiary and should consolidate the entity based on the variable interests it held both
at inception and when there is a change in circumstances that requires a reconsideration.

The Corporation holds ownership interests in funds in the form of limited partnerships or limited liability companies
(LLCs) investing in affordable housing projects that qualify for the LIHTC. The Corporation also directly invests in limited
partnerships and LLCs which invest in community development projects which generate similar tax credits to investors. As an
investor, the Corporation obtains income tax credits and deductions from the operating losses of these tax credit entities. These
tax credit entitiesmeet the definition of aVIE; however, the Corporationisnot the primary beneficiary of theentities, asthegeneral
partner or the managing member hasboth the power to direct the activitiesthat most significantly impact the economic performance
of the entities and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could be significant to the entities.

The Corporation accounts for its interests in LIHTC entities using the proportional amortization method. Exposure to
loss as a result of the Corporation’s involvement with LIHTC entities at December 31, 2017 was limited to approximately $422
million. Ownership interests in other community development projects which generate similar tax credits to investors (other tax
credit entities) areaccounted for under either the cost or equity method. Exposureto lossasaresult of the Corporation'sinvol vement
in other tax credit entities at December 31, 2017 was limited to approximately $7 million. The Corporation evaluated these
investments for impairment after the enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs act and recorded an insignificant impairment.

Investment balances, including al legally binding commitments to fund future investments, are included in “accrued
income and other assets” on the consolidated balance sheets. A liability is recognized in “accrued expenses and other liabilities”
on the consolidated balance sheets for all legally binding unfunded commitments to fund tax credit entities ($165 million at
December 31, 2017). Amortization and other write-downs of LIHTC investments are presented on a net basis as a component of
the"provision for incometaxes' on the consolidated statements of income, while amortization and write-downs of other tax credit
investments are recorded in “other noninterest income." The income tax credits and deductions are recorded as a reduction of
income tax expense and areduction of federal income taxes payable.

The Corporation provided no financial or other support that was not contractually required to any of the above VIEs
during the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015.

The following table summarizes the impact of these tax credit entities on line items on the Corporation’s consolidated
statements of income.

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Other noninterest income;
Amortization of other tax credit investments $ 2 $ @ $ 1
Provision for income taxes:
Amortization of LIHTC Investments 67 66 62
Low income housing tax credits (63) (62 (61)
Other tax benefits related to tax credit entities (24) (26) (22
Total provision for income taxes 3 (20) $ (22) $ (21)

For further information on the Corporation’s consolidation policy, see Note 1.
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NOTE 10 - DEPOSITS

At December 31, 2017, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit and other deposits with a stated maturity were
asfollows:

(in millions)

Years Ending December 31

2018 $ 1,855

2019 200

2020 66

2021 28

2022 16

Thereafter 15
Total $ 2,180

A maturity distribution of domestic certificates of deposit of $100,000 and over follows:

(in millions)

December 31 2017 2016

Three months or less $ 355 $ 510

Over three months to six months 207 322

Over six months to twelve months 319 449

Over twelve months 130 230
Total $ 1,011 $ 1,511

Theaggregate amount of domestic certificatesof deposit that meet or exceed the current FDI C insurancelimit of $250,000
was $462 million and $882 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. All foreign office time deposits of $15 million
and $19 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, were in denominations of $250,000 or more.

NOTE 11 - SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase generally mature within one to four days
from the transaction date. Other short-term borrowings, which may consist of borrowed securities and short-term notes, generally
mature within one to 120 days from the transaction date.

At December 31, 2017, Comerica Bank (the Bank), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, had pledged loans
totaling $21.3 billion which provided for up to $17.2 billion of available collateralized borrowing with the FRB.
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The following table provides a summary of short-term borrowings.

Federal Funds Purchased Other
and Securities Sold Under Short-term
(dollar amounts in millions) Agreements to Repurchase Borrowings
December 31, 2017
Amount outstanding at year-end 10 % —
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 1.43% —%
Maximum month-end balance during the year 41 % 1,024
Average balance outstanding during the year 20 257
Weighted average interest rate during the year 1.02% 1.15%
December 31, 2016
Amount outstanding at year-end 25 % —
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 0.54% —%
Maximum month-end balance during the year 25 % 501
Average balance outstanding during the year 15 123
Weighted average interest rate during the year 0.47 % 0.45%
December 31, 2015
Amount outstanding at year-end 23 $ —
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 0.38% —%
Maximum month-end balance during the year 109 % —
Average balance outstanding during the year 93 —
Weighted average interest rate during the year 0.05% — %
NOTE 12 - MEDIUM- AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Medium- and long-term debt is summarized as follows:
(in millions)
December 31 2017 2016
Parent company
Subordinated notes:
3.80% subordinated notes due 2026 (a) 255 $ 256
Medium-term notes:

2.125% notes due 2019 (a) 347 348
Total parent company 602 604
Subsidiaries

Subordinated notes:
5.20% subordinated notes due 2017 (a) — 511
4.00% subordinated notes due 2025 (@) 347 347
7.875% subordinated notes due 2026 (a) 208 215
Total subordinated notes 555 1,073
Medium-term notes:

2.50% notes due 2020 (@) 665 667
FHLB advances:

Floating-rate based on FHLB auction rate due 2026 2,800 2,800
Other notes:

6.0% - 6.4% fixed-rate notes due 2018 to 2020 — 16
Total subsidiaries 4,020 4,556

Total medium- and long-term debt $ 4622 $ 5,160

(&) Thefixed interest rates on these notes have been swapped to a variable rate and designated in a hedging relationship. Accordingly, carrying
value has been adjusted to reflect the change in the fair value of the debt as a result of changes in the benchmark rate.

Subordinated notes with remaining maturities greater than one year qualify as Tier 2 capital.

The Bank is a member of the FHLB, which provides short- and long-term funding to its members through advances
collateralized by real-estate related assets. The interest rate on each FHLB advance resets every four weeks, based on the FHLB
auction rate, with the reset date of each note scheduled at one-week intervals. At December 31, 2017 the weighted-average rate
on these advances was 1.41%. Each note may be prepaid in full, without penalty, at each scheduled reset date. Borrowing capacity
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is contingent upon the amount of collateral available to be pledged to the FHLB. At December 31, 2017, $15.6 billion of real
estate-related |oans were pledged to the FHLB as blanket collateral for current and potential future borrowings of approximately
$5.2 billion.

Unamortized debt issuance costs deducted from the carrying amount of medium- and long-term debt totaled $5 million
and $7 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

At December 31, 2017, the principal maturities of medium- and long-term debt were as follows:

(in millions)

Years Ending December 31

2018 $ —
2019 350
2020 675
2021 —
2022 —

Thereafter 3,550
Total 3 4,575

NOTE 13 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Federal Reserve completed its 2017 Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review (CCAR) in June 2017 and did not
object to the Corporation's 2017/2018 capital plan and capital distributions contemplated in the plan for the period ending June
30, 2018. The plan includes equity repurchases of up to $605 million for the four-quarter period commencing in the third quarter
2017 and ending in the second quarter 2018. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Corporation had repurchased $531
million under the equity repurchase program.

Repurchases of common stock under the equity repurchase program authorized in 2010 by the Board of Directors of the
Corporation totaled 7.3 million shares at an average price paid of $72.44 in 2017, 6.6 million shares at an average price paid of
$46.09 per share in 2016 and 5.1 million shares at an average price paid of $45.65 per share in 2015. The Corporation also
repurchased 500,000 warrants at an average price paid of $20.70 in 2015. There is no expiration date for the Corporation's equity
repurchase program.

At December 31, 2017, the Corporation had 1.0 million warrants outstanding to purchase 906,000 common shares at a
weighted-average exercise price of $29.42. Outstanding warrants were exercisable at the date of grant and expire in 2018.
Approximately 1.8 million, 2.3 million and 934,000 shares of common stock wereissued upon exercise of warrantsin 2017, 2016
and 2015, respectively.

At December 31, 2017, the Corporation had 906,000 shares of common stock reserved for warrant exercises, 5.1 million
shares of common stock reserved for stock option exercises and restricted stock unit vesting and 1.2 million shares of restricted
stock outstanding to employees and directors under share-based compensation plans.

F-81



Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

NOTE 14 - ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Thefollowing table presents areconciliation of the changesin the components of accumulated other comprehensiveloss
and detail sthe components of other comprehensiveincome (loss) for theyear ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, including

the amount of income tax expense (benefit) allocated to each component of other comprehensive income (10ss).

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Accumulated net unrealized (losses) gains on investment securities:

Balance at beginning of period, net of tax $ (33) $ 9 % 37
Net unrealized holding losses arising during the period (81) (70) (55)
Less: Benefit for income taxes (27) (26) (21)

Net unrealized holding losses arising during the period, net of tax (54) (44 (39
Less:
Net realized losses included in net securities |osses — — 2
Less: Benefit for income taxes — — (D
Reclassification adjustment for net securities losses included in net income,
net of tax — — )
Less:
Net losses realized as ayield adjustment in interest on investment securities (3) (3) 8)
Less. Benefit for income taxes 1) @)} (3
Reclassification adjustment for net losses realized as a yield adjustment
included in net income, net of tax 2 (2 ©)
Change in net unrealized |osses on investment securities, net of tax (52) (42) (28)
Reclassification of certain deferred tax effects (a) (16) — —
Balance at end of period, net of tax $ (101) $ (33) $ 9
Accumulated defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans
adjustment:

Balance at beginning of period, net of tax $ (350) $ (438) $ (449)
Actuarial gain (loss) arising during the period 72 (134) (57)
Prior service credit arising during the period — 234 3

Net defined benefit pension and other postretirement adjustment arising
during the period 72 100 (59
Less. Provision (benefit) for income taxes 17 37 (19)
Net defined benefit pension and other postretirement adjustment arising
during the period, net of tax 55 63 (35)
Amounts recognized in salaries and benefits expense:
Amortization of actuaria net loss 51 46 70
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost (27) (7) 1
Total amounts recognized in salaries and benefits expense 24 39 71
Less. Provision for income taxes 8 14 25
Adjustment for amounts recognized as components of net periodic benefit
cost during the period, net of tax 16 25 46
Change in defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans adjustment,
net of tax 71 88 11
Reclassification of certain deferred tax effects (a) (72) — —
Balance at end of period, net of tax $ (350) $ (350) $ (438)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss at end of period, net of tax $ (451) $ (383) $ (429)

(a) Amounts reclassified to retained earnings due to early adoption of ASU 2018-02. For further information, refer to Note 1.
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NOTE 15 - NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

Basic and diluted net income per common share are presented in the following table.

(in millions, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Basic and diluted
Net income $ 743 $ 477 % 521
L essincome allocated to participating securities 5 4 6
Net income attributable to common shares 3 738 $ 473 $ 515
Basic average common shares 174 172 176
Basic net income per common share 3 423 $ 274 $ 2.93
Basic average common shares 174 172 176
Dilutive common stock equivalents:
Net effect of the assumed exercise of stock options 3 2 2
Net effect of the assumed exercise of warrants 1 3 3
Diluted average common shares 178 177 181
Diluted net income per common share 3 414 $ 268 $ 2.84

The following average shares related to outstanding options to purchase shares of common stock were not included in
the computation of diluted net income per common share because the options were anti-dilutive for the period. There were no anti-
dilutive options for the year ended December 31, 2017.

(shares in millions)

Years Ended December 31 2016 2015
Average outstanding options 33 51
Range of exercise prices $37.26 - $59.86  $46.68 - $60.82

NOTE 16 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Share-based compensation expenseischargedto* salariesand benefits’ expenseon theconsolidated statementsof income.
The components of share-based compensation expense for all share-based compensation plans and related tax benefits are as
follows:

(in millions)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Total share-based compensation expense $ 39 3% 1C7 38
Related tax benefits recognized in net income $ 14 % 13 % 14

The following table summarizes unrecognized compensation expense for all share-based plans.

(dollar amounts in millions) December 31, 2017
Total unrecognized share-based compensation expense $ 40
Wei ghted-average expected recognition period (in years) 2.8

The Corporation has share-based compensation plans under which it awards shares of restricted stock and restricted stock
unitsto executiveofficers, directorsand key personnel, and stock optionsto executive officersand key personnel of the Corporation
and its subsidiaries. Restricted stock and restricted stock units vest over periods ranging from one year to five years, and stock
options vest over periods ranging from one year to four years. The maturity of each option is determined at the date of grant;
however, no options may be exercised later than ten years from the date of grant. The options may have restrictions regarding
exercisability. The plans originally provided for agrant of up to 19.4 million common shares, plus shares under certain plans that
areforfeited, expireor are canceled, which become availablefor re-grant. At December 31, 2017, 9.5 million shareswere available
for grant.
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The Corporation used abinomia model to value stock options granted in the periods presented. Option valuation models
require several inputs, including the expected stock price volatility, and changesin input assumptions can materially affect thefair
value estimates. The model used may not necessarily provide areliable single measure of the fair value of employee and director
stock options. Therisk-free interest rate assumption used in the binomial option-pricing model as outlined in the table below was
based on the federal ten-year treasury interest rate. The expected dividend yield was based on the historical and projected long-
term dividend yield patterns of the Corporation’s common shares. Expected volatility assumptions considered both the historical
volatility of the Corporation’s common stock over aten-year period and implied volatility based on actively traded options on the
Corporation’s common stock with pricing terms and trade dates similar to the stock options granted. Expected option life was
based on historical exercise activity over the contractual term of the option grant (10 years), excluding certain forced transactions.

The estimated weighted-average grant-date fair value per option and the underlying binomial option-pricing model
assumptions are summarized in the following table:

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Weighted-average grant-date fair value per option $ 1961 $ 9294 % 11.31
Weighted-average assumptions:
Risk-free interest rates 2.47% 2.01% 1.83%
Expected dividend yield 3.00 3.00 3.00
Expected volatility factors of the market price of
Comerica common stock 34 38 33
Expected option life (in years) 7.0 6.9 6.9
A summary of the Corporation’s stock option activity and related information for the year ended December 31, 2017
follows:
Weighted-Average
Number of Remaining Aggregate
Options Exercise Price Contractual Intrinsic Value
(in thousands) per Share Term (in years) (in millions)
Outstanding-January 1, 2017 6,892 $ 37.24
Granted 430 67.67
Forfeited or expired (57) 48.74
Exercised (3,092) 37.45
Outstanding-December 31, 2017 4,173 40.06 59 $ 195
Exercisable-December 31, 2017 2,347 $ 36.27 43 $ 119

The aggregate intrinsic value of outstanding options shown in the table above represents the total pretax intrinsic value
at December 31, 2017, based on the Corporation’s closing stock price of $86.81 at December 31, 2017.

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $104 million, $46 million and $12 million for the years ended
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

A summary of the Corporation’s restricted stock activity and related information for the year ended December 31, 2017
follows:

Number of Weighted-Average

Shares Grant-Date Fair

(in thousands) Value per Share
Outstanding-January 1, 2017 1591 $ 37.20
Granted 237 67.83
Forfeited (59) 42.53
Vested (526) 35.28
Outstandi ng—December 31, 2017 1,243 $ 43.59

Thetotal fair value of restricted stock awardsthat fully vested was $19 million, $22 million and $18 million for the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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A summary of the Corporation's restricted stock unit activity and related information for the year ended December 31,
2017 follows:

Service-Based Units Performance-Based Units

Number of Weighted-Average Number of Weighted-Average

Units Grant-Date Fair Units Grant-Date Fair

(in thousands) Value per Share (in thousands) Value per Share
Outstanding-January 1, 2017 180 $ 39.61 781 $ 39.47
Granted 19 75.06 149 66.07
Vested — — (212) 48.32
Outstanding-December 31, 2017 199 43.00 718 42.39

The total fair value of restricted stock units that fully vested was $10 million and $11 million for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. There were no restricted stock units that vested in 2015.

The Corporation expects to satisfy the exercise of stock options, the vesting of restricted stock units and future grants of
restricted stock by issuing shares of common stock out of treasury. At December 31, 2017, the Corporation held 55.3 million shares
in treasury.

For further information on the Corporation’s share-based compensation plans, refer to Note 1.
NOTE 17 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Benefit Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

The Corporation has aqualified and non-qualified defined benefit pension plan. Prior to January 1, 2017, the planswere
in effect for substantially all salaried employees hired before January 1, 2007. In October 2016, the Corporation modified its
defined benefit pension plansto freeze final average pay benefits as of December 31, 2016, other than for participants who were
age 60 or older as of December 31, 2016, and added a cash balance plan provision effective January 1, 2017. Active pension plan
participants 60 years or older as of December 31, 2016 receive the greater of the final average pay formula or the frozen final
average pay benefit as of December 31, 2016 plus the cash balance benefit earned after January 1, 2017. Employees participating
in the retirement account plan as of December 31, 2016 were €eligible to participate in the cash balance pension plan effective
January 1, 2017. Benefits earned under the cash balance pension formula, in the form of an account balance, include contribution
creditsbased on eligible pay earned each month, age and years of service and monthly interest creditsbased on the 30-year Treasury
rate. Salaries and benefits expense included defined benefit pension income of $18 million for the year ended December 31, 2017
and expense of $6 million and $47 million in the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, for the plans.

The Corporation’s postretirement benefit plan continues to provide postretirement health care and life insurance benefits
for retirees as of December 31, 1992. The plan also provides certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits for a
limited number of retireeswho retired prior to January 1, 2000. For all other employees hired prior to January 1, 2000, a nominal
benefit is provided. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2000 and prior to January 1, 2007 are eligible to participatein the plan
on afull contributory basis until Medicare-eligible based on age and service. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2007 are not
eligible to participate in the plan. The Corporation funds the pre-1992 retiree plan benefits with bank-owned life insurance.
Employee benefits expense included no postretirement benefit expense for each of the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
and $1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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The following table sets forth reconciliations of plan assets and the projected benefit obligation, the weighted-average
assumptions used to determine year-end benefit obligations, and the amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) for the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans and postretirement benefit plan at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
The Corporation used a measurement date of December 31, 2017 for these plans.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Postretirement

Qualified Non-Qualified Benefit Plan

(dollar amounts in millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Changein fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $2,453 $ 2,346 $ — $ — $ 62 $ 661
Actual return on plan assets 396 200 — — 2 2
Employer contributions — — — — 1 4
Benefits paid (102) (93 — — (5) (5)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 2,747 $ 2,453 $ — $ — $ 60 $ 62
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at January 1 $1,902 $ 1,916 $ 200 $ 222 $ 55 $ 59
Service cost 29 31 2 3 — —
Interest cost 78 87 8 10 2 3
Actuarial loss (gain) 154 161 12 11 ) 2
Benefits paid (102) (93) (12) 11 (5) 5)
Plan change — (200) — (34) — —
Pro'| ected benefit obligation at December 31 $ 2,061 $ 1,902 $ 212 $ 201 $ 51 $ 55
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 2,052 $ 1,894 $ 209 $ 198 $ 51 $ 55
Funded status at December 31 (a) (b) $ 686 $ 551 $ (212) $ (201) $ 9 $ 7
Weighted-average assumptions used:
Discount rate 3.74% 4.23% 3.74%  4.23%  3.55% 3.92%
Rate of compensation increase 3.75 3.50 3.75 3.50 n/a n/a
Healthcare cost trend rate:

Cost trend rate assumed for next year n/a n/a n/a n/a 6.50 6.50

Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to

decline (the ultimate trend rate) n/a n/a n/a n/a 4.50 5.00

Year when rate reaches the ultimate trend rate n/a n/a n/a n/a 2027 2027

Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) before income
taxes:

Net actuarial loss $ (548) $ (673) $ B8 $ 82 $ (199 $ (20
Prior service credit 159 178 42 50 1 1
Balance at December 31 $_(389) $_(495) $_ (43 $ (32 $ (18) $ (19

(a) Based on projected benefit obligation for defined benefit pension plans and accumulated benefit obligation for postretirement benefit plan.

(b) The Corporation recognizes the overfunded and underfunded status of the plans in “accrued income and other assets” and “accrued
expenses and other liabilities,” respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets.

n/a - not applicable

Because the non-qualified defined benefit pension plan has no assets, the accumulated benefit obligation exceeded the
fair value of plan assets at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

Thefollowing table detail s the changesin plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income
(loss) for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Postretirement

(in millions) Qualified Non-Qualified Benefit Plan Total

Actuarial gain (loss) arising during the period $ 82 $ 11) $ 1 3 72
Amortization of net actuarial loss 43 8 — 51
Amortization of prior service credit (19) (8) — (27)
Total recognized in other comprehensive income (l0ss) 3 106 $ (11) $ 1 $ 96
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Components of net periodic defined benefit cost and postretirement benefit cost, the actual return on plan assets and the

weighted-average assumptions used were as follows:

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

(dollar amounts in millions) Qualified Non-Qualified

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015
Service cost $ 29 % 31 % 3B 3 2 % 3 3 4
Interest cost 78 87 88 8 10 10
Expected return on plan assets (159) (163) (159) — — —
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost (19) 2 4 (8) (5) 4
Amortization of net loss 43 38 59 8 7 10
Net periodic defined benefit (credit) cost $ (28) % 9 $ 27 $ 10 $ 15 % 20
Actual return on plan assets $ 3% $ 200 $ (73 n/a n/a n/a
Actual rate of return on plan assets 16.48% 8.66% (2.95)% n/a n/a n/a
Weighted-average assumptions used:

Discount rate 4.23% 4.53% 4.28 % 4.23% 4.53% 4.28%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 6.50 6.75 6.75 n/a n/a n/a
Rate of compensation increase 3.50 3.75 3.75 3.50 3.75 3.75

n/a - not applicable

(dollar amounts in millions)

Postretirement Benefit Plan

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Interest cost $ 2 % 3 % 3
Expected return on plan assets (3) 4 4
Amortization of prior service cost — — 1
Amortization of net loss 1 1 1
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost $ — 3 — 3 1
Actual return on plan assets $ 2 3 2 $ —
Actual rate of return on plan assets 3.52% 2.83% (0.53)%
Weighted-average assumptions used:
Discount rate 3.92% 4.53% 3.99 %
Expected long-term return on plan assets 5.00 5.00 5.00
Healthcare cost trend rate:

Cost trend rate assumed 6.50 7.00 7.00

Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate) 4.50 5.00 5.00

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2027 2027 2026

The expected long-term rate of return of plan assetsisthe average rate of return expected to berealized on fundsinvested
or expected to beinvested over thelife of the plan, which has an estimated duration of approximately 12 years as of December 31,
2017. The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is set after considering both long-term returns in the general market
and long-term returns experienced by the assets in the plan. The returns on the various asset categories are blended to derive one
long-term rate of return. The Corporation reviews its pension plan assumptions on an annual basis with its actuarial consultants
to determine if assumptions are reasonabl e and adjusts the assumptions to reflect changes in future expectations.

The estimated portion of balances remaining in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) that are expected to be
recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost in the year ended December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Postretirement

(in millions) Qualified Non-Qualified Benefit Plan Total
Net loss $ 51 $ 8 $ 1 $ 60
Prior service credit (19) (8) (27)
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Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the postretirement benefit plan.
A one-percentage-point changein 2017 assumed healthcare and prescription drug cost trend rateswould have thefollowing effects.

One-Percentage-Point
(in millions) Increase Decrease
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $ 3 3 )
Effect on total service and interest cost — —

Plan Assets

The Corporation’s overall investment goals for the qualified defined benefit pension plan are to maintain a portfolio of
assets of appropriate liquidity and diversification; to generate investment returns (net of operating costs) that are reasonably
anticipated to maintain the plan’'s fully funded status or to reduce a funding deficit, after taking into account various factors,
including reasonably anticipated future contributions and expense and the interest rate sensitivity of the plan’s assets relative to
that of the plan’sliabilities; and to generate investment returns (net of operating costs) that meet or exceed a customized benchmark
as defined in the plan investment policy. Derivative instruments are permissible for hedging and transactional efficiency, but only
to the extent that the derivative use enhances the efficient execution of the plan’s investment policy. The plan does not directly
invest in securitiesissued by the Corporation and its subsidiaries. The Corporation’starget alocationsfor plan investments are 45
percent to 55 percent for both equity securities and fixed income, including cash. Equity securities include collective investment
and mutual funds and common stock. Fixed income securitiesinclude U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency securities,
mortgage-backed securities, corporate bonds and notes, municipal bonds, collateralized mortgage obligations and money market
funds.

Fair Value Measurements

The Corporation’squalified defined benefit pension plan utilizesfair value measurementsto record fair value adjustments
and to determine fair value disclosures. The Corporation’s qualified benefit pension plan categorizes investments recorded at fair
value into athree-level hierarchy, based on the markets in which the investment are traded and the reliability of the assumptions
used to determine fair value. Refer to Note 1 for a description of the three-level hierarchy.

Followingisadescription of theval uation methodol ogiesand key inputsused to measurethefair val ueof the Corporation’s
qualified defined benefit pension plan investments, including an indication of the level of the fair value hierarchy in which the
investments are classified.

Mutual funds

Fair value measurement is based upon the net asset value (NAV) provided by the administrator of the fund. Mutual
fund NAV s are quoted in an active market exchange, such as the New York Stock Exchange, and are included in Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy.

Commercial paper
Fair value measurement isbased on benchmark yieldsand quotesfrom market makersand other broker/deal ersrecognized
to be market participants. Commercial paper isincluded in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Common stock
Fair value measurement is based upon the closing price quoted in an active market exchange, such asthe New York Stock
Exchange. Level 1 common stock includes domestic and foreign stock and real estate investment trusts.

U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency securities

Level 1 securitiesinclude U.S. Treasury securitiesthat aretraded by dealersor brokersin active over-the-counter markets.
Fair value measurement is based upon quoted prices in an active market exchange, such asthe New York Stock Exchange. Level
2 securities include debt securities issued by U.S. government agencies and U.S. government-sponsored entities. The fair value
of Level 2 securities is determined using quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or pricing models based on
observable market datainputs, primarily interest rates and spreads.

Corporate and municipal bonds and notes

Fair value measurement is based upon quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or pricing models based on
observable market data inputs, primarily interest rates, spreads and prepayment information. Level 2 securities include corporate
bonds, municipal bonds, foreign bonds and foreign notes.
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Mortgage-backed securities

Fair value measurement is based upon independent pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques such as
the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security's credit rating, prepayment assumptions and other factors, such as
credit loss and liquidity assumptions, and areincluded in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Private placements

Fair valueis measured using the NAV provided by fund management as quoted pricesin active markets are not available.
Management considers additional discounts to the provided NAV for market and credit risk. Private placements are included in
Level 3 of thefair value hierarchy.

Collective investment funds

Fair value measurement is based upon the NAV provided by the administrator of the fund as a practical expedient to
estimate fair value. There are no unfunded commitments or redemption restrictions on the collective investment funds. The
investments are redeemable daily.

Fair Values

The fair values of the Corporation’s qualified defined benefit pension plan investments measured at fair value on a
recurring basis at December 31, 2017 and 2016, by asset category and level within thefair value hierarchy, are detailed in the table
below.

(in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2017
Equity securities:

Mutual funds $ 1 $ 1 $ — % —

Common stock 961 961 — —
Fixed income securities:

U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency securities 456 451 5 —

Corporate and municipal bonds and notes 765 — 765 —

Mortgage-backed securities 25 — 25 —
Private placements 80 — — 80
Total investments in the fair value hierarchy 2,288 $ 1413 $ 795 §$ 80
Investments measured at net asset value:

Collective investment funds 455

Total investments at fair value $ 2,743
December 31, 2016
Cash equivalent securities:

Commercial paper $ 2 3 — $ 2 3 —
Common stock 850 850 — —
Fixed income securities:

U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency securities 377 366 11 —

Corporate and municipal bonds and notes 710 — 710 —

Mortgage-backed securities 23 — 23 —
Private placements 71 — — 71
Total investments in the fair value hierarchy 2033 $ 1216 $ 746 $ 71
Investments measured at net asset value:

Collective investment funds 415

Total investments at fair value $ 2,448
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The table below provides a summary of changes in the Corporation’s qualified defined benefit pension plan’s Level 3
investments measured at fair value on arecurring basis for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Balance at i

Beginning Net Gains (Losses) Balance at
(in millions) of Period Realized Unrealized Purchases Sales End of Period
Year Ended December 31, 2017
Private placements $ 71 $ 2 $ 3 3 77 $ (73) $ 80
Year Ended December 31, 2016
Private placements $ 105 $ 1 9 3 $ 64 $ (102) $ 71

Therewere no assetsin the non-qualified defined benefit pension plan at December 31, 2017 and 2016. The postretirement
benefit plan isfully invested in bank-owned life insurance policies. The fair value of bank-owned life insurance policiesis based
on the cash surrender values of the policies as reported by the insurance companies and is classified in Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.

Cash Flows
The Corporation currently expects to make no employer contributions to the qualified and non-qualified defined benefit
pension plans and postretirement benefit plan for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

R Qualified Non-Qualified

(in millions) Defined Benefit  Defined Benefit Postretirement
Years Ended December 31 Pension Plan Pension Plan Benefit Plan (a)
2018 $ 120 $ 11 % 6
2019 123 12 5
2020 125 13 5
2021 127 13 5
2022 130 13 5
2023 - 2027 665 66 19

(a) Estimated benefit payments in the postretirement benefit plan are net of estimated Medicare subsidies.

Defined Contribution Plans

Substantialy all of the Corporation’s employees are eligible to participate in the Corporation’s principal defined
contribution plan (a401(k) plan). Under this plan, the Corporation makes core matching cash contributions of 100 percent of the
first 4 percent of qualified earnings contributed by employees (up to the current IRS compensation limit), invested based on
employee investment elections. Employee benefits expense included expense for the plan of $21 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017 and $22 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Through December 31, 2016, the Corporation also provided aretirement account plan for the benefit of substantially all
employees who worked at least 1,000 hours in a plan year and were not accruing a benefit in the defined benefit pension plan.
Under the retirement account plan, the Corporation made an annual discretionary allocation to the individual account of each
eligible employee ranging from 3 percent to 8 percent of annual compensation, determined based on combined age and years of
service. The allocations were invested based on employee investment el ections. Employees participating in the retirement account
planasof December 31, 2016 weredligibleto participatein the cash balance pension plan effective January 1, 2017. Final retirement
account plan balances weretransferred to the Corporation's 401(k) plan inthefirst quarter of 2017. Contributionsto the retirement
account plan ceased for periods beginning after December 31, 2016. The Corporation recognized $10 million of employee benefits
expense in both of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Deferred Compensation Plans

The Corporation offers optional deferred compensation plans under which certain employees may make an irrevocable
election to defer incentive compensation and/or a portion of base salary until retirement or separation from the Corporation. The
employee may direct deferred compensation into one or more deemed investment options. Although not required to do so, the
Corporationinvestsactual fundsinto the deemed investmentsas directed by employees, resulting in adeferred compensation asset,
recorded in “ other short-term investments” on the consolidated balance sheetsthat offsetsthe liability to employees under the plan,
recorded in “accrued expenses and other liabilities.” The earnings from the deferred compensation asset are recorded in “interest
on short-term investments’ and “other noninterest income” and the related change in the liability to employees under the planis
recorded in “salaries’ expense on the consolidated statements of income.

F-90



Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

NOTE 18 - INCOME TAXES AND TAX-RELATED ITEMS

The provision for income taxes is calculated as the sum of income taxes due for the current year and deferred taxes.
Incometaxesduefor the current year iscomputed by applying federal and statetax statutesto current year taxableincome. Deferred
taxes arise from temporary differences between the income tax basis and financial accounting basis of assets and liabilities. Tax-
related interest and penalties and foreign taxes are then added to the tax provision.

The current and deferred components of the provision for income taxes were as follows:

(in millions)
December 31 2017 2016 2015
Current:
Federal $ 3711 $ 224 3% 275
Foreign 5 5 5
State and local 36 15 20
Total current 412 244 300
Deferred:
Federal (26) (49) (68)
State and local 2) 2 3
Remeasurement of deferred taxes 107 — —
Total deferred 79 (51) (71)
Total 3 491 % 193 $ 229

Income beforeincometaxes of $1.2 billion for the year ended December 31, 2017 included $24 million of foreign-source
income.

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2017 included a $107 million charge to adjust deferred
taxes as aresult of the enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. Refer to Note 1 for further details.

Theincometax provision on securitiestransactionsfor the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were benefits
of $1 million, $2 million and $1 million, respectively.

The provision for income taxes does not reflect the tax effects of unrealized gains and losses on investment securities
available-for-sale or the change in defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans adjustment included in accumul ated
other comprehensive loss. Refer to Note 14 for additional information on accumulated other comprehensive loss.

The provision for income taxes for 2017 included a benefit of $35 million related to employee stock transactions as a
result of new accounting guidance for stock compensation. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, tax effects of
employee stock transactions of $4 million and $3 million, respectively, were recorded in shareholders' equity.

A reconciliation of expected income tax expense at the federal statutory rate to the Corporation’s provision for income
taxes and effective tax rate follows:

(dollar amounts in millions) 2017 2016 2015

Years Ended December 31 Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Tax based on federal statutory rate $ 432 35.0% $ 235 35.0% $ 262 35.0%
Remeasurement of deferred taxes 107 8.7 — — — —
State income taxes 22 1.8 8 12 10 13
Employee stock transactions (35) (2.8) — — — —
Affordable housing and historic credits (21) .7 (22 (3.3 (22 (2.9
Bank-owned life insurance (16) (1.3) (15) (2.3) (15) (2.0
L ease termination transactions 2 (0.2) (a5) (2.2) 5) (0.7)
Tax-related interest and penalties 4 0.3 3 0.5 1 0.1
Other — — (D (0.2) (2) (0.3)
Provision for income taxes $ 491 39.8% $ 193 28.8% $ 229 30.5%

Theliability for tax-related interest and penaltiesincluded in “ accrued expenses and other liabilities” on the consolidated
balance sheets was $10 million and $7 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Inthe ordinary course of business, the Corporation entersinto certain transactionsthat have tax consequences. Fromtime
totime, thelnternal Revenue Service (IRS) may review and/or challenge specificinterpretivetax positionstaken by the Corporation
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with respect to thosetransactions. The Corporation believesthat itstax returnswerefiled based upon applicabl e statutes, regul ations
and caselaw ineffect at thetimeof thetransactions. Thel RS, anadministrativeauthority or acourt, if presented with thetransactions,
could disagree with the Corporation’s interpretation of the tax law.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of net unrecognized tax benefits follows:

(in millions) 2017 2016 2015

Balance at January 1 $ 15 $ 2 $ 14
Increase as aresult of tax positions taken during a prior period 4 — 8
Decrease related to settlements with tax authorities 8) @) —
Other (1) — —

Balance at December 31 $ 10 $ 15 $ 22

The Corporation anticipates that it is reasonably possible that settlements with tax authorities will result in a$1 million
decrease in net unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months.

After consideration of the effect of the federal tax benefit available on unrecognized state tax benefits, the total amount
of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the Corporation’s effective tax rate was approximately $8 million
and $4 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The following tax years for significant jurisdictions remain subject to examination as of December 31, 2017:

Jurisdiction Tax Years
Federal 2014-2016
Cdifornia 2005-2016

Based on current knowledge and probability assessment of various potential outcomes, the Corporation believes that
current tax reserves are adequate, and the amount of any potential incremental liability arising is not expected to have a material
adverseeffect onthe Corporation’sconsolidated financial condition or resultsof operations. Probabilitiesand outcomesarereviewed
as events unfold, and adjustments to the reserves are made when necessary.

The principal components of deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

(in millions)
December 31 2017 2016
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $ 150 $ 256
Deferred compensation 49 91
Deferred loan origination fees and costs 6 20
Net unrealized losses on investment securities available-for-sale 31 20
Other temporary differences, net 57 76
Total deferred tax asset before valuation allowance 293 463
Valuation alowance (3) (3)
Total deferred tax assets 290 460
Deferred tax liabilities:
L ease financing transactions (76) (150)
Defined benefit plans (72) (82)
Allowance for depreciation (1) (11
Tota deferred tax liabilities (149) (243)
Net deferred tax asset $ 141 $ 217

Deferred tax assets included state net operating loss carryforwards of $4 million at both December 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016. The carryforwards expire between 2018 and 2027. The Corporation believesit is more likely than not that
the benefit from certain of these state net operating loss carryforwardswill not be realized and, accordingly, maintained avaluation
allowance of $3 million at both December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. For further information on the Corporation’sval uation
policy for deferred tax assets, refer to Note 1.
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NOTE 19 - TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Corporation’s banking subsidiarieshad, and expect to havein thefuture, transactionswith the Corporation’sdirectors
and executive officers, companies with which these individuals are associated, and certain related individuals. Such transactions
were madein the ordinary course of business and included extensions of credit, leases and professional services. With respect to
extensions of credit, all were made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at
the same time for comparabl e transactions with other customers and did not, in management’s opinion, involve more than normal
risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features. The aggregate amount of loans attributable to persons who were related
parties at December 31, 2017, totaled $108 million at the beginning of 2017 and $66 million at the end of 2017. During 2017, new
loans to related parties aggregated $637 million and repayments totaled $679 million.

NOTE 20 - REGULATORY CAPITAL AND RESERVE REQUIREMENTS

Reserves required to be maintained and/or deposited with the FRB are classified in interest-bearing deposits with banks.
These reserve balances vary, depending on the level of customer deposits in the Corporation’s banking subsidiaries. The average
required reserve balances were $572 million and $518 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Banking regulations limit the transfer of assetsin the form of dividends, loans or advances from the bank subsidiariesto
the parent company. Under the most restrictive of these regulations, the aggregate amount of dividends which can be paid to the
parent company, with prior approval from bank regulatory agencies, approximated $7 million at January 1, 2018, plus 2018 net
profits. Substantially all the assets of the Corporation’s banking subsidiaries are restricted from transfer to the parent company of
the Corporation in the form of loans or advances.

The Corporation’s subsidiary banks declared dividends of $907 million, $545 million and $437 million in 2017, 2016
and 2015, respectively.

The Corporation and its U.S. banking subsidiaries are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by
federal and state banking agencies. The U.S. adoption of the Basel |11 regulatory capital framework (Basel I11) became effective
for the Corporation on January 1, 2015. Basel 111 setsforth two comprehensive methodol ogiesfor cal culating risk-wei ghted assets
(RWA), a standardized approach and an advanced approach. The Corporation and its U.S. banking subsidiaries are subject to the
standardized approach under the rules. Under the standardized approach, RWA is generally based on supervisory risk-weightings
which vary by counterparty type and asset class. Under the Basel 111 standardized approach, capital isrequired for credit risk RWA,
to cover the risk of unexpected losses due to failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its financial obligations in accordance
with contractual terms; and if trading assets and liabilities exceed certain thresholds, capital isalso required for market risk RWA,
to cover the risk of losses due to adverse market movements or from position-specific factors.

Under Basel 111, there are three categories of risk-based capital: CET1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital. CET1
capital predominantly includes common shareholders' equity, less certain deductions for goodwill, intangible assets and deferred
tax assetsthat arisefrom net operating lossesand tax credit carry-forwards. Additional ly, the Corporation has el ected to permanently
exclude capital in accumulated other comprehensive income related to debt and equity securities classified as available-for-sale
aswell asfor defined benefit postretirement plans from CET1, an option available to standardized approach entities under Basel
[11. Tier 1 capital incrementally includes noncumulative perpetual preferred stock. Tier 2 capital includes Tier 1 capital aswell as
subordinated debt qualifying as Tier 2 and qualifying allowance for credit losses. Total capital isTier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capital.
In addition to theminimum risk-based capital requirements, the Corporationisrequired to maintain aminimum capital conservation
buffer, in theform of common equity, in order to avoid restrictions on capital distributionsand discretionary bonuses. The required
amount of the capital conservation buffer is being phased in and ultimately increasing to 2.5% on January 1, 2019.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the maintenance of minimum amounts
and ratios of CET1, Tier 1 and total capital (as defined in the regulations) to average and/or risk-weighted assets. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Corporation’s financial statements. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Corporation and its U.S. banking subsidiaries exceeded the ratios required for an institution to be considered “well capitalized”
For U.S. banking subsidiaries, those requirements were total risk-based capital, Tier 1 risk-based capital, CET1 risk-based capital
and leverage ratios greater than 10 percent, 8 percent, 6.5 percent and 5 percent, respectively, at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
For the Corporation, requirements to be considered "well capitalized" were total risk-based capital and Tier 1 risk-based capital
ratios greater than 10 percent and 6 percent, respectively, at December 31, 2017 and 2016. There have been no conditions or events
since December 31, 2017 that management believes have changed the capital adequacy classification of the Corporation or its
U.S. banking subsidiaries.
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Thefollowing is asummary of the capital position of the Corporation and Comerica Bank, its principal banking subsidiary.

Comerica
Incorporated Comerica
(dollar amounts in millions) (Consolidated) Bank
December 31, 2017
CET1 capital (minimum $3.0 hillion (Consolidated)) $ 7,773 $ 7,121
Tier 1 capital (minimum-$4.0 billion (Consolidated)) 7,773 7,121
Total capital (minimum-$5.3 billion (Consolidated)) 9,211 8,378
Risk-weighted assets 66,575 66,447
Average assets (fourth quarter) 71,372 71,181
CET1 capital to risk-weighted assets (minimum-4.5%) 11.68% 10.72%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets (minimum-6.0%) 11.68 10.72
Total capital to risk-weighted assets (minimum-8.0%) 13.84 12.61
Tier 1 capital to average assets (minimum-4.0%) 10.89 10.00
Capital conservation buffer 5.68 4.61
December 31, 2016
CET1 capital (minimum $3.1 billion (Consolidated)) $ 7540 % 7,120
Tier 1 capital (minimum-$4.1 billion (Consolidated)) 7,540 7,120
Total capital (minimum-$5.4 billion (Consolidated)) 9,018 8,397
Risk-weighted assets 67,966 67,739
Average assets (fourth quarter) 74,086 73,804
CET1 capital to risk-weighted assets (minimum-4.5%) 11.09% 10.51%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets (minimum-6.0%) 11.09 10.51
Tota capital to risk-weighted assets (minimum-8.0%) 13.27 12.40
Tier 1 capital to average assets (minimum-4.0%) 10.18 9.65
Capital conservation buffer 5.09 4.40

NOTE 21 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Legal Proceedings

ComericaBank, awholly owned subsidiary of the Corporation, was named in November 2011 as athird-party defendant
in Butte Local Development v. Masters Group v. Comerica Bank (“the case”), for lender liability. The case was tried in January
2014, inthe Montana Second District Judicial Court for Silver Bow County in Butte, Montana. On January 17, 2014, ajury awarded
Masters $52 million against the Bank. On July 1, 2015, after an apped filed by the Corporation, the Montana Supreme Court
reversed the judgment against the Corporation and remanded the case for anew trial with instructions that Michigan contract law
should apply and dismissing all other claims. The case wasretried in the same district court, without ajury, in January 2017, and
the Corporation awaits a ruling. Management believes that current reserves related to this case are adequate in the event of a
negative outcome.

The Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries are subject to various other pending or threatened legal proceedingsarising
out of the normal course of business or operations. The Corporation believes it has meritorious defenses to the claims asserted
against it in its other currently outstanding legal proceedings and, with respect to such legal proceedings, intends to continue to
defend itself vigorously, litigating or settling cases according to management’s judgment as to what isin the best interests of the
Corporation and itssharehol ders. Settlement may result from the Corporation'sdetermination that it may be moreprudent financially
to settle, rather than litigate, and should not be regarded as an admission of liability. On at |east a quarterly basis, the Corporation
assessesits potential liabilities and contingenciesin connection with outstanding legal proceedings utilizing the latest information
available. On acase-by-casebasis, reserves are established for thoselegal claimsfor whichit isprobablethat alosswill beincurred
either asaresult of asettlement or judgment, and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. The actual costs of resolving
these claims may be substantially higher or lower than the amounts reserved. Based on current knowledge, and after consultation
with legal counsel, management believes that current reserves are adequate, and the amount of any incremental liability arising
from these matters is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s consolidated financial condition,
consolidated results of operations or consolidated cash flows. Legal fees of $15 million, $19 million and $21 million for the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, were included in "other noninterest expenses' on the consolidated
statements of income.

For matterswhere alossis not probable, the Corporation has not established legal reserves. The Corporation believesthe
estimate of the aggregate range of reasonably possible [osses, in excess of reserves established, for all legal proceedingsin which
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it isinvolved is from zero to approximately $29 million at December 31, 2017. This estimated aggregate range of reasonably
possible losses is based upon currently available information for those proceedings in which the Corporation is involved, taking
into account the Corporation’s best estimate of such losses for those cases for which such estimate can be made. For certain cases,
the Corporation does not believe that an estimate can currently be made. The Corporation’sestimateinvolves significant judgment,
given the varying stages of the proceedings (including the fact that many are currently in preliminary stages), the existence in
certain proceedings of multiple defendants (including the Corporation) whose share of liability has yet to be determined, the
numerous yet-unresolved issues in many of the proceedings (including issues regarding class certification and the scope of many
of the claims) and the attendant uncertainty of the various potential outcomes of such proceedings. Accordingly, the Corporation’s
estimate will change from time to time, and actual |osses may be more or less than the current estimate.

In the event of unexpected future developments, it is possible that the ultimate resol ution of these matters, if unfavorable,
may be material to the Corporation's consolidated financial condition, consolidated results of operations or consolidated cash
flows.

For information regarding income tax contingencies, refer to Note 18.
NOTE 22 - RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

The Corporation launched an initiative in the second quarter 2016 designed to reduce overhead and increase revenue (the
"GEAR Up" initiative). The actions in the initiative include, but are not limited to, a reduction in workforce, a new retirement
program, streamlining operational processes, real estate optimizationincluding consolidating 38 banking centersaswell asreducing

office and operations space, selective outsourcing of technology functions, reduction of technology system applications, enhanced
sales tools and training, expanded product offerings and improved customer analytics to drive opportunities.

Certain actions associated with the GEAR Up initiative result in restructuring charges. Generally, costs associated with
or incurred to generate revenue as part of the initiative are recorded according to the nature of the cost and are not included in
restructuring charges. The Corporation considers the following costs associated with the initiative to be restructuring charges:

e Employee costs: Primarily severance costs in accordance with the Corporation’s severance plan.

» Facilities costs: Costs pertaining to consolidating banking centers and other facilities, such as lease termination costs
and decommissioning costs. Also includes accel erated depreciation and impairment of owned property to be sold.

«  Technology costs: Impairment and other costs associated with optimizing technology infrastructure and reducing the
number of applications.

e Other costs: Includes primarily professional fees, as well as other contract termination fees and legal fees incurred in
the execution of the initiative.
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Restructuring charges are recorded as a component of noninterest expenses on the consolidated statements of income.
Thefollowing table presents changesin restructuring reserves, cumul ative chargesincurred to date and total expected restructuring
charges:

Employee Facilities Technology
(in millions) Costs Costs Costs Other Costs Total
Year Ended December 31, 2017
Balance at beginning of period $ 10 3 4 % — % 4 % 18
Restructuring charges 10 2 26 7 45
Payments (12) (6) (15) (10) (43)
Adjustments for non-cash charges (a) — — (5) — (5)
Balance at end of period $ 8 $ —  $ 6 $ 1 3 15
Year Ended December 31, 2016
Balance at beginning of period $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Restructuring charges 52 15 — 26 93
Payments (44) (6) — (22) (72)
Adjustments for non-cash charges (a) 2 (5) — — 3
Balance at end of period $ 10 $ 4 % —  $ 4 % 18
Total restructuring charges incurred to date $ 62 $ 17  $ 26 $ 33 3% 138
Total expected restructuring charges (b) 70 20-25 60 - 65 35 185 - 195

(a) Adjustments for non-cash charges primarily include the benefit from forfeitures of nonvested stock compensation in Employee Costs,
accelerated depreciation expense in Facilities Costs and impairments of previously capitalized software costs in Technology Costs.
(b) Restructuring activities are expected to be substantially completed by 12/31/2018.

Restructuring charges directly attributable to a business segment are assigned to that business segment. Restructuring
charges incurred by areas whose services support the overall Corporation are allocated based on the methodology described in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements. Total restructuring charges assigned to the Business Bank, Retail Bank and Wealth
Management were $24 million, $15 million and $6 million, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2017 and $43 million,
$38 million and $12 million, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2016. Remaining expected restructuring charges will
be assigned to the business segments using the same methodology. Facilities costs pertaining to the consolidation of banking
centers are expected to impact primarily the Retail Bank.

NOTE 23 - BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Corporation has strategically aligned its operationsinto three major business segments:. the Business Bank, the Retail
Bank and Wealth Management. These business segments are differentiated based on the type of customer and the related products
and services provided. In addition to thethree major business segments, the Finance Divisionisalso reported asasegment. Business
segment results are produced by the Corporation’sinternal management accounting system. This system measuresfinancial results
based on theinternal business unit structure of the Corporation. The performance of the business segmentsis not comparable with
the Corporation's consolidated resultsand isnot necessarily comparablewith similar information for any other financial institution.
Additionally, because of the interrelationships of the various segments, the information presented is not indicative of how the
segments would perform if they operated as independent entities. The management accounting system assigns balance sheet and
income statement items to each business segment using certain methodologies, which are regularly reviewed and refined. From
time to time, the Corporation may make reclassifications among the segments to more appropriately reflect management's current
view of the segments, and methodologies may be modified as the management accounting system is enhanced and changes occur
in the organizational structure and/or product lines. For comparability purposes, amountsin all periods are based on business unit
structure and methodologies in effect at December 31, 2017.

Net interest income for each business segment is the total of interest income generated by earning assets less interest
expense on interest-bearing liabilities plusthe net impact from associated internal fundstransfer pricing (FTP) funding credits and
charges. The FTP methodology provides the business segments credits for deposits and other funds provided and charges the
business segmentsfor loans and other assets utilizing funds. Thiscredit or charge is based on matching stated or implied maturities
for these assets and liabilities. The FTP credit provided for deposits reflects the long-term value of deposits generated based on
their implied maturity. The FTP charge for funding assets reflects a matched cost of funds based on the pricing and term
characteristics of the assets. For acquired loans and deposits, matched maturity funding is determined based on origination
date. Accordingly, the FTP processreflects the transfer of interest rate risk exposures to the Corporate Treasury department within
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the Finance segment, where such exposures are centrally managed. Effective January 1, 2016, in conjunction with the effective
date for regulatory Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) requirements, the Corporation prospectively implemented an additional FTP
charge, primarily for the cost of maintaining liquid assets to support potential draws on unfunded loan commitments and for the
long-term economic cost of holding collateral for secured deposits. The allowance for loan losses is allocated to the business
segments based on the methodol ogy used to estimate the consolidated allowance for loan |osses described in Note 1. The related
provision for loan losses is assigned based on the amount necessary to maintain an allowance for loan |osses appropriate for each
business segment. Noninterest income and expensesdirectly attributableto aline of business are assigned to that business segment.
Direct expensesincurred by areaswhose services support the overall Corporation are allocated to the business segmentsasfollows:
product processing expenditures are all ocated based on standard unit costs applied to actual volume measurements; administrative
expenses are allocated based on estimated time expended; and corporate overhead is assigned 50 percent based on theratio of the
business segment’s noninterest expenses to total noninterest expenses incurred by all business segments and 50 percent based on
the ratio of the business segment’s attributed equity to total attributed equity of all business segments. Equity is attributed based
on credit, operational and interest rate risks. Most of the equity attributed relates to credit risk, which is determined based on the
credit score and expected remaining life of each loan, letter of credit and unused commitment recorded in the business segments.
Operational risk isall ocated based onloansand | ettersof credit, deposit bal ances, non-earning assets, trust assetsunder management,
certain noninterest income items, and the nature and extent of expenses incurred by business units. Virtually al interest rate risk
isassigned to Finance, as are the Corporation’s hedging activities.

Thefollowing discussion providesinformation about the activities of each business segment. A discussion of thefinancial
results and the factors impacting 2017 performance can be found in the section entitled "Business Segments' in the financial
review.

The Business Bank meets the needs of middle market businesses, multinational corporations and governmental entities
by offering various products and services, including commercial loans and lines of credit, deposits, cash management, capital
market products, international tradefinance, |ettersof credit, foreign exchange management servicesand loan syndication services.

The Retail Bank includes small business banking and personal financial services, consisting of consumer lending,
consumer deposit gathering and mortgage loan origination. In addition to a full range of financial services provided to small
business customers, this business segment offers a variety of consumer products, including deposit accounts, installment loans,
credit cards, student loans, home equity lines of credit and residential mortgage loans.

Wealth Management offers products and services consisting of fiduciary services, private banking, retirement services,
investment management and advisory services, investment banking and brokerage services. This business segment also offersthe
sale of annuity products, aswell aslife, disability and long-term care insurance products.

The Finance segment includes the Corporation’s securities portfolio and asset and liability management activities. This
segment isresponsiblefor managing the Corporation’sfunding, liquidity and capital needs, performing interest sensitivity analysis
and executing various strategies to manage the Corporation’s exposure to liquidity, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.

The Other category includes the income and expense impact of equity and cash, tax benefits not assigned to specific
business segments, charges of an unusual or infrequent nature that are not reflective of the normal operations of the business
segments and miscellaneous other expenses of a corporate nature.
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(dollar amounts in millions) Business Retail Wealth

Year Ended December 31, 2017 Bank Bank Management  Finance Other Total
Earnings summary:

Net interest income (expense) $ 1372 $ 658 $ 170 ¢ (175) $ 36 $ 2,061
Provision for credit losses 58 13 1 — 2 74
Noninterest income 601 193 255 48 10 1,107
Noninterest expenses 802 731 285 4) 46 1,860
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 389 39 51 (58) 70 (a) 491
Net income (loss) $ 724 $ 68 % 88 $ (65) $ (72) $ 743
Net credit-related charge-offs (recoveries) $ 8 $ 15 3% G $ — % — $ 92
Selected average balances:

Assets $38,801 $6478 $ 5401 $ 13954 $ 6,818 $71,452
Loans 37,445 5,857 5,256 — — 48,558
Deposits 28,803 23,971 4,081 241 162 57,258
Stetistical data:

Return on average assets (b) 1.87% 0.28% 1.63% N/M N/M 1.04%
Efficiency ratio (c) 40.61 85.54 66.84 N/M N/M 58.57
(dollar amounts in millions) Business Retail Wealth

Year Ended December 31, 2016 Bank Bank Management  Finance Other Total
Earnings summary:

Net interest income (expense) $ 1417 $ 618 $ 167 $ (428) $ 23 $ 1,797
Provision for credit |osses 217 35 4 — — 248
Noninterest income 572 189 243 43 4 1,051
Noninterest expenses 839 767 301 4 27 1,930
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 295 1 39 (142 — 193
Net income (loss) $ 638 3% 4 3 74 $ (239 $ — $ 477
Net credit-related charge-offs $ 145 $ 12 % —  $ — $ — $ 157
Selected average balances:

Assets $39497 $6551 $ 5232 $ 13993 $ 6,470 $71,743
Loans 38,067 5,881 5,048 — — 48,996
Deposits 29,704 23,558 4,126 88 265 57,741
Stetistical data:

Return on average assets (b) 1.61% 0.02% 1.42% N/M N/M 0.67%
Efficiency ratio (c) 42.11 94.35 73.48 N/M N/M 67.53

(Table continues on following page)
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(dollar amounts in millions) Business Retail Wealth

Year Ended December 31, 2015 Bank Bank Management Finance Other Total
Earnings summary:

Net interest income (expense) $ 1497 $ 623 % 177 $ (623) $ 15 $ 1,689
Provision for credit losses 158 8 (20) — 1 147
Noninterest income 571 185 235 44 — 1,035
Noninterest expenses 778 734 305 4 14 1,827
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 371 21 43 (206) — 229
Net income (l0ss) $ 761 $ 45 % 84 $ (369 $ — $ 521
Net credit-related charge-offs (recoveries) $ 89 3 29 3 1an s — $ — $ 101
Selected average balances:

Assets $39501 $ 6474 $ 5153 $ 11,764 $ 7,355 $ 70,247
Loans 37,889 5,792 4,953 — (6) 48,628
Deposits 30,894 22,876 4,151 138 267 58,326
Statistical data:

Return on average assets (b) 1.93% 0.19% 1.62% N/M N/M 0.74%
Efficiency ratio (C) 37.59 90.64 73.68 N/M N/M 66.93

(@) Included a $107 million charge to adjust deferred taxes as a result of the enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and a $35 million tax
benefit from employee stock transactions.

(b) Return on average assets is calculated based on the greater of average assets or average liabilities and attributed equity.

(c) Noninterest expenses as a percentage of the sum of net interest income (fully taxable equivalent basis) and noninterest income excluding
net securities gains.

N/M — not meaningful

The Corporation operates in three primary markets - Texas, California, and Michigan, aswell asin Arizonaand Florida,
with select businesses operating in several other states, and in Canada and Mexico. The Corporation produces market segment
resultsfor the Corporation’sthree primary geographic markets aswell as Other Markets. Other Marketsincludes Florida, Arizona,
the International Finance division and businesses with anational perspective. The Finance & Other category includes the Finance
segment and the Other category as previously described. Market segment results are provided as supplemental information to the
busi ness segment resultsand may not meet all operating segment criteriaasset forthin GAARP. For comparability purposes, amounts
in all periods are based on market segments and methodologiesin effect at December 31, 2017.

A discussion of the financial results and the factors impacting performance can be found in the section entitled "Market
Segments” in the financia review.

Market segment financia results are as follows:

(dollar amounts in millions) Other Finance

Year Ended December 31, 2017 Michigan  California Texas Markets & Other Total
Earnings summary:

Net interest income (expense) $ 68 $ 719 $ 465 $ 331 $ (139 $ 2,061
Provision for credit |osses 8 100 (72) 36 2 74
Noninterest income 324 171 131 423 58 1,107
Noninterest expenses 590 404 375 449 42 1,860
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 147 148 109 75 12 (a) 491
Net income (l0ss) $ 264 $ 238 $ 184 $ 194 $ (137 $ 743
Net credit-related (recoveries) charge-offs $ 1 $ 33 $ 46 $ 14 3% — $ 92
Selected average balances:

Assets $13,395 $18,269 $10,443 $ 8573 $ 20,772 $71,452
Loans 12,677 18,008 9,969 7,904 — 48,558
Deposits 21,823 17,533 9,625 7,874 403 57,258
Statistical data:

Return on average assets (b) 1.17% 1.29% 1.69% 2.25% N/M 1.04%
Efficiency ratio (c) 58.30 45.26 62.80 59.57 N/M 58.57

(Table continues on following page)

F-99



Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

(dollar amounts in millions) Other

Finan
Year Ended December 31, 2016 Michigan California Texas Markets & dath((:eer Total
Earnings summary:
Net interest income (expense) $ 666 $ 716 $ 470 $ 350 $ (405) $ 1,797
Provision for credit losses 9 21 225 @) — 248
Noninterest income 320 162 129 393 47 1,051
Noninterest expenses 620 434 408 445 23 1,930
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 114 152 (12) 81 (142) 193
Net income (l0ss) $ 243 $ 271 $ (220 $ 224 S (239) $ 477
Net credit-related charge-offs $ 9 $ 26 $ 118 $ 4 $ — $ 157
Selected average balances:
Assets $ 13105 $ 18,012 $11,101 $ 9,062 $ 20463 $ 71,743
Loans 12,457 17,731 10,637 8,171 — 48,996
Deposits 21,777 17,438 10,168 8,005 353 57,741
Statistical data:
Return on average assets (b) 1.08% 1.46% (0.18)% 2.47% N/M 0.67%
Efficiency ratio (c) 62.33 49.55 67.94 59.86 N/M 67.53
(dollar amounts in millions) Other Finance
Year Ended December 31, 2015 Michigan California Texas Markets & Other Total
Earnings summary:
Net interest income (expense) $ 708 $ 73 $ 518 $ 3336 $ (608) $ 1,689
Provision for credit losses (27) 17 131 25 1 147
Noninterest income 329 150 131 381 44 1,035
Noninterest expenses 594 405 387 431 10 1,827
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 151 166 54 64 (206) 229
Net income (l0ss) $ 319 $ 297 % 7 $ 197 $ (369) $ 521
Net credit-related charge-offs $ 8 $ 18 $ 6 $ 29 % — $ 101
Selected average balances:
Assets $ 13598 $ 17,044 $ 11,778 $ 8708 $ 19119 $ 70,247
Loans 13,016 16,778 11,168 7,673 (7) 48,628
Deposits 21,848 17,788 10,882 7,403 405 58,326
Statistical data:
Return on average assets (b) 1.40% 1.57% 0.62% 2.26% N/M 0.74%
Efficiency ratio (c) 56.93 45.88 59.63 59.92 N/M 66.93

(@) Included a $107 million charge to adjust deferred taxes as a result of the enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and a $35 million tax
benefit from employee stock transactions.

(b) Return on average assets is calculated based on the greater of average assets or average liabilities and attributed equity.

(c) Noninterest expenses as a percentage of the sum of net interest income (fully taxable equivalent basis) and noninterest income excluding
net securities gains.

N/M — not meaningful
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

NOTE 24 - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BALANCE SHEETS - COMERICA INCORPORATED

(in millions, except share data)

December 31 2017 2016
Assets
Cash and due from subsidiary bank $ 1,059 $ 761
Other short-term investments 92 87
Investment in subsidiaries, principally banks 7,467 7,561
Premises and equipment 2 2
Other assets 127 150
Total assets $ 8747 $ 8,561
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Medium- and long-term debt $ 602 $ 604
Other liagbilities 182 161
Tota liabilities 784 765
Common stock - $5 par value:
Authorized - 325,000,000 shares
Issued - 228,164,824 shares 1,141 1,141
Capital surplus 2,122 2,135
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (451) (383)
Retained earnings 7,887 7,331
Less cost of common stock in treasury - 55,306,483 shares at 12/31/17 and 52,851,156
shares at 12/31/16 (2,736) (2,428)
Total shareholders’ equity 7,963 7,796
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 8747 $ 8,561
STATEMENTS OF INCOME - COMERICA INCORPORATED
(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Income
Income from subsidiaries:
Dividends from subsidiaries $ 915 $ 549 $ 441
Other interest income 3 1 1
Intercompany management fees 136 138 123
Other noninterest income 8 3 1
Tota income 1,062 691 566
Expenses
Interest on medium- and long-term debt 13 10 14
Salaries and benefits expense 127 114 112
Net occupancy expense 5 5 5
Equipment expense 1 1 1
Restructuring charges 6 33 —
Other noninterest expenses 80 72 70
Total expenses 232 235 202
Income before benefit for income taxes and equity in undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries 830 456 364
Benefit for income taxes (26) (28) (27)
Income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 856 484 391
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries, principally banks (113) (7) 130
Net income 743 a77 521
L essincome allocated to participating securities 5 4 6
Net income attributable to common shares $ 738 3 473 $ 515
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - COMERICA INCORPORATED

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015
Operating Activities
Net income $ 743 $ 477 % 521
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries, principally banks 113 7 (130)
Depreciation and amortization 1 1 1
Net periodic defined benefit (credit) cost 2 1 5
Share-based compensation expense 16 14 14
Benefit for deferred income taxes (10) 3 —
Other, net 59 6 5
Net cash provided by operating activities 920 503 416
Investing Activities
Net change in premises and equipment — — (D
Net cash used in investing activities — — @
Financing Activities
Medium- and long-term debt:
Maturities and redemptions — — (600)
Common Stock:
Repurchases (552) (315) (240)
Cash dividends paid (180) (152) (147)
Issuances of common stock under employee stock plans 110 152 22
Purchase and retirement of warrants — — (10)
Net cash used in financing activities (622) (315) (975)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 298 188 (560)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 761 573 1,133
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 1,059 $ 761 $ 573
Interest paid $ 12 $ 9 $ 16
I ncome taxes recovered $ (331) $ (139) $ (62)

NOTE 25 - SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

The following quarterly information is unaudited. However, in the opinion of management, the information reflects all
adjustments, which are necessary for the fair presentation of the results of operations, for the periods presented.

2017
Fourth Third Second First

(in millions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest income $ 578 $ 579 $ 529 $ 496
Interest expense 33 33 29 26
Net interest income 545 546 500 470
Provision for credit losses 17 24 17 16
Net securities |osses — 1) (2) —
Noninterest income excluding net securities losses 285 276 278 271
Noninterest expenses 483 463 457 457
Provision for income taxes 218 108 99 66
Net income 112 226 203 202
L essincome allocated to participating securities — 2 1 2
Net income attributable to common shares $ 112 $ 224 % 202 $ 200
Earnings per common share:

Basic $ 065 $ 129 $ 115 $ 1.15

Diluted 0.63 1.26 1.13 1.11
Comprehensive income 107 228 221 206
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2016
Fourth Second

(in millions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest income $ 484 $ 480 $ 473 $ 472
Interest expense 29 30 28 25
Net interest income 455 450 445 447
Provision for credit losses 35 16 49 148
Net securities losses 2 — (@D} 2
Noninterest income excluding net securities |osses 269 272 269 246
Noninterest expenses 461 493 518 458
Provision for income taxes 62 64 42 25
Net income 164 149 104 60
L essincome allocated to participating securities 1 1 1 1
Net income attributable to common shares $ 163 $ 148 % 103 $ 59
Earnings per common share:

Basic $ 095 $ 087 $ 060 $ 0.34

Diluted 0.92 0.84 0.58 0.34
Comprehensive income 73 152 137 161
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Themanagement of Comericalncorporated (the Corporation) isresponsiblefor the accompanying consolidated financial
statements and all other financial information in thisAnnual Report. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and include amountswhich of necessity are based on management’s
best estimates and judgments and give due consideration to materiality. The other financial information herein is consistent with
that in the consolidated financial statements.

In meeting its responsibility for the reliability of the consolidated financial statements, management develops and
maintains effective internal controls, including those over financial reporting, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. The Corporation’sinternal control over financial reporting includes policies and proceduresthat (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the Corporation; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the
consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Corporation are made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Corporation;
and (3) provide reasonabl e assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
the Corporation’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Management assessed, with participation of the Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia Officer,
internal control over financial reporting asit relatesto the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements presented in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as of December 31, 2017. The assessment was based on criteriafor effective
interna control over financial reporting described in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). Based on this assessment,
management determined that internal control over financial reporting is effective as it relates to the Corporation’s consolidated
financial statements presented in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as of December 31, 2017.

Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changesin conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Corporation'sinternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017 has been audited by Ernst & Young
LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their accompanying report.

The Corporation’s Board of Directors oversees management’s internal control over financial reporting and financial
reporting responsibilities through its Audit Committee aswell as various other committees. The Audit Committee, which consists
of directors who are not officers or employees of the Corporation, meets regularly with management, internal audit and the
independent public accountants to assure that the Audit Committee, management, internal auditors and the independent public
accountants are carrying out their responsibilities, and to review auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters.

Ralph W. Babb Jr. Muneera S. Carr Mauricio A. Ortiz
Chairman and Executive Vice President and Senior Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Chief Accounting Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Comerica Incorporated

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited Comericalncorporated and subsidiaries' internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based
on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteriad). In our opinion, Comerica Incorporated and subsidiaries (the
Company) maintained, in all material respects, effectiveinternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based
on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three yearsin the
period ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes of the Company and our report dated February 14, 2018 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

TheCompany’smanagement isresponsiblefor maintaining effectiveinternal control over financial reporting, and for itsassessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Report of Management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a
public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance
with the U.S. federal securitieslaws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether effectiveinternal control over financial reportingwasmaintainedin all material
respects.

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessingtherisk that amaterial weakness
exists, testing and eval uating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides areasonable basis for
our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’sinternal control over financial reportingisaprocess designed to provide reasonabl e assuranceregarding thereliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financia statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’sinternal control over financial reporting includesthose policiesand proceduresthat (1) pertain
to the maintenance of recordsthat, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that
could have amaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessto future periods are subject to therisk that controls may becomeinadequate because
of changesin conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s Ernst & Young LLP

Dallas, TX
February 14, 2018
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Comerica Incorporated

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Comerica Incorporated and subsidiaries (the Company) as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the rel ated consolidated statements of income, comprehensiveincome, changesin shareholders
equity and cash flowsfor each of thethreeyearsin the period ended December 31, 2017, and therelated notes (collectively referred
to as the “financial statements’). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Company at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three yearsin the period ended December 31, 2017, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financia reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013
framework) and our report dated February 14, 2018 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
reguired to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether thefinancial statements are free of material misstatement, whether dueto error
or fraud. Our auditsincluded performing proceduresto assesstherisksof material misstatement of thefinancial statements, whether
dueto error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s Ernst & Young LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1992.

Dallas, TX
February 14, 2018
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HISTORICAL REVIEW - AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS

Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 1209 $ 1146 $ 1,059 934 $ 987
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 5,443 5,099 6,158 5,513 4,930
Other short-term investments 92 102 106 109 112
Investment securities 12,207 12,348 10,237 9,350 9,637
Commercial loans 30,415 31,062 31,501 29,715 27,971
Real estate construction loans 2,958 2,508 1,884 1,909 1,486
Commercial mortgage loans 9,005 8,981 8,697 8,706 9,060
L ease financing 509 684 783 834 847
International loans 1,157 1,367 1,441 1,376 1,275
Residential mortgage loans 1,989 1,894 1,878 1,778 1,620
Consumer loans 2,525 2,500 2,444 2,270 2,153
Total loans 48,558 48,996 48,628 46,588 44,412
L ess allowance for loan losses (728) (730) (621) (601) (622)
Net loans 47,830 48,266 48,007 45,987 43,790
Accrued income and other assets 4,671 4,782 4,680 4,443 4,477
Total assets $ 71452 $ 71743 $ 70,247 66,336 $ 63,933
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Noninterest-bearing deposits $ 31,013 $ 29,751 $ 28,087 25019 $ 22,379
Money market and interest-bearing checking deposits 21,585 22,744 24,073 22,891 21,704
Savings deposits 2,133 2,013 1,841 1,744 1,657
Customer certificates of deposit 2,471 3,200 4,209 4,869 5471
Foreign office time deposits 56 33 116 261 500
Total interest-bearing deposits 26,245 27,990 30,239 29,765 29,332
Total deposits 57,258 57,741 58,326 54,784 51,711
Short-term borrowings 277 138 93 200 211
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 996 1,273 1,389 1,016 1,074
Medium- and long-term debt 4,969 4,917 2,905 2,963 3,972
Tota liabilities 63,500 64,069 62,713 58,963 56,968
Total shareholders' equity 7,952 7,674 7,534 7,373 6,965
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 71452 $ 71743 $ 70,247 $ 66,336 $ 63,933
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HISTORICAL REVIEW - STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(in millions, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans $ 1872 $ 1,635 1551 $ 1,525 1,556
Interest on investment securities 250 247 216 211 214
Interest on short-term investments 60 27 17 14 14
Total interest income 2,182 1,909 1,784 1,750 1,784
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits 42 40 43 45 55
Interest on short-term borrowings 8 — — — —
Interest on medium- and long-term debt 76 72 52 50 57
Total interest expense 121 112 95 95 112
Net interest income 2,061 1,797 1,689 1,655 1,672
Provision for credit |osses 74 248 147 27 46
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 1,987 1,549 1,542 1,628 1,626
NONINTEREST INCOME
Card fees 333 303 276 81 78
Service charges on deposit accounts 227 219 223 215 214
Fiduciary income 198 190 187 180 171
Commercial lending fees 85 89 99 98 99
Letter of credit fees 45 50 53 57 64
Bank-owned life insurance 43 42 40 39 40
Foreign exchange income 45 42 40 40 36
Brokerage fees 23 19 17 17 17
Net securities |osses ?3) (5) 2 — (@)
Other noninterest income 111 102 102 130 156
Total noninterest income 1,107 1,051 1,035 857 874
NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits expense 912 961 1,009 980 1,009
Outside processing fee expense 366 336 318 111 111
Net occupancy expense 154 157 159 171 160
Equipment expense 45 53 53 57 60
Restructuring charges 45 93 — — —
Software expense 126 119 99 95 90
FDIC insurance expense 51 54 37 33 33
Advertising expense 28 21 24 23 21
Litigation-related expenses ) 1 (32 4 52
Gain on debt redemption — — — (32 @
Other noninterest expenses 135 135 160 173 179
Total noninterest expenses 1,860 1,930 1,827 1,615 1,714
Income before income taxes 1,234 670 750 870 786
Provision for income taxes 491 193 229 277 245
NET INCOME $ 743 % 477 521 $ 593 541
Lessincome allocated to participating securities 5 4 6 7 8
Net income attributable to common shares $ 738 $ 473 515 $ 586 533
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 423 % 2.74 293 $ 3.28 2.92
Diluted 4.14 2.68 2.84 3.16 2.85
Comprehensive income 762 523 504 572 563
Cash dividends declared on common stock 193 154 148 143 126
Cash dividends declared per common share 1.09 0.89 0.83 0.79 0.68
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HISTORICAL REVIEW - STATISTICAL DATA
Comerica Incorporated and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Years Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Average Rates (Fully Taxable Equivalent Basis)
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 1.09% 0.51% 0.26% 0.26% 0.26%
Other short-term investments 0.64 0.61 0.81 0.57 1.22
Investment securities 2.05 2.02 213 2.26 2.25
Commercial loans 3.83 3.26 3.07 312 3.28
Real estate construction loans 4.18 3.63 3.48 341 3.85
Commercial mortgage loans 3.97 3.49 341 3.75 411
Lease financing 2.64 2.65 3.17 2.33 3.23
International loans 4.07 3.63 3.58 3.65 3.74
Residential mortgage loans 3.70 3.76 3.77 3.82 4.09
Consumer loans 3.70 3.32 3.26 3.20 3.30
Total loans 3.86 3.34 3.20 3.28 3.51
Interest income as a percentage of earning assets 3.30 2.88 2.75 2.85 3.03
Domestic deposits 0.16 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.18
Depositsin foreign offices 0.64 0.35 1.02 0.82 0.52
Tota interest-bearing deposits 0.16 0.14 0.14 0.15 0.19
Short-term borrowings 1.14 0.45 0.05 0.04 0.07
Medium- and long-term debt 1.51 1.45 1.80 1.68 1.45
Interest expense as a percentage of interest-bearing sources 0.38 0.34 0.29 0.29 0.33
Interest rate spread 2.92 2.54 2.46 2.56 2.70
Impact of net noninterest-bearing sources of funds 0.20 0.17 0.14 0.14 0.14
Net interest margin as a percentage of earning assets 3.12% 2.71% 2.60% 2.70% 2.84%
Ratios
Return on average common shareholders’ equity 9.34% 6.22% 6.91% 8.05% 7.76%
Return on average assets 1.04 0.67 0.74 0.89 0.85
Efficiency ratio (a) 58.57 67.53 66.93 64.16 68.72
Common equity tier 1 capital as a percentage of risk weighted
assets (b) 11.68 11.09 10.54 n/a n/a
Tier 1 capital as a percentage of risk-weighted assets (b) 11.68 11.09 10.54 10.50 10.64
Total capital as a percentage of risk-weighted assets 13.84 13.27 12.69 1251 13.10
Common equity ratio 11.13 10.68 10.52 10.70 10.97
Tangible common equity as a percentage of tangible assets (c) 10.32 9.89 9.70 9.85 10.07
Per Common Share Data
Book value at year-end $ 46.07 $ 4447 $ 43.03 41.35 39.22
Market value at year-end 86.81 68.11 41.83 46.84 47.54
Market value for the year
High 88.22 70.44 53.45 53.50 48.69
Low 64.04 30.48 39.52 42.73 30.73
Other Data (share data in millions)
Average common shares outstanding - basic 174 172 176 179 183
Average common shares outstanding - diluted 178 177 181 185 187
Number of banking centers 438 458 477 481 483
Number of employees (full-time equivalent) 7,999 7,960 8,880 8,876 8,948

(a) Noninterest expenses as a percentage of the sum of net interest income (FTE) and noninterest income excluding net securities gains (losses).

(b) Ratios calculated based on the risk-based capital requirements in effect at the time. The U.S. implementation of the Basel 11l regulatory
capital framework became effective on January 1, 2015, with transitional provisions.

(c) See Supplemental Financial Data section for reconcilements of non-GAAP financial measures.

n/a - not applicable
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized as of February 14, 2018.
COMERICA INCORPORATED
By: /s/ Ralph W. Babb, Jr.

Ralph W. Babb, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities indicated as of February 14, 2018.

/s Ralph W. Babb, Jr. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
Ralph W. Babb, Jr. Director (Principal Executive Officer)
/s Muneera S. Carr Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Muneera S. Carr (Principal Financial Officer)
/s Mauricio A. Ortiz Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
Mauricio A. Ortiz (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s Michael E. Collins
Michael E. Collins Director
/s Roger A. Cregg
Roger A. Cregg Director
/s T. Kevin DeNicola
T. Kevin DeNicola Director
/9l Jacqueline P. Kane
Jacqueline P. Kane Director
/s/ Richard G. Lindner
Richard G. Lindner Director
/sl Barbara R. Smith
Barbara R. Smith Director

/9 Robert S. Taubman
Robert S. Taubman Director

/s Reginald M. Turner, Jr.

Reginald M. Turner, Jr. Director
/9 NinaG. Vaca
NinaG. Vaca Director

/s Michael G. Van deVen
Michael G. Van de Ven Director
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